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The franchise is the right to develop, own and operate, as part of the CycleBar® system, a fitness studio
that provides indoor cycling classes/instruction and other related exercise classes using designated equipment.
The total investment necessary to begin operation of a single traditionalCycleBar studio is $351;475337,720 to
$§9—1—,87§«511,455, which includes $985ﬂ§77 500 to $4—9—1—97§«80 000 that must be paid to franchlsor or 1ts
afﬁhates Sl oy 44 = fra a—fra : a-sty ; 3

You and we may also enter into an area development agreement under which you would agree to
acquire an agreed upon number of franchises and open an agreed upon number of studios within a designated
development area and pursuant to an agreed upon opening schedule. Under the area development agreement,
you must commit to developing at least 3 outlets. The total investment necessary to enter into an area
development agreement for the right to develop three CycleBar Sstudios ranges from $426:475412,720 to

$576,875586,455, which includes (a) the total initial investment to begin operation of your initial CycleBar
Studio-frem-a-traditional-site, less the initial franchise fee, and (b) a development fee of $135,000 which must
be paid to usfranchisor or its affiliates.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain English. Read the disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You
must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payments to the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Trevor Lucas at CycleBar Franchising
SPV, LLC, 17877 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Irvine, California 92614, and at (513) 815-8467.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,”
which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade
Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find

more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also
try to obtain this information from others, like
current and former franchisees. You can find
their names and contact information in Item 20
or Exhibits I and J.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item
7 lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial
ability to provide support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial
statements. Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable, growing, or
shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised
outlets.

Will my business be the only CycleBar
business in my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete
with you.

Does the franchise have a troubled legal
history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or
its management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a CycleBar
franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits I and J list current and
former franchisees. You can contact them to
ask about their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you
should look for. Review all 23 Items and all
Exhibits in this disclosure document to better
understand this franchise opportunity. See the
table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if
you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples
may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market,
and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate
your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other
creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends that franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your
state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in
Exhibit B.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to
your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of
Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve disputes
with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in California. Out-of-state
mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for
disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in
California than in your own state.

2. Sales Performance Required. You must maintain minimum sales performance levels. Your
inability to maintain these levels may result in loss of any territorial rights you are granted,
termination of your franchise, and loss of your investment.

3. Unopened Franchises. The franchisor has signed a significant number of franchise
agreements with franchisees who have not yet opened their outlets. If other franchisees are
experiencing delays in opening their outlets, you also may experience delays in opening your
own outlet.

4. Short Operating History. The franchisor is at an early stage of development and has a
limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier investment than a franchise
in a system with a longer operating history.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if
any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE FOLLOWING APPLY TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED BY
THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW ONLY

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(a)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(&)

A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in the Michigan Franchise Investment Act.
This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and
all claims.

A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term
except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice
thereof and a reasonable opportunity which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such
failure.

A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not
reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This
subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is
prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same
business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee
does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to
other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require
a renewal provision.

A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise,
except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first

refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current
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reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(ii1) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with
all lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement or area development agreement
existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement or area development agreement and has failed to cure the
breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been
made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less
than $100,000, the franchisor shall, at the request of a franchisee, arrange for the escrow of initial
investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training, or other items included in the franchise offering are
fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:
Michigan Attorney General’s Office, Consumer Protection Division, Attention: Franchise Section, G.
Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor, 525 West Ottawa Street, Lansing, Michigan 48933, Telephone
Number: 517-373-7117

Note: Despite subparagraph (f) above, we intend;-and-we-and-you-agree to fully enforce the arbitration
provisions of the franchise agreement and the area development agreement. We believe that
paragraph (f) is uneconstitutionalpreempted by federal law and cannot preclude us from enforcing these
arbitration provisions. Yeu-acknowledge that-weWe will seek to enforce this section as written.

THE MICHIGAN NOTICE APPLIES ONLY TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE RESIDENTS OF
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MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR, ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

99 ¢ 99 ¢ E3]

To simplify the language, this disclosure document (this “Disclosure Document”) uses “we,” “us,” “our,
“Franchisor” or “CycleBar” to mean CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, the franchisor. “You” means the person,
corporation, partnership or other entity that buys the franchise and those of your owners who personally assume
and guaranty performance of your obligations under your agreements with us. Terms used but not defined in this
Disclosure Document (including various capitalized terms) have the meanings given to them in the Franchise
Agreement attached as Exhibit A—+A to this Disclosure Document (the “Franchise Agreement”).

Franchisor

We do business under the name CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, or in some cases, simply as
“CycleBar.” We do not do business under any other name. Our principal business address is 17877 Von Karman
Ave., Suite 100, Irvine, CA 92614, and our business phone number is (513) 815-8467. We are a Delaware limited
liability company formed on March 6, 2023.

Except as provided in this Item, we have not and do not offer franchises in any other line of business and
we have not otherwise been involved in other substantive business activity.

Predecessors and Internal Reorganization

CycleBar® franchises were first offered in January 2015 by CycleBar Franchising, LLC (“Predecessor”)
who continued to offer franchises for CycleBar-branded studios (“Studios”) until March 2023. Predecessor also
offered, from March 2017 to September 2017, the right for certain franchisees to operate area representative
businesses, which recruited and provided certain support and services to CycleBar franchisees. Predecessor has
temporarily operated Studios in connection with the reacquisition of Studios from franchisees for purposes of
resale to new franchisees.

To facilitate the possibility of future funding and financing opportunities (each a “Financing
Opportunity”) for our parent entities—which,—throush—theirsubsidiaries;—ownand-grantfranchisesforten—(10)
different-brands, we and our affiliates engaged in an internal reorganization, effective March 15, 2023 (the
“Reorganization”), pursuant to which we acquired from Predecessor, and currently own, the Marks (defined
below) and other intellectual property related to the development and operation of Studios and the CycleBar
system. We began selling franchises for the Studios as of April 4, 2023. The Franchise Agreements, Area
Development Agreements and certaln other agreements related to Stud1os that were signed by Predecessor before
the Reorgamzatlon mati—with—Predeec : € TCE ! e—the

éa%eeﬂ%eh—v%begaﬂ—eﬁfeﬂﬂgﬁ&nd—semﬂg—ﬁ&nemses-}were ass1gned to us as of December 31, 2023

Parents and Potential Financing Opportunity

As part of the Reorganization, our direct parent, XPOF Assetco, LLC (“Assetco”), was created. As
described in Item 21 of this Disclosure Document, Assetco guarantees our obligations as franchisor. Assetco’s
current direct parent is Xponential Fitness, LLC (“Xponential”). Xponential, via an intermediate holding
company, is controlled by Xponential Fitness, Inc. (“XFI”), which is a publicly traded company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol “XPOF.” We anticipate that, if a Financing Opportunity occurs, it would
be conducted by newly created indirect parents (immediately upstream of Assetco) and that our and Assetco’s
only involvement in the Financing Opportunity would be to guarantee the obligations of our newly created
indirect parents who are involved in the transaction. We expect that guarantee would cause the leverage ratio of
debt to “Adjusted EBITDA” of Xponential and its subsidiaries (including us) to increase in an amount not
determinable unless and until the details of the Financing Opportunity are determined. “Adjusted EBITDA”

1.
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means EBITDA (net income/loss before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization), adjusted for the impact of
certain non-cash and other 1tems that we do not consider in our evaluatlon of ongomg operatmg
performance. Adéi Hinaneing ; he—then ng—Fra :

Affiliates

Currently, there are 10 brands within the portfolio of brands owned and franchised by subsidiaries of
Xponential: AKT®, BFT®, Club Pilates®, CycleBar®, Lindora®, Pure Barre®, Row House®, Rumble®, Stretch
Lab®, Stride®-and Yoga Six® (collectively, the “Xponential Brands™).

Our affiliate, AKT Franchise SPV, LLC (“AKT SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has offered
franchises for fitness studios that provide indoor fitness classes/instruction through a combination of circuit
training, dance cardio, Pilates, and yoga under the AKT® trademark (“AKT Studios”) since April 2023. Our
affiliate, and predecessor to AKT SPV, AKT Franchise, LLC (“AKT”), a Delaware limited liability company,
previously offered franchises for AKT Studios from July 2018 through March 2023. While AKTFSPV-isthe
eurrentfranchisor of AKT Studios AKT remains-thefranchisorunder-theseThe franchise agreements-and, area
development agreements-for, and certain other agreements related to AKT Studios as-ef-the-date-efthis Diselosure
Deocumentthat were signed by AKT before the Reorganization were assigned to AKT SPV as of December 31,
2023. As of December 31, 20222023, there were 2611 franchised AKT Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, BFT Franchise SPV, LLC (“BFT SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has offered
franchises for fitness studios that provide functional, group training fitness instruction and related services under
the BFT® trademark (“BFT Studios”) since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to BFT SPV, BFT
Franchise Holdings, LLC (“BFT”), a Delaware limited liability company, previously offered franchises for BFT
Studios from January 2022 through March 2023. While BEF-SPV-is-the-eurrentfranchisor of BET-Studies; BET
remains—the—franchisorundertheseThe franchise agreements-and, area development agreements—er, and certain
other agreements related to BFT Studios as—ofthe-date-of this Disclosure Documentthat were signed by BFT
before the Reorganization were assigned to BFT SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 20222023,
there were twe32 franchised BFT Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, Club Pilates Franchise SPV, LLC (“CP SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has
offered franchises for fitness studios that provide Pilates and other exercise classes under the CLUB PILATES®
trademark (“Club Pilates Studios™) since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to CP SPV, Club Pilates
Franchise, LLC (“CP”), a Delaware limited liability company, previously offered franchises for Club-PiatesCP
Studios from March 2015 through March 2023. While-CP-SPV-is-the-eurrentfranchisor-of Club-PHates-Studios;
CPremains—thefranchisorundertheseThe franchise agreements—and, area development agreements—fer, and
certain other agreements related to Club Pilates Studios as—ef-the—date—ofthis Diselosure Documentthat were
signed by CP before the Reorganization were assigned to CP SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31,
20222023, there were 756868 franchised Club Pilates Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, PB Franchising SPV, LLC (“PB SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has offered
franchises for fitness studios that provide indoor fitness classes/instruction through a combination of Pilates,
weights and ballet, including using a ballet barre, under the PURE BARRE® trademark (“Pure Barre Studios”)
since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to PB SPV, PB Franchising, LLC (“PB”), a Delaware limited
liability company, previously offered franchises for Pure Barre Studios from 2012 through March 2023. While
PB-SPV-istThe eurrentfranchisere efagreements area development agreements and certain other agreements
related to Pure Barre Studlos crains-thetranek F hose—tranck SFCCTE F
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Reorganization were assigned to PB SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 20222023, there were
618615 franchised Pure Barre Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, Row House Franchise SPV, LLC (“RH SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has
offered franchises for fitness studios that offer rowing and free weight exercise instruction under the ROW
HOUSE® trademark (“Row House Studios™) since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to RH SPV, Row
House Franchise, LLC (“RH”), a Delaware limited liability company, previously offered franchises for Row
House Studios from December 2017 through March 2023. While RH-SPV-is-the-eurrentfranchisor of RewHouse
Stadies; RH-remains-thefranchisorunderthoseThe franchise agreements-and, area development agreements—for,
and certain other agreements related to Row House Studios as-ef-the-date-ofthis Diselosure Documentthat were
siened by RH before the Reorganization were assigned to RH SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December
31, 26222023, there were 8265 franchised Row House Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, Rumble Franchise SPV, LLC (“RF SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has
offered franchises for fitness studios that offer and provide boxing classes/instruction and other related exercise
classes under the RUMBLE® trademark (“Rumble Studios™) since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to
RF SPV, Rumble Franchise, LLC (“RF”), a Delaware limited liability company, previously offered franchises for
Rumble Studios from March 2021 through March 2023. Whie RE-SPV-is—the—eurrentfranchisor-of Rumble
Studios; RE-remains-thefranchiserunder-theseThe franchise agreements-and, area development agreements—for,
and certain other agreements related to Rumble Studios as—ef-the-date—ofthis Diselosure Documentthat were
signed by RF before the Reorganization were assigned to RF SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31,
20222023, there were 3564 franchised Rumble Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, Stretch Lab Franchise SPV, LLC (“SL SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company, has
offered franchises for fitness studios that provide stretching classes in both private and group formats, related
therapy activities and, if approved, a proprietary “flexologist” training programs under the STRETCH LAB®
trademark (“Stretch Lab Studios”) since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to SL SPV, Stretch Lab
Franchise, LLC (“SL”), a Delaware limited liability company, previously offered franchises for Stretch Lab
Studios from December 2017 through March 2023. While SE-SPV-istheeurrentfranchisorof Stretech-Lab
Stadies;SE-remains-the-franchisor under-theseThe franchise agreements-and, area development agreements—for,
and certain other agreements related to Stretch Lab Studios as-ef-the-date-of-this Diselosure Documentthat were
signed by SL before the Reorganization were assigned to SL SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31,
20222023, there were 283429 franchised Stretch Lab Studios in operation.

Our affiliate, StrideYoga Six Franchise SPV, LLC (“SEYS SPV”), a Delaware limited liability company,
has offered franchises for fitness studios that offer and provide indoor runningyoga classes/instruction and other
related fitressexercise classes and—instructions—throush—the—use—of treadmills—andtive—instruetion—under the
STRIDEYOGA SIX® trademark (“StrideYoga Six Studios™) since April 2023. Our affiliate, and predecessor to
SEYS SPVF;-Stride, Yoga Six Franchisinge, LLC (“SEYS”), a Delaware limited liability company, previously
offered franchlses for StHdeYoga Six Studlos frorn Feb%&%y—Z@i—‘)September 2018 through March 2023. While

F15-th 0 e 3 : heseThe franchise agreements-and,
area development agreements—feFSmd%Sﬂiées—&s—eﬁﬂ%da%%eﬁﬂﬁs—D%esw%Dee&mem and certain other
agreements related to Yoga Six Studios that were signed by YS before the Reorganization were assigned to YS
SPV as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 20222023, there were 47185 franchised StrideYoga Six

Studios in operation.
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Lindora Franchise, LLC (“Lindora Franchisor”), a Delaware limited liability company, has offered

franchises for Lindora clinics that provide or arrange for the provision of certain medical and non-medical
products and services under the LINDORA® trademark (“Lindora Clinics”) since December 2023; however,
Lindora Franchise became our affiliate in January 2024. As of December 31, 2023, there were 31 franchised
Lindora Clinics in operation.

Since 2018, our affiliate, Xponential Fitness Brands International, LLC (“XFB International”), a
Delaware limited liability company, has offered master franchises and unit franchises outside the United States for
Studios and for fitness studios developed and operated under the various other Xponential Brands;—with

Ryand N A A R o
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Our affiliate, CycleBar Canada Franchising, LLC (“CycleBar Canada”), a British Columbia unlimited
liability company, offers franchises for CycleBar Studios in Canada. CycleBar Canada began offering franchises
for CycleBar Studios in Canada in August 2015. CycleBar Canada has never owned or operated a Studio nor
offered franchises for Studios in the United States.

Our affiliate, Xponential Gift Cards, LLC (“XGC”), a California limited liability company, manages the
branded gift card programs for various Xponential Brands. XGC has never owned or operated a Studio or offered
franchises for Studios.

All of the entities referenced in this Item 1 share our principal business address, except that CycleBar
Canada has a registered office at 2200 HSBC Building, 885 West Georgia Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 3E8
Canada. Neither we nor any other entity described in this Item 1 has owned or operated a Studio or offered
franchises in this or any other line of business except as specifically described in this Item 1. We have no other
predecessors, parents or affiliates that are required to be disclosed in this Item 1.

For purposes of this Disclosure Document, AKT SPV, BFT SPV, CP SPV, PB SPV, RH SPV, RF SPV,
SL SPV, SESPV-and YS SPV are together referred to as the “Affiliate SPV Franchisors,” and AKT, BFT, CP,
PB, RH, RF, SL, SE-and YS are together referred to as the “Affiliate Prior Franchisors.”

Agent for Service of Process

Our agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit B.

The Franchise We Offer

Traditionel-Stnds

We offer for sale a franchise to operate a Studio at a specific location (each a “Franchise”) pursuant to the
terms of our form of franchise agreement attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A—+A (the “Franchise
Agreement”). We expect that all Studios will typically operate from a commercial space of approximately 1,500
to 2,000 square feet located within a retail shopping center. We may, however, consider alternative sites, on a
case-by-case basis, at a franchisee’s request.

If you are granted a Franchise, you must operate your Studio at a location that we approve (the
“Authorized Location”). You must sign the Franchise Agreement to be granted a Franchise for your Studio. If
you are a legal entity, such as a limited liability company, partnership, or corporation, each person who directly or
indirectly owns a 10% or greater ownership in you (each, a “Guarantor”’) must sign and deliver to us our then-
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current form of Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment (a “Guaranty”), and one of your Guarantors
must be designated as an “Operating Principal,” who has the authority communicate with us and otherwise act on
your behalf in all matters relating to your Studio.

Each Studio offers indoor cycling classes and any other services that we authorize (collectively, the
“Approved Services”). Studios are established and operated under a comprehensive design that includes spacious
interior, atleastforty-fivetofifty-frre-exercise bikes, exercise equipment/apparatuses necessary to provide the
Approved Services, technology integrations and services (including our proprietary in-hour and online music
database referred to herein as “CycleBeats®,” and our proprietary in-house and online performance metric
database referred to herein as “CycleStats®”), specifications, and procedures for operations; quality customer
service; management and financial control; training and assistance; and advertising and promotional programs
(which we call our “System”). The System’s standards, specifications and procedures (collectively, the “System
Standards”) are described in our confidential operations manual (the “Manual”). The System and the Manual, and
their various components, may be modified, discontinued, and further developed in our discretion.

Your Studio must engage at least one individual that is capable of and authorized to provide fitness
instruction and other Approved Services at all times (an “Authorized Instructor”). To be an Authorized Instructor,
the individual must attend and complete our proprietary “linstructor Bbootcamp” (the “Instructor Bootcamp”),
which is designed to provide individuals with guidelines and information on how to provide the Approved
Services in accordance with our current System Standards.

Area Development Rights

We also offer qualified individuals and entities the right to acquire multiple Franchises (the
“Development Rights”) within a designated geographical area (the “Development Area”) under our current form
of area development agreement, which is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit K (the “Development
Agreement”). The Development Agreement will provide a designated schedule in which you (or your affiliates)
dule”).

nd he Develon o e m am-Eraneh OU-MAY-eO it to-acquiring—is-three—For
each Franchise you acquire pursuant to the Development Agreement, you (or your affiliate) will sign our then-
current form of Franchise Agreement. When you sign the Development Agreement, you will also sign your +#first
Franchise Agreement in the form attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit A—+A. Each subsequent
Franchise Agreement you sign will be our then-current form, and it might contain terms that are materially
different than those found in our current form, including with respect to fees.

)
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You will be required to pay us a one-time development fee that will be calculated based on the number of
Studios you commit to develop under the Development Agreement (the “Development Fee”), but you will not be
required to pay any other initial franchise fee at the time you execute your franchise agreements for each
Franchise we grant to you or your affiliates pursuant to the Development Agreement.

Market and Competition

The market for fitness services and studios is crowded. You will face competition for members from
other cycling studios, gyms, personal trainers, fitness/exercise centers and studios, health clubs, yoga and Pilates
studios, and even other System franchisees. While traditionally not seasonal, Studios may see some fluctuations
in membership sales after the first of the calendar year and during the summer months.

Laws, Rules, and Regulations

Some states require that health/fitness facilities have a staff person available during all hours of operation
that is certified in basic cardiopulmonary resuscitation or other specialized medical training. Some state or local
laws may also require that health/fitness facilities have an automated external defibrillator and/or other first aid
equipment on the premises. Certain states and local governments have passed laws relating specifically to
health/fitness facilities, including laws requiring bonds if a health and fitness facility sells memberships valid for
more than a specified time period, requiring facility owners to deposit into escrow certain amounts collected from
members before the facility opens (so-called “pre-sale” memberships), and imposing other restrictions on
memberships that health and fitness facilities sell. At a minimum, your Studio will be subject to various federal,
state and local laws, and regulations affecting the business, including laws relating to membership agreements,
zoning, access for the disabled, and safety and fire standards. You may need the local fire marshals or other local,
state or federal agency’s permission before you begin operations. In addition, there may be local licensing and
employment regulations, including worker’s compensation insurance requirements.

You must acquire and maintain certain licenses, permits, and authorizations to operate your Studio under
the applicable laws of where your Studio is located. Among other things, you will need to ensure that all music
played by you or your Authorized Instructors at your Studio is properly licensed for use in connection with the
provision of the Approved Service, or if permitted by us, any other purpose.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Trevor Lucas: Brand President

Mr. Lucas has been our Brand President since March 2023. He has also served as our Predecessor’s
Brand President since June 2020. Previously, Mr. Lucas was our Predecessor’s Senior Vice President of
Operations from June 2019 to May 2020. Prior to that time, Mr. Lucas was our Predecessor’s Director of Finance
from December 2017 to June 2019. Mr. Lucas is based in Los Angeles, California.

Ryan Junk: Chief Operating Officer

Since March 2023, Mr. Junk has served as our Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Operating Officer of
Assetco and each of the Affiliate SPV Franchisors. Since Mareh202+January 2024, Mr. Junk has also served as
the Chief Operating Officer of Lindora Franchisor, and since March 2021, Mr. Junk has served as the Chief
Operating Officer of each of the Affiliate Prior Franchisors, except BFT. Since July 2020, Mr. Junk has also
served as Xponential’s Chief Operating Officer. From November 2017 to June 2020, Mr. Junk served as the
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President of Predecessor. From March 2021 to February 2024, Mr. Junk served as the Chief Operating Officer of
Stride Franchise, LLC, and from March 2023 to February 2024, he served as the Chief Operating Officer of Stride
Franchise SPV, LLC. Since June 2016, Mr. Junk has also served as a Consultant and Owner of R.L.J. Consulting
Group, LLC in Redondo Beach, California. Mr. Junk is based in Irvine, California.

Sarah Luna: President

Since March 2023, Ms. Luna has served as our President and the President of Assetco and each of the
Affiliate SPV Franchisors. Since Mareh-2021+January 2024, Ms. Luna has also served as the President of Lindora
Franchisor, and since March 2021, Ms. Luna has served as the President of each of the Affiliate Prior Franchisors,
except BFT. Since January 2021, Ms. Luna has also served as Xponential’s President. From March 2021 to
February 2024, Ms. Luna served as the President of Stride Franchise, LLC, and from March 2023 to February
2024, she served as the President of Stride Franchise SPV, LLC. From October 2018 to January 2021 Ms Luna
served as the Brand President of PB;-an : HAA ved-a e
President. Ms. Luna is based in Irvine, Cahforma

John Meloun: Chief Financial Officer

Since March 2023, Mr. Meloun has served as our Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
of Assetco and each of the Affiliate SPV Franchisors. Since January 2024, Mr. Meloun has also served as the
Chief Financial Officer of Lindora Franchisor. Mr. Meloun has also served as the Chief Financial Officer for
AKT, CB, and PB (each since October 2018), and RH, RF, SL, SE—and YS (each since March 2021). From
March 2021 to February 2024, Mr. Meloun served as the Chief Financial Officer of Stride Franchise, LLC, and
from March 2023 to February 2024, Mr. Meloun served as the Chief Financial Officer of Stride Franchise SPV,
LLC. Mr. Meloun has also served as Xponential’s Chief Financial Officer since July 2018. EremMarch2045-te

o5

Meloun is based in Irvme Cahforma

Andrew Hagopian: Chief Legal Officer

Since March 2023, Mr. Hagopian has served as our Chief Legal Officer and the Chief Legal Officer of
Assetco and each of the Affiliate SPV Franchisors. Since January 2024, Mr. Hagopian has also served as the
Chief Legal Officer of Lindora Franchisor. From March 2023 to February 2024, Mr. Hagopian served as the
Chief Legal Officer of Stride Franchise, LLC and Stride Franchise SPV, LLC. Since March 2023, Mr. Hagopian
has also served as the Chief Legal Officer of Xponential. From June 2022 to February 2023, Mr. Hagopian served
as General Counsel of Newlight Technologies, Inc., based in Huntington Beach, California. From January 2021 to
June 2022, Mr. Hagopian served as General Counsel for BetMGM, based in Las Vegas, Nevada. From December
2016 to December 2020, Mr. Hagopian served as Chief Corporate Counsel for MGM Resorts International, based
in Las Vegas, Nevada. Mr. Hagopian is based in Irvine, California.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

Pending Actions Involving Parent, Predecessor or Affiliate
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Dance Fitness Michigan LLC, et al. v. AKT Franchise, LLC, et al., filed August 30, 2023, Superior Court
of the State of California, County of Orange, Case No. 30-2023-01345433-CU-AT-CXC—A—group-of former
franchisees—of AKTStudios—{(nameby; (the “AKT Lawsuit”). This action was filed by certain former AKT
franchisees and their purported owners after AKT initiated an arbitration against and sought damages from certain
of them for breaches of their franchise agreements. In addition to the relief described below, the plaintiffs seek
declaratory and injunctive relief to allow them to litigate their claims in this action rather than in the original
arbitration proceedings initiated by AKT. In this action, one or more of the following parties: Dance Fitness
Michigan LLC, Property Maintenance, Inc., 6pk Mason LLC, 6pk Liberty LLC, Teeny Turner LLC, S2 Fitness
Enterprises, LLC, Soros & Associates, LLC, and AdEdge Services Inc.}-and-theirpurpoerted-owners{(namely,
Deanna Alfredo, Amanda Davis, Nisha Moeller, Samantha Cox, Suzanne Fischer, Nichole Soros, Michael Soros,
Paul Dumas and—Jodi Dumas) and Laura Hannan (collectively, the “AKT Plaintiffs”)—manyuef—whem—are

ﬁled—a—eemplaﬂatt—agamst assert that one or more of the followmg partres AKT AKT SPV Al@[—Asset@co

Xponentlal XFI, Xpenentral—Held—mgs—H:&H&W Franch1se Intermed1ate Holdmgs LLC, smd—measianals

empleyees—énamel—yXponentral Intermed1ate Holdmgs LLC, H&W Investco LP, H&W Investco 11 LP LAG F it,

Inc., MGAG LLC, Anthony Geisler, Mark Grabowski, Melissa Chordock, Elizabeth “Liz” Batterton Cooper,
Alexander Cordova, Lance Freeman, Ryan Junk, Megan Moen, John Meloun, Sarah Luna, Tori Johnston, Justin
LaCava Bobby Tetsch Jenathan—"l"—yhekl—Brandon eres Jason Losco, Brittney Holobinko, Amy Wehrkamp,
M 3 Ry-an z Scott Svilich, Sarah Nolan, Emily Brown,
Rachel Markov1c) and Brenda Morr1s (collectrvely, the “AKT Defendants”)—Plaintiffs—alege—among—other
things—that-one—er—more—of the Defendants: (a) violated pre-sale disclosure obligations under the California
Franchise Investment Law, the Michigan Franchise Investment Law and the Florida Franchise Act by failing to
provide a compliant Franchise Disclosure Document and failing to disclose certain information thatPlaintiffsthey
contend was required to be disclosed by, and making certain statements they contend were reqﬂdfredmcorrect and
Eroh1b1ted under, those laws have-bee e § e e

contend Were erroneous ( the “Pre Sale Drsclosure Claims’ ) (b) fraudulently 1nduced them to purchase franchises;

( c) breached the implied covenant of good fa1th and fa1r dealmg, (@—frandulent&md&eed—th&lllamﬁﬂfs—teﬁee&te

&anel&se%(e)—breaehed—anthe “Covenant Clarm”) (d) breached a purported agreement to provrde certarn
financing ek R aintifs; and (ge) engaged
in unfair and deceptwe trade pract1ces The AKT Plaintiffs seek rescission of various franchise agreements actual
and special damages, attorneys’ fees, costs and interest. AKT Defendants have been served with the complaint
and all have filed, or are in the process of filing, a demurrer to the complaint.

Enlightened Armadillo, Inc., et al. v. Yoga Six Franchise, LLC, et al., filed November 22, 2023, Superior

Court of the State of California, County of Orange, Case No. 30-2023-01367265-CU-AT-CXC. This is an action
filed by the same attorney who represents the AKT Plaintiffs in the AKT Lawsuit. The plaintiffs are two Yoga Six
franchisees (Enlightened Armadillo, Inc. and Snug Holding Company LLC) and their purported owners (Mark
Hrubant, Ella Hrubant, and Melinda Sung) (collectively, the “Y6 Plaintiffs’’) who assert essentially the same Pre-
Sale Disclosure Claims (with respect only to the California Franchise Investment Law) and Covenant Claim (as to
the Yoga Six entities only) against YS SPV, YS, Assetco, Xponential, XFI, Xponential Intermediate Holdings
LLC, H&W Franchise Intermediate Holdings LLC, Lag Fit Inc., H&W Investco LP, H&W Investco II LP,
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MGAG LLC, Anthony Geisler, Mark Grabowski, Lindsay Junk, Nate Chang, Jason Losco, Lance Freeman, Ryan
Junk, Megan Moen, John Meloun, Sarah Luna, Brenda Morris, and Justin LaCava (collectively, the “Y6
Defendants”). The Y6 Plaintiffs seek declaratory and injunctive relief regarding the enforceability of the
mandatory arbitration provisions in the franchise agreements, rescission of their franchise agreements, actual and
special damages, attorneys’ fees, costs and interest. Y6 Defendants have been served with the complaint and all
have filed, or are in the process of filing, a demurrer to the complaint.

In addition to the franchise-related lawsuits described above, XFI and certain of its officers have been
named in securities-related lawsuits that are pending as of the date of this Disclosure Document. First, in the
Taylor General Lawsuit (defined below), the named plaintiff initiated a putative class action in which it purports
to be a shareholder of XFI during a designated “Class Period” (July 26, 2021 through December 7, 2023) and
seeks to represent itself and other similarly shareholders who held shares during the designated Class Period.
Similarly, in the Akande Lawsuit (also defined below), the named plaintiff initiated a derivative lawsuit on behalf
of XFI regarding defendants’ alleged actions during the same Class Period. Each complaint alleges that the
defendants made certain omissions and misstatements of material facts in certain of XFI’s publicly disclosed and
filed documents during the designated Class Period in violation of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder (the “SEC Claims”) and seeks compensatory
damages, interest, and costs (including attorneys’ and experts’ fees). As of the date of this Disclosure Document
there are two currently pending securities-related lawsuits and, given the nature of these types of claims, we
expect additional similar lawsuits to be filed on behalf of other XFI shareholders, with respect to the same set of
facts, by law firms competing to be named as lead counsel.

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, each of the following cases is in the initial pleadings stage.

City of Taylor General Employees Retirement System v. Xponential Fitness, Inc., Anthony
Geisler, and John Meloun, filed February 9, 2024, United States District Court for the Central District of
California, Southern Division, Case No. 8:24-cv-00285 (the “Taylor General Lawsuit”).

Gideon Akande v. Anthony Geisler, John Meloun, Jair Clarke, Mark Grabowski, Chelsea A.
Grayson, Brenda Morris, and Xponential Fitness, Inc., filed March 10, 2024, United States District Court
for the Central District of California, Western Division, Case No. 2:24-c¢v-01928. In addition to the SEC
Claims, the plaintiff alleges that the defendants (i) breached fiduciary duties, mismanaged XFI’s business,
and wasted XFI’s assets, (i1) were unjustly enriched, and (ii1) abused their ability to control and influence
XFI. In addition to the relief described above, plaintiff seeks (i) an order directing XFI and the individual
defendants to improve XFI’s corporate governance, and (ii) restitution by the individual defendants (the
“Akande Lawsuit”).

Completed Actions Involving Parent, Predecessor or Affiliate

Anderson Holdings, Inc. et al. v. CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC et al., Case No. 1:18-cv-131-HSO-JCG
(United States District Court for the Southern District of Mississippi, Southern Division). On April 18, 2018, a
complaint was filed by Anderson Holdings, Inc., a former franchisee of Predecessor who had operated a
franchised business since October 10, 2016, and Leslie Anderson Suit, alleging fraudulent and negligent
misrepresentation, violations of Miss. Code. Ann. § 72-24-55 and the Ohio Business Opportunity Plans Act §§
1334.01 et seq. and related claims against Predecessor and other named defendants, seeking compensatory,
incidental and consequential damages. The parties agreed to amicably settle the matter, with (a) Predecessor
agreeing to acquire all rights, title and interest in and to the exercise bikes and certain other equipment used at the
franchisee’s Studio from the franchisee for approximately $28,000, (b) Franchisee agreeing to dismiss this action
with prejudice, (c) the parties agreeing to mutually terminate this former franchisee’s franchise agreement and
provide mutual releases of each other with respect to all claims as of that date, by entering into an otherwise
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confidential settlement agreement dated November 19, 2018. Neither Predecessor nor any other named party
admitted any kind of liability as part of this settlement.

Other-than-the-actionExcept as provided above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEMS
INITIAL FEES

Franchise Agreement

Initial Franchise Fee

You must pay to us a lump sum initial franchise fee of $60,000 (the “Initial Franchise Fee”) to establish a
single Studio under a Franchise Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee is due upon the signing of the Franchise
Agreement. The Initial Franchise Fee will be fully earned by us upon payment and is not refundable, in whole or
in part, under any circumstance. If you are purchasing an existing Studio from a System franchisee, you will pay
us a $30,000 training fee in lieu of the Initial Franchise Fee. Except as disclosed in this Item, we uniformly
impose the Initial Franchise Fee on all parties that are purchasing a single Studio.

Initial Instructor BoetcampTraining Feef s}(in Connection with tnitietAuthorized Instructors)

You must ensure that your initial staff of Authorized Instructors attends and completes the Instructor
Bootcamp training before you open your Studio, which will be provided virtually by one our “Master
Instructors,” and which currently has a program tuition fee of $5,000 (the “Initial Instructor Training Fee”). You
must pay us the Initial Instructor Beeteamp—FuitionTraining Fee prior to completion of the Instructor Bootcamp.
This paymentisnetamount is payable in lump sum, non-refundable under any circumstances, and will be imposed

uniformly.
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On-Site Grand Opening Assistance

We may, but are not required to, send one (1) or more representatives to your Studio to provide assistance
and recommendations regarding your opening and initial operations, and/or provide additional or refresher
training associated with any required initial training (“On-Site Grand Opening Assistance”). If we provide On-
Site Grand Opening Assistance, you will pay us a $2,500 training fee. The fee is paid in lump sum, deemed fully
earned upon payment, uniformly imposed, and is nonrefundable under any circumstances.

Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory PackageKit

Prior to opening your Studio, you must purchase from us an initial inventory kit (the “Pre-Sales and Soft
Opening Retail Inventory PaekageKit”), which includes, but is not limited to, presale merchandise and other
apparel that will be available for resale as part of your Approved Products, including items branded with the
Marks, and other t-shirts, towels, exercise clothing and related accessories.

The cost of the Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory PackageKit is $12,000, which weis collected
in the form of a credit in our online retail store that you can draw against when picking out the components of
your Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory Kit. We require that you use all of your credit within 6 months
of the opening of your Studio. We may require you to pay te-us immediately upon execution of your Franchise
Agreement. TheThis amount paid—isis payable in lump sum, non-refundable under any circumstances and is
deemed fully earned upon payment. We expect to impose this charge for the kit uniformly.

You are required to use certain of these items in coordination with the pre-opening sales plan we approve
or designate for your Studio, which is designed to generate prospective Studio clientele and members and
otherwise promote the Studio prior to opening (the “Opening Support Program™). We anticipate that you will
begin the pre-sales phase abeutt—+teapproximately two (2) months before you open your Studio (the “Pre-Sales
Phase”).

Reduced Technology Fee

You will be required to commence paying us our then-current monthly technology fee (the “Technology
Fee-menthly”), which is currently $715 per month, when you beginopen your Studio. However, upon the
commencement of your Pre-Sales Phase, you must begin paying us a reduced Technology Fee in the amount of
$250 per month. As such, we estimate that your payment of Technology Fees for two (2) months prior to;and-the

three-(3)menths-after the opening of your Studio will be $3;575500. The Technology fFee is deemed-fully-earned
upeon-paymentandispayable in lump sum, uniformly imposed, and non-refundable under any circumstances.

Note Regarding £xercise BikeFitness Equipment & Initial FF&E Package-andiniticd FFE PackaseLeasedfrom

Additienally,—eOur standard Efranchise offering assumes and—expeets—that you will lease—the—initial
package—efacquire the Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E Package under a lease-to-own or comparable
arrangement with a third-party Approved Supplier (as defined in Item 8). The “Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E
Package” includes: includes: (i) a studio fixture package (comprised of a millwork bundle (front desk, slatwall,

cubbies), millwork accessories and other related supplies; (ii) fitness equipment (n-addition-te-the Exereise Bike
11.
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Package)furniturefixtures-andand other operational equipment we designate to be used in Studios (eeHeetively;
e PEE D R — L e i 7

to-lease-and-possess-the-Initial FEE Packagee.g. bikes, weight bars); equipment accessories (e.g., shoes, cleats),
(1i1) other items related to the outfitting and design and buildout of your Studio; and (v) the installation and
transportation of the foregoing items, which may vary depending on the geographic location of your Studio. If,
however, you determine to outright purchase the(without financing) the Fitness Equipment & Initial FFE&E
Package, we may require that you purchase thatsuch package from us or our affiliate (the cost of which we
estimate to be $65;000approximately in the range of $129,200 to $142,000 and would be due prior to opening and
non-refundable upon payment). Rather than purchasing the(without financing) the Fitness Equipment & Initial
FFE&E Package, our standard offering assumes and expects that you will leaseacquire the Fitness Equipment &
Initial FFE&E Package under a lease-to-own or comparable arrangement to increase or facilitate cash flow during
early operations.

Development Agreement

If we award you the right to acquire Franchises for three (3) or more Studios within a given Development
Area, you must pay us a one-time Development Fee in a lump sum upon execution of your Development
Agreement. Your Development Fee will depend on the number of Studios we grant you the right to open within
the Development Area, and is calculated as follows: (i) $45,000 per Studio if you agree to open and operate
between three (3) and five (5) Studios; (ii) $40,000 per Studio if you agree to open and operate between six (6)
and nine (9) Studios; and (iii) $35,000 per Studio if you agree to open and operate ten (10) or more Studios.

You will be required to enter into our then-current form of franchise agreement for each Studio you wish
to open under your Development Agreement, but you will not be required to pay an Initial Franchise Fee at the
time you execute each of these Franchise Agreements. If you enter into a Development Agreement, you must
execute our current form of Franchise Agreement for the first Studio we grant you the right to open within your
Development Area concurrently with the Development Agreement.

Your Development Fee will be deemed fully earned upon payment; and is not refundable under any
circumstances. The Development Fee described above is calculated and applied uniformly to all of our
franchisees.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty 7% of Gross Sales Payable weekly You will be required to start paying your
generated by your via electronic Royalty once your Studio begins collecting
Studio over the relevant | funds transfer revenue from operations. We may collect
reporting period ! (“EFT”) based on | your Royalty on a different interval (for

the Gross Sales of | example, monthly).
your Studio
during the
preceding
business week

Contributions to | Currently, 2% of Gross | Payable weekly at | Your contributions (the “Fund

Brand Sales ! the same time and | Contributions”) to the Brand Development
Development in the same Fund (the “Fund”) will begin when your
Fund 2 manner as the Studio begins generating revenue from
Royalty operations-
12.
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Type of Fee Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Currently, $350 per

Lnetes Then-current tuition fee- | Prior to the You must have at least one (1) individual who
Beoteamp Instructor completes our Instructor Bootcamp.
Tuition Bootcamp-

- Currently, You will be responsible for the costs and
for-Initial $5.000/day5,000 per expenses associated with Initial Instructors
Instructor session completing the Instructor Bootcamp (e.g.,
Training Fee (in employee payroll expenses and Initial
connection with Instructor Beeteamp-FuitienTraining Fee).
Inital You may elect to have
Authorized us complete your Please see Item 11 for additional information.
Instructors) tors) 1ns.tr1.10tor recruiting and

training for you for our

then-current fee

(currently, $1,500 to

$2,500), plus the costs

and expenses our Master

Instructor incurs for any

necessary travel

(estimated to be $2,500)
Instructor Then-current program As incurred You will be responsible for the costs and
Bootcamp fee expenses associated with each Subsequent
Tuition Instructor completing the Instructor Bootcamp

(e.g., employee payroll expenses and

trainee and, if required,
$75 for any re-
attendance for a given
individual

(for Subsequent
Instructors)

(for Subsequent | Instructor Subsequent Instructor Bootcamp Tuition Fee).
Instructors)

Please see Item 11 for additional information.
Authorized Then-current fee- At time of request | This fee is payable for the cost of our review
Instructor Video if a prospective Subsequent Instructor, in lieu
Review Fee Currently, $350 per of completing Instructor Bootcamp, provides

us with certain videos demonstrating his or
her ability to provide the Approved Services
in accordance with System standards.

Please see Item 11 for additional information.
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Additional
Training Fee

Then-current training
fee for the type of
training at issue (the
“Training Fee”)
(currently, a standard
fee of $500/day per
trainer)

Prior to training-

This fee is paid in connection with additional
training/instruction that we may provide on an
ongoing basis in connection with the overall
operation and development of your Studio.

We will only charge our standard Training
Fee in connection with training that (a) you
request we provide, or (b) we are required to
provide on-site at your Studio. We will not
charge this fee in connection with training
that we require you to attend at our corporate
headquarters or other training facility we
designate.

We will not charge any training fee in
connection with minor, day-to-day assistance
that we provide remotely over the phone or
via email, subject to our availability. In
addition to our then-current training fee, you
will always be responsible for the costs and
expenses that are incurred in connection with
you and your personnel attending training.

Renewal Fee

$10,000

At time of
renewal-

You must renovate and reimage the Studio at
your expense at the time of renewal to
conform to our then-current standards and
image-

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC

2023162024 FDD

13201)10.002;/392—7—8—1-397895

14.




Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Transfer Fee

Franchise Agreement:
$10,000

Development
Agreement: $10,000 per
undeveloped franchise

Upon your request

for our approval
of any proposed
transfer

Instead of the standard transfer fee, we will
only charge an administrative fee amounting
to: (1) $500 if you are an individual franchisee
and assigning your franchise and/or
development agreements rights to an entity
that you fully own; or (ii) $1,500 if the
assignment is from an existing System
franchisee to another immediate family
member.

Payment of the transfer fee is one (1) of the
conditions you must satisfy in order to assign
an interest in your Franchise Agreement, your
Studio, and/or you (if you are a business
entity). There are other various other terms
and conditions upon which we may condition
or approval or consent to any such transfer.

You may be afforded the option — but do not
have the obligation — to enter into an
agreement with Xpenentialour affiliates for
resale assistance and access to certain third-
party broker networks. Should you determine
to enter into this agreement, you will be
responsible for (a) the third-party broker fees
(currently, 40% of the purchase price), and (b)
a broker access fee amounting to 10% of
purchase price for any of the assignable assets
that are sold to a prospect, if we or broker
network generate the prospect.

Technology Fee

Currently, $715 per
month

Payable monthly
at the same time
and in the same
manner as the
Royalty-

We charge you an-en-geinga recurring
Technology Fee to help cover the costs and

expenses associated with developing,
implementing, licensing or otherwise using
and integrating the technology we determine
appropriate to provide as part of the System
or otherwise in connection with your Studio
and/or Studio network.

Music
Licensing Fee

Amounts charged by the

As invoiced or

We may require that music licensing fee (the

providers and/or

appropriate clearing
house(s) for such music

licensing

otherwise agreed

“Music Licensing Fee”) amount be paid to

our then-current Approved Supplier, which
may be us or our affiliate, that determines to
handle and manage these licenses for System
franchisees.

As of the date of this Disclosure Document,
the franchisees pay this amount directly to the
third-party Approved Suppliers.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC

2023162024 FDD

1320])10.002;/392—184-397895

15.




Type of Fee Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Relocation Fee | $5,000

Upon submission
of a proposal to

You will not be permitted to relocate your
Studio without our prior written approval,

relocate which may be withheld in our discretion.
We may assess a relocation fee of $5,000 at
the time you submit the proposed location for
your relocated Studio. Generally, we do not
approve requests to relocate your Studio after
a site selection has been made and you have
opened for business unless (a) it is due to
extreme or unusual events beyond your
control, and (b) you are not in default of your
Franchise Agreement.
If we approve your relocation request, we
retain the right to approve your new site
location in the same manner and under the
same terms that are applied to your first site
selection.

Insurance Amount of unpaid As agreed Payable only if you fail to maintain required

Policies * premium insurance coverage and we elect to obtain

coverage for you-

Mystery el As arranged Payable only if we establish a mystery

Shopper and If charged-by-our shopper program or other quality control

Other Quality , Eempresed e lies mechanism/program, in which case we may

Control forsuch-programs require a franchisee to contribute up to

Programs $500/year to help defray the costs of such
et programs that are designed to preserve the
Sommresad e e goodwill and brand image.
charges-a-fec-amounting
te-$500/year

Audit Fees * Costs incurred by us in | Within 15 Payable only if (a) an audit or review shows
connection with calendar days an understatement of Gross Sales for the
conducting audit after receipt of audited period of 2% or more, or (b) the audit

audit report: or review is being conducted in response to
Currently, we estimate your failure to timely submit any reports
that such costs will required by your Franchise Agreement.
typically be between
$500 - $2,500 (plus
costs of any travel)

Late Fees The lesser of (a) the Upon demand- Applies to all amounts not paid when due,
highest applicable legal until paid in full. We may also require you to
rate for open account pay an administrative fee of $50 for each late
business credit, or (b) payment or late report.

1.5% per month
16.
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Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Non-
Compliance Fee

Then-current fee
charged by us

Currently, $100 for each
day of non-compliance

Upon demand-

Payable only in the event you fail to comply
with your material obligations under your
Franchise Agreement. The Non-Compliance
Fee will be incurred during each day of non-
compliance.

Cost of All costs including Upon settlement | You will reimburse us for all costs in
Enforcement or | attorneys’ fees or conclusion of enforcing our obligations concerning the
Defense claim or action- Franchise Agreement if we prevail-
Indemnification | All costs including Upon settlement | You will defend suits at your own cost and
attorneys’ fees or conclusion of | hold us harmless against suits involving
claim or action- damages resulting from your operation of the
Studio-
Alternative $1,500 per day for At time of request: | Additionally, you must reimburse us for any
Supplier personnel engaged in travel, accommodations, and meal expenses-
Approval 3 evaluating a supplier,

plus costs and expenses

Regional Co-Op

As the Co-Op
determines

As the Co-Op
determines

We may establish regional cooperatives
comprised of Studios that are within a given
geographical area (each, a “Co-Op”). If a Co-
Op is established where your Studio is
located, you will be required to participate in
that Co-Op and contribute to that Co-Op in
the amounts the Co-Op determines.

Extension of
Time to Open
your Studio

Then-current fee,
currently $2,500

Upon request for
extension of time

You are required to open your Studio within
six months of executing your Franchise
Agreement, but we may agree in writing to
provide you with an additional three months
to open your Studio if you (a) have already
secured an Approved Location for your
Studio, and (b) are otherwise making diligent
and continuous efforts to buildout and
otherwise prepare your Studio for opening
throughout the six (6) month period following
the execution of your Franchise Agreement;
however you must pay us our then-current fee
as a condition to granting any extension of
time.

Management
Fee

The reasonable
costs/expenses we
incur in connection
with taking over
operations, including
manager’s salary, room
and board, travel
expenses, and all other
related expenses

When incurred

If we take over the operations of your Studio
due to your breach of the Franchise
Agreement (or your death or disability), we
may take all actions necessary to operate the
Studio-

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Lost Revenue The applicable amount | Upon termination | If you terminate the Franchise Agreement

Damages of Lost Revenue of Franchise without cause or we terminate the Franchise
Damages, as further Agreement Agreement for your breach, you must pay us
defined in the Remarks an amount equal to the net present value of:

(1) the lesser of 36 or the number of calendar
months remaining on the term of the
Franchise Agreement absent termination,
multiplied by (2) the sum of the Royalty and
Fund Contribution percentages in effect as of
the termination date, multiplied by (3) the
average monthly Gross Sales of your Studio
during the 24 full calendar months
immediately preceding the termination date,
minus (4) any cost savings we experienced as
a result of the termination. However, if (i) as
of the termination date, your Studio had not
operated a full 24 calendar months, monthly
average Gross Sales will equal the highest
monthly Gross Sales achieved during the
period in which you operated your Studio,
and (ii) if the termination was based on your
unapproved closure of your Studio, average
monthly Gross Sales would be based on the
24 full calendar months immediately
preceding the closure of your Studio.

Notes to Item 6 Table:

All fees are uniformly imposed by and are payable to us, unless otherwise noted. No other fees or
payments are to be paid to us, and we do not currently impose and collect any other fees or payments for any third
party. Any fees paid to us are non-refundable unless otherwise noted. Fees payable to third parties may be
refundable based on your individual arrangements.

I Gross Sales. Except as provided below, the term “Gross Sales” means the total revenue, in whatever
form, generated by your Studio, whether or not in compliance with your Franchise Agreement and regardless of
receipt, including all revenue generated from the sale and provision of any and all gift cards and other products
and services at or through your Studio and all proceeds from any business interruption insurance related to the
non-operation of your Studio. Please note that the following are excluded from Gross Sales: (a) any sales tax and
equivalent taxes that you collect for or on behalf of any governmental taxing authority and paid to it, and (b) the
value of any allowance issued or granted to any client of the Studio that you credit in good faith in full or partial
satisfaction of the price of the Approved Products or Approved Services offered in connection with your Studio.
You must participate in our then-current electronic funds transfer and reporting program(s). All fees owed and
any other amounts designated by us must be received or credited to our account by pre-authorized bank debit by
5:00 p.m. P.S.T. on or before the applicable due date. Your Studio may be located in a jurisdiction whose taxing
authority will subject us to tax assessments on payments you submit to us for the Royalty fees and Fund
Contributions. Under such circumstances, you will be required to adjust, or “gross up” your payment to us to
account for these taxes.

2 Brand Development Fund. We (and our affiliates) have established a-brand-developmentfund(the
“Fund?) and you will be required to make a-weekly eontribution—towards—sueh-Fund (“Fund-Contributions %)
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| A

beginning the date your Studio begins collecting revenue from business operations. The Fund Contributions may
be used for (among other things) product development; signage; creation, production and distribution of
marketing, advertising, public relations and other materials in any medium, including the internet; social media;
administration expenses; brand/image campaigns; media; national, regional and other marketing programs;
activities to promote current and/or future Studios and the brand; agency and consulting services; research; and
any expenses approved by us and associated with your Studio. We will have sole discretion over all matters
relating to the Fund. You must pay for your own local advertising.

3 Insurance Policies. The minimum limits for coverage under many policies will vary depending on
several factors, including the size of your Studio, and the number of classes offered at your Studio. See Item 8 of
this Disclosure Document for our minimum insurance requirements.

4 Audit Fees. You will be required to reimburse us for the cost of the audit in the event that (a) an audit
discloses an understatement of Gross Sales for the audited period of two percent (2%) or more, or (b) the audit or
review is being conducted in response to your failure to timely submit any reports required by your Franchise
Agreement. You will also be required to pay the amount of such understatement, plus late fees and interest.

> Alternative Supplier Approval. You may request the approval of an item, product, service or supplier.
We may require you to pre-pay any reasonable charges connected with our review and evaluation of any proposal.

ITEM 7
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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Franchise Agreement —Fraditional Studio
Type of Low High Method of When Due To Whom Payment
Expenditure ! Amount Amount Payment Is to be Made
L | i o
Initial Franchise Fee ? | $60,000 $60,000 f Franchise Us
check or bank
. Agreement
wire
Initial Tralmn% $0 $0 N/A N/A N/A
Program Fees
On—Sl.te Graqd . $0 $2,500 As arranged As incurred Us
Opening Assistance
Travel & Living Transportation
Expenses While $0 $2,500 As arranged As incurred Carriers, Hotel
Training ° Facilities, Etc.
Real Estate/Lease and | $16;86025 [ $46,70635,0 . Landlord; Attorneys;
. p == == As arranged As incurred
Professional-Fees ,000 00 Accountants
Approved Suppliers
Net Leasehold $H2.0001 | $2600,000244 . (Third-Party),
Improvements ’ 29,000 ,730 As arranged As incurred Architects and
Contractors
19.
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Type of Low High Method of When Due To Whom Payment
Expenditure ! Amount Amount Payment Is to be Made
Lease-Payments in
Connection with
E e Bl '
Paekage-andFitness $12,5008, | $22,00022,7 As required Before Opening Approyed Supplier
. — 600 00 (Third-Party)
Equipment & Initial — —
FFEPackage’&E
Package ®
Signage and $148;00011 | $23,06026,9 MWL mved
e hies? 000 05 As Incurred As Incurred Suppliers (Third-
E— = Party) and ¥Vendors
Additional Operating
Supplies and $10,000 $10,000 As Incurred As Incurred Third party vendors
Accessories '
Pre-Sales and Soft
Opening Retail .
12 12 L Befi
Inventory PackageKit $12,000 $12,000 ump Sum efore Opening Us
11
Fe s e ey .
System’? $18.000 $18:000 Lump-Sum Before Opening Us
Audio
VisualComputer .
55000 55 0004 Approved
S st.e m, A’V $55:00044 | $55,00644.9 As Incurred As Incurred Suppliers (Third-
Equipment™, and 200 00 Party) and ¥Vendors
Related Components -
12
Business Licenses**!? $500 $1,000 As Incurred As Incurred Government
Agencies
Technology and $3.5753.6 Us and Approved
Software Fees for5 ’ 20 == | $3,5753.620 As arranged As arranged Suppliers (Third-
months™!4 = Party)
e
Insurance*® Policies '* | $1,100 $2,600 As arranged Before Opening GWQL ro.ved
Supplier (Third-
Party)
Initial Grand Opening Suppr lieris%%dved
Marketing Budget"& | $15,000 $15,000 As Incurred As Incurred -
Advertisiig Spend 6 Party) and ¥Vendors
S
Initial Instructor
Boeteamp**Training $5,000 $5,000 As arranged As arranged Us
Fi 17
onths® $12.000 $23.000 As-arranged As-ineurred Ueilini
20.




1326 0 Low High Method of To Whom Payment
Expenditure ' Amount Amount When Due

Payment Is to be Made

months™ $3.575 $3.575 As-arranged As-arranged Us
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Type-of Low High Method-of WhenD To-Whom-Pavment
Expenditure' Amount Amount et isto-be Made

Insuranee®® S0s0 $2.550 e e e e
Grand Opening St $15;600 Third party-vendors
Marketine Budeet Astneurred AsIneurred
Instructor Booteamp!™ $5,000 $5.000 As arranged As arranged Us
Additional Funds; - 3 | $40;00012 | $25;00023.0 As arraneed As incurred Employees, Vendors,
months*® 18 ,000 00 & Utilities
Totel Estimated
Initial
InvestmentTOTAL | $185,1253 | $343.125511
ESTIMATED 37,720 455
INITIAL
INVESTMENT:

Notes to Tables A-and B-inltem-7:

All amounts payable to us are non-refundable, unless otherwise noted. Amounts payable to
suppliers/vendors are refunded according to arrangements you make with the vendor, if any. These figures are
estimates of the range of your initial costs in the first three (3) months of operation only. Leasing and financing is
available for many of the above expenses. We do not offer direct or indirect financing, but we may assist you in
obtaining working capital through other sources, as described in Item 10 below.

! General. The initial investment table shows certain expenditures required to establish and operate a
Studio. This Item 7 assumes and expects that you—-will(a) lease-the Exereise Bike Package-and-the Initial FFE
Packageand(bithe size of your Studio will be within 1,500 and 2,000 square feet; (b) you will acquire the
Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E Package under a lease-to-own or comparable arrangement with a third party
Approved Supplier, instead of outright purchasing it; and (c) you will timely perform all pre-opening obligations
and open and commence operations of your Studio within the time periods prescribed in your Franchise
Agreement. All estimates listed in the table above exclude tax.

2 Initial Franchise Fee. The Initial Franchise Fee is non-refundable. The Initial Franchise Fee for a

single Studio is $60,000. We do not provide financing for the Initial Franchise Fee. If you are purchasing an
existing Studio from a Systern franchlsee you will pay us a $30 000 tralmng fee i in heu of the Initial Franchlse

3 Initial Training Program Fee. There is no training fee due in connection with the cost of providing
our initial training program to you, your Operating Principal, and your Designated Manager; however, you may
be required to pay a training fee for: (i) each person in excess of three trainees; (ii) each person who is repeating
the course or replacing a person who did not pass; and (iii) each subsequent Operating Principal, Designated
Manager, or employee who attends the course. See Items 6 and 11.

4 On-Site_ Grand Opening Assistance. We may, but are not required to, send one (1) or more
representatives to your Studio to provide assistance and recommendations regarding your opening and initial
operations, and/or provide additional or refresher training associated with any required initial training. If we
provide On-Site Grand Opening Assistance, you will pay us a $2,500 trainingon-site opening assitance fee.
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5> Travel and Living Expenses While Training. You (or, if you are an entity, your Operating Principal)
must attend our proprietary Initial Training Program. We will not charge any tuition or training fee in connection
with your attendance Initial Training Program, provided all individuals attend at the same time. The estimate in
the-ChartTable A above assumes that you (or, if you are an entity, your Operating Principal) will attend the Initial
Training Program, and you will be responsible for the costs and expenses associated with attending our Initial
Training Program (e.g., transportation, meals, lodging and other expenses). The amount you will spend while
training will depend on several factors, including the number of persons attending, the distance you must travel
and the type of accommodations you choose, if any are needed.

¢ Real Estate/Lease. If you do not own adequate Studio space, you must lease suitable premises. Fhese
figures-assuime-that the leased-premises—will-be-approximately As noted above, our model requires that the size of
a typical Studio will range from 1,500 to 2,000 square feet, and the amounts shown are based on that range. We
may consider variances, at your request, on a case-by-case basis. In addition to base rent, the lease may require
you to pay common area maintenance charges, your pro rata share of the real estate taxes and insurance, and your
pro rata share of HVAC and trash removal, wh1ch are included in the ranges prov1ded above. You will also l1kely
be required to pay a security deposit. This estin -
one(-menth-ef rent—This-estimate includes three (3) months of base rent plus one (1) rnonth for est1mat1ng the
security deposit. This estimate is also designed to cover the legal and other professional fees associated with
securing an approved premises.

7 Net Leasehold Improvements

Stadie—HThis estimate includes the net cost of leasehold improvements, including ﬂoor coverings, wall
treatments, ceilings, pa1nt1ng, electr1cal carpentry, plumbmg, HVAC, and s1m1lar work, as Well as rnater1als and
the cost of labor. W §

butld-out-costs:This est1mate also 1ncludes fees for profess1onal services of architect and sound consultant as Well
as permitting fees related to building construction. This estimate assumes that the size of your Studio will be in
the range of 1,500 to 2,000 square feet. We expect that you will not sign a lease unless the landlord is willing to
provide a reasonable tenant improved allowance which, in our experience, has ranged from $42.000 to $159.000,
or an average of $99,000, and an average of three (3) months’ rent abatement which, in our experience, is on
average approximately $12.000.

8 Payments in Connection with Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E Package. The “Fitness Equipment
& Initial FF&E Package” includes: (i) a studio fixture package (comprised of a millwork bundle (front desk,
slatwall, cubbies), millwork accessories and other related supplies; (ii) fitness equipment and other operational
equipment we designate to be used in Studios (e.g. bikes, weight bars); equipment accessories (e€.g., shoes,
cleats), (1i1) other items related to the outfitting and design and buildout of your Studio; and (v) the installation
and transportation of the foregoing items, which may vary depending on the geographic location of your Studio.
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standard Ffranchlse offerlng assumes and expects that a—neWLSystem—fraﬂehﬂquH—leaS%th%reqmred—E*ererse
BikePackage—andyou will acquire the Fitness Equipment & Initial FFE&E Package neecessary—to—open—and
inttially—commenee—operationsunder a lease-to-own or comparable arrangement with a third party Approved
Supplier (we have pre-approved several lenders as of the date of this Disclosure Document). As such, the range
above is designated to capture and account for (a)-the typical deposit;-and-{b)-lease{orcomparable-installment)
(0% down for the low estimate and 10% down for the hlgh estimate), a lease filing fee, and the payments that you
w111 make to & : ;

the lender during the first four months of operation of the Studio (first payment at closing plus three

months of ongoing payments). If you determme not to follow our System recommended practrce of leasing
thisfinancing the Fitness eEquipment a ; .

FF &E Packag the estimated cost to purchase thlS equlpment outrlght w111 be sabstanﬂaﬂy—mer%éapprematelry

range of $129 200 to $142 000 and w111 be pald to us or our eles+gnated—s&ppher;oﬁweh—eq4ﬂpmentafﬁhates

° Signage-and-Graphies. You will need to purchase appropriate signage for your Studio that we
approve. Each landlord has different restrictions it places on interior and exterior signage that may affect your
costs. This estimate includes costs associated with permanent signage and graphics only and does not include
optional temporary signage and graphics.

10° Additional Operating Supplies and Accessories. This estimate also includes the cost of purchasing
our approved water system, an initial supply of office supplies and cleaning supplies, a defibrillator, decorative
items, bathroom and shower accessories, toiletries, and other ancillary items used in the operation of the Studio.

1 Pre-Sales and Soft Openlng Retall Package %e%r&mt%rs—theeos%assoebated—w&hﬁaeqmrmg—the

AR ary o 7Y ou will choose the components of the
Pre- Sales and Soft Openlng Retall Inventory K1t from our branded online retail store which includes, but is not
limited to, pre-sale merchandise, branded apparel made up of tops, bottoms, and accessories. The entire package
must be purchased prior to Ssoft Gopening. Shipping is not included. The cost of the Pre-Sales and Soft Opening
Retail Inventory Kit is collected in the form of a credit in our online retail store that you can draw against when
picking out the components of your Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory Kit. We require that you use all
of your credit within 6 months of the opening of your Studio.

2 Computer System, A/V Equipment, and Related Components. You will be required to purchase an
Audio Visual Package and Computer System, as disclosed more fully in Item 11 of this Disclosure Document.
Your Computer System must meet our specifications. Your studio must be equipped with a high speed internet
connection through a local area network for access to certain web-based business management software programs
specific for the studio. You must purchase these components from designated vendors and must execute any
related software licenses these vendors require. We will make available to you a certain business management
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software program specific for the Studio to be loaded on to your system. These costs are paid to suppliers, when
incurred, before beginning business and are usually not refundable.

14 Technology and Software Fee(ss). This estimate is designed to cover our current Technology Fee
and other software Fee obligations from the-eommenecement-efwhen you begin the Pre-Sales Phase {of opening
your Studio, which we estimated te-beyou will begin two (2) months prior to opening) your Studio, and over the
ﬁrst three (3) months of operatlon for a total of five (5) months of payments e e
3 As of the date of this Disclosure
Document (1) the Technology Fee is $715 per month (durmg the Pre-Sales Phase, we will charge you a reduced
Technology Fee of $250 per month), and (ii) the software fee is $195 per month.

15 Tnsurance. This estimate is for three (3) months of your minimum required insurance, using our
required or approved third-party vendor. FThe-actual-costmay be-mere-than-shewn-here—You will need to check
with your insurance carrier for actual premium quotes and costs, and for the actual amount of deposit. Insurance
costs ean—vary—widely,—baseddepend on the area in which your Studio is located, your experience with the
insurance carrier, the loss experience of the carrier, the amount of deductibles and of coverage, and other factors
beyond our control. You should obtain appropriate advice from your own insurance professional before signing
any binding documents or making any investments or other commitments, whether to us or anyone else.

16 Tnitial Grand Opening Marketing & Advertising Spend. You are required to exspend this
“amount set forth in the table above on your grand opening initial marketing program (the “Initial Grand Opening
Marketing & Advertising Spend”) in coordination with your Opening Support Program. Typically, we expect
your Opening Support Program to commence prior to the “soft opening” of your Studio through your actual
opening of the Studio. These funds must be expendedspent on your Opening Support Program and any other pre-
opening marketing and/or advertising activities we designate. We may require that you exspend any portion of
these funds on services or product supplied by one or more of our Approved Suppliers. We will have the right to
modify its Opening Support Program as we determine appropriate in our sole discretion. You must provide us
with supporting documentation evidencing these expenditures upon our request. This estimate is in addition to
your required contributions to the Fund.

17 Tnitial Instructor BeeteampTraining Fees. Our Instructor Bootcamp is an instructor onboarding

training. It is for all initial instructors you and other System franchisees engage to work at a Studio location.

18 Additional Funds. This is an estimate of certain funds needed to cover your business (not personal)
expenses during the first three (3) months of operation of the Studio. These expenses include Music Licensing
Fee; initial personnel wages; ongoing purchases of equipment and supplies; marketing expenses/fees and local
advertising; utilities; and repairs and maintenance. Your cost will depend upon your management skill, experience
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and business acumen; local economic conditions; the prevailing wage rate; competition; and sales of the Studio
during the period.—Fhis-estimate-is

The estimates in this Item 7 are based on: (i) theour franchisees’ experience ef-epening-and-commenecing

ep%a&e&s—ef—%%mg in develogmg Studlos (11) our and our. Predecessor s experlence in elhng franchlsmges

p%ewdefor the Studlos; (iii) the experience of e&r—aéfﬁhate bF&ndsSPV Franchlsors and Afﬁhate Prlor
Franchisors in developing other fitness concepts and information related to their respective studio investment
costs; and-(iv) current estimates we have received from our Approved Suppliers and other third party vendors:;
and (v) our affiliates’ experience in developing and/or operating Studios and franchises of other Xponential
Brands. The availability and terms of financing to you will depend upon factors such as the availability of
financing in general, your creditworthiness, the collateral security that you may have, and policies of lending
institutions concerning the type of business you operate. This estimate does not include any finance charge,
interest, or debt service obligation.

CB. Development Agreement (Using Example of Franchise Award to Develop 3 TFraditional-Studios)

. Method of To Whom Payment Is to
1
Type of Expenditure Amount Payment When Due be Made
Lump sum, in cash, | At signing of the
Development Fee 2 $135,000 certified check or Development Us
bank wire Agreement:
$294:475277,7
Initial Investment to 20 to ) .. .
Open Initial Studio 3 $441.875451 4 See Table A of this Item 7, less the Initial Franchise Fee-
55
This is the total estimated initial investment to enter into a
TOTAL $426;475412,7 | Development Agreement for the right to develop three (3) total
ESTIMATED 20 to franchised Studios, as well as the costs to open and commence
INITIAL $576,875586.,4 | operating your initial Studio for the first three months—frem—=a
INVESTMENT: 3 55 traditional-site, as described more fully in Table A of this Item 7.
See Note 3.
Notes to Table €B:

! General. All amounts payable to us are nonrefundable, unless otherwise noted. Amounts payable to
suppliers/vendors are refunded according to arrangements you make with the vendor, if any. These figures are
estimates of the range of your initial costs in the first three months of operating the initial Studio you are granted
under your Development Agreement only.

2 Development Fee. If we award you the right to acquire multiple Franchises for Studios within a given
Development Area, you must commit to developing and opening a minimum of three (3) Studios and pay us a
one-time Development Fee upon your execution of the Development Agreement. Your Development Fee will
depend on the number of Studios you commit to develop and open within the Development Area, and is
calculated as follows: (i) $45,000 per Studio if you are awarded the right to develop between three (3) and five (5)
Studios; (ii) $40,000 per Studio if you are awarded the right to develop between six (6) and nine (9) Studios; and
(iii) $35,000 per Studio if you are awarded the right to develop ten (10) or more Studios.

3 Initial Investment for Initial Studio-(fromTraditional-Studie). This figure represents the total estimated
initial investment required to open and commence operating the first Studio you agreed to develop under your
Development Agreement. You will be required to enter into our then-current form of franchise agreement for the
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initial Studio you develop under your Development Agreement, most likely once you have found a premises for
the business that we approve. The range includes all the items outlined in Table 7=A- of this Item 7, except for the
$60,000 Initial Franchise Fee (because you are not required to pay an Initial Franchise Fee for those Studios you
develop under the Development Agreement). It does not include any of the costs you will incur in opening the
additional Studlo(s) that you are awarded the rlght to develop under your Development Agreement —lensepeenll

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

You must operate all aspects of your Studio in strict conformance with the methods, standards and
specifications of our System. Our methods, standards, and specifications will be communicated to you in writing
through our confidential Manual and other proprietary guidelines and writings that we prepare for your use in
connection with the Studio and System. We may periodically change our System Standards, as we deem
appropriate or necessary in our sole discretion, and you will be solely responsible for costs associated with
complying with any modifications to the System.

Approved Products and Approved Services

You may only market, offer, sell and provide the Approved Services, as well as any related merchandise
and other products that we authorize for sale in conjunction with the Approved Services (the “Approved
Products”) at your Studio in a manner that meets our System Standards. We will provide you with a list of our
then-current Approved Products and Approved Services, along with eurtheir standards and specifications, as part
of the Manual or otherwise in writing prior to the opening of your Studio. We may update or modify this list in
writing at any time.

If you wish to offer any product or service in your Studio other than our Approved Products and
Approved Services, or use any item in connection with your Studio that does not meet our System Standards, you

must first obtain our prior written approval as described more fully in this Item.

Approved Suppliers

We have the right to require you to purchase any items or services necessary to operate your Studio from
a supplier that we approve or designate (each, an “Approved Supplier””), which may include us or our affiliate(s).
We will provide you with a list of our Approved Suppliers in writing as part of the Manuals or otherwise in
writing, and we may update or modify this list as we deem appropriate.

Currently, we have Approved Suppliers for the following items that you must purchase in connection
with the establishment and/or operation of your Studio: (i) the Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory

P—aekageKlt (11) the Fltness Equlpment & Inltlal FFE&E Package (111) Hhe—=zsmopeinaoiloe Doelneas (e dhe

3 4 A-interior graphics and exterior signage; (vi)
the aud&e—vts&anl—eqtﬂ-pmeﬁ{Audlo Vlsual pPackage (w#iv) insurance coverage; (viiiv) shipping and installation
services; (ixvi) training materials, including the Instructor Bootcamp Program; and (xvii) certain music licenses
you may need in order to play certain music in connection with your Studio operations (subject to prior disclosure
regarding your sole obligation to investigate and comply with all music licensing requirements):—and—(xi)-the
Seftware—Management—System, including the proprietary point-of-sale system (the “POS System”) and then-
current software we require you to use in connection with that POS System and your Studio, including, without
limitation, any software and technology we determine to provide to you as part of our System in connection with
your then-current Technology Fee.
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We may develop proprietary products for use in your Studio, including private-label products that bear
our Marks, and require you to purchase these items from us or our affiliate(s).

If you wish to purchase a product or service that we require you to purchase from an Approved Supplier
from an alternate source, then you must obtain our prior written approval as outlined more fully in this Item. We
may provide our standards and specifications for our Approved Products and Approved Services directly to our
Approved Suppliers, and may provide these standards and specifications to an alternative supplier you propose if:
(1) we approve the supplier in writing as outlined more fully in this Item; and (ii) the alternative supplier agrees to
sign our prescribed form of non-disclosure agreement with respect to any Confidential Information we disclose.

As of the date of this Disclosure Document: (i) other than the Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail

Inventory Paekasetnitial FEE Package;BikeKit, the Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E Package, Instructor

Bootcamp Program materials, Seftware Management-System-and the technology services we provide in exchange
for our then-current Technology Fee, neither we nor any of our affiliates are an Approved Supplier for any items

you are required to purchase in connection with your Studio as part of our standard franchise offering; and (ii)
none of our officers own an interest in any of our Approved Suppliers other than us. If you determine to outright
purchase yeurExereise Bike Paeckage-orthe(without financing) the Fitness Equipment & Initial FFE&E Package

rather than lease—that-equipmentfrom—one—ef-ouracquiring such package under a lease-to-own or comparable
arrangement with a third party Approved Suppliers-forsuch-leasingserviees, we may designate ourselves or our

affiliate as the Approved Supplier for that package.

We may designate ourselfves or any of our affiliates as an Approved Supplier with respect to any other
item you must purchase in connection with your Studio in the future.

Required Purchases and Right to Derive Revenue

The products or services we require you to purchase or lease from an Approved Supplier, or purchase or
lease in accordance with our System Standards, are referred to collectively as your “Required Purchases.” We
estimate that your Required Purchases in total will be about 80% -to 100% of your total purchases to establish the
Studio and about 35% -to 70% of your purchases to continue the operation of the Studio. Please be advised that
these percentages do not include the lease payments that you make in connection with your Studio.

We may derive revenue from any of the purchases (tems—erserviees)-that our System franchisees are
required to make in connection with the Studio. We-are-in-eurfirstln fiscal year and-have-derived 102023, we did

not receive any revenue orotherconsideration-on-aceount-of-ourSystemfrom the sale of goods and services to
franchisees> Reguired-Purchases, but our Predecessor received $5,779,466 from franchisees.

Non-Approved Products/Services and Alternate Supplier Approval

We may, but are not obligated to, grant your request to: (i) offer any products or services in connection
with your Studio that are not Approved Products and Approved Services; or (ii) purchase any item or service we
require you to purchase from an Approved Supplier from an alternative supplier.

If you wish to undertake either of these actions, you must request and obtain our approval in writing
before: (i) using or offering the non-approved product or service in connection with your Studio; or (ii)
purchasing from a non-approved supplier. You must pay us our then-current non-approved product or supplier
evaluation fee when submitting your request, as well as cover our costs incurred in evaluating your request. We
may ask you to submit samples or information so that we can make an informed decision whether the goods,
equipment, supplies or supplier meet our specifications and quality standards. In evaluating a supplier that you
propose to us, we consider not only the quality of the particular product at issue, but also the supplier’s production
and delivery capability, overall business reputation and financial condition. We may provide any alternate
supplier you propose with a copy of our then-current specifications for any product(s) you wish the supplier to
supply, provided the supplier enters into a confidentiality and non-disclosure agreement in the form we specify.
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We may also inspect a proposed supplier’s facilities and test its products and/or services, and request that you
reimburse our actual costs associated with the testing/inspection.

We will notify you in writing within 30 days after we receive all necessary information and/or complete
our inspection or testing to advise you if we approve or disapprove the proposed item and/or supplier. The criteria
we use in approving or rejecting new suppliers is proprietary, but we may (although are not required to) make it
available to you upon request. Each supplier that we approve must comply with our usual and customary
requirements regarding insurance, indemnification and non-disclosure. If we approve any supplier, we will not
guarantee your performance of any supply contract with that supplier under any circumstances. We may re-
inspect and/or revoke our approval of a supplier or item at any time and for any reason to protect the best interests
and goodwill of our System and Marks. The revocation of a previously approved product or alternative supplier is
effective immediately when you receive written notice from us of revocation and, following receipt of our notice,
you may not place any new orders for the revoked product, or with the revoked supplier.

Purchasing Cooperatives and Right to Receive Compensation

We may, when appropriate, negotiate purchase arrangements, including price terms, with designated and
Approved Suppliers on behalf of the System. We may establish strategic alliances or preferred vendor programs
with suppliers that are willing to supply some products, equipment, or services to some or all of the Studios in our
System. If we do establish those types of alliances or programs, we may: (i) limit the number of Approved
Suppliers with whom you may deal; (ii) designate sources that you must use for some or all products, equipment
and services; and (iii) refuse to approve proposals from franchisees to add new suppliers if we believe that
approval would not be in the best interests of the System.

We and/or our affiliates may receive payments or other compensation from Approved Suppliers or any
other suppliers on account of these suppliers’ dealings with us, you, or other Studios in the System, such as
rebates, commissions or other forms of compensation, which may comprise of fixed payments and/or percentages
of overall sales transactions. During the fiscal year 2023, we did not receive any vendor rebates in connection
with purchases by franchisees, but our Predecessor received allowances, rebates, and leadership conference
sponsorships of $1,337,071. We may use any amounts that we receive from suppliers for any purpose that we
deem appropriate. We and/or our affiliates may negotiate supply contracts with our suppliers under which we are
able to purchase products, equipment, supplies, services and other items at a price that will benefit us and our
franchisees.

We may create additional purchasing cooperatives in the future. We may negotiate volume purchase
agreements with some vendors or Approved Suppliers for the purchase of goods and equipment needed to operate
the Studio.

Franchisee Compliance

When determining whether to grant new or additional franchises, we consider many factors, including
your compliance with the requirements described in this Item 8. You do not receive any further benefit as a result
of your compliance with these requirements.
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Insurance

As a Franchise owner, you are required to obtain and maintain, at your sole expense, the required
insurance coverages as prescribed in your Franchise Agreement and/or our Manual. We may amend, modify,
supplement or otherwise change the coverages or policies required below upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to
you (or such a shorter period of time that we determine appropriate if a health/safety or infringement-related
issue) via the Manual or otherwise. While the specifications and standards for such coverages may vary
depending on the size of your Studio and/or other factors, such as what is customary for businesses of your type
in your area, as of the Issue-Ddate of this Disclosure Document, we typically require the following in-econnection
with-traditional-Studiescoverages:

1. Commercial General Liability insurance covering your day-to-day business operations and
premises liability exposures with limits not less than the following:

a. Each Occurrence: $1,000,000
b. General Aggregate: $5,000,000 (per Studio)
c. Products Completed Operations Aggregate: $5,000,000
d. Personal and Advertising Injury: $1,000,000
e. Participant Legal Liability: $1,000,000
f. Professional Liability: $1,000,000
g. Damage to Premises Rented to You: $1,000,000
h. Employee Benefits Liability (each employee):  $1,000,000
1. Employee Benefits Liability (aggregate): $2,000,000
J- Medical Expense (any one person): $5,000

k. Sexual Abuse and Molestation: included (not excluded)

Such insurance will include coverage for contractual liability (for liability assumed under an “insured
contract”), products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, premises liability, third party property
damage and bodily injury liability (including death).

2. Automobile Liability insurance covering liability arising out of your use, operation or
maintenance of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos, trucks or other vehicles) in connection
with your ownership and operation of the franchise, with limits not less than the minimum compulsory
requirements in your state (note: it is highly recommended to maintain a least $1,000,000 each accident combined
single limit for bodily injury and property damage). This requirement only applies to the extent that owned, leased
or hired/rented vehicles are used in the operation of the Franchise.

3. Workers Compensation insurance covering all of your employees with statutory coverage and
limits as required by state law. Such insurance will include coverage for Employer’s Liability with limits not less
than $500,000 each accident, $500,000 disease — each employee, and $500,000 disease — policy limit.

4. Property insurance written on a special causes of loss coverage form with limits not less than the
current replacement cost of the Studio’s business personal property (including furniture, fixtures and equipment)
and leasehold improvements (tenant improvements). Such Property insurance will include glass coverage with
limits not less than $25,000, signage coverage with limits not less than $10,000, and business interruption/extra
expense coverage with limits not less than twelve months of rent.

5. Employment Practices Liability insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per claim in
the aggregate, with a retention not larger than $25,000, providing defense and coverage for claims brought by any
of your employees or other personnel alleging various employment-related torts. Said policy shall also include

TFhird-PartyThird-Party Employment Practices Liability coverage.

Your policies must be written by an insurance company licensed in the state in which you operate the
Studio and the insurance company must have at least an “A” Rating Classification as indicated in A.M. Best’s
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Key Rating Guide. We, Assetco, and subsidiaries/affiliates shall be included as Additional Insureds on Studio’s
Commercial General Liability policy.

Computer System

Y ou must purchase the computer system that-we-speeifys(including the POS System components, Sstudio
Mmanagement Ssoftware;—and-audio-visual-equipmentas-wel-as, other computer hardware; and software;peint
ef—sal%sys%em inventory control systems, and high-speed network connections we designate (collectively, the

“Computer System”)) and the Audio Visual Package we specify. The component parts of the Computer System
must be purchased from aApproved sSuppliers. If we require you to use any proprietary software or to the Audio
Visual Package purchase any software from a designated vendor, you must sign any software license agreements
that we or the licensor of the software require and any related software maintenance agreements. The Computer
System is described in more detail in Item 11 of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and other agreements. It
will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items

of the Disclosure Document.

S Section in Franchise Section in Disclosure
Obligation Development
Agreement A Document Item
greement
Sections 1.2, 2.2.C, 7.1 and Section 2.D
a. Site Selection and acquisition/lease | 7.2, 8.4.B, 15.1.A(10)-(11), Items 11 and 12
and Exhibit 4
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases §e4ct10ns >4,6.1,and-7.3, and | Not Applicable Items 5, 7 and 8
. Site development and other pre- Article 7 and Sections 6.1, Article 2 Ttems 6.7 and 11
" opening requirements 6.2,6.3,6.5,6.8,and 9.2 ’
d. Initial and ongoing training Sections 5.5 and 6.2 Not Applicable Items 6, 7 and 11
e. Openin Sections 2.2-and, 6.1, and Section 2.C Item 11
» penng 15.1.B(10)
Article 5 and Sections 6.2, Section 2.3,
f. Fees 9.1, 9.2, and-9.4, and Article 4 Items 5 and 6
15.1.B(5)
. . Article 4 and Sections 1.2, Section 2.D
g Cé’lriréli’ehsa/“(c)e Zvrgzlfta;‘;;gzland 22.E,63,65,7.1,73,8.1, Item 11
P perating 8.4, and 8.7
Trademarks and proprietary Article 4-and, Sections 12.1, | Article 5
B information 15.1.A(5), and 15.1.A(8) ltems 13 and 14
. Restrictions on products/services Sections 54;-6-5;and-8.4.A Not Applicable
1. = Items 8 and 16
offered and 15.1.A(13)
i Wa@anty and customer service Sections 8.1 and 8.3 arnd-8-5to | Not Applicable Not Applicable
requirements 8.7
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eyt Section in Franchise Section in Disclosure
Obligation Development
Agreement Document Item
Agreement

Territorial development and sales Sections 8.7 and 15.1.B(12) | Sections 2.C and
: velop 2.D and Exhibit | Item 12

quotas

A

Ongoing product/service purchases aAnrctllglz 9-and, Sections 5.9 Not Applicable Items 8 and 11
‘ Malntengnce, appearance and Sections 7.1 and 8.1 Not Applicable Ttems 6 and 17

remodeling requirements
. Insurance Sections 10.4 and 15.1.B(8) | Not Applicable Items 6, 7 and 8
. Advertising and Fund Article 9-and, Sections 5.6 Not Applicable Ttems 6 and 11

and 15.1.B(5)
. . Sections 4.1, 6.9, 7.1.E, 11.2, | Section 7.B

. Indemnification 15.4. Exhibit 3 Item 6

Owner’s participation/ Sections 2.2.B, 5.5.A, 5.5.B, | Article 1 Ttem 15
" management/staffing 8.3, and 8.6 and-&-7

Records and reports Section 10.1 Article 10 Item 11

Inspections and audits Sections 8.2 and 10.2 Not Applicable Items 11

Section 13.1.B(3), Article 14, | Article 9

Transfer and Section 15. LA(6) Items 6 and 17
. Renewal Section 3.2 Not Applicable Item 17
. Post-termination obligations Article 13 and Section 15.3 Section 8.C Item 17

.. Article 13, Sections Article 6
w. Non-competition covenants 15.1.A(12) and 15.3.G Item 17
. Dispute resolution Article 16 Article 12 Item 17
. Guaranty Section 2.2.B and Exhibit 43 | Exhibit B Item 1, Exhibit D
ITEM 10
FINANCING

We offer indirect financing through the third-party providers described below for certain amounts due
under the Franchise Agreement. The third-party providers listed below sponsor our annual franchise convention
which we share with our aAffiliate SPV fFranchisors listed in Item 1 at a minimum level of $10,000. In addition,
Amerifund pays us a $500 rebate per deal they finance. We do not guarantee your note, lease or any other
obligation. We do not offer direct financing and as such it is not our practice or intent to sell, assign, or discount
any financing arrangement. As security for the performance of your obligations under the Franchise Agreement,
including payments owed to us for purchases by you, you must grant us a security interest in all of the assets used
in the operation of the Studio. If you are an entity, then one (1) or more of your owners may be required to
guarantee the repayment obligations in connection with the program, as the provider determines appropriate.
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Item Source of Down Amount Interes Finance Monthly Prepay | Security Liability IS 9f
Financed | Financing | Payment | Financed LG t Rate Charges Ll Penalty | Required e Legal Right
t Default on Default
s Amerifund | 0% to 20% | $47700014 | 2to S 5:96.9% | $800-to $1,200 | Varies None Lien on Unpaid Lender will
Bike| 1.000 to years to 18% documentation based on financed balance repossess
Packpee $186,00015 and UCC filing amount equipment equipment and
andFjtness 4,000 and termination | financed, only; no schedule
Equipment fees down additional payment plan
& Inftial payment, collateral for balance
FFE&E term, and required due. If lender is
Package, interest able to resell
which rate equipment,
includes resale price
furniture, will be applied
millwork, to balance due.
equipment,
and
shipﬂing:
Exerfise e e I T el I 953% 10 | S300 Varies Ehigibleto | May Lender -Noright of
Bike| $H86:-000 years 3% doeumentation based-on | prepay require: may offset-defense
p&ek,ge 'iﬂd fee 'iﬂd g( S amount 'if{ef ﬁff pef‘@ﬂ'l Ty or-countere ,“'m
e e - | year: : Pe .
Packhae. L down L g y f ‘f 5
whieh payment; | seale equipment | relief Maeroleasesno
iﬂel'Hd% {e‘ﬂﬂ, rlﬂd thefe g]ﬂ']ﬂﬁ'ed; b,) ,ed on ﬁfee et ‘iSH ffﬁﬁq
payment
S
Maerolease-
e Navitas First and $177,60014 | 1to 5 -8:99% 1% origination Varies Sliding Lien on Unpaid Lender can
Bikel last 1,000 to years fee and based on scale; financed balance repossess and
Packhoe months’ $486,00015 documentation amount total of all | equipment; resell
andFftness payments 4,000 fee between financed, | payments | personal equipment
Equipment $595 and $1,500 | term, and | in first guaranty
& Inftial interest year;
FFE&E rate principal
Package, balance
which plus 0%
includes to 5%
furniture, thereafter
millwork,
equipment,
and
shipﬂing:
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ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

A. Pre-Opening Assistance

Franchise Agreement

Before you open your Studio:

1. We will provide you (or, if you are an entity, your Operating Principal), as well as your
Designated Manager (if appointed) of your Studio, with our proprietary Initial Training Program, that at least you
(or, if appropriate, your Operating Principal) will need to complete prior to opening your Studio. We will
typically provide the Initial Training Program within the thirty (30) days prior to your Studio opening, but that
timing will be subject to the availability and schedules of our training personnel. We will provide the Initial
Training Program at our corporate headquarters or other training facility we designate- (Franchise Agreement,
Section 5.5). We will also provide the individual(s) you designate as your prospective initial Authorized
Instructor(s) with our Instructor Bootcamp as described more fully below in this Item- (Franchise Agreement,
Section 5.5)

2. If the Authorized Location for your Studio has not been identified at the time the Franchise
Agreement is signed, we will work with you to designate a geographical area within which you must secure an
Authorized Location for your Studio (“Designated Market Area”)- (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.2).

3. Prior to you attending your required initial training, we will loan you one copy of the Manual,
which contains mandatory and suggested specifications, standards and procedures. The Manual is confidential and
remains our property. We may modify the Manual- (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.3). The Table of Contents of
the Manual is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit F. The primary portion of the Manual currently
consists of 229 pages.

4, We will provide you (through the Manual or otherwise) with specifications for the layout and
design of the Studio (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.1 and 6.3).

5. We will provide you (through the Manual or otherwise) with a list of the eyeling-andcomponents
of the fFitness eEquipment and-gear;standard-fixtares;& Initial FF&E Package, other furnishings, other supplies,
and signs to be used in the Studio, as well as a list of Approved Suppliers; however, we do not deliver or install
these items at your Studio (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.5).

6. 7-We will license you the use of the then-current Marks we designate for use in connection with
Studios (Franchise Agreement, Sections 4.1 and 4.2).
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S—We W111 consult and advise you on %h%ad—\%smg—ma{ketmgﬁaﬂé—pfemeﬁeﬂ—fer—th%é}faﬂé
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and—e%he&p%ale%%m%y—y%kemﬂaekn%mm&en—w&h—meestabhshmg the Pre- Sales Phase and Opemng

Support Program previded-by-eurthen-eurrent-Approved-Supplier—(Franchise Agreement, Section 6.8).

Development Agreement

If you enter into a Development Agreement, we will designate your Development Area and subsequently
review and provide our approval with regards to the premises you propose for each Studio location within the
Development Area- (Development Agreement, Section 2.A, and Exhibit A).

B. Site Selection Assistance and Time to Open

Site Selection Assistance: Franchise Agreement
L Traditional-Stdi

You must assume all costs, liabilities, expenses and responsibility in connection with: (i) locating,
obtaining and developing a premises for your Studio; and (ii) constructing, equipping, remodeling and/or building
out the premises for use as a Studio, all in accordance with our System Standards. If the Authorized Location for
your Studio has not been identified at the time the Franchise Agreement is signed, we will assign you a
Designated Market Area- (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.2).

We may provide you with: (i) our current written site selection guidelines, to the extent such guidelines
are in place, and any other site selection counseling and assistance we determine is appropriate; and (ii) the
contact information of any local real estate broker that we have an existing relationship with and that is familiar
with our confidential site selection/evaluation criteria, if we know any such brokers in or around the Designated
Market Area you are assigned- (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.2). We do not generally own the premises that
System franchisees use for their Studio.

Our guidelines for site selection may require that you conduct, at your expense, an evaluation of the
demographics of the market area for the location. Ideally, the Authorized Location of your Studio will be a major,
national-terant tenant, anchored commercial retail center that meets our then-current requirements for population
density, demographics, available parking, traffic flow and entrance/exit from the site. The typical Studio will be at
leastapproximately 1,500 to 2,000 square feet: (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.2).

If you locate a site, we will approve or disapprove of the site after we receive any and all reasonably
requested information regarding your proposed site from you- (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.2). While we are
not required under the Franchise Agreement to notify you as to whether the site has been approved or rejected
within a certain timeframe, we typically will notify you of our decision within 30 days after you have submitted
all requested information to us regarding the site. We use a software program to evaluate the demographics of a
market area for site selection approval. If we cannot agree on a site, we may extend the time for you to obtain a
site, or we may terminate the Franchise Agreement.

We also have the right and opportunity to review any lease or purchase agreement for a proposed location
before you enter into such an agreement. We may condition our approval of a given premises as an Authorized
Location for your Studio on a number of conditions, including: (i) the lease for such location including the terms
outlined in Section 7.2 of the Franchise Agreement and Exhibit 4_to the Franchise Agreement, including any
Collateral Assignment of Lease as set forth in our then-current Manual, te-the-Franechise-Agreement-in the lease
for the location; and (ii) receiving a written representation from the landlord of the proposed premises that you
will have the right to operate the Studio, including offering and selling the Approved Products and Approved
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Services, throughout the term of your Franchise Agreement: (Franchise Agreement, Sections 2.2.C and 7.2, and
Exhibit 4).

You must secure an Authorized Location that we approve within 90 days of executing your Franchise
Agreement for that Studio or we may terminate that Franchise Agreement- (Franchise Agreement, Section 1.2).

Site Selection Assistance: Development Agreement

You are responsible for locating and presenting to us proposed sites for Studios in the Development Area.
We will use reasonable efforts to review and evaluate the proposed sites within 30 days after receiving all
requested information and materials to evaluate the site. Using our then-current standards, we must approve the
location of each site. If we accept a proposed site, you (or your affiliate) must timely sign a separate Franchise
Agreement for the site- (Development Agreement, Section 2.D).

Time to Open: Franchise Agreement
L Traditional-Stdi

We will authorize the opening of your Studio when (i) all of your pre-opening obligations have been
fulfilled, (ii) pre-opening training has been completed, (iii) all amounts due us have been paid, (iv) copies of all
insurance policies (and payment of premiums) and all other required documents have been received by us, and (v)
all permits have been approved- (Franchise Agreement, Sections 5.4, 5.5, 6.2, and 10.4).

The typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise Agreement and the time you open your
Studio is approximately six (6) months. This assumes that you will timely use the services of our Approved
Suppliers and other resources that we make available to you. Your total timeframe may be shorter or longer
depending on the time necessary to obtain an acceptable premises, to obtain financing, to obtain the permits and
licenses for the construction and operation of the Studio, to complete construction or remodeling as it may be
affected by weather conditions, shortages, delivery schedules and other similar factors, to complete the interior
and exterior of the Studio, including decorating, purchasing and installing fixtures, equipment and signs, and to
complete preparation for operating the Studio, including purchasing any inventory or supplies needed prior to
opening.

You are required to open your Studio within six (6) months of executing your Franchise Agreement, but
we may agree in writing to provide you with an additional three (3) months to open your Studio if you (a) have
already secured an approved premises for your Studio, and (b) are otherwise making diligent and continuous
efforts to buildout and otherwise prepare your Studio for opening throughout the six (6) month period following
the execution of your Franchise Agreement. If you do not open your Studio within the time period set forth in the
Franchise Agreement, we will have the option to terminate your Franchise Agreement: (Franchise Agreement,
Section 2.2).

36.
CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD
1320.010.0023/392781397895



Time to Open: Development Agreement (if applicable)

If you have entered into a Development Agreement to open and operate multiple Studios, your
Development Agreement will include a Development Schedule containing a deadline by which you must have

each of your Studlos open and operatmg (Development Agreement Exhlblt A) —Un%ess—w%ag%%oﬂ&e%s&m—a

C. Our Obligations During the Operation of the Studio

During the operation of your Studio:

1. We will specify or approve certain equipment and suppliers to be used in your Studio (Franchise
Agreement, Sections 6.5 and 7.1).

2. We will provide additional training to you and any of your employees at your request. You are
responsible for any and all costs associated with such additional training (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.2).

eontfol—measafeswﬂl prov1de such contmumg advisory 3551stance and 1nformat10n to you in the development and

operation of the Studio as we deem fit (Franchise Agreement, Section 8€-26.4).

4. 5-We (or our affiliates) will maintain and administer the Fund (Franchise Agreement, Section
9.1).

We may also decide to require fixed maximum or minimum prices for any products or services that you
offer in connection with the Studio (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.6).

D. Advertising and Marketing

Advertising Generally

You are responsible for local marketing activities to attract members to your Studio. We require you to
submit samples of all advertising and promotional materials (and any use of the Marks and/or other forms of
commercial identification) for any media, including the Internet or otherwise. You must first obtain our advanced
written approval before any form of co-branding, or advertising with other brands, products or services-
(Franchise Agreement, Section 9.2).

You must strictly follow the social media guidelines, code of conduct, and etiquette as set forth in the
Manual regarding social media activities. Any use of social media by you pertaining to the Studio must be in good
taste and not linked to controversial, unethical, immoral, illegal or inappropriate content. You will promptly
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modify or remove any online communication pertaining to the Studio that does not comply with the Franchise
Agreement or the Manual- (Franchise Agreement, Section 9.3).

Brand Development Fund

The Fund was established to promote Studios and help promote and develop our System and brand
generally. As of the IssueDdate of this Disclosure Document, your Fund Contribution is two percent (2%) of
your Studio’s Gross Sales. Fund Contributions will be payable from the earlier of (a) the date your Studio opens,
or (b) the date the Studio receives a payment from a client in connection with Approved Services to be provided
at any point. We may increase the Fund Contribution upon 60 days’ written notice to you- (Franchise Agreement,
Sections 5.6 and 9.1).

As-eftThe Issue Date—the-Fund is administered by us (or our affiliates) with the advice provided by the
Marketing Fund Committee (the “MFC”) pursuant to a charter agreement among us and the members of the MFC.
Under the current charter, which is subject to change, System franchisees elect or appoint 2 members to the MFC
to serve for a one-year term corresponding to the calendar year and we select 2 members to serve for a one-year
term corresponding to the calendar year. The 4-member MFC will, by a majority vote, assist us in determining the
selection and placement of regional and national advertising. Each MFC member has one vote. If the MFC is
deadlocked, our Brand President will break the deadlock with the deciding vote, which shall be binding. The Fund
is maintained and operated by us (or our affiliates) with the assistance of the MFC to meet the costs of conducting
regional and national advertising and promotional activities which are deemed most beneficial to the System and
employing advertising/public relations agencies to assist in advertising activities. The MFC serves in an advisory
capacity only. With the assistance of the MFC, we will direct all public relations, advertising and promotions with
sole discretion over the message, creative concepts, materials and media used in the programs and the placement
and allocation thereof. We have the power to form, change or dissolve the MFC. We will pay for these activities
from the Fund. The Fund Contributions may be used for traditional advertising activities, such as website
development, social media, public relations, advertising campaigns (television, radio, print or other media), or
other promotions which will further develop and/or raise the awareness/visibility of our brand, System and Studio
locations- (Franchise Agreement, Sections 6.8 and 9.1).

We are not obligated to ensure that Fund activities or dollars are spent equally, on a pro rata basis, either
on your Studio, or all Studios in an area. A brief statement regarding the availability of System franchises may be
included in advertising and other items produced using the Fund, but we do not otherwise expect to use the Fund
primarily for any Franchise sales or solicitations as of the fssae-Ddate of this Disclosure Document.

We (and our affiliates) will have the right to make disbursements from the Fund, as we determine
appropriate to cover the costs and expenses associated with the marketing, advertising and promotion of the
brand, Marks, System, Studio locations and/or the Approved Products and Approved Services, including: the cost
of formulating, developing and implementing advertising and promotional campaigns; the reasonable costs of
administering the Fund, including accounting expenses and the actual costs of salaries and fringe benefits paid to
our employees engaged in administration of the Fund and/or creation, development and/or placement of any
creative and/or implementation of any campaigns associated with the same. The Fund is not a trust or escrow
account, and we have no fiduciary obligations regarding the Fund. We are not required to audit the Fund, but we
may retain independent certified public accountants to prepare an annual audit of the Fund, at the expense of the
Fund, and send a copy of the audit to franchisees upon written request. Studios owned by us or our affiliates, if
and when operating, are not required to contribute to the Fund at the same rate as franchisees. As of the date of
this Disclosure Document, Aall franchisees whe—signed—thefranchise—agreement—with—the Predeecessor—will
contribute to the Fund at the same rate as you. Should the Fund Contribution for the System decrease at any time,
we have the right to reduce the contribution from Studios owned by us or our affiliates to the rate specified for
franchised locations.
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We are not required to spend all Fund Contributions in the fiscal year they are received. You agree to
participate in all Fund programs. The Fund may furnish you with marketing, advertising and promotional
materials; however, we may require that you pay the cost of producing, shipping and handling for such materials.

During the fiscal year ended on December 31, 2022 Predecesserspent2023, the Fund Contributions were
spent as follows: +-22.9% on production, 66-253.9% on administrative and-implementation-expenses, 2-21.9% on
media andpublierelationsplacement, and 36-441.3% on Internet-related matters.

Local Advertising Requirement; Co-Ops

As part of your material obligations under your Franchise Agreement, you must exspend at least $1,500
per month on marketing and advertising materials that we approve in connection with the promotion of your
Studio within your Designated Territory (your “Local Advertising Requirement”). Upon our request, you must
provide us with an accounting of your monthly expenditures associated with your Local Advertising
Requirement, along with invoices and other relevant documentation to support those expenditures. Please be
advised that the Local Advertising Requirement is only the minimum amount you must exspend each month, and
we encourage you to exspend additional amounts on the local promotion of your Studio. We are not required to
spend any amount on advertising within your Designated Territory.

We have not yet established any local or regional Co-Op(s). We may, in the future, decide to form one or
more associations and/or sub-associations of Studios to conduct various marketing-related activities on a
cooperative basis. If one or more Co-Ops (local, regional and/or national) are formed covering your Authorized
Location, then you must join and actively participate. You may be required to contribute such amounts as are
determined by such Co-Ops. (Franchise Agreement, Section 9.4).

Initial Grand Opening Marketing & Advertising, Opening Support Program

In addition to the Local Advertising Requirement, you will be required to exspend a minimum of $15,000
(i.e., the Initial Grand Opening Marketing & Advertising Spend described in Item 7) in connection with the grand
opening, pre-opening sales activities, and other initial launch promotional activities designed to increase visibility
of your Studio within your Designated Territory. You may be required to exspend all or some portion of these
funds on products/services received from an Approved Supplier we designated or approve, and all materials used
in connection with your grand opening campaign must be approved by us if not previously designated for use.
We expect that you will typically be required to exspend these amounts in the 30- to 60 days prior to opening and
in the 30-day period following the opening of your Studio. (Franchise Agreement, Section 9.2).

Your Pre-Sales Phase and Opening Support Program must commence once your real estate lease is
signed;, The Opening Support Program is provided by our third-party Approved Supplier and is currently
overseen by our internal marketing and sales departments. Participation in the Opening Support Program is
mandatory, and we may require you to exspend certain amounts on services or content that is supplied by one (1)
or more of our Approved Supplier(s). The Initial Grand Opening Marketing & Advertising Spend will not count
towards your Local Advertising Requirement.

E. Training
Initial Training Programs (for Owner/Operator or, if appropriate, Designated Manager)

Prior to opening your Studio, you must ensure that: (i) you (or, if you are an entity, your Operating
Principal) completes our Initial Training Program to our satisfaction, which will typically last 2- to 3 business
days at our corporate headquarters or another training facility we designate (most likely in California); and (ii)
your Designated Manager (if appointed) attend and complete the Designated Manager Module to our satisfaction.
While there is no specific deadline by which the training above must be completed, you (or, if you are an entity,
your Operating Principal) and your Designated Manager (if appointed) must complete all of the training
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obligations prior to opening your Studio. Training classes are not held on a regular schedule. We will schedule the
program based on your and our availability and the projected opening date for your Studio.

In the event you are the owner of multiple Studios or otherwise wish to appoint a third-party individual to
manage the day-to-day operations of your Studio, then that individual (a “Designated Manager”’) must (a) attend
and complete at least the Owner/Operator Module to our satisfaction, and (b) otherwise be approved by us, before
assuming any management responsibility at your Studio- (Franchise Agreement, Sections 5.5 and 6.2).

We do not charge a tuition or training fee for you or your designated trainees (you or your Operating
Principal and Designated Manager (if appropriate)) to attend the appropriate training program(s) below, provided
these individuals attend or otherwise complete such training prior to the opening of your Studio. You will be
responsible for the costs and expenses associated with these individuals attending our Initial Training Program-
(Franchise Agreement, Section 5.5). The training program uses the Operations Manual and other written materials
as training materials.

Our primary initial training programs as of the IssaeBdate of this Disclosure Document are described
below:

TRAINING PROGRAMS(S)

Owner/Operator Module (to be completed by Franchisee or Operating Principal)

Owner/Operator Module
Hours of Hours of On-
Subject Classroom the-Job Location
Training Training
Intro & The Tap 05 0.0 At our corpor?lte headquarters in
Irvine, CA-
Sales: CycleBar Business Model 1.5 0.0 At our corporgte headquarters in
Irvine, CA-

Development: Development Critical 20 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Path & Real Estate ’ ) Irvine, CA-

Operations: Operating Systems At our corporate headquarters in

Overview 0.5 2.0 Irvine, CA-
Operations: Brand Values & the 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
CycleBar Experience ’ ' Irvine, CA-
Marketing: Brand Strategy and 20 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
National Campaign Overview ’ ' Irvine, CA-
Marketing: Pre-Sale Marketing .
Planning, Lead Generation & Best 2.0 0.0 At our corporgte headquarters in

. Irvine, CA-
Practices
Sales: Pre-Sale Founders Program & 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
General Manager Accountability ’ ’ Irvine, CA-
Sales: Lead Management and KPI At our corporate headquarters in

. 2.0 0.0 .
Reporting Irvine, CA-
Operations: Recommended Payroll 20 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Vendor Presentation ’ ’ Irvine, CA-
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II.

Owner/Operator Module

Hours of Hours of On-
Subject Classroom the-Job Location
Training Training

Operations: Instructor Recruitment, 20 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in

Bootcamp & Schedule ’ ) Irvine, CA-

Operations: ClubReady Foundations, .

ClubReady Representative 1.5 0.0 At our corporgte headquarters in

) Irvine, CA-
Presentation
Sales: Soft Opening & Grand At our corporate headquarters in
. 1.5 0.0 .

Opening Irvine, CA-

Operations: Retail Overview, Process 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in

& Merchandising ’ ’ Irvine, CA-

Q&A 0.5 0.0

TOTAL HOURS FOR 22.5 2.0

OWNER/OPERATOR MODULE ) )

Designated Manager Training Module (if applicable)
Designated Manager Training Module
Hours of Hours of On-
Subject Classroom the-Job Location
Training Training

Intro and Welcome 0.5 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Irvine, CA-

Operations and Sales: The Tap, .

CycleBar Business Model, 2.0 0.0 At our COH;S?;: h(ej:aﬁquarters m

LASER >

Marketing: Brand Strategy and At our corporate headquarters in

. ; 1.0 0.0 )

Annual Campaign Overview Irvine, CA-

Marketing: Lead Generation, .

Social Media & Marketing 2.0 0.0 At our corporgte headquarters in
Irvine, CA-

Platform Resources

Operations: Lead Management,

ClubReady & CycleStats, 20 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in

ClubReady Representative ' ’ Irvine, CA-

Presentation

Sales: In-studio Rider Experience 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in

& Post-Class Follow-Up ' ’ Irvine, CA-

Sales: Role Plays 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Irvine, CA-

Marketing: Grassroots Marketing, 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in

Referral Generation ) ’ Irvine, CA-
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Designated Manager Training Module
Hours of Hours of On-
Subject Classroom the-Job Location
Training Training
Operations: Goal Setting, KPI .
Management, Monthly Sales 1.5 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Irvine, CA-
Tracker
Operations: CBX Hiring & At our corporate headquarters in
.. 1.0 0.0 .
Recruiting Irvine, CA-
Sales: Studio Ride and In-Studio 15 15 At our corporate headquarters in
Sales Process Observation ’ ’ Irvine, CA-
Operations: Post Enrollment At our corporate headquarters in
1.0 0.0 .
Process Irvine, CA-
Operations: Retail Process, 15 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Merchandising & Inventory ’ ’ Irvine, CA-
Operations: Recruiting & 10 0.0 At our corporate headquarters in
Performance Management ) ’ Irvine, CA-
At our corporate headquarters in
Recap & Q&A 0.5 0.0 Irvine, CA.
TOTAL HOURS FOR
DESIGNATED MANAGER 20.0 1.5
MODULE

The Initial Training Program will be overseen by Tevia Celli, our Director of Education, who has over
seveneight (#8) years’ experience with Predeeesser{an—new-us) and/or our affiliates and over twenty-feurive
(2425) years of experience in the fitness industry. We normally conduct our training monthly, as needed, but we
may change this schedule based on demand and the availability of our instructors. Our primary instruction is
through hands-on training, videos, the Manual and other instructional materials we prepare specifically for one (1)
or more of the initial training programs above in this I[tem. We may substitute other instructors to provide certain
parts of the different initial training modules described in this Item 11, but these individuals will have all
completed the appropriate portion of the Initial Training Program on which they provide instruction.

We will determine, in our discretion, what constitutes successful completion of Initial Training. If your
Required Trainees are unable to successfully complete Initial Training to our satisfaction for any reason, as
determined by us in our sole discretion, your Required Trainees must repeat the Initial Training Program or you
must send replacement Required Trainees to complete Initial Training Program. Your Required Trainees must
successfully complete Initial Training Program at least ten days before the Opening Deadline. If your Required
Trainees fail to successfully complete Initial Training Program, we may terminate the Franchise Agreement and
we will not refund any initial fees paid by you.
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1. Instructor Bootcamp
Instructor Bootcamp — Pre-Opening for Initial Authorized Instructors

In addition to completing the training program(s) as appropriate, you must ensure that the initial
instructors you engage to provide the Approved Services at your Studio, prior to opening your Studio (the “Initial
Instructors™) participate in and complete, to our satisfaction, the Instructor Bootcamp which (a) is designed to
provide instruction of the provision of the Approved Services in accordance without System Standards and Studio
equipment, and (b) we estimate will typically include 26.5 hours of instruction.

Our Instructor Bootcamp is an instructor onboarding training. It is for all Initial Instructors you and other
System franchisees engage to work at a Studio location. Our primary instruction materials include videos, online
training, and a training manual prepared specifically for Bridge Training.

“CTP: Instructor Training Program and Bootcamp (Part 1: Auditions)

CTP Instructor Auditions

Hours of Classroom | Hours of On-the-

RERIELE Training Job Training LG
Franchisee to conduct roughly
40 Instructor auditions via
livestream or submitted video to 10 0 Online/Remote

Master Instructor for Review.
Master Instructor will report
back to franchisee with results.

Total Hours 10 0
CTP: Instructor Training Program and Bootcamp (Part 2: Online)
CTP 5 weeks: Online
. Hours of Classroom | Hours of On-the- .
Subject AT A Location
Training Job Training

Week 1: Overview of CycleBar .

| Brand, History and Class Types 0 1.5 Online/Remote
Modules and online quizzes, .

| | including Bike Setup & Safety 0 ! Online/Remote
Week 2: Master Instructor

| Demonstrates Songs 1-3. Future 0 ) Online/Remote
Instructors perform songs 1-3 -
and submit for review
Week 2: Master Instructor

| Demonstrates Songs 4-6. Future 0 ) Online/Remote
Instructors perform songs 4-6 -
and submit for review
Week 3: Master Instructor

| Demonstrates Song 7-9. Future 0 ) Online/Remote
instructors perform song 7-9 -
and submit for review.
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CTP: Instructor Training Program and Bootcamp (Part 2: Online)

CTP 5 weeks: Online

Hours of Classroom | Hours of On-the-

EERIELE Training Job Training Coeavion
CTP On-line
Hours of On-the-
Subject Hours of Classroom Job Training Location

Training

Week 3: Master Instructor
Demonstrates Songs 10-12.
Future Instructors perform 0 2 Online/Remote
songs perform songs 10-12 and
upload for review

Week 4: Master Instructor
discusses final Test Out ride and
the non- negotiables that must
be met. Future Instructors
record their final TO ride and
upload for review

0 3 Online/Remote

Week 5: Future instructors take
their final exam. A final call
with the Master Instructor team
to discuss The Tap, Continuing
Educations and answer
questions.

0 3 Online/Remote

TOTAL HOURS 0 16.5

Instructor Bootcamp for Subsequent Authorized Instructors

Instructors hired after your Studio is open and operating must either complete Instructor Bootcamp, or,
alternatively, provide us with certain prescribed videos that we will review and evaluate to determine whether the
candidate is able to provide the Approved Services in accordance with System standards.

An instructor that completes Instructor Bootcamp or is approved via video will be referred to as a
“Authorized Instructor” for the purposes of this Disclosure Document, and you must have at least one (1)
Authorized Instructor on-site to provide the Approved Services at your Studio at all times it is open and operating.
The standalone remote video review process is distinct from the preliminary video review that is a component of
Instructor Bootcamp, and completion of the video review portion of Instructor Bootcamp does not qualify the
candidate as an Authorized Instructor. We may adjust or even waive certain components or testing associated with
our typical Instructor Bootcamp or video review process for a given instructor at your Studio if that instructor
demonstrates significant experience and/or prior training/education with regards to indoor cycling and/or the
related equipment.

You or your instructor will be required to pay us our then-current tuitierlnitial Instructor Training Fee for

Instructor Bootcamp “Instruector Beoteamp-Tuition-or our then-current hourly fee for remote video approval, as
applicable. Initial Instructor Beeteamp—TFuitionTraining Fees paid in connection with your pre-opening Initial

Instructors will be based on our then-current fee per trainer, including any travel and related expenses. All
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subsequent instructors who participate in Instructor Bootcamp after your Studio is open an operating
(““Subsequent Instructors™) will pay our current per-trainee Initial Instructor Beeteamp—FuitionTraining Fee.

We expect and intend that your initial instructors will complete the Instructor Bootcamp prior to you
opening your franchised Studio. Regardless of whether Instructor Bootcamp is completed remotely utilizing our
proprietary online course or otherwise, the Initial Instructor Beeteamp-FuitienTraining Fee will be paid directly to
us.

On-Site Grand Opening Assistance (Discretionary)

Around the time you first open your Studio, we may send one (1) or more representatives to your Studio
to (a) provide assistance and recommendations regarding your opening and initial operations, and/or (b) provide
additional or refresher training associated with any required initial training described above in this Item, as we
deem appropriate in our discretion. If we determine to provide such on-site assistance, it will typically last
between 1-2 business days and we may require that you cover the costs our representatives incur in connection
with such assistance.

Additional Training in Connection with Operation of the Studio; Bridge Training Program for Instructors —
Ongoing

We may also provide; and require that you (and your Operating Principal and Designated Manager, as
appropriate) attend, up to five (5) days of additional training each year at our designated training facility. We will
not charge any training fee in connection with such training that we require you to attend- (Franchise Agreement,
Section 5.5).

You may request that we provide certain additional or refresher training to you, either at one (1) of our
designated training facilities or on-site at your Studio. We may charge you our then-current training fee based on
the number of days of such training that we provide at your request (regardless of location): (Franchise
Agreement, Section 5.5).

In the event you have instructors hired over time, they must complete the Instructor Bootcamp for
Subsequent Instructors prior to providing any classes or otherwise performing any Approved Services at your
Studio.

You will be responsible for the costs and expenses associated with you and your designated personnel
attending any such additional training described in this Item- (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.5).

F. Computer System - Hardware and Software

» a
>, N Cl O

System)y—You must record all of your receipts, expenses, invoices, member lists, class and employee schedules,
and other business information promptly in the Computer System and use the software that we specify or
otherwise approve. You must also purchase the audio-visual package we require, including assorted speakers,
displays and other audio and visual equipment, and various mounting and cabling products (the “Audio Visual
EequipmentPackage”). Currently, we have a designated business management software that must be used in
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connection with your Studio operations, which is an online/web-based program designed for use in connection
with class scheduling, processing member credit and debit card payments, keeping your business records and
generating business reports among other things. At this time, we have approved no other compatible program, but
we may do so at our sole discretion. If the aApproved sSupplier for the required software changes, you must
migrate your operations to the new required software at our direction. The details of these standards and
requirements will be described in the Manual or otherwise in writing and may be modified in response to changes
in marketing conditions, business operating needs, or technology- (Franchise Agreement, Sections 5.4, 5.7, and
10.3).

You must allow our aApproved sSupplier to upgrade the proprietary database configuration of the
required software for the computer in your Studio as we determine necessary. Our aApproved sSupplier may
provide you periodic updates to maintain the software and may charge a fee for preparing the updates and
maintaining the software. There are no limitations on the frequency and cost of the updates. The Computer
System is designed to enable us to have immediate, independent access to the information monitored by the
Computer System, and there is no contractual limitation on our independent access or use of the information we
obtain: (Franchise Agreement, Sections 5.4 and 10.3).

You must purchase, lease, and maintain such computer hardware and software, dedicated high speed
communications equipment and services, dedicated telephone and power lines, modem(s), speakers, and other
computer-related accessories or peripheral equipment as we may specify, for the purpose of, among other
functlons recordlng Studlo sales scheduhng classes and other functions that we require-(which-mayrequire
: ases-a : : : . You must provide such assistance
as may be required to connect your Computer System w1th a Computer System used by us. We will have the
right, on an occasional or regular basis, to retrieve such data and information from your Computer System as we,
in our sole and exclusive discretion, consistent with consumer privacy laws, deem necessary. You must operate
your Computer System in compliance with certain security standards specified and modified by us and with our
System Standards- (Franchise Agreement, Sections 5.4 and 10.3).

To ensure full operational efficiency and optimal communication capability between and among computer
systems installed by you, us, and other franchisees, you agree, at your expense, to keep your Computer System in
good maintenance and repair, and following our determination that it will be economical or otherwise beneficial
to the System to promptly install such additions, changes, modifications, substitutions and/or replacement to your
computer hardware, software, communications equipment and services, telephone and power lines, and other
computer-related facilities, as we direct.

We may require you to update or upgrade any computer hardware or software during the term of the
Franchise, and if we choose to do so, there are no limitations on the cost and frequency of this obligation.

0 The approxnnate cost of
any annual maintenance upgrades or updates or maintenance support contracts varies widely from $0 to $1,000,
which does not include (a) our then-current Technology Fee (currently, $715/month), or (b) the then-current
Software fFee charged by our Approved Supplier for the Studio management software (currently,
$4—8§195/m0nth) or-(c) Music Licensing Fee charged by third-party Approved Suppliers (estimated to be in the
range of $1,050 to $2,050 per year), or (d) the fees associated with any other required software we designate in

4:.

%heComputer System and the Audio Auehe—Vlsual Package is $43—999—te#$4§—09(—)

the future for use in connection with your Studio. We have no obligation to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs,
upgrades or updates, and any such obligations would be those of the software licensors.
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ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Franchise Agreement

Traditional-Studio—Authorized Location and-Pesignated—Territory

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

You will operate your Studio at the Authorized Location. Once you have identified your Authorized
Location and we accept the proposed site, we will designate the Designated Territory around the Authorized
Location within which you will have certain protected rights.

You will not be permitted to relocate your Studio without our prior written approval, which may be
withheld in our discretion. You will be assessed a relocation fee of $5,000 at the time you submit the proposed
location for your relocated Studio. Generally, we do not approve requests to relocate your Studio after a site
selection has been made and you have opened for business unless (a) it is due to extreme or unusual events
beyond your control, and (b) you are not in default of your Franchise Agreement. If we approve your relocation
request, we retain the right to approve your new site location in the same manner and under the same terms that
are applied to your first site selection.

Designated Territory

Your Designated Territory will typically contain a maximum of 50,000 people which will be
approximately a two-mile radius around your Studio’s Authorized Location, unless your Studio is located in a
major metropolitan downtown area or similarly situated/populated central business district (a “Central Business
District”). If your Studio is located in a Central Business District, your Designated Territory will typically contain
up to 50,000 people but may be limited to a geographic area comprised of anywhere from a radius of two blocks
to two miles around your Studio, as we deem appropriate in our discretion. The size of your Designated Territory
may vary from the territory granted to other franchisees based on the location and demographics surrounding your
Studio.

The boundaries of your Designated Territory may be described in terms of zip codes, streets, landmarks
(both natural and man-made) or county lines, or otherwise delineated on a map. If we determine, in our discretion,
to base your Designated Territory on population, then the sources we use to determine the population within your
Designated Territory will be supplied by (a) the territory mapping software we determine to license or otherwise
use, or (b) publicly available population information (such as data published by the U.S. Census Bureau or other
governmental agencies and commercial sources).

As long as you are in compliance with your Franchise Agreement, we will not operate, or grant a license
to a third-partythird party to operate, during the term of your Franchise Agreement, a Studio located within the
Designated Territory, subject to our reservation of rights below.

Except as expressly provided in the Franchise Agreement, you have no right to exclude, control or impose
conditions on the location, operation or otherwise of present or future Studios, using any of the other brands or
Marks that we now, or in the future, may offer, and we may operate or license Studios or distribution channels of
any type, licensed, franchised or company-owned, regardless of their location or proximity to your Designated
Territory and whether or not they provide services similar to those that you offer. You do not have any rights with
respect to other and/or related businesses, products and/or services, in which we may be involved, now or in the
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future. Your Designated Territory will not be modified by us for any reason so long as you are not in default of
your Franchise Agreement, except in cases where (a) your requested relocation of your Studio is approved and
you relocate, and/or (b) at the time of any requested renewal or proposed assignment of the Franchise, the
population of the Designated Territory is over 50,000. In such cases, we may move or modify the size of your
Designated Territory.

Rights Within and Outside the Designated Territory

While you and other Studios will be able to provide the Approved Services to any potential client that
visits or otherwise reaches out to your Studio, you will not be permitted to actively solicit or recruit clients outside
your Designated Territory, unless we provide our prior written consent.

You will not be permitted to advertise and promote your Studio via advertising that is directed at those
outside your Designated Territory without our prior written consent, which we will not unreasonably withhold
provided (a) the area you wish to advertise in is contiguous to your Designated Territory, and (b) that area has not
been granted to any third party in connection with a Studio (or Development Agreement) of any kind.

We may choose, in our sole discretion, to evaluate your Studio for compliance with the System Standards
using various methods (including, but not limited to, inspections, field service visits, surveillance camera
monitoring, member comments/surveys, and secret shopper reports). You must meet minimum standards for
cleanliness, equipment condition, repair and function, and customer service. Your employees, including
independent contractors, must meet minimum standards for courteousness and customer service.

Minimum Gross Sales Quota(s)
Traditional-Stndi

Unless waived by us due to unique market conditions, you must meet a certain minimum monthly Gross
Sales quota (the “Minimum Monthly Gross Sales Quota™), as follows: (i) you must achieve and maintain trailing
12-month average monthly Gross Sales of $30,000 by the 1%t anniversary of the opening of your Studio; and (ii)
you must achieve and maintain trailing 12-month average monthly Gross Sales of $40,000 by the 2" anniversary
and each successive anniversary of the opening of your Studio. If you fail to meet the Minimum Monthly Gross
Sales Quota for 36 consecutive months at any time during the term of your Franchise Agreement, we, in our
discretion, may institute a mandatory corrective training program or terminate your Franchise Agreement upon
written notice to you.

Development Agreement
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You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from
outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

If you are awarded the right to acquire multiple Franchises for Studios under our form of Development
Agreement, then we will provide you with a Development Area upon execution of the Development Agreement.
The size of your Development Area will substantially vary from other System developers based on: (i) the number
of Studios we grant you the right to open and operate; and (ii) the location and demographics of the general area
where we mutually agree you will be opening these Studios. The boundaries of your Development Area may be
described in terms of zip codes, streets, landmarks (both natural and man-made) or county lines, or otherwise
delineated on a map attached to the Development Agreement.

You are responsible for locating and presenting to us proposed sites for Studios in the Development Area.
We will use reasonable efforts to review and evaluate the proposed sites within 30 days after we receive all
requested information and materials to evaluate the site. We will approve the proposed site for any Studio if it
meets our then-current standards. If we accept a proposed site, you (or your affiliate) must timely sign a separate
Franchise Agreement for the site. Each Studio you timely open and commence operating under our then-current
form of franchise agreement will be operated: (i) from a distinct site located within the Development Area; and
(i1) within its own Designated Territory that we will define once the site for that Studio has been approved.

As long as you are in compliance with your Development Agreement, we will not operate, or grant a
license to a third-party to operate, during the term of your Development Agreement, a Studio located within the
Development Area, and we will not grant anyone else the right to develop Studios within the Development Area,
subject to our reservation of rights below.

You must comply with your development obligations under the Development Agreement, including your
Development Schedule, in order to maintain your development rights within the Development Area. If you do not
comply with your Development Schedule, we may terminate your Development Agreement and any further
development rights you have under that agreement. Otherwise, we will not modify the size of your Development
Area except by mutual written agreement signed by both parties.

Reserved Rights

We and our parents/affiliates reserve the exclusive right to conduct the following activities under the
Franchise Agreement and/or Development Agreement (as appropriate): (i) establish and operate, and license any
third party the right to establish and operate, other Studios and Studios using the Marks and System at any
location outside of your Designated Territory(ies) and, if applicable, Development Area; (ii) market, offer and sell
products and services that are similar to the products and services offered by the Studio under a different
trademark or trademarks at any location, within or outside the Designated Territory(ies) and, if applicable, the
Development Area; (iii) use the Marks and System, as well as other such marks we designate, to distribute any
Approved Products and/or Approved Services in any alternative channel of distribution, within or outside the
Designated Territory(ies) and Development Area (including the Internet and other e-commerce channels and
streaming platforms; wholesale stores, retail stores, catalog sales, etc.) as further described below; (iv) to acquire,
merge with, or otherwise affiliate with, and after that own and operate, and franchise or license others to own and
operate, any business of any kind, including, without limitation, any business that offers products or services the
same as or similar to the Approved Products and Approved Services (but under different marks), within or outside
your Designated Territory(ies) and, if applicable, Development Area; (v) use the Marks and System, and license
others to use the Marks and System, to engage in any other activities not expressly prohibited in your Franchise
Agreement and, if applicable, your Development Agreement; and (vi) open and operate, or license third parties
the right to open or operate, Studios at “Non-Traditional Sites” both within and outside the Designated Territory
and, if applicable, Development Area. lnlight-efthesereservations-efrights:*Non-Traditional Site” means any
location that is situated within or as part of a larger venue or facility and, as a result, is likely to draw the
predominance of its customers from those persons who are using or attending events in the larger venue or facility
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(for example, “big box” gyms and/or fitness facilities, cruise ships, military bases, shopping malls, airports, sports
facilities and stadiums, industrial or office complexes, hotels, train stations and other transportation facilities,
travel plazas, casinos, hospitals, theme parks, convention centers, colleges/universities, multi-unit residential
properties, and other similar captive market locations).

Neither the Franchise Agreement nor the Development Agreement grants you any right to engage in any
of the activities outlined in the preceding paragraph, or to share in any of the proceeds received by us, our
parent/affiliates or any third party from these activities, unless we otherwise agree in writing. Further, we have no
obligation to provide you any compensation for soliciting or accepting orders (via alternate channels of
distribution) within your Designated Territory.

Internet Sales / Alternative Channels of Commerce

We may sell products and services to members located anywhere, even if such products and services are
similar to what we sell to you and what you offer at your Studio. We may use the internet or alternative channels
of commerce to sell products and services branded with the Marks. You may only sell the products and services
from your Studio’s Authorized Location, and may only use the internet or alternative channels of commerce to
offer or sell the products and services, as permitted by us, in order to register members for classes. We may
require you to submit samples of all advertising and promotional materials (and any use of the Marks and/or other
forms of commercial identification) for any media, including the Internet or otherwise. We retain the right to
approve or disapprove of such advertising, in our sole discretion. Any use of social media by you pertaining to the
Studio must be in good taste and not linked to controversial, unethical, immoral, illegal or inappropriate content.
We may “occupy” any social media websites/pages and be the sole provider of information regarding the Studio
on such websites/pages (e.g., a system-wide Facebook page). At our request, you will promptly modify or remove
any online communication pertaining to the Studio that does not comply with the Franchise Agreement or the
Manual. You are not prohibited from obtaining members over the Internet provided your Internet presence and
content comply with the requirements of the Franchise Agreement.

Additional Disclosures

Neither the Franchise Agreement nor the Development Agreement provides you with any right or option
to open and operate additional Studios (other than as specifically provided for in your Development Agreement if
you are granted multi-unit development rights). Regardless, each Studio you are granted the right to open and
operate must be governed by its own specific form of Franchise Agreement.

We have not established other franchises or company-owned outlets or another distribution channel
offering or selling similar products or services under a different trademark. We have not established, nor do we
presently intend to establish, other franchised or company-owned businesses that are similar to the Studio and that
sell our Approved Products and Approved Services under a different trade name or trademark, but we may do so
in the future without your consent. Certain of our affiliates are involved with franchising and other activities as
previously disclosed in Item 1 of this Disclosure Document, and such affiliates may continue conducting
franchising and other activities.

As described in Item 1, our following affiliates offer franchises using trademarks other than the Marks:

AKT SPV offers and sells franchises for fitness studios that provide fitness training classes
combining circuit training, strength, toning, dance cardio, and other fitness techniques under the
AKT® trademark.

BFT SPV offers and sells franchises for fitness studios that provide strength and endurance
training, high-intensity intermittent training exercises, high-intensity resistance training,

hypertrophy-style training, and other techniques under the BFT® trademark.

50.
CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD
1320.010.0023/392781397895



CP SPV offers and sells franchises for Pilates studios under the CLUB PILATES® trademark.

Lindora Franchisor offers and sells franchises for clinics that provide or arrange for the provision

of certain medical and non-medical products and services under the LINDORA® trademark.

PB SPV offers and sells franchises for fitness studios that provide indoor fitness classes through a
combination of Pilates, weights and ballet barre under the PURE BARRE® trademark.

RH SPV offers and sells franchises for fitness studios that offer rowing and free weight exercise
instruction under the ROW HOUSE® trademark.

RF SPV offers and sells franchises for fitness studios that provide boxing classes and other
related exercise classes under the RUMBLE® trademark.

SL SPV offers and sells franchises for studios that provide stretching classes, related therapy
activities, and if approved, a proprietary “flexologist” training programs under the STRETCH
LAB® trademark.

YS SPV offers and sells franchises for studios that provide yoga and other exercise programs
under the YOGA SIX® trademark.

There is no mechanism for resolving any conflicts that may arise between franchised or company-owned
studios that operate under any of the Xponential Brands, including any Studio. Any resolution of conflicts
regarding location, customers, support, or services will be entirely within your and our business judgment. While
we do not anticipate conflicts between franchisees of different brands, we will analyze any future conflict and
take action (if any) that we deem appropriate.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

We grant you the right to use the Marks we designate for use in connection with your Studio as part of the
license rights you are granted under each Franchise Agreement you enter into with us, provided you only use the
Marks in connection with your Studio operations and in strict accordance with the terms of your Franchise
Agreement and any Manual or other written directives from us. The following Marks are registered and owned by
us on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”):
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Mark Registration Number Registration Date
CYCLEBAR 4,738,832 May 19, 2015
CYCLEBAR 4,739,161 May 19, 2015

4,743,218 May 26, 2015

4,743,707 May 26, 2015
CYCLEBEATS 5,070,905 November 1, 2016
#CYCLEBAR 5,111,052 December 27, 2016

The following Marks are registered with the Supplemental Register of the USPTO:

Mark Registration No. Registration Date
CYCLESTATS 4,709,859 March 24, 2015
CYCLETHEATRE 4,709,860 March 24, 2015

We expect and intend to submit all affidavits and other filings necessary to maintain the registrations
above. There are no presently effective determinations of the United States Patent and Trademark Office, the
trademark administrator of any State, or any court, nor any pending material litigation involving any of the Marks
which are relevant to their use in any State. There are no pending interference actions or opposition or
cancellation proceedings that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the Marks in any manner
material to the System. We have filed all required affidavits for the Marks and will continue to do so.

You must follow our rules when you use the Marks. You cannot use our name or any of the Marks as part
of a corporate name or with modifying words, designs or symbols except for those which we license to you. You
may not use the Marks in connection with the sale of an unauthorized product or service or in a manner not
authorized in writing by us. You must not use any other trade names or trademarks in the operation of the Studio
without first obtaining our written consent. You must not establish a website on the Internet using any domain
name containing the Marks or any variation thereof without our written consent. We retain the sole right to
advertise on the Internet and create a website using the Marks as domain names.

If it becomes advisable, in our sole discretion, for us to modify or discontinue use of any of the Marks, or
use one or more additional or substitute Mark, you must comply with our directions to modify or otherwise
discontinue the use of such Mark within a reasonable time after notice by us. We will not be obligated to
compensate you for any costs you incur in connection with any such modification or discontinuance.

You cannot seek to register, re-register, assert claim to ownership of, license or allow others to use or
otherwise appropriate to itself any of the Marks or any mark or name confusingly similar to them, except insofar
as such action inures to our benefit and has our prior written approval. Upon the termination or cancellation of the
Franchise Agreement, you must discontinue use of the Marks, remove copies, replicas, reproductions or
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simulations thereof from the premises and take all necessary steps to assign, transfer, or surrender to us all Marks
which you may have used in connection with the Franchise Agreement.

You must immediately notify us of any apparent infringement of or challenge to your use of the Marks.
Although not obligated to do so, we will take any action deemed appropriate and will control any litigation or
proceeding. You must cooperate with any litigation relating to the Marks which we or our affiliates, or the
licensor, might undertake.

We are not aware of any prior superior rights or infringing uses that would materially affect your use of
the Marks. There are no agreements currently in effect, which significantly limit our rights to use or license the
use of the Marks.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

You do not receive the right to use any item covered by a patent or copyright, but you can use the
proprietary information in the Manual. Item 11 describes the Manual and the limitations on the use of the Manual
by you and your employees.

We have no registered copyrights; ror are-there-any pending patent applications that are material to the
franchise. However, we claim copyrights on certain forms, advertisements, promotional materials, software source
code and other Confidential Information as defined below.

There currently are no effective determinations of the United States Copyright Office (or any court
regarding any of the copyrighted materials. There are no agreements in effect which significantly limit our right to
use or license the copyrighted materials. Finally, there are no infringing uses actually known to us that could
materially affect your use of the copyrighted materials in any state. No agreement requires us to protect or defend
any copyrights or you in connection with any copyrights.

All information relating to the System and to the development and operation of Studios (including your
Studio), including, without limitation, the Manual, our training programs, members and supplier lists, customer
data, or other information or know-how distinctive to the development or operation of a Studio (all of the
preceding information is the “Confidential Information™) is considered to be proprietary and trade secrets of
Franchisor. Confidential Information does not include information, knowledge, or know-how, which is lawfully
known to the public without violation of applicable law, or an obligation to us or our affiliates or personal or other
information of your employees and other personnel. We disclose to you Confidential Information needed for the
operation of a Studio, and you may learn additional information during the term of your Franchise. We have all
rights to the Confidential Information and your only interest in the Confidential Information is the right to use it
under your Franchise Agreement.

Both during and after the term of your Franchise Agreement, you must use the Confidential Information
only for the operation of your Studio under a Franchise Agreement; maintain the confidentiality of the
Confidential Information; not make or distribute, or permit to be made or distributed, any unauthorized copies of
any portion of the Confidential Information; and follow all prescribed procedures and regulations for prevention
of unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information.

We have the right to use and authorize others to use all ideas, techniques, methods and processes relating
to the Studio that you or your employees conceive or develop.

You also agree to fully and promptly disclose all ideas, techniques and other similar information relating
to Studios or the Franchise that are conceived or developed by you and/or your employees. We will have a
perpetual right to use, and to authorize others to use, those ideas, etc. without compensation or other obligation.
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ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

Under the Franchise Agreement, we recommend, but do not require, that you (or, if you are an entity, the
Operating Principal) personally supervise the Studio. You may appoint a Designated Manager we approve to
manage daily operations of your Studio. We will not unreasonably withhold our approval of any Designated
Manager you propose, provided the individual has successfully completed the Designated Manager Module of our
Initial Training Program and, if that individual will be providing any Approved Services, the Instructor
Bootcamp. Once approved, your Designated Manager may assist in the direct, day-to-day supervision of the
operations of the Studio, or to be the on-premises supervisor if you choose not to personally supervise the Studio.
If you are a business entity, your Designated Manager need not hold an ownership interest in the business to be
the on-premises supervisor.

You will keep us advised, in writing, of any Designated Manager involved in the operation of the Studio
and their contact information. Your Studio must, at all times, be managed by and staffed with at least one (1)
individual who has successfully completed the Owner/Operator Module or, if applicable, the Designated Manager
Module, of our Initial Training Program.

You and your managers and employees must comply with the confidentiality provisions described in Item
14. If you are a legal entity, having more than one owner, all owners, shareholders, partners, joint venturers, and
any other person who directly or indirectly owns a 10% or greater interest in the Studio (and each such person’s
spouse) must execute a Guaranty.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer for sale and sell, only and all those Approved Products and Approved Services, and deal
only with those Approved Suppliers, that we authorize or require. Principally, this means you must purchase the
amount and type of equipment, including exercise bikes, free weights, and other indoor cycling and exercise
equipment, and offer only those types of indoor cycling and exercise classes that we authorize. Failure to comply
with our purchasing restrictions may result in the termination of your Franchise Agreement. We may supplement,
revise and/or modify our Approved Products and/or Approved Services as we deem appropriate, as well as our
System Standards associated with the provision of these products/services. These changes will be outlined in our
Manual or otherwise in writing, and there are no contractual limitations on our right to make these types of
changes.

You must ensure that only Authorized Instructors who have completed all required training provide the
classes and other Approved Services at your Studio, and that no individual that has not received all required
training provides any Approved Services until such training is complete.

If we discontinue any Approved Product or Approved Service offered by the Studio, then you must cease
offering or selling such product/service within a reasonable time, unless such product/service represents a health
or safety hazard (in which case you must immediately comply upon receipt of notice from us). You may not use
the location of your Studio for any other business purpose other than the operation of your Studio.

You may not advertise, offer for sale or sell, any products and/or services that we have not authorized.
We may change the types of authorized products and services at any time in our discretion. You agree to
promptly undertake all changes as we periodically require, without limit, except we will not require you to
thoroughly modernize or remodel the Studio any more often than once every 5 years. You will not make any
material alterations to your Studio or its appearance as originally approved by us without our prior written
approval.
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Y ou must refrain from any merchandising, advertising, or promotional practice that is unethical or may be
injurious to our business and/or other Studios or to the goodwill associated with the Marks. Subject to the
conditions set forth above, we do not impose any restrictions with regards to the customers to whom you may sell
goods and services.

Subject to applicable law, and in accordance with your Opening Support Program and the System
Standards, you must begin offering and selling memberships for your Studio upon commencement of the Pre-
Sales Phase. You must also offer, accept the use of, and ensure that you and your Studio personnel are aware of
all then-current System policies and procedures related to member reciprocity amongst (a) other Studios that are
part of the System, and/or (b) the Studios operated as part of the franchise systems in connection with the other
Xponential Brands. Currently, you must offer and accept the use of the XPASS reciprocity program, which
permits members from your Studio, other CycleBar Studios, and the other Xponential Brands’ studios to use your
Studio under such terms and conditions as we may periodically state in writing.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

A. Franchise Agreement

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement and related agreements.
You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Section in Franchise

Provision
Agreement Sl iy

a. Length of the Section 3.1 10 years from the date the Franchise Agreement is signed,
franchise term unless sooner terminated.

b. Renewal or Section 3.2 You have the option to extend the term for two
extension of term consecutive 5-year periods.

c. Requirements for Section 3.2 To qualify for a renewal franchise, you must execute our
renewal or extension then-current franchise agreement, which may contain

terms and conditions that differ materially from those in
the Franchise Agreement; maintain possession of the
Authorized Location or secure an alternative location
approved by us; remodel your Studio as necessary to
comply with the System Standards; have substantially
complied with the Franchise Agreement during its term;
be in compliance with all provisions of the Franchise
Agreement and any other agreements between you and
us; pay the renewal fee ($10,000); give us no less than 90
days’, but no more than 180 days’, notice of your desire
to acquire a renewal term; and sign a general release in
substantially the form of Exhibit G to this Disclosure
Document (subject to applicable state law).

d. Termination by Not Applicable Not applicable other than by applicable state law.
franchisee
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Section in Franchise

Provisi
rovision AT Summary

e. Termination by Not Applicable The Franchise Agreement does not provide for
franchisor without termination without cause.
cause

f. Termination by Section 15.1 We may terminate the Franchise Agreement upon
franchisor with delivery of notice to you if you are in default under the
cause terms of the Franchise Agreement, as further outlined

below.

g.  “Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Sections 15.1 and
15.2

Under the Franchise Agreement, you have 30 days to
cure_(subject to state law): failure to obtain a required
consent or approval; failure to comply with provisions of
the Franchise Agreement other than for which a different
cure period is specified or for which we may immediately
terminate; failure to maintain required books and records;
failure to supervise or manage your Studio appropriately;
failure to pay us, our affiliates, or any third party any
amount due or failure to obtain adequate financing;
unauthorized closure of designated bank accounts or
failure to ecomplete—initialtrainingdesignate an alternate
bank account; failure to maintain insurance; unauthorized
provision of products and/or services; marketing or
advertising failures; failure efPerformaneeto meet the
System Standards;-as-defined-in-the Eranchise-Agreement
or the Minimum Monthly Gross Sales Quota; failure to
engage Pre-Sales Phase activities; and use of
unauthorized suppliers—{subjeet-to-statetaw). A default
under other franchise agreements or any other agreements
(including a Development Agreement) in effect between
us (or any of our affiliates) and you (or any of your
affiliates), will constitute a default under the Franchise
Agreement.
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Provision

Section in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

h. “Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Sections 15.1 and
15.2

The following events constitute non-curable defaults:
material misrepresentations or omissions; faitlure—te
| blis] | " ises:fail
complete—trainingyour _insolvency or bankruptcy;
conviction or plea of no contest to a felony or other crime
or offense that can adversely affect the reputation of you,
us or the Studio; make-unauthorized diselosure—of—the
Marks-or-Confidential- Informationtransfers; falsification
of reports; unauthorized disclosure of our Confidential
Information or misuse of Marks; abandonment of the
business for 2 consecutive days unless otherwise
approved:—suerender—eol—eontrol—ol—the—busdinens

B
o] | assi o the | it of
epoditoms—onemabpee ol —the ol failure on 3
occasions within any 12 consecutive month period to pay
amounts due or otherwise to comply with the Franchise
Agreement; default of same provision 2 times within 6
months, regardless of cure; failure on 2 or more occasions
in any 24 consecutive month period to offer only
approved goods and services; violate any health, safety or
sanitation law or conduct your operation in a manner
creating a safety hazard; failure to open the Studio for
business within 6 months of signing the Franchise
Agreement, unless otherwise agreed in writing; default
under the lease or loss of right to possess the location for

the Studio; se=elobmethepebbadensiolion o bosus
DosiopeedTlepeiine s coeaniine o Dot Dl
{defined-below)—Afailure to comply with non-compete

covenants; and a failure to cure a default under other
franchise agreements or any other agreements (including
a Development Agreement) in effect between us or any of
our affiliates and you or any of your affiliates will
constitute a default under the Franchise Agreement.
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Provision

Section in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

Franchisee’s
obligation on
termination/non-
renewal

Article 13 and Section
15.3

Your obligations include: stop operations of the Studio;
stop using the Marks and items bearing the Marks; stop
using the name “CycleBar” in any form as part of your
corporate name; assign any assumed names to Company;
de-identify the premises from any confusingly similar
decoration, design or other imitation of a Studio; stop
advertising as a CycleBar Franchise; pay all outstanding
sums to us and our affiliates and third-parties; pay
damages and costs we incur in enforcing the termination
provisions of the Franchise Agreement; return the Manual
and other Confidential Information to us; return all signs
to us; assign your telephone and facsimile numbers,
electronic mail and internet addresses to us; sell to us, at
our option, all assets of the Studio, including inventory,
equipment, supplies and items bearing the Marks, and
assign us your lease; and comply with non-competition
and non-interference covenants.

Assignment of
contract by
franchisor

Section 14.6

No restriction on our right to assign.

“Transfer” by
franchisee definition

Section 14.1

Voluntary, involuntary, direct or indirect assignment sale,
gift, encumbrance, pledge, delegation or other disposition
of Franchise Agreement, ownership interests, your
Studio, or your assets.

Franchisor approval
of transfer by
franchisee

Sections 14.1 and
14.2

Our prior written consent is required.

Conditions for
franchisor approval
of transfer

Section 14.2

You must be in compliance with all agreements, the
System Standards, all contracts with any party; at our
option, transferee must either (a) execute our then-current
form of franchise agreement, which may contain
materially different terms than your original contract /
Franchise Agreement, to govern the franchise moving
forward, or (b) assume all obligations under these
agreements;  transferee meet our  then-current
requirements and complete or agree to complete our
training program for new franchisees (including payment
of applicable training fee(s)); you or the transferee must
pay our transfer fee of $10,000, except in the case of a
transfer from an individual to a wholly owned entity
($500) or a transfer to an immediate family member
($1,500); you must sign our then-current form of general
release; transferee must, at our election, sign our then-
current form of franchise agreement; and transferee must
complete initial training and pay any applicable fee(s).
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Provision

Section in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to
acquire franchisee’s
business

Section 14.5

We have a right of refusal for any bona fide offer to
acquire an interest in you, your Franchise Agreement,
and/or your Studio.

Franchisor’s option
to purchase
franchisee’s business

Sections 14.5 and

15.3

Subject to applicable state laws, on termination, we may
purchase any or all of the assets of your Franchise at the
lesser of (i) your costs for such assets less the cost of
depreciation, or (ii) fair market value.

Death or disability
of franchisee

Section 14.3

All interests must be transferred within six (6) months or
such longer period we designate. We have the option to
immediately appoint a manager and commence operating
your Studio on behalf of you, in which case you will pay
our reasonable costs and expenses.

Non-competition
covenants during the
term of the franchise

Article 13

Neither ¥you smustnetnor your principals, owners,
guarantors, or any immediate family members of the
foregoing (collectively, the “Restricted Parties’) must
directly or indirectly be involved in: (i) any Competing
Business; or (ii) any business that offers or grants
franchises/licenses, or establishes joint ventures, for the
operation of a Competing Business. You must not divert,
or attempt to divert, any customer or prospective
customer to a Competing Business in any manner. You
will not solicit members of any other studio to your
studio. These restrictions are subject to state law.

“Competing Business” means any fitness or exercise
business, any fitness or exercise marketing or consulting
business, any business offering products of a similar
nature to those of the Studio, or in any business or entity
which franchises, licenses or otherwise grants to others
the right to operate such aforementioned businesses
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Provision

Section in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

I Non-competition
covenants after the
franchise is
terminated or
expires

Article 13 and Section
15.3

Prohibition on  Franchising Activities - Same
requirements as are in place during the term of the
Franchise Agreement, but instead of being global
prohibitions, the restrictions remain in place for 2 years
following the expiration/termination of your Franchise

Agreement.

Prohibition on Competing Business - Same requirements
as are in place during the term of the Franchise
Agreement, but instead of being global prohibitions, the
restrictions remain in place for 2 years following the
expiration/termination of your Franchise Agreement and
apply: (i) at the Authorized Location; and (ii) within a 10-
mile radius of (a) the Authorized Location, or (b) any
other Studio. These restrictions are subject to state law.

Additionally, for a period of 2 years after termination of
the Franchise Agreement, you must not (i) solicit
business from customers of your former Studio, or (ii)
contact any of our suppliers or vendors for any
competitive business purpose.

S. Modification of the | Article 19 The Franchise Agreement can be modified only by
Franchise written agreement between us and you. We may modify
Agreement the Manual and the System Standards.

t. Integration/merger | Article 19 Only the terms of Franchise Agreement, including its
clause attachments and the System Standards, are binding. Any

representations or promises outside of this Disclosure
Document and the Franchise Agreement may not be
enforceable (subject to state law).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in the Franchise
Agreement or any related agreement is intended to
disclaim the representations made in this Disclosure
Document.
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Provision

Section in Franchise
Agreement

Summary

u Dispute resolution
by arbitration or
mediation

Article 16

You must first submit all disputes and controversies
arising under the Franchise Agreement to our
management and make every effort to resolve the dispute
internally.

ion_all_clai ” .

i Upon_failure of informal dispute
resolution and except for our right to seek injunctive
relief in any court of competent jurisdiction, the dispute
must be submitted to-nen-bindinefor mediation to JAMS,
which will take place at our, or; as applicable, our
successor’s or assign’s, then-current principal place of
business (currently, Irvine, California)—(subjeet—te
applicablestate-law). If the matter is mediated, the parties

will split the mediator’s fees and bear all of their other
respective costs of the mediation.

Except for our right to seek injunctive relief in any court
of competent jurisdiction—and—as—etherwise—deseribed
abeve, we and you must arbitrate all disputes at a location
atwithin 50 miles of our or, as applicable, our successor’s
or assign’s then-current principal place of business
(currently, in Irvine, California) (subject to state law) in
accordance with JAMS’ then-current Comprehensive
Arbitration Rules & Procedures.

V. Choice of forum

Section 16.6

Subject to the arbitration requirement, litigation must be
brought in the court nearest to our or, as applicable, our
successor’s or assign’s then current principal place of
business (currently, Irvine, California) (subject to state
law). However, we may seek injunctive relief in any court
of competent jurisdiction.

w. Choice of law

Section 16.1

Except for the U.S. Trademark Act, the Federal
Arbitration Act other federal laws, and disputes involving
non-competition covenants (which are governed by the
law of the state in which your Studio is located),
California law applies (subject to state law).
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Development Agreement

This table lists certain important provisions of the Development Agreement and related

agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

Summary

Length of the term of
the Development

Section 2.A, Exhibit A

The Development Schedule will dictate the amount of time
you have to open a specific number of franchises, which

Agreement will differ for each Developer.

Renewal or extension . .

of the term Not Applicable Not Applicable

Requirements for

developer to renew | Not Applicable Not Applicable

or extend

Termination by . . .

developer Not Applicable Not applicable other than by applicable state law.
Termination by

franchisor without Not Applicable Not Applicable

cause

Termination by Article 8 We may terminate your Development Agreement with
franchisor with cause cause as described below.

“Cause” defined — | Sections 8.A and 8.B | We may terminate your Development Agreement after

curable defaults

providing notice and a 30-day cure period if you fail to
comply with any provision of the Development Agreement
(except as provided in (h) below), or a 10-day cure period
if you fail to make any required payment to us_or our
affiliates. A default under franchise agreements or any
other agreements in effect between us or any of our
affiliates and you or any of your affiliates will constitute a
default under the Development Agreement.
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Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

Summary

h. “Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Section 8.A

We may terminate your Development Agreement
automatically upon written notice if: materially
misrepresent or omit any information in connection with
your application for your development rights; you become
insolvent or make a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors; file a bankruptcy petition or are adjudicated
bankrupt; a bill in equity or appointment of receivership is
filed in connection with you; a receiver or custodian of
your assets of property is appointed; a proceeding for a
composition of creditors is initiated against you; a final
judgment is entered against you and not satisfied within 30
days; if you are dissolved, execution is levied against you,
a suit to foreclose any lien or mortgage against any of your
Studios is levied; the real or personal property of the
Studio is sold after being levied upon; you fail to satisfy
your Development Schedule; you or any of your principal
officers, directors, partners, managing members or owners
is convicted of a crime; you falsify any reports or
information provided to us; you fail to comply with the
non-competition covenants; you fail to comply with the
same provision within a 6-month period or you fail to
comply with the Development Agreement on 3 separate
occasions in any 12-consecutive month period.

i. Developer’s
obligations on
termination/
non-renewal

Section 8.C

Upon termination, all rights provided to you under the
Development Agreement shall immediately cease and you
must comply with all post-termination non-competitive
restrictions.

j.  Assignment of
contract by
franchisor

Section 9.A

No restriction on our right to assign.

k. “Transfer” by
developer - defined

Section 9.B

Voluntary, involuntary, direct or indirect assignment sale,
gift, encumbrance, pledge, delegation or other disposition
of Development Agreement, ownership interests, your
development rights, or your assets.

1. Franchisor approval
of transfer by
developer

Section 9.C

Our prior written consent is required.
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Section in

Provision Development Summary
Agreement

m. Conditions for Section 9.C Our conditions for approving a transfer include: you must
franchisor approval not be in default of the Development Schedule; the
of transfer prospective transferee must meet our then-current

standards for franchisees; you must pay us a transfer fee of
$10,000 and any applicable broker fees due in connection
with the transaction; you must sign a general release; you
and the transferee must sign our form of consent to
transfer pursuant to which, among other things and at our
option, either (i) transferee agrees to execute our then-
current form of area development agreement, or (ii) the
Development Agreement is assigned to and assumed by
the proposed transferee; no past due amounts owed to us;
no outstanding default of the Development Agreement (or
any other agreement with us); and the transfer must not be
made separate and apart from the transfer to the same
transferee of all Franchise Agreements that were signed
pursuant to the Development Agreement.

n. Franchisor’s right of | Section 9.D We will have a right of refusal for any bona fide offer to
first refusal to purchase any interest in you, the Development Agreement,
acquire developer’s and/or your development rights.
business

o. Franchisor’s option | Not Applicable Not Applicable
to purchase
developer’s business

p. Death or disability of | Not Applicable Not Applicable
developer

q. Non-competition Article 6 You will have the same noncompetition restrictions as
covenants during the provided under the Franchise Agreement(s) you sign
term of the franchise pursuant to the Development Agreement. These

restrictions are subject to state law.

r. Non-competition Section 8.C For two years after the expiration/termination, you and the
covenants after the Restricted Parties may not own, maintain, engage in, be
franchise is employed as an officer, director, or principal of, lend
terminated or expires money to, extend credit to, lease/sublease space to,

provide services to, or have any interest in or involvement
with, any other Competing Business: (a) within the
Development Area; (b) within 10 miles outside the
boundaries of the Development Area, or (c) within a 10-
mile radius of any Studio that is open, under lease or
otherwise under development as of the date Development
Agreement expires or is terminated or, as to a transferring
owner, the date of such transfer. These restrictions are
subject to state law.

s. Modification of the | Article 14 Your Development Agreement may not be modified,
Development except by a writing signed by both parties.

Agreement
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Provision

Section in
Development
Agreement

Summary

t. Integration/merger
clause

Article 14

Only the terms of the Development Agreement are binding
(subject to applicable state law) and may only be modified
to the extent required by an appropriate court to make the
Development Agreement enforceable. Any
representations or promises outside of the Disclosure
Document and other agreements may not be enforceable.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in any franchise
agreement is intended to disclaim the representations made
in the Disclosure Document.

u. Dispute resolution by
arbitration or
mediation

Article 12

You must first submit all disputes and controversies
arising under the Development Agreement to our
management and make every effort to resolve the dispute
internally.

ion_all_clai y .. g
Development-AgreementUpon failure of informal dispute
resolution and except for our right to seek injunctive relief
in any court of competent jurisdiction, the dispute must be
submitted te—nen-bindingfor mediation_to JAMS, which
will take place at our, or; as applicable, our successor’s or
assign’s, then-current principal place of business
(currently, Irvine, California)(subjeet-to-applicable-state
laws. If the matter is mediated, the parties will split the
mediator’s fees and bear all of their other respective costs
of the mediation.

Except for our right to seek injunctive relief in any court
of competent jurisdiction and as otherwise described
above, we and you must arbitrate all disputes at a location
atwithin 50 miles of our or, as applicable, our successor’s
or assign’s then-current principal place of business
(currently, in Irvine, California) (subject to state law) in
accordance with JAMS’ then-current Comprehensive
Arbitration Rules & Procedures.

v. Choice of forum

Section 12.F

Subject to the arbitration requirement, litigation must be
brought in the court nearest to our or, as applicable, our
successor’s or assign’s then current principal place of
business (currently, Irvine, California) (subject to state
law). However, we may seek injunctive relief in any court
of competent jurisdiction.

w. Choice of law

Section 12.A

Except for the U.S. Trademark Act, the Federal
Arbitration Act other federal laws, and disputes involving
non-competition covenants (which are governed by the
law of the state in which your Studio is located),
California law applies (subject to state law).
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Applicable state law may require additional disclosures related to the information in this Disclosure
Document. These additional disclosures appear in Exhibit H, entitled State Specific Addenda, to this Disclosure
Document.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figure or personality to promote the Franchise being offered in this
Disclosure Document.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the dDisclosure dDocument. Financial performance information
that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an
existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this [tem
19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular
circumstances.

Definitions Used Throughout Item 19

e “Gross Revenue” means the total revenue generated by a given Studio-duringa-partictlarcalendarmonth
within-the MeasurementPeriod, including all revenue generated from the sale and provision of any and

all approved services at, from, or otherwise through, that Studio. Gross Revenue excludes sales tax (that
the Studio owner must pay directly to the appropriate taxing authority). Please note, Gross Revenue is
defined differently than how “Gross Sales” is defined in the Franchise Agreement, and as such, the
amount of Royalty fees you pay under the Franchise Agreement may be different than if applied to Gross
Revenue data provided below.

e “Measurement Period” means the period beginning on MarehFebruary 1, 20222023 and ending on

Eebruary 28,2023 January 31, 2024. Each month in the Measurement Period is an entire calendar month.

e “Non-Traditional Site” means any location that is situated within or as part of a larger venue or facility
and, as a result, is likely to draw the predominance of its customers from those persons who are using or
attending events in the larger venue or facility (for example, “big box” gyms and/or fitness facilities,
cruise ships, military bases, shopping malls, airports, sports facilities and stadiums, industrial or office
complexes, hotels, train stations and other transportation facilities, travel plazas, casinos, hospitals, theme
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parks, convention centers, colleges/universities, multi-unit residential properties, and other similar captive
market locations).

e A “Qualified Studio” means a Studio that was owned and operated by a franchisee for the entire
Measurement Period (except for permitted temporary closures) and that was in operation for at least +2six
(6) calendar months when its results began to be included in the data set and as of the end of the calendar
month for which its results were included. Quahﬁed Studios do not include Studios that operated at Non-

Traditional Sites. : :

S&@es—mad—Fﬂlly—Sehedbﬂed—Qaahﬁed—Smdres—andthat scheduled at least 100 classes dur1ng the

respective calendar month.

_“Minimally Scheduled-Q

| General Notes

The data presented in the charts below is data we obtained frem—menthlyby polling the information
directly from the franchlsees gym management software svstems and/or from proﬁt and loss reports pr0V1ded to
us by franchisees § 3
Studios—In—each. In all all cases, the data used was the franch1see’s’ data Ne1ther we nor our afﬁhates have
undertaken an independent investigation to verify the data that we polled from the franchisees’ gym management
software systems or that was provided to us by franchisees. We do not anticipate the data polled from or provided
by current franchisees in this Item 19 will materially differ from that of a new franchisee. This Item 19 contains
certain historical data related to the operation of certain Studios.

In each instance in which we show an average in this Item 19, we also show the range of the data points
and the median data point. The range is the space between the lowest and highest points in the data set. The
median is the middle data point; that is, the data point in the center of all data points. Where the number of data
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points is an even number, there is no middle data point, so the median is the average of the two middle data
points.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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Part A: Gross Revenue of Qualified Studios

L

The below provides the data relevant to Qualified Studios that, as of the particular calendar month, were open and operating

for at least 12six (6) months:

May- Jun- Sep-
Mar- Apr- Aug- Oet- Nov- Dee- Jan-Dec- Feb-
‘ 22Feb-23 | 22Mar-23 24%.; %%L Juln-3223 | o) 5uk23 ’}2‘;‘:3“& 22Sep-23 | 220ct-23 | 22Nov-23 | 23 | 23Jan-24
Tqtal Number of Open
anld Operating 241245 242 245241 | 248245 | 248255 | 248257 | 248262 | 248264 | 252247 | 258225 | 255218 | 254206
Franchised Studios’
g’t ’gl.bo " of Qualified 182227 | 183228 | 183228 | 187231 | 188245 | 194248 | 196252 | 199254 | 200238 | 200216 | 264208 | 204197
Average Gross Revenue of | $32,6573 | $32,67733, | $33;079 | $340013 | $350483 | $29.7103 | $28,9773 | $28,9122 | $35;7262 | $29:8633 | $30.8173 | $34L8673
Otalified Studios 0,970 335 33,114 | 3,004 1,862 1,440 0,610 9,821 9,722 7,209 3,344 4,345
Nnber of Qualified 7690/ o, | 393 | 8195/ | 76102/ | 77102/ | 0101/ | 79107/ | 83102/ | 7996/ | 8294/ | 8187
Eceeded the Average of | “340% | 4y 54204, 8%& (43341% | (40:442% | (39741% | (40:840% | (39-742% | (41:543% | (39:544% | (40:245% | (39-744%
Ohalified Studios } 0) ) ) ) } ) ) ) ) )
Mkdian Gross Revenue of | $36.5412 | $30,24229, | $36.309 | $28.5042 | $28.1492 | $26.5152 | $26.4742 | $26,6992 | $3+,0032 | $27.3443 | $26.9423 | $28.7133
Oalified Studios 8,188 991 29,721 | 9,449 8,387 7,832 7,119 5,946 6,371 4,238 0,622 1,825
Rdnge of Gross Revenue of | $2241t0 | $6;376te | $6;635t0 | $6:754t0 | $5:593te | $5:29+te | $4.961te e e I e
Olalified Studios $124.485 | $116.733§ | $103.043 [$96,87289 [$100,0338 |$104,4828 [$94.53784 | H02S $‘92 $3;601 ‘e$ $100,1478 |$103.443$ |$103.800$
$4,250 3.678 | $7.276 0 792 2,833 992 $;6’§7}2: $}5121’g1g61: 1,365 3,282 1,980
1o Lo fo fo fo fo 0 6 $93,579 i $89,077 | . . 2 fo fo
$103,800 | $103.371 [$99,028 | $98.493 [$107.167 | $97.387 | $99.542 : : $131,224 | $102,404 | $109,680

1. Does not include Studios that operated at Non-Traditional Sites.

Data Set and Methodology (Part A, Table I)

The chart above reflects the average, median, and range of Gross Revenue of Qualified Studios during each calendar month in the Measurement

Period. We calculated the average Gross Revenue for each calendar month by adding the total amount of monthly Gross Revenue generated by

the Qualified Studios, then dividing that number by the number of Qualified Studios for that calendar month.
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11

1L The below provides the data relevant to Fully Scheduled Qualified Studios that, as of the particular calendar month, were open and
| operating for at least 12six (6) months:

Mar- APpr- May- Juh- Juln-2223 Aug-22Jul- Sep- [Oet-22Sep-| Nev- |Dee-22Nov- Jan-Dec-23 Feb-23Jan-
22Feb-23 | 22Mar-23 | 22Apr-23 | 22May-23 =T 23 22Aug-23 23 220ct-23 23 24
Togal Number of Open
anfi Operating 241245 242 245041 | 248245 | 248255 | 248257 | 248262 | 248264 | 252247 | 258225 | 255218 | 254206
Franchised Studios’
Nymber of Fully Scheduled | 135101 | 412165 | 419133 | 423158 | 404143 | 431140 | 99171 | 424137 | 102155 | 95127 | 427113 | 95136
Oualified Studios
If{ lr “ﬁihi;sz fguea"l’;;ezf $36,71641,($38.62038,0|$38.13241,|$36,00639, |$38.84039,8 | $34.33439,5 | $36,67136, | $34:63638, | $45.76936, | $38.86246,6| $36,58541,9 | $42,17040.4
> 368 55 496 025 03 99 387 540 236 53 06 63
Stidios
Number of Fully Scheduled
Odalified Studios that Met 55 S 50 £ 42 55 - 53 4=t 38 L 40
or|Exceeded the Average of [(40.7%)45/| (411%)T4/ |(42.0%)56/ |(41.5%)72/ | (41.6%)65/ | (42.0%)60/ |(44.4%)78/|(43.8%)60/ |(43.19%)73/| (40-0%)51/ | (38.6%)53/ | (42.1%)63/
' 45% 45% 42% 46% 45% 43% 46% 44% 47% 40% 47% 46%
AF4 ?iagcgjsfesgzzz;;’é $33.42538,($35.97335,6|$34.28638, | $33.75634, [$34.57637.0|$31,45636,2| $34.70233, | $31,41436, | $40,01734, |$35.42642.1($32,82239.9|$38.61438.1
> 138 25 592 691 50 07 306 406 633 67 43 34
Stitdios
Rapnge of Gross Revenue of |$1H5382-te | $13;762t0 | $14:401t0 | $12;697 -t | $12,754te | $12,937t0 | $12,:681te | $12,929-t0 | $15;249-te | $13,;980-te | $1L959t0 | $16,023te
Fujlly Scheduled Qualified — [$124:48581/$+16.733$8./5103.043$1|$96.87288, 1$106.633812/$+04.182813|$94,53788, | $96,51287, 5 112.08+86/$100, 14788, [$103,443$141$103.860810)
Stbdios 6,023 983 1,512 975 967 572 769 626 458 664 784 508
to to to to to to to to to to to to
$103,800 | $103.371 | $99.028 | $98.493 | $107.167 | $97.387 | $99.542 | $93.579 | $89,077 | $131.224 | $102.402 | $109.680
1. Does not include Studios that operated at Non-Traditional Sites.
| Data Set and Methodology (Part A, Table 1I)
71.
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The chart above reflects the average, median, and range of Gross Revenue of Fully Scheduled Qualified Studios during each calendar month in the
Measurement Period. We calculated the average Gross Revenue for each calendar month by adding the total amount of monthly Gross Revenue
generated by the Fully Scheduled Qualified Studios, then dividing that number by the number of Fully Scheduled Qualified Studios for that
calendar month.
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111 The below provides the data relevant to Minimally Scheduled Qualified Studios that, as of the particular calendar month, were
open and operating for at least 12six (6) months:

Apr- | May- | Jun- n Sep- Oet- Dee- Jan Feb-

22Mar- | 22Apr- | 22May- A 22Aug- | 22Sep- 22Nov- 23Jan-

B | B | » BB o | s | s | a3 | DBy
Total Number of Open
and Operating 242 245241 | 248245 248257 | 248262 | 248264 258225 | 255218 | 254206
Franchised Studios’
Number of Minimally
Scheduled Qualified 763 6495 6473 63108 9781 117 10589 7795 10961
Studios
Average Gross Revenue $23301 | $23.682 | $21.381 $20.0952 | $21.125 | $20.033 $25721 | $24302 | $22.888
of Minimally Scheduled ’ ; : oo ’ ’ ; ’ ;
Ouali . 20,972 | 21,378 | 19,974 0,863 18,414 | 19,612 23,733 | 23,159 | 20,706
ualified Studios
Number of Minimally
Scheduled Qualified 33 26 29 30 42 37 49 35 44
Studios that Met or “65%) | (40:6%) | 453%) “4r6%)5 | 433%) | 4% e e et
Exceeded the Average 30/ 38/ 33/ o/ 36/ 54/ 37/ 42/ 28/
ofMinimath-Sehediled 48% 40% 45% 46% 44% 46% 42% 44% 46%
Onalified-Studioso
of Minimally Scheduled 522263 | $22354 | $20.294 $19.4791 | $19335 | $19.392 $20734 | $20221 | $20.949
Ouali X 20,474 | 19,731 | 19,343 9,614 17,279 | 18.879 21,576 | 21,915 | 18,821
ualified Studios
Range of Gross $6376 | $6,635t0 | $6;754 40 $5291 to | $4.961to | $4,029-t0 $3 55610 | $3.560t0 | $4.250t0
Revenue of Minimally to $48,535 | $48.190 $51,654% | $54:989 | $59275 $54.265 | $57,049 | $62.544
Scheduled Qualified $47:863 | $7,276 $90 2,833 $4,992 $27 $1,365 | $3,282 | $1,980
Studios $3.678 to to to to to to to to
to $53.466 | $42.279 $61,085 | $36.221 | $45.354 $61,697 | $49.,961 | $50,719
$43,897
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1. Does not include Studios that operated at Non-Traditional Sites.

Data Set and Methodology (Part A, Table III)

The chart above reflects the average, median, and range of Gross Revenue of Minimally Scheduled Qualified Studios during each calendar month
in the Measurement Period. We calculated the average Gross Revenue for each calendar month by adding the total amount of monthly Gross
Revenue generated by the Minimally Scheduled Qualified Studios, then dividing that number by the number of Minimally Scheduled Qualified

Studios for that calendar month.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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| Part B: Member Information for New Studios

The chart below provides the data relevant to New Studios as of the particular month after it opened in

calendar year 2023:
| Month | Month | Month | Month | Month | Month 6
1 2 3 i S
| Number of New Studios’ 18 18 18 15 12 12
| Average $6.489 | $27.222 | $32.408 | $33.791 | $33.531 | $32.745
Number / Percentage of New Studios 7/ 6/ 7/ 6/ 6/ 5/
that met or exceeded the average 38.9% | 33.3% | 38.9% | 40.0% 50.0% 41.7%
LM Median $5,345 | $23,549 | $28.443 | $29,556 | $31,873 | $29.279
| Range (Max) $13.660 | $57.198 | $60.484 | $61,084 | $55.572 | $53.547
| Range (Min) $1.378 | $6.550 | $14.788 | $18.288 | $16.149 | $15.409
I Average 248 | 295 | 310 | 303 | 306 303
Number / Percentage of New Studios 7/ 8/ 8/ 7/ 5/ 5/
that met or exceeded the average 38.9% | 44.4% | 44.4% | 46.7% 41.7% 41.7%
@ Median 271 | 268 | 200 | 218 | 283 | 216
I Range (Max) 409 | 517 | 585 | 551 | 523 522
| Range (Min) 146 | 152 | 200 | 203 | 222 218
I Average 566 | 426 | 372 | 346 | 323 312
Number / Percentage of New Studios 7/ 8/ 8/ 8/ 5/ 6/
that met or exceeded the average 38.9% | 44.4% | 444% | 53.3% 41.7% 50%
Q Median 490 | 364 | 349 | 351 | 316 | 307
I Range (Max) 1,035 | 697 | 631 | 645 | 485 401
| Range (Min) 342 | 229 | 183 | 188 | 171 222
I Average 87 84 63 46 2 38
L’ Number / Percentage of New Studios 6/ 7/ 10/ 4/ 6/ 5/
that met or exceeded the average 333% | 38.9% | 55.6% | 26.7% 50.0% 41.7%
| ew Memberships Median 77 71 67 38 0 34
I Range (Max) 181 | 187 | 122 | 85 61 62
| Range (Min) 18 24 26 27 21 16
|

1. Does not include Studios that operated at Non-Traditional Sites.
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Additional Definitions (Part B)

“Active Members” means Studio members who were party to an effective studio membership agreement
with a New Studio at the conclusion of the particular calendar month.

“Leads” means the total number of prospective Studio members who submitted contact information to
New Studios regarding Studio products or services during the particular calendar month.

“New Memberships” means the total number of new Studio members who signed a studio membership
agreement in the particular calendar month. New Memberships are included in the number of Active

Members for that particular calendar month.

A “New Studio” means a Studio that was owned and operated by a franchisee and that opened in calendar
year 2023.

Data Set and Methodology (Part B)

The chart above in this Part B reflects the monthly average, median, and range of Gross Revenue, Active
Members, Leads, and New Memberships of New Studios during their initial 6-month opening phase. “Month 1”
refers to the calendar month in which the Studio launched its soft opening, which refers to when the Studio
opened to its members and new prospects. The Gross Revenue data provided in Month 1 only includes the Gross
Revenue generated by the New Studio after the soft opening and does not include pre-opening membership sales
prior to the New Studio’s soft opening, regardless of when the Studio opened during the particular calendar
month. “Month 2” refers to the calendar month after Month 1, and the same sequence repeats itself through
“Month 6.”

We calculated the average of each category (Gross Revenue Active Members, Leads, and New
Memberships) for each month of the New Studios’ monthly opening phase by adding the total monthly amount of
the particular category (Gross Revenue Active Members, Leads, and New Memberships) generated by the New
Studios, then dividing that number by the number of New Studios for that month.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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Part C: Monthly Membership Attrition Rate

Monthly Membership Attrition Rate
Average 9.0%
Number / Percentage that met or exceeded the average 94/ 47.7%
Median 8.9%
Maximum 14.9%
Minimum 4.7%

Additional Definitions (Part C)

“Membership Attrition Rate” means the number of cancelled Studio memberships during a particular
calendar month divided by the number of Studio members at the end of the prior respective calendar month.

Data Set and Methodology (Part C)

The chart above reflects the average monthly Membership Attrition Rate during the 2023 calendar year
for those Studios that were Qualified Studios as of January 31, 2024. There were 197 Qualified Studios as of
January 31, 2024.

We calculated the average monthly Membership Attrition Rate as follows: (a) we calculated the
Membership Attrition Rate for each calendar month during 2023 for each such Qualified Studio by calculating
the percentage of members that cancelled their memberships in a particular calendar month at each such Qualified
Studio; then (b) we calculated an annual Membership Attrition Rate for each such Qualified Studio by
determining a weighted average of each such Qualified Studio’s Membership Attrition Rate for the twelve months
during the 2023 calendar year by allocating weight to the particular month’s Membership Attrition Rate based on
the number of members that such Qualified Studio had during that month (for example, if a Qualified Studio had
200 members at the end of January 2023 and had 300 members at the end of February 2023, the Qualified
Studio’s Membership Attrition Rate for February 2023 was weighted 1.5 times greater than the Qualified Studio’s
Membership Attrition Rate for January 2023, as a 300 membership base is 1.5 times greater than a 200
membership base); then (¢) we calculated a simple average of all such Qualified Studios’ weighted average
monthly Membership Attrition Rate to determine the average Monthly Membership Attrition Rate for all 197
Qualified Studios noted above. We also show the range and median of Monthly Membership Attrition Rates for
such Qualified Studios.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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Part D: Average Revenue Mix

Memberships Services Fees Products
Average 77% 19% 0% 4%
Number / Percentage of that 130/ 65.9% 74/ 37.6% 60 /30.5% 81/41.1%
met or exceeded the average —_— — EEEEEE—— EEEEEE—
Median 80% 17% 0% 3%
Maximum 92% 78% 3% 18%
Minimum 4% 7% 0% 0%

Additional Definitions (Part D)

“Fees” means Gross Revenue attributed to fees charged by Studios, such as set up fees, cancellation fees,
monthly freeze fees, and enhancement fees.

“Memberships” means Gross Revenue attributed to down payments and recurring dues for Studio
memberships and membership add-ons.

“Products” means Gross Revenue attributed to retail products sold by Studios.

“Services” means Gross Revenue attributed to services that Studios provide, such as personal training
services, drop-in fees, and studio class packages.

Data Set and Methodology (Part D)

The chart above reflects the average Gross Revenue that is attributed to Memberships, Services, Fees, and
Products during the 2023 calendar year for those Studios that were Qualified Studios as of January 31, 2024.
There were 197 Qualified Studios as of January 31, 2024. Each category (Memberships, Services, Fees, and
Products) are exclusive of each other.

We calculated the average of each category (Memberships, Services, Fees, and Products) for each such
Qualified Studio by adding the total amount of annual Gross Revenue generated by such Qualified Studio for
each category (Memberships, Services, Fees, and Products, then dividing that number by the annual Gross
Revenue generated by such Qualified Studio. Then, we calculated a simple average of those calculations for each
category (Memberships, Services, Fees, and Products) to provide the average allocation of Memberships,
Services, Fees, and Products for the entire set of 197 Qualified Studios.

Some Studios have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance
that you’ll earn as much.

Written substantiation for these financial performance representations will be made available to the
prospective franchisee upon reasonable request.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any financial performance
representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations
either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing Studio, however, we may provide you with the actual
records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future
income, you should report it to our management by contacting our Brand President, Trevor Lucas at CycleBar
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Franchising SPV, LLC, 17877 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Irvine, CA 92614, or via telephone at (513) 815-

8467;; the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE 1

Systemwide Outlet Summary
for years 20202021 to 20222023 !

Outlets at the Start of | Outlets at the End
Outlet Type Year the Year of the Year Net Change
Franchised? 2024 193 208 5
2021 208 234 +26
Franchised 2
2022 234 257258 +2324
CompanyOwned 20202023 0258 5218 +5-40
2021 5 5 0
Company-Owned
2022 5 211 +76
Total Outlets 20202023 19311 2131 +20-10
2021 213 239 +26
Total Outlets 2022 239 269 +30
2023 269 219 -50
1. The numbers are as of December 31 of each year in each of the tables provided in Item 20.
2. Chmeess e snlescinesied o Mmines Dome it Do Ol srredeen e Diselea

nmbe nrovided 1n o h A he h]le N1 i am 0 o o ad " din nde nehice oreamen
with-er-ewned-and-operated-by;Predeecessor-As disclosed in XFI’s most recent Form 10K filed March 4, 2024
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, XFI deems a Studio closed if it has not generated sales for at
least nine consecutive months, and thus, the total number of open Studios provided above may not equal the
number of open Studios cited in XFI’s publicly-filed documents.

TABLE 2
Transfer of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners
for years 20202021 To 26222023

State Year Number of Transfers
20202021 1
AZ 2022 3
20212023 1
CA 20222021 32
20202022 1
€A 2023 0
2021 23
co 2022 13
79
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State Year Number of Transfers
2021 0
SC 2022 1
TN 20202023 10
2021 0
N 2022 2
X 20202023 20
2021 2
IX 2022 4
WA 20202023 13
2021 0
WA 2022 1
Wi 20202023 41
2021 0
W 2022 0
Total Outlets 20202023 190
2021 19
Total Outlets 2022 23
2023 26
TABLE 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
for years 20202021 to 20222023
Outlets at . Ceased
the Start | Outlets N Non Reacquired Operations — (I B ET
State Year Terminations by End of
of the Opened Renewals . Other
Franchisor the Year
Year Reasons
AL 2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
AL 2021 0 1 0 0 0 1
- 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2020202 1 0 0 0 10 0 61
AR 3
AR 2021 0 1 0 1
- 2022 1 1
2020202 51 20 7
AZ 3% A2 = ~ 1
3
Az 2021 7 0 7
2022 7 1 8
2020202 188 50 0 0 238
CAx* A2 S pS4 o
3
C AR 2021 23 13 01 61 24
2022 24 6 0 4 26
R
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DI B EL Reacquired SRS Outlets at
the Start | Outlets o Non q Operations —
State Year Terminations by End of
of the Opened Renewals ] Other
Franchisor the Year
Year Reasons
2020202 1226 810 61 0 03 97 1225
3
CO** 2021 12 0 0 0 12
2022 12 0 0 13
2020202 313 93 61 04 311
3
p— 2021 3 0 0
2022 3 0 6
2020202 16 0 01 15
DG 3
D 2021 1 1
| 2022 1 1
2020202 191 0 191
FI *% == = =
3
L *# 2021 19 0 0 25
2022 25 2 +£0 2425
2020202 325 16 61 05 425
3
GA** 2021 0 0
2022 0 0
2020202 | 4 01 15
s
A 2021 1 0 1
: 2022 1 0 1
2020202 21 01 20
3
— 2021
2022 2
2020202 72 72
II *% == = =
3
[ 2021 7 1 7
2022 7 3 10
2020202 310 1 20 92 29
I P %% == _— = = A
3
N 2021
2022
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DI B EL Reacquired LT Outlets at
the Start | Outlets o Non q Operations —
State Year Terminations by End of
of the Opened Renewals ] Other
Franchisor the Year
Year Reasons
2020202 +4 92 0 0 62 92 12
s
KS 2021 1 1
T 2022 1 1
2020202 31 31
3
— 2021 3 0
2022 1
2020202 24 0 24
LA 3
LA 2021 2 0 2
T 2022 2 1 1
2020202 31 0 31
S 3
MA 2021 3 0
- 2022 3
2020202 14 0 +4
2L 3
ME 2021 1 1
- 2022 1 1
2020202 41 10 51
3
M 2021 1 6
2022 1
2020202 37 92 13 a3 23
3
M 2021 0 2
2022
2620202 20 02 51
2O 3
MO 2021 2 7
- 2022 7 1
2020202 +8 o1 03 +4
25 3
MS 2021 1 1
T 2022 1 1
83
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DI B EL Reacquired Ceas.ed Outlets at
State Year i B Terminations Non by Operations — End of
of the Opened Renewals Franchisor Other the Year
Year Reasons
NCE® 2922& g1 10 0 0 0 0 91
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
MT 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
N 2021 9 0 0 0 0 0 9
- 2022 9 2 0 0 0 0 11
ND 2020202 11 64 0 0 062 041 19
3
\D 2021 1 1 0 1
T 2022 1 0 0 1
NE 2922& 1 91 01 1
NE 2021 1 0 1
T 2022 1 0 1
g z@%g& 101 101
N 2021 10 1 11
2022 11 0 11
- z@%g& 11 01 o1 03 18
M 2021 1 1
- 2022 1 1
Ny 2922& ! 1
N 2021 1 0 1
T 2022 1 1 0
Ny 2922& 10 91 0 1
NY* 2021 1 6 7
- 2022 0
om z@%g& 17 01 01 17
OH** 2021 11 0 10
- 2022 10 2 0 12
CyeleBar Franchising SPVLLC
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DI B EL Reacquired Ceas.ed Outlets at
State Year i B Terminations Non by Operations — End of
of the Opened Renewals Franchisor Other the Year
Year Reasons
OK:® 2922& 412 91 0 0 0 91 412
OK** 2021 4 1 5
- 2022 5
OR:% %%gﬁ 35 02 3
OR** 2021 3 3
- 2022 3 3
oA %923& 73 73
PA 2021 7 1 8
T 2022 8 2 10
RI 2020202 210 92 02 91 29
3
2021
= 2022
SCxx %9%2& 32 10 62
S 2021 0
T 2022 0
- %923& 106 o1 02 94
_— 2021 9 0 9
2022 9 2 11
g %923& 1811 62 02 02 249
— 2021 24 15 04 0 25
o 2022 25 4 1 0 28
- %923& 228 08 03 012 21
2021
u 2022 0 0
VA %923& 52 02 50
VA 2021 1 0
- 2022 6 0
CyeleBarFranchising SPV.LLC




DI B EL Reacquired LT Outlets at
the Start | Outlets o Non q Operations —
State Year Terminations by End of
of the Opened Renewals ] Other
Franchisor the Year
Year Reasons
WA 29%(;& 26 0 0 0 0 01 25
2021
WA
- 2022 4
wpse | 20202021 34 54
2021 5 5
WI**
2022 5 5
Total 29%(3)& 1935 203 0 52 04 2082
2021 208 2935 01 0 38 0 234
Total 2022 234 35 0 0 11 +£0 257258
2023 258 52 1 0 23 68 218

*One Studio in Florida has temporarily closed and will reopen in 2023 upon finalization of our reacquisition.

** Includes franchisees that have signed Development Agreements.
I 2 of these locations ceased operations as of December 31, 2023 but has since reopened

TABLE 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets
for years 20202021 to 20222023

Outlets at QOutlets QOutlets at
State Year |the Start of N Reacquired from QUL | O S?ld End of the
Opened . Closed |to Franchisee
the Year Franchisee Year
AR 2020 o o 1 9 0 +
2021 1 0 0 0 1 0
AR
T 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
CA 20202023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 0 0 1 0 1 0
CA 2022 0 0 4 0 0 4
2023 4 0 3 0 A 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
Co
T 2022 0 0 40 0 0 40
L 20202023 0 0 01 0 01 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
FL
T 2022 0 0 32 0 0 32
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Outlets at Outlets Outlets at
State Year |the Start of Outlets Reacquired from Outlets | Outlets S?ld End of the
Opened . Closed |to Franchisee
the Year Franchisee Year
= 20202023 02 0 01 0 03 0
2021 0 0 1 0 0 1
IL
* 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2 20202023 o1 0 20 0 01 20
2021 2 0 0 0 2 0
IN
* 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
EA 20202023 0 0 92 0 92 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
LA
T 2022 0 0 1 0 0 1
LRt 20202023 o1 0 10 0 0 1
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
MI 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 3 1 2 0
2021 1 0 0 0 0 1
MN
- 2022 1 0 0 0 1 0
NDb 20202023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
NC 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 2 0 2 0
2021 0 0 1 0 0 1
ND 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 1 0
20202021 0 0 0 0 0 0
NVNJ 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 1 0 1 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
NV
- 2022 0 0 1 0 0 1
OH 20202023 o1 0 0 0 01 0
2021 0 0 1 0 0 1
OH
T 2022 1 0 0 0 1 0
ok 20202023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
OK 2022 0 0 2 0 2 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0

|




Outlets at Outlets Outlets at
State Year |the Start of Outlets Reacquired from Outlets | Outlets S?ld End of the
Opened . Closed |to Franchisee
the Year Franchisee Year
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
PA 2022 0 0 2 0 2 0
2023 0 0 2 0 2 0
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
sc V21 Y Y Y v v Y
- 2022 0 0 2 0 2 0
TN 20202023 0 0 1 0 91 10
2021 1 0 0 0 0 1
N
7 2022 1 0 0 0 1 0
X 20202023 0 0 92 0 02 0
2021 0 0 04 0 04 0
> 2022 0 0 1 0 0 1
2023 1 0 3 0 4 0
Wi 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
20202022 0 0 50 0 0 50
Total Y Y
2023 0 0 2 0 2 0
2021 5 0 38 0 38 5
Total 2022 5 0 1211 0 5 1211
2023 1 0 23 1 32 1
TABLE 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 26222023
Unit Franchise Agreements | Projected New Franchised | Projected new Company-
State Signed But Outlets Not Outlets in the Next Fiscal owned Outlets in the
Opened Year Next Fiscal Year
CA H9 76 0
Cco 53 32 0
FL 83 32 10
GA 1 1 0
ILID 1 1 0
HNIL 1 1 0
K¥IN 1 1 0
EFAKY 1 1 0
MALA 1 1 0

:




Unit Franchise Agreements | Projected New Franchised | Projected new Company-
State Signed But Outlets Not Outlets in the Next Fiscal owned Outlets in the
Opened Year Next Fiscal Year

MN 1 1 0
| MO 3 2 0
| MT 3 3 0
| NCMO 2 1 0
NV 1 1 0
NY 3 2 0
OHOR 1 1 0
PA 1 1 0
TN 2 1 0
TX 52 31 0
VA 3 2 0
WA 1 1 0
| WiTotal 138 128 0
| Total 55 39 3

* Includes franchisees that have signed Development Agreements.

A list of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of Predeeesser’sour current franchisees as of the
Issuanee—Ddate of this dDisclosure dDocument is attached as Exhibit I. A list of the names, addresses and
telephone numbers of Predeeessor’sour franchisees who have had a franchise terminated, canceled, not renewed
or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement during the most
recently completed fiscal year or who have not communicated with Predeeesserus within 10 weeks of the issuance

date of this ise-dDisclosure dDocument is attached as Exhibit J. As-we-commeneced-offering franchises-as-of

0 O

In the last three fiscal years, Predecessorhas—requiredStudio franchisees te—entered into confidentiality
agreements that restrict their ability to speak openly about their experience with our franchise system. You may
wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to
communicate with you.

If you buy the franchise offered in this dDisclosure dDocument, your contact information may be
disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

Trademark-Specific Franchisee Organizations

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with our franchise system that require
disclosure in this Item.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Attached to this dDisclosure dDocument as Exhibit C is the-audited-conselidated-opening balanee sheetof
Asseteo-as—of March—15Assetco’s audited financial statements, including its balance sheet as of December 31,

2023 and related statements of operations, changes in member’s equity, and cash flows for the period from March
6, 2023 to December 31, 2023. Assetco was formed in March 2023, and therefore, is unable to provide three years
of financial statements. We are a wholly-owned subsidiary of Assetco, and Assetco absolutely and
unconditionally guarantees to assume our duties and obligations under the Franchise Agreements and
Development Agreements entered into while we are the wholly owned subsidiary of Assetco. A copy of the
Assetco guaranty is attached as Exhibit D. Our and Assetco’s fiscal year ends on December 31 of each year.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

The following agreements are attached to this Disclosure Document:

Exhibit A+ A Form of Franchise Agreement and Exhibits

Exhibit 1 Ownership Interests; Designated Market Area; Authorized Location;
Designated Territory
Exhibit 2 Authorized Location Addendum
Exhibit 3 Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgment
Exhibit 4 Addendum to Lease
Exhibit E Statement of Prospective Franchisee

Exhibit G Form of General Release
Exhibit H State Specific Addenda
Exhibit K Form of Area Development Agreement

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Exhibit L contains detachable documents acknowledging your receipt of thethis Disclosure Document.
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CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC

CYCLEBAR®
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE

1
11  Grant. 1
12  Site Approval Process. 1
1.3  Exclusivity for Designated Territory. 2
14  Rights Reserved to Franchisor. 2
2. ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISEE 3
2.1  Acceptance by Franchisee. 3
2.2 Conditions. 3
3. TERM AND SUCCESSOR FRANCHISES 4
31 Tem. 4
3.2  Successor Franchises. 4
3.3  Holdover. 5
4. TRADEMARK STANDARDS 5
4.1  Ownership of Marks. 5
4.2  Useof Marks. 5
4.3  LitigatienNotification of Infringement. 5
44  Modification, Discontinuance or Substitution. 6
5. FEES 6
5.1  Initia Franchise Fee. 6
5.2  Royalty Fee. 6
53 GrossSales. 6
54  Fitness Equipment & Initial FF& E Package;
System:—andPre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory Klt Pre-Sdles Phase
Expenditures, POS/Inventory System. 6
55  Training Programs and Fees. 7
56  Fund Contribution. 9
5.7  Technology Fee. 9
58 Music Licensing Fee. 9
5:85.9 Other Amounts Due in Connection with the Studio. 9
5:95.10 Electronic Transfer; Right to Modify Collection Interval. 9
5:305.11 Interest and Late Charges. 10
6. FRANCHISOR SERVICES 10
6.1  General Guidance for Opening. 10
6.2  Training-Related Programs and Obligations. 10
6.3  Operations Manual. 11
6.4  Continuing Services. 12
6.5  Approved Lists. 12
6.6  Pricing. 12
6.7 Fund. 12
6.8  Approving Pre-Opening Support Program. 12
6.9 Branded Emails. 12
7. FACILITY STANDARDS, LEASE AND CONSTRUCTION 1213
7.1  Facility Specifications. 1213
72 Lesse 1314
7.3  Unit Development. 14
7.4  Franchisee' s Responsibility. 14
| 8. STUDIO IMAGE AND OPERATING STANDARDS 1415
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

8.1 Compliance. 3415
8.2  Franchisor's Right to Inspect. 1415
8.3  Personndl. 15
8.4  Products and Services to be Offered for Sale. 1516
85  Compliance with Laws. 17
8.6  Operational Efforts. 1718
8.7  Performance Standards. 1718
ADVERTISING AND MARKETING 18
9.1 Fund. 18
9.2 Initia Marketing Spend; Local Marketing Activities. 19
9.3  Social MediaActivities. 20
9.4  Franchisee Marketing Groups. 20
FINANCIAL REPORTS, AUDITS, COMPUTER SYSTEM AND INSURANCE
REQUIREMENTS 2021
10.1 Records and Reports. 2021
10.2 Right to Conduct Audit or Review. 2021
10.3 Computer System and Software. 21
10.4 ‘nsuraneelnformation Security. 21
10.5 Insurance. 22
RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION 2224
11.1  Independent Contractor. 2224
11.2 Indemnification. 2224
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 2325
12.1 Franchisor’s Confidential Information. 2325
12.2  Injunctive Relief. 2326
COVENANTS NOT TO COMPETE 2426
13.1 Non-Competition Covenants of Franchisee. 2426
13.2 Non-Solicitation Covenants. 2427
13.3 Enforcement of Covenants. 2527
TRANSFER OF INTEREST 2528
14.1 Franchisor’s Approval Required. 2528
14.2 Conditionsfor Approval of Transfer. 2528
14.3 Desth or Disability of Franchisee. 2629
14.4 Relocation. 2629
14.5 Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal. 2629
14.6 Transfer by Franchisor. 2730
DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 2730
151 Termination of Franchise by Franchisor. 2730
15.2 Cross-Default. 3033
15.3 Obligations of Franchisee upon Termination, Expiration or Non-Renewal. 3633
15.4  Franchisor’'s Rights and Remedies in Addition to Termination. 3135
RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES 3235
16.1 Governing Law. 3235
16.2 Internal Dispute Resolution. 3236
16.3 Mediation. 3236
16.4 Mandatory Binding Arbitration. 3336
16.5 Other Proceedings (Right to Injunctive Relief). 3437
16.6 CheieesfFerumConsent to Jurisdiction. 3438
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16.7 Waiver of Punitive Damages. 3538

16.8 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. 3538

169 WAIVER OF CLASSACTIONS. 3538

16.10 Attorneys Feesand Costs. 3538

16.11 No Withholding of Payments. 3639

16.12 Limitation of Actions. 3639
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CYCLEBAR®
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Franchise Agreement (this “ Agreement”) is made effective as of the Effective Date by and
between CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with its
principal business address at 17877 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“ Franchisor”), and
the person or entity identified as the “ Franchisee” in the signature blocks below (“Franchisee,” and
together with Franchisor, the “ Parties’). The Effective Date is the date Franchisor signs this Agreement
as shown beneath its signature hereto.

RECITALS

Franchisor owns, administers and grants franchises for a system of fitness studios -CyeleBar
Studies-thatthat (a) offer and sell specialized instruction and related services (“ Approved Services')
and merchandise and other products (“ Approved Products’), (b) are currently identified by and-uase-the
trademark “ CycleBar” and related designs and use other related trademarks and service marks designated
from time to time by Franchisor (the “Marks’), that(c) reflect distinctive interior design and display
procedures, and color scheme and décor (the “ Trade Dress’), and that-use(d) operate using a designated
“ System” which includes the Marks, Trade Dress and certain of Franchisor’s other intellectual property

including trade secrets, copyrights, confidential and proprietary information, and designated training and
exercise methods and know-how, fitness equipment, furniture and fixtures, marketing, advertising and
saes promotl ons, cost controls, accounting and reportl ng procedures and personnel management systems

%ppfevedPreduets%each a“ CcheBar Studio” and coIIectlver, the : Cvcl eBar StudIOS’ ).

Franchisee has requested that Franchisor grant it a franchise to own and operate a CycleBar
Studio and, to support its request, has provided Franchisor with certain information about its experience,
skills and resources (the “Application Materials’). Franchisee has independently investigated the
business contemplated by this Agreement and recognizes that the nature of the business may change over
time.

Franchisor is willing to grant Franchisee's request on the terms and conditions contained in this
Aqgreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of and reliance on the foregoing Recitals (which are
incorporated herein by reference), the agreements described below, and other valuable consideration,
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the pParties agree as follows:

1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE

1.1 Grant. Franchisee agrees to, at all times, faithfully, honestly and diligently perform its
obligations under this Agreement and to use its best efforts to promote its CycleBar Studio (the * Studio”)
as described herein. Accordingly, Franchisor grants to Franchisee the non-exclusive right and license to
establish and operate a single Studio, offering only the Approved Services and Approved Products and
utilizing only the System and the Marks, at the location identified on Exhibit 1 or as determined in
accordance with Section 1.2 below (the “ Authorized Location”), in accordance with the provisions and
for the Term (defined below) specified in this Agreement.

Franchisee agrees not to conduct the business of its Studio at any location other than the Authorized
Location and to use the Authorized Location only for the operation of its Studio. Franchisee also agrees
1.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC

2023102024 FDD | Ex. A-% — Form of Franchise Agreement
1320.616-002/3927901320.010.003/397906




that, once its Studio opens for business, it will continuously operate the Studio in accordance with this
Agreement for the duration of the Term.

1.2 Site Approval Process. If the Authorized Location is not identified on Exhibit 1 when
Franchisee signs this Agreement, Franchisee must search for acceptable locations for the Studio within
the area identified on Exhibit 1 (the “ Designated Market Ared’) and secure Franchisor’s acceptance of
the proposed location within 90 days after the Effective Date (the “ Site Acceptance Period”). The
Designated Market Area has been identified for the sole purpose of facilitating the orderly development
of the market, and not for purposes of granting Franchisee any exclusivity or protection within the
Designated Market Area. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor does not guarantee that
Franchisee will find an acceptable site within the Designated Market Area.or during the Site Acceptance
Period.

Despite any assistance Franchisor provides to Franchisee, Franchisee is entirely responsible, at
its expense, for doing everything necessary to develop and open the Studio in accordance with this
Agreement, including, subject to Franchisor’s prior written acceptance, timely locating, selecting, and
securing possession of the Authorized L ocation.

Franchisee must provide any information Franchisor requests to aid in its evaluation of
Franchisee's proposed site. Franchisor will have sole discretion to accept or reject any proposed site.
Franchisor’s acceptance is entirely for its own benefit and may not be relied upon by Franchisee as a
representation, warranty, or indication of any kind, including as to the suitability of the Authorized
Location or the likelihood of success of the Studio. Franchisor is not responsible should any of the
criteriaon which it bases its decision change or not serve the Franchisee’ s purposes.

When it accepts Franchisee's proposed site, Franchisor will designate, in its sole determination
based on any and all factors that Franchisor determines to be important, an area around the Authorized
Location (the “Designated Territory”). If the Authorized Location and Designated Territory are not
identified in Exhibit 1 when this Agreement is signed, Franchisor will, upon its acceptance of
Franchisee's proposed site for the Studio, complete and deliver to Franchisee the Authorized Location
Addendum attached hereto as Exhibit 2. Franchisee will have 10 days following delivery of the
Authorized Location Addendum to execute and return it to Franchisor. If Franchisee rejects the
addendum or does not timely sign and return it to Franchisor, Franchisor may, in its discretion, revoke its
acceptance of the Authorized Location, in which case, Franchisee must propose and secure Franchisor’s
acceptance of an aternative site, using the same process, within the remainder of the 96-daySite
Acceptance pPeriod-deseribed-abeve.

Once it acknowledges its acceptance of the Authorized Location and Designated Territory,
Franchisee must thereafter obtain lawful possession of the Authorized Location by lease, purchase or
other method and open its Studio in accordance with the conditions and deadlines set forth in this
Aqgreement.

Franchisor will have the right to modify the boundaries of the Designated Territory if (a)
Franchisee relocates its Studio as permitted under this Agreement, or (b) at the time of any requested
renewal or proposed Transfer (defined below), the population of the Designated Territory is over 50,000,
with said modifications designed to afford Franchisee with a territory that contains a population that is
similar to that contained within the original Designated Territory.

1.3 Exclusivity for Designated Territory. As long as Franchisee is in compliance with this
Agreement and except as described in Section 1.4 below, Franchisor will not operate, or grant a license
to athird-party to operate, during the Term, a CycleBar Studio located within the Designated Territory.

2,
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14 Rights Reserved to Franchisor. For the avoidance of doubt, Franchisor reserves for itself and
its affiliates all rights not expressly granted to Franchisee in this Agreement and the right to do al things
that Franchisor does not expressly agree in this Agreement not to do, in each case, without regard to
proximity to the Studio and without any compensation to Franchisee, and on such terms and conditions
as Franchisor deems appropriate. Without limitation, Franchisor and its affiliates may, themselves or
through authorized third-parties (and Franchisee is not granted the right to): (a) open and operate, and
license third-parties the right to open or operate, other CycleBar Studios utilizing the Marks and System
outside the Designated Territory; (b) market, offer and sell products and services similar to those offered
by CycleBar Studios (such as private label products that Franchisor may develop and the Instructor
Bootcamp (as defined in Section 5.5)) under a different trademark or trademarks at any location, both
within or outside the Designated Territory; (c) use the Marks and System, as well as any other marks
Franchisor may designate, to distribute Approved Products and/or Approved Services through alternate
channels of distribution, including without limitation, via the Internet and other e-commerce channels,
catalog sales, direct mail or wholesale, anywhere either within or outside the Designated Territory; (d)
acquire, or be acquired by, or merge with, any company, including a company operating or licensing one
or more businesses offering products or services similar to those offered by any CycleBar Studio located
within or outside the Designated Territory, and subsequently operate (or license a third-party the right to
operate) these businesses and allow them to incorporate certain elements of the System (excluding the
Marks and Trade Dress) regardless of location; (€) develop or become associated with and engage in
other businesses, including other fitness concepts and systems, and/or award franchises under such other
concepts for locations anywhere, including inside and outside of the Designated Territory; (f) use the
Marks and System, and license others to use the Marks and System, to engage in any other activities not
expressly prohibited by this Agreement; and (g) open and operate, or license third-parties the right to
open or operate, CycleBar Studios at “ Non-Traditional Sites” both within and outside the Designated
Territory. A “Non-Traditional Site” is any location that is situated within or as part of alarger venue or
facility and, as a result, is likely to draw the predominance of its customers from those persons who are
using or attending events in the larger venue or facility (for example, “big box” gyms and/or fitness
facilities, cruise ships, military bases, shopping malls, airports, sports facilities and stadiums, industrial
or office complexes, hotels, train stations and other transportation facilities, travel plazas, casinos,
hospitals, theme parks, convention centers, colleges/universities, multi-unit residential properties, and
other similar captive market locations).

2. ACCEPTANCE BY FRANCHISEE

2.1 Acceptance by Franchisee. Franchisee accepts this Agreement and the license granted herein

and agrees to develop and operate the Studlo on the terms and condltlons specmed herem Franchlsee

H@Wfrreﬁeekaadehaﬂgedﬁeﬁedreakkycomplv Wlth al Svstem Standards (as deflned in Sectlon 2 2 E),

as they may be revised as provided herein, in developing and operating its Studio. Franchisee (or, if
Franchisee is an entity, one of its Operating Principals (as defined in Section 5.5)) and its Designated
Manager (as defined in Section 5.5.A of this Agreement) must attend and compl ete the appropriate initial
training to Franchisor’s satisfaction, as set forth in Section 6.2 of this Agreement.

2.2 Conditions. The rights being licensed herein are subject, without limitation, to the following
conditions:

A. Franehisee’sThe Studio shall be identified only by those Marks approved in writing by
Franchisor with at least one exterior sign as designated by Franchisor;
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B. If Franchisee is not a natural person, then concurrently, with the signing of this
Agreement, any person who directly or indirectly owns aten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest
in Franchisee (the “Owners’) and each Owner's spouse (if applicable) must sign and deliver to
Franchisor the Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment attached as Exhibit 3 hereto (a
“Guaranty”). Any person or entity that at any time after the Effective Date becomes an Owner, pursuant
to Section 14 or otherwise, shall, as a condition of becoming an Owner, execute and deliver, and require
its spouse (if applicable) to execute and deliver, to Franchisor's its then-current form of Guaranty;

C. Franchisee shall submit the proposed lease for the Authorized L ocation to Franchisor for
its written consent before Franchisee executes the lease. The lease must contain the provisions outlined
in Franchisor’s then-current form of |ease addendum, the current form of which is attached as Exhibit 4,
or substantially similar provisions acceptable to Franchisor (* Lease Addendum”);

D. Franchisee agrees that it shall open the Studio for regular, continuous business no later
than six (6) months after the Effective Date. If, through no fault of Franchisee, the Studio has not opened
after six (6) months, Franchisor may agree in writing to provide Franchisee with an additional three (3)
months to open its Studio if Franchisee (a) has already secured an approved premises for its Studio, and
(b) is otherwise making diligent and continuous efforts to buildout and otherwise prepare its Studio for
opening throughout the six (6) month period following the Effective Date. Franchisor reserves the right
to charge Franchisee a fee of $2,500 as a condition to granting any extension under this Section; and

E. Franchisee agrees at al times to comply with the Manual (as defined in Section 6.3
below), and all required standards, operating systems, and other aspects of the System prescribed by
Franchisor (the “ System Standards’), each of which is subject to change at Franchisor’s discretion.

3. TERM AND SUCCESSOR FRANCHISES

3.1 Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of ten (10) years beginning on the
Effective Date, unless sooner terminated under Section 15 (the“ Term”).

3.2 Successor Franchises. Subject to this Section, Franchisee will be €eligible to acquire two (2)
separate and consecutive successor franchises, each for an additional five (5) year term (each a
“Successor Franchise”). Acquisition of the 1% Successor Franchise shall be subject to the following
conditions and requirements, and acquisition of the 2™ Successor Franchise shall be subject to the
conditions and requirements set forth in the 1% Successor Franchise agreement. To acquire the 1%
Successor Franchise:

A. Prior to expiration of the Term, Franchisee shall execute Franchisor’s then-current form
of franchise agreement for CycleBar Studios, modified as necessary to reflect that the franchise granted
therein is a Successor Franchise (the “ Successor Franchise Agreement”). The provisions of the Successor
Franchise Agreement may differ from and shall supersede this Agreement in all respects, including
changes in royalty and advertising fees, except that Franchisee shall pay sthe sSuccessor Franchise fFee
deseribed(as defined in Section 3.2.F below) instead of anthe tInitial fFranchise fFee (as defined in
Section 5.1 below). Franchisee's failure or refusal to execute and return the Successor Franchise
Agreement and sSuccessor Franchise fFee to Franchisor within thirty (30) days after delivery of the
Successor Franchise Agreement to Franchisee shall constitute Franchisee's election not to acquire the
Successor Franchise;

B. Franchisee shall demonstrate that it has the right to remain in possession of the
Authorized Location for the duration of the term of the Successor Franchise, or that it has been able to
secure and develop an aternative site acceptable to Franchisor;

4.
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C. In consideration of the grant of the Successor Franchise, Franchisee shall execute a
general release in the form and substance satisfactory to Franchisor, releasing any and al claims
Franchisee and its related parties may have against Franchisor and its affiliates, and their respective
owners, officers, directors, employees, agents, successors and assigns,

D. Franchisee shall have completed or made arrangements to make, at Franchisee' s expense,
such renovation and modernization of its Studio, including the interior and exterior of the building,
grounds, leasehold improvements, signs, furnishings, fixtures, equipment, surveillance cameras, and
decor as Franchisor reasonably requires so the Studio conforms with the then-current System Standards,

E. During the Term, Franchisee shall have substantially complied with all of the provisions
of this Agreement and al other agreements with Franchisor and vendors to Franehiseesthe Studio, and
Franchisee and its affiliates shall be in compliance with this Agreement and all other agreements between
them and Franchisor both on the date of the notice described in Section 3.2.G below and at the expiration
of the Term;

F. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a Ssuccessor Ffranchise fee in the amount of $10,000
(the “ Successor Franchise Fee”); and

G. Franchisee shall have given Franchisor written notice of its desire to acquire the
Successor Franchise no less than 90 days or more than 180 days before expiration of the Term.

3.3 Holdover. If, initsdiscretion and without seeking to enforce Franchisee’ s post-term obligations
set forth in Section 15.3 of this Agreement, Franchisor suffers Franchisee's continued operation of its
Studio pursuant to this Agreement beyond the expiration of the Term, such continuance of operations
shall be deemed to be Franchisee’s election to extend the Term on a month-to-month basis and, in
addition to all other rights Franchisor may have as a result of Franchisee’s noncompliance with this
Agreement, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement during such period in accordance with Section
15.1.A and Section 15.1.B below or, without any cause or reason, upon 30 days prior written notice.
Franchisee shall otherwise comply with all of its obligations under this Agreement during the extension
of the Term as described in this Section.

4. TRADEMARK STANDARDS

4.1 Ownership of Marks. Franchisee acknowledges the validity of the Marks and agrees and
recognizes that the Marks are the sole and exclusive property of Franchisor and/or its affiliates.
Franchisee further acknowledges that its right to use the Marks and System is derived solely from this
Agreement and is limited to the operation of the Studio pursuant to and in compliance with this
Agreement. Any unauthorized use of the Marks by Franchisee shall be a breach of this Agreement and
an infringement of the rights of Franchisor and its affiliates. Franchisee's use of the Marks inures to the
benefit of Franchisor, which owns all goodwill now and hereafter associated with the Marks. Franchisee
agrees not to contest ownership or registration of the Marks. Franchisor agrees to indemnify Franchisee
from any claims, costs or fees associated with Franchisee's authorized use of the Marks in accordance
with this Agreement, subject to the requirement that Franchisor be immediately notified of any
third-party challenge to Franchisee's authorized use of any Mark under this Agreement, and Franchisor
has the right to control any related Httgatiendispute or proceeding.

4.2 Use of Marks. Franchisee shall not use any Mark (i) as part of any corporate or business name
with any prefix, suffix or other modifying words, terms, designs or symbols, or in any modified form, or
(ii) to advertise any prospective Transfer that would require Franchisor’s approval under Section 14 of
this Agreement. Franchisee shall display and use the Marks only in the manner and form prescribed or

authorized by Franchisor and shall conduct no other business using the Marks other than that prescribed
5.
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by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not use any other mark, name, commercial symbol or logotype in
connection with the operation of the Studio and shall not market any product or service relating to the
Studio without Franchisor’s written consent, and if such consent is granted, such product or service must
be marketed in a manner acceptabl e to Franchisor.

Franchisee agrees to give such notices of trademark and service mark registrations and
copyrights (including the ® and © symbols) as Franchisor specifies and to obtain such fictitious or
assumed name registrations as may be required under aApplicable tawL aws (defined below).

4.3 LitigatienNotification of Infringement. Franchisee agrees to notify Franchisor immediately in
writing if it becomes aware that any person who is not a licensee of Franchisor is using or infringing
upon any of the Marks. Franchisee may not communicate with any person other than Franchisor and its
counsel in connection with any such use or infringement. Franchisor will have discretion to determine
what steps, if any, areto be taken in any instance of unauthorized use or infringement of any of its Marks
and will have complete control of any litigation or settlement in connection with any clam of an
infringement or unfair competition or unauthorized use with respect to the Marks. Franchisee will
execute any and al instruments and documents and will assist and cooperate with any suit or other action
undertaken by Franchisor with respect to such unauthorized use or infringement such as by giving
testimony or furnishing documents or other evidence. Franchisor will be responsible for legal expenses
incurred by Franchisor in connection with any litigation or other legal proceeding involving such
third-party. Franchisor shall not be liable for any legal expenses of Franchisee unless (a) pre-approved in
writing by Franchisor in its discretion, and (b) the action proceeds or arises out of Franchisee's
authorized use of the Marks hereunder.

4.4 Modification, Discontinuance or Substitution. Franchisor reserves the right, in its sole
judgment, to modify, discontinue or replace any Mark on a national or regional basis, and Franchisee
shall, as applicable and at its expense, immediately discontinue use of any Mark and commence using
any modified or replacement Mark as directed by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have no liability or
obligation whatsoever with respect to Franchisee' s discontinuance or change of any Mark.

5. FEES

51 Initial Franchise Fee. On itssigning of this Agreement, Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor an
initial franchise fee in the sum of Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000) for the right to operate the Studio
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement (the “Initial Franchise Fee”). The Initial Franchise Fee shall be
fully earned by Franchisor upon payment and is not refundable under any circumstance.

5.2 Royalty Fee. Throughout the Term, Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor, weekly, without setoff,
credit or deduction of any nature, a royalty fee equal to seven percent (7%) of the Gross Sales (as that
term is defined in Section 5.3, below) generated by the Studio over the immediately preceding week (the
“Royalty” or “Royalty Fee”).

5.3 Gross Sales. “Gross Sales’ means the total revenue, in whatever form, generated by the Studio,
whether or not in compliance with this Agreement and regardless of receipt, including all revenue
generated from the sale and provision of any and all gift cards and other products and services at or
through the Studio and all proceeds from any business interruption insurance related to the non-operation
of the Studio. “ Gross Sales’ does not include (a) any sales tax and equivalent taxes that are collected by
Franchisee for or on behalf of any governmental taxing authority and paid thereto, (b) the value of any
allowance issued or granted to any client of the Studio that is credited in good faith by Franchisee in full
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or partial satisfaction of the price of the Approved Products or Approved Services offered in connection
with the Studio, or (c) revenue generated from the provision of Instructor Bootcamp at the Studio.

54 Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E Package; Exercise BikePackage:rStudioManagement
System—andPre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory Kit; Pre-Sales Phase Expenditures;
POS/Inventory System.

A. Prior to opening the Studlo Franchlsee must purchase or Iease (i) the exerersehl-keeanel
bike-relatedFitness eEquipment 0 y
Initial FF&E Package (as defined below) (WhICh the pPartles expect Franchlsee WI|| acquwe via a
lease-to-own or comparable agreement entered into with a third-party provider of such programs)-{the
“Exererse-BikePackage™); (ii) the studio management system, a package of hardware, software, and
additional technology equipment (including tablet computers, displays, payment processing equipment,
brackets and fixtures, and other related hardware and software) and network connections necessary to
operate our music system and technology pIatform in connectlon W|th the Approved Serwceﬁ—et-he

Paekage—)—and—(w)—epem—na and (|||) and openlnq reta|I |nventory comprlsed of certaln branded and

other inventory that may be resold at the Studio (the “Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory
Paeckage™)Kit”) from Franchisor's approved supplier(s). The “Fitness Equipment & Initial FF&E

Package” includes products and services such as: (i) a studio fixture package (comprised of a millwork
bundle (front desk, slatwall, cubbies), millwork accessories and other related supplies; (ii) fitness
equipment and other operational equipment Franchisor designates to be used in Studios (e.g. bikes,
weight bars); equipment accessories (e.g., shoes, cleats), (iii) other items related to the outfitting and
design and buildout of your Studio; and (v) the installation and transportation of the foregoing items.
Throughout the Term Franchlsee will be responsr bIe for (-:I:I) maintai nlng and/or repIaC| ng the Hems

Systemexerdse egqui pment furnlture flxtures other equipment, and reI ated suppliesused in connectlon

with the Studio; and (2ii) maintaining certain levels of inventory with respect to those items comprising
the Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory PackageKit, as set forth more fully in this Agreement.

B. As part of the Pre-Sales and Soft Opening Retail Inventory PackageKit, Franchisee will
acquire and must utilize certain pre-sales start-up package materialsin coordination with the pre-opening
sales plan that Franchisee is required to commence conducting at least sixty (60) days prior to the
opening of the Studio (the “Pre-Sales Phase’). Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that Franchisee
must: (i) develop the foregoing plan in coordination with the opening support program designated by
Franchisor that is designed to generate prospective Studio clientele and members and otherwise promote
the Studio prior to opening (the “ Opening Support Program”); (ii) obtain Franchisor’s prior approval of
the plan and all Pre-Sales Phase activities; and (iii) incur and promptly pay all fees and costs associated
with the Opening Support Program and other Pre-Sales Phase activities as and when such amounts
become due.

C. Franchisee further agrees to install at its expense and use the membership accounting,
cost control, point-of-sale system and inventory control systems (the “POS/Inventory System”) through
the supplier Franchisor designates. The designated, or approved, supplier(s) for these services will be
updated in the Manual as changes are made. Throughout the Term, Franchisee will also be required to
pay Franchisor’s then-current designated provider for the software that Franchisor prescribes for use in
connection with the Studio and the POS/Inventory System, which may be modified upon reasonable
written notice to Franchisee.
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55 Training Programs and Fees. The pParties agree and acknowledge that: (i) Franchisee or, if
Franchisee is an entity, at least one (1) of Franchisee's operating principals (an “ Operating Principal”)
must complete the “ Owner/Operator Module” and Franchisor’s proprietary initia training program (the
“Initial Training Program”), as described in more detail in the Manual; and (ii) each instructor that
Franchisee engages to provide any of the Approved Services at its Studio must complete Franchisor’s
proprietary training program that is designed to provide instructors with additional guidelines and
instruction for providing the Approved Services in accordance with the System (the “Instructor
Bootcamp”). Franchisor may, at its option, conduct any training program virtually via live or
prerecorded modules. Fees for attendance and participation in a training program (each a “ Training
Fee”) may be assessed as described below.

A. Initial Training Program. Except as provided below, Franchisee will not be required to
pay any Training Fee or tuition in connection with individuals that attend the Initial Training Program
prior to the opening of the Studio, provided such individuals all attend at the same time. For those
individuals that wish to complete the Initial Training Program at a time other than when Franchisee (or, if
applicable, its Operating Principal) attends the Initial Training Program, Franchisor may charge such
individuals its then-current Training Fee. Franchisee may also designate a third-party individual that
Franchisor approves to manage the day-to-day operations of the Studio (a “ Designated Manager”), but
any such individual must at least complete the Designated Manager Module of the Initial Training
Program prior to assuming any management responsibilities at the Studio (with Franchisee paying the
Training Fees associated therewith, if any). If Franchisee is acquiring and assuming an existing CycleBar
Studio from another System franchisee, it will be required to pay Franchisor’s then-current Training Fee
for persons required to attend Franchisor's Initial Training Program as necessary to satisfy the
requirements of this Section.

B. Designated Manager; Designated Manager Training Program. If Franchisee (or one of
its Operating Principals) is not or does not intend to be on-site at the Studio during normal business hours
to manage the day-to-day operations of its Studio (including, for example, where Franchisee owns or is
affiliated with owners of multiple open CycleBar Studios), then Franchisee must appoint a “ Designated
Manager” for the Studio who will act-as-suehbe responsible for the day-to-day operation of, and only for,
the Studio. Each Designated Manager must attend and complete, to Franchisor’'s satisfaction,
Franchisor's designated manager training program prior to assuming the Designated Manager
responsibilities (the “ Designated Manager Training Program”). Franchisor does not charge a Training
Fee for Franchisee's initia Designated Manager's participation in the Designated Manager Training
Program.

C. Instructor Bootcamp for Initial and Subsequent Instructors. Every instructor that
provides any of the Approved Services at Franchisee's Studio must, prior to providing such instruction,
complete the Instructor Bootcamp, as described in the Manual. Each of the Studio’s initia instructors
(the “Initia Instructors’) must pay Franchisor or its affiliates the then-current fee for Initial Instructors
associated with attending Instructor Bootcamp (the “ Instructor Bootcamp Tuition”). All instructors must
who participate in Instructor Bootcamp after the Studio is open and operating (“ Subsequent Instructors,”
and together with Initial Instructors, “Authorized Instructors’) must either (i) complete Instructor
Bootcamp and pay the Franchisor or its affiliates the Instructor Bootcamp Tuition associated with
Subsequent Instructors; or (ii) provide Franchisor with certain prescribed videos that Franchisor will
review and evaluate, at its then-current fee, to determine whether the candidate is able to provide the
Approved Services in accordance with System standards. If a Subsequent Instructor completes Instructor
Bootcamp at a CycleBar Studio other than the Studio, Franchisor reserves the right to have one (1) of its
“Master Trainers’ review the instructor’s testing results before approving that individual to serve as an
Authorized Instructor and provide Approved Services from the Studio. The Instructor Bootcamp Tuition
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will depend on whether such Subsequent Instructor elects to attend the Instructor Bootcamp at the Studio
or another location.

D. Instructor Training Program. Subject to meeting Franchisor’s then-current program
requirements (including the payment of any then-current training fees), as set forth in the Manual,
Franchisee will have the option of providing its clients a full Instructor Bootcamp course. In order to
offer Instructor Bootcamp, Franchisee must ensure that the program is provided by an instructor that is
approved by Franchisor as a“Master Trainer” (the criteria for which will be set forth in the Manual or
otherwise in writing by Franchisor). If Franchisee does not have a Master Trainer, it may arrange to use
one from another Studio. Each participant in Instructor Bootcamp will be required to pay the then-current
System tuition for that program, a portion of which designated by Franchisor will be remitted to
Franchisor for certain materials that it provides in connection with this training, and the balance of which
will be remitted to the Studio owner who provided the Master Trainer or, if the program was led by
Franchisee’s Master Trainer, retained by Franchisee.

E. Ongoing/Refresher and Other Additional Training. Franchisor may provide or request
that Franchisee and certain of its management personnel attend and complete up to five (5) days of
additional/refresher training each year, but Franchisor will not charge Franchisee a Training Fee in
connection with such required training.

F. No Training Fee for Minor, Day-to-Day Assistance. Franchisor will not charge
Franchisee a Training Fee in connection with minor, day-to-day assistance that Franchisor provides
remotely over the phone, via email/fax or other electronic channel of communication, which Franchisee
understands and acknowledges will be provided subject to the availability of Franchisor’s personnel.

G. Costs and Expenses. Franchisor will not, under any circumstances, be responsible for,
and the indemnities provided in Section 11.2 shall apply to, costs and expenses (including wages,
benefits, and travel-related expenses) incurred by or owed to Franchisee or its personnel in or as a result
of attending or participating in any training program described in this Agreement or otherwise provided
by Franchisor or its designee.

H. Training Fee for Certain Training. Franchisor may charge its then-current Training Fee
in connection with training that (a) Franchisee requests Franchisor provide (other than in connection with
Instructor Bootcamp that is provided by Franchisor personnel at Franchisor's headquarters), or (b)
Franchisor provides on-site at Franchisee's Studio.

5.6 Fund Contribution. Franchisor (and its affiliates) have established a creative brand
development fund to promote the System, Marks and brand with which the Studio is associated generally
(the “Fund"). Franchisee shall contribute to the Fund, as directed by Franchisor from time to time, up to
two percent (2%) of the Gross Sales of its Studio (the “Fund Contribution™), commencing once the
Studio starts generating revenue from its business operations. The Fund Contribution will typically be
paid in the same manner and at the same interval that the Royalty Fee is collected (based on the Gross
Sales of the Studio over the immediately preceding reporting period). Franchisor has the right, at any
time and on notice to Franchisee, to change the amount of the Fund Contribution in accordance with
Section 9.1 below.

57 Technology Fee. Franchisor reserves-the-right-temay charge Franchisee an-engetrga recurring
technology fee, the amount of which may change from time to time during the Term, in Franchisor’s

discretion, to pay for certain aspects of Franchisee's computer system and/or software used in the
operation of the Studio (“ Technology Fee”). Franchisor reserves the right to designate and/or change the
amount, scope, interval, or manner of payment of the Technology Fee, including the party to whom
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payment is made, at any time upon providing reasonable written notice to Franchisee. The Technology
Fee may be collected by Franchisor at the same time as the Royalty Fees due hereunder.

5.8 Music Licensing Fee. Franchisor may charge Franchisee its then-current music licensing fee
(the “Music Licensing Fee’) as consideration for costs incurred in connection with obtaining licensing
rights to music and playlists Franchisee will use in connection with the provision of Approved Services
at the Studio.

59 5.8-Other Amounts Due in Connection with the Studio. Franchisee will also be responsible
for timely payment of any other required fees or amounts necessary to purchase ongoing marketing
materials, inventory, supplies and/or other items from Franchisor, its affiliates or other third-party
suppliers as described in this Agreement.

ﬁ) 59 Electronic Transfer; Right to Modify Collection Interval.

A. Franchisor reserves the right to determine, from time to time, the frequency, intervals
covered, and manner in which amounts owed to it or its affiliates must be paid. Currently al such
amounts (including fees, interest, and other payments required under this Agreement) must be paid via
automatic debit from Franchisee’'s point-of-sale operating account administered by the designated
supplier of point-of-sale services on a weekly basis throughout the Term, subject to modification on
reasonable written notice.

B. All amounts due to Franchisor or its affiliates for the purchase of products, services or
otherwise are due upon receipt of an invoice from Franchisor or such affiliate. Any payment or report not
actually received by Franchisor or its affiliates on or before the due date is overdue.

C. Franchisee agrees to complete and execute Franchisor’s then-current form of “ Electronic
Funds Transfer Agreement” and any other form, including, without limitation, an “Electronic Debit
Authorization” for the purpose of authorizing an electronic debit, and to submit any information required
by Franchisor for such authorization. Such authorization must remain in effect throughout the Term and,
following expiration or termination of this Agreement, until all amounts owed to Franchisor and its
affiliates have been paid.

D. Franchisee is required to use only the POS/Inventory System provided by the designated
supplier and will pay the designated provider directly for all fees associated with the use of the
designated provider’'s software. Franchisee is not alowed to use an unapproved externa terminal to
process transactions.

511 546-Interest and Late Charges. Amounts due to Franchisor (except interest on unpaid
amounts due) not paid when due shall bear interest from the date due until paid at the lesser of one and
one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the highest rate of interest allowed by law. Franchisor may also
recover its reasonable attorneys fees, costs and other expenses incurred in collecting amounts owed by
Franchisee.

6. FRANCHISOR SERVICES

In addition to the services described elsewhere in this Agreement, Franchisor will do the
following:

6.1 General Guidance for Opening. Franchisor shall consult and advise Franchisee on the proper

display of the Marks, layout and design, procurement of cycling/fitness equipment, ergometers, free

weights and other equipment, furniture, fixtures, surveillance cameras with audio, initial inventories,
10.
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reerditRg-persennel—anrd-managing construction or remodeling of the Studio, and certain other items
related to the development and operation of CycleBar Studios. After Franchisee has executed an
approved lease for the Authorized Location, Franchisor shall deliver to Franchisee specifications and
standards for building, equipment, furnishings, fixtures, surveillance cameras with audio, layout, design
and signs relating to the Authorized Location and shall provide reasonable consultation in connection
with the development of the Studio. Franchisee’s architect is responsible for proposing changes to the
layout, design and construction specifications provided by Franchisor as necessary to meet applicable
legal requirements and to adapt for unique physical characteristics of the Authorized Location, but
Franchisee agrees that no such changes, alterations or modifications whatsoever to Franchisor’s selected
layout and design specifications will be implemented without Franchisor’s prior written consent.

6.2 Training-Related Programs and Obligations. Franchisor will provide the training programs
described in Section 5.5 and below, and Franchisee must, at all times during the Term, be in compliance
with al training obligations described in Section 5.5 and set forth bel ow.

A. Initial Training Program; Designated Manager Training Program. All persons required
to complete the Owner/Operator Module, the Designated Manager Training Program, and the Instructor
Bootcamp must do so prior to engaging in any activities related to the operation of the Studio. The
specifics of each of the foregoing training programs shall be set forth in the Manual. All such training is
conducted, at Franchisor’'s option, at Franchisor’'s corporate headquarters or another training facility
Franchisor designates. If any of the individuals described in this Section and Section 5.5 fail to
successfully complete the applicable training required by this Section and Section 5.5 before the time
Franchisee is required to open the Studio hereunder, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement.

B. Instructor Training. Any individual that wishes to provide the Approved Services at the
Studio must first complete the Instructor Bootcamp (either as part of the Initial Training Program or at
some point thereafter via the instruction materials and test that is part of the System Standards).
Franchisor may, in addition to exercising any of its other rights under this Agreement, terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to Franchisee if Franchisee permits the Approved Servicesto be provided
by any individual that does not meet the criteria in this Section. If Franchisee fails to comply with the
foregoing (or any other material obligation under this Agreement), Franchisor reserves the right to charge
Franchisee its then-current non-compliance fee (*Non-Compliance Fee”) in each instance. We may
designate the minimum number of Approved Instructors who must be present at the Studio during its
operation. Franchisee must otherwise ensure that: (i) any Instructor Bootcamp held at the Studio is
performed in accordance with System Standards; (ii) any individual that participates in the Instructor
Bootcamp, successfully completes that program, and passes any test that is provided in connection with
the program; and (iii) no personnel provides Approved Services at the Studio unless and until such
personnel successfully completes the Instructor Bootcamp and passes the corresponding test. Franchisee
agrees that Franchisor, as part of its right to inspect and audit the operations of the Studio on an ongoing
basis, may require that Franchisee demonstrate that all required personnel has participated in and
successfully completed the Instructor Bootcamp and corresponding test.

C. Discretionary On-Site Assistance. Around the time the Studio is opening, Franchisor
may send one (1) or more representatives to the Studio to (i) provide assistance and recommendations
regarding the opening and initial operations of the Studio, and/or (ii) provide additional or refresher
training associated with the Owner/Operator Module and/or the Instructor Bootcamp, all as Franchisor
determines appropriate in its discretion (collectively, the “Discretionary On-Site Assistance”). In the
event Franchisor notifies Franchisee that it will be providing the Discretionary On-Site Assistance, such
assistance typically lasts one (1) to two (2) days and Franchisee must ensure that Franchisee (or its
Operating Principal) and all other management personnel are in attendance at the Studio during those
days. Instructor Training Program and Involvement of Franchisor. Franchisee will be permitted to
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provide Instructor Bootcamp at the Studio as part of the Approved Services, provided Franchisee has an
individual that (a) has completed Franchisor’s Instructor Bootcamp, and (b) otherwise meets Franchisor’s
then-current criteriato serve asa“ Master Trainer” of Instructor Bootcamp (which will be set forth in the
Manual or in another written directive from Franchisor). The details of Instructor Bootcamp shall be set
forth in the Manual .

E. Ongoing/Refresher Training. Franchisor may provide, and require that Franchisee, as
well as any of its management personnel attend, up to five (5) days of additional training each year at a
training facility that Franchisor designates (without charging Franchisee any Training Fee as described in
Section 5.5 of this Agreement). Franchisee may also request that Franchisor provide certain additional or
refresher training to Franchisee, either at one (1) of Franchisor’s designated training facilities or on-site
at Franchisee's Studio, but Franchisor reserves the right to charge Franchisee its then-current Training
Fee based on the number of days of such training that Franchisor provides at Franchisee' s request.

F. Remedial Training. If Franchisor determines that Franchisee is operating the Studio in a
manner that is not consistent with the terms of this Agreement or the Manual, or if Franchisee is
otherwise in material default of this Agreement, Franchisor may also require that Franchisee, its
Designated Manager (if applicable) and/or certain Authorized Instructors of the Studio attend and
complete up to five (5) additional days of training at (a) Franchisor’s designated training facility, (b) the
Studio, or (c) other location Franchisor designates, that is designed to address the default or other
non-compliance issue (the “ Remedial Training”). Franchisor may require Franchisee and its designated
trainees to pay Franchisor its then-current Training Fee in connection with attending Remedial Training.

6.3 Operations Manual. During the Term, Franchisor will grant Franchisee online access to an
electronic version of its manuals and written policies and procedures related to the development and
operation of CycleBar Studios (collectively, the “Manua”). The Manua is anticipated to codify
then-current specifications, standards and operating procedures prescribed or suggested by Franchisor.
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor may from time to time revise its System Standards as well as
the contents of the Manual (including by written memoranda and notices issued to owners of CycleBar
Studios), and Franchisee agrees to comply with each new or changed standard and specification upon
notice from Franchisor. The Manual shall remain the sole property of Franchisor and is part of, and
subject to the requirements applicable to, Franchisor’'s Confidential Information (as defined in Section
12.1). If Franchisee, intentionally or otherwise through its gross negligence, compromises the secure
access to the online version of the Manual (or any hard copy of the Manual), including, but not limited
to, allowing unauthorized users access to the Manual and its confidential contents or intentionally posting
any of the Confidential Information on the Internet, Franchisee acknowledges that it will be required to
adequately compensate Franchisor for the breach and related damage to the Marks and System, and that
any limitation of remedies provided in Sections 16.4-B- and 16.7 below shall not limit Franchisor's
remedy or relief in the foregoing instance(s).

6.4 Continuing Services. Franchisor will provide such continuing advisory assistance and
information to Franchisee in the devel opment and operation of the Studio as Franchisor deems advisable
inits discretion. Such assistance may be provided, in Franchisor’s discretion, by Franchisor’s directives,
System bulletins, meetings and seminars, telephone, computer, e-mail, fax, personal visits, newsletters or
manuals.

6.5 Approved Lists. Franchisor will provide and from time to time, add to, alter or delete, at
Franchisor’s discretion, lists of specifications, approved distributors and suppliers, approved services and
products, including, but not limited to, cycling equipment and gear, and other materials and supplies used
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in the operation of the Studio. Franchisor, or an affiliate of Franchisor, may be a designated-er,
approved, or sole supplier of certain equipment, gear, merchandise, apparel and supplies.

6.6 Pricing. The System has developed a reputation that is based in part on affordable prices for
indoor cycling and other fitness services offered by CycleBar Studios operating as part of the System. To
promote a consistent consumer experience, and to maximize the value of the products and services
Studios offer, Franchisor may, subject to Applicable LawsH{defired-betews, require fixed maximum or
minimum prices for any products or services offered by the System and Franchisee. Franchisee is
obligated to abide by the pricing established by Franchisor from time to time, unless Franchisor consents
to changes in local pricing offered by Franchisee in order to (i) allow Franchisee to respond to unique,
local, marketing conditions, competition, or expenses; or (ii) comply with changes or interpretations in
state or federal anti-trust laws. Consistent with state or federal law, Franchisor reserves the right to
change or eliminate its pricing program in the future, or to move from arequired to recommended pricing
structure. For any product or service for which Franchisor does not impose a maximum or minimum
price, Franchisor may require Franchisee to comply with an advertising policy adopted by Franchisor
which will prohibit Franchisee from advertising any price for a product or service that is different than
Franchisor’s suggested retail price. Although Franchisee must comply with Franchisor’s advertising
policy, Franchisee will not be prohibited from selling any product or service at a price above or below the
suggested retail price unless Franchisor imposes a maximum price or minimum price for such product or
service.

6.7 Fund. As detailed in Section 9.1 of this Agreement, the Fund is currently maintained and
administered by Franchisor (or its affiliates), with the advice and counsel of a marketing fund committee,
to meet the costs of conducting regional and national advertising and promotional activities (including
the cost of advertising campaigns, test marketing, marketing surveys, public relations activities and
marketing materials) which Franchisor and the marketing fund committee deem beneficial to the System.

6.8 Approving Pre-Opening Support Program. Franchisor and/or its approved provider will
provide Franchisee with advice and consultation with respect to establishing the Pre-Sales Phase and
Opening Support Program described in Section 5.4.B above. The components of Franchisee’'s Opening
Support Program must be approved by Franchisor prior to implementation, including the relevant
timelines for certain pre-opening sales and marketing activities.

6.9 Branded Emails. Franchisor reserves the right to require Franchisee to use an email address
associated with Franchisor’s registered domain nhame in connection with the operation of the Studio. If
Franchisor requires Franchisee to obtain and use such an email address, Franchisee must do so according
to System Standards. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor will have unrestricted access
to all such email accounts and al document, data, materials, and messages shared from or by such
accounts. Franchisor may deactivate any such account or limit Franchisee's or its users access to it at
any time. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it will use such email address only in connection with
the operation of the Studio and in compliance with all Applicable Laws. Franchisee agrees to indemnify
Franchisor and its affiliates for claims arising from Franchisee’ s unlawful use of such email address.

7. FACILITY STANDARDS, LEASE AND CONSTRUCTION

7.1 Facility Specifications. Franchisee’s Studio shall satisfy the following conditions:

A. The Studio shall be laid out, designed, constructed or improved, equipped and furnished
in accordance with the System Standards. Equipment, furnishings, fixtures, surveillance cameras with
audio, decor and signs for the Studio shall be purchased from suppliers approved or designated by
Franchisor. Franchisee may remodel or alter the Studio, or change its equipment, furniture or fixtures,
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only with Franchisor’s prior written consent. Franchisee must obtain necessary permits, licenses and
other legal or architectural requirements. The Studio shall contain or display only signage that has been
specifically approved or designed by Franchisor.

B. The Studio and all fitness equipment shall, at all times, be maintained in accordance with
the System Standards. Franchisee shall promptly repair or replace defective or obsolete equipment,
signage, fixtures or any other item of the interior or exterior that is in need of repair, refurbishing or
redecorating in accordance with such standards established (and updated from time to time) by
Franchisor or as may be required by Franchisee's lease.

C. Franchisee recognizes that Franchisor may, in its discretion, evolve the System and the
features and appearance of CycleBar Studios to, among other things, respond to new fads, new forms of
exercise, new equipment, new training techniques, and changing customer demands. Franchisee further
understands that cycling equipment and other equipment wears out, breaks down, or becomes obsol ete.
Consequently, from time to time, as Franchisor requires, Franchisee must modernize and/or replace
components of the Trade Dress and Studio’ s operating assets and equipment as may be necessary for the
Studio to conform to the System Standards for new CycleBar Studios. Further, Franchisee will be
required to thoroughly modernize or remodel the Studio, at Franchisee’'s cost, when requested by
Franchisor, but no more than once every 5 years. This may include replacing cycling/fitness equipment
and gear, and other updates and improvements. Franchisee acknowledges that this obligation could result
in Franchisee making extensive structural changes to, and significantly remodeling and renovating the
Studio, and Franchisee agrees to incur, without limitation, any capital expenditures required in order to
comply with this obligation and Franchisor’ s requirements. Within 60 days after receiving written notice
from Franchisor, Franchisee shall have plans prepared according to the standards and specifications that
Franchisor prescribes, and Franchisee must submit those plans to Franchisor for its approval. Franchisee
agrees to complete all work according to the plans that Franchisor approves within the time period that
Franchisor reasonably specifies and in accordance with this Agreement. Franchisor and its affiliates who
own CycleBar Studios will hold themselves, and the Studios they operate (if any), to the same high
standard and same frequency for replacement and renovation as is required of Franchisee.

D. The Studio shall contain signage prominently identifying Franchisee by name as an
independently owned and operated franchisee of Franchisor.

E. The Studio must have a surveillance camera with audio purchased from a designated
approved supplier installed at the Studio. The camera(s) must be web accessible. The camera(s) will be
used by Franchisee to monitor instructor performance, quality assurance and safety. Franchisor has an
absolute right to also review and monitor the camera(s) for the same purposes as Franchisee, and to
ensure compliance with the System. Franchisee is responsible for ersuringcomplying with all Applicable
Laws in connection with the use of the surveillance camera, including without limitation, obtaining all
necessary consents from Franchisee's employees, agents, customers-eensent, and fer-any faHure-te-ebtain
sueh-eonsert—Franchisee-agrees-to-indermnify-Franchiser-ferother visitors of the Studio for purposes of
collecting, using, disclosing, and sharing relevant data and footage with Franchisor and its parents,
affiliates, and subsidiaries. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that its indemnification obligations
under this Agreement include claims arising from or related to any breaches of privacy from Franchisee's
use of any surveillance camera.

F. Franchisee must offer, accept the use of, and ensure that it and the Studio’s personnel are
aware of al then-current System policies and procedures related to member reciprocity amongst (a) other
Studios that are part of the System, and/or (b) studios operated as part of the franchise systems in
connection with the other brands owned and/or licensed by Franchisor and its affiliates.
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7.2 Lease. Franchisee is solely responsible for purchasing or leasing a suitable site for its Studio.
Franchisee must submit the lease for the Studio to Franchisor for its written consent before Franchisee
executes the lease for the Authorized Location. Franchisor will not withhold consent arbitrarily;
however, any lease must be subject to the applicable Lease Addendum or incorporate similar terms.
Franchisee acknowledges that it has been advised to have any lease reviewed by Franchisee's own legal
counsel.

7.3 Unit Development. Franchisee agrees that after obtaining possession of the Authorized
Location, Franchisee will promptly, at its sole expense:

A. Obtain any standard plans and/or specifications from Franchisor;

B. EmpleyEngage a qualified licensed architect, as required by state or local codes, to
prepare all drawings, designs, plans and specifications for the Studio, and submit same to Franchisor for
review and approval prior to commencing construction;

C. Complete the construction or remodeling of the Studio in full and strict compliance with
plans and specifications approved by Franchisor, and in compliance with the Trade Dress and all
applicable ordinances, building codes and permit requirements;

D. Purchase or lease, in accordance with the System Standards, all fitness equipment,
fixtures, inventory, supplies and signs required for the Studio;

E. Hire and train the initial operating personnel according to this Agreement and the System
Standards; and

F. Complete development of and have the Studio open for business not later than six (6)
months after the Effective Date of this Agreement.

74 Franchisee’s Responsibility. Although Franchisor may provide Franchisee with various
standard or sample plans and specifications with respect to constructing and equipping the Studio, it is
Franchisee's sole responsibility to construct-and, equip, and operate the Studio in compliance with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, without limitation, all building codes,
fire and safety codes, environmental laws, Occupational Safety and Health Administration laws, health
laws, sanitation laws, Americans with Disabilities Act, and all other requirements that may be prescribed
by any federal, state or local governmental agency (“Applicable Laws’). Franchisee further
acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee is, and will continue to be, at all times during the Term, solely
responsible for the day-to-day operation of the Studio in accordance with this Agreement, including all
decisions regarding its personnel (as described in Section 8.3 below), each of whom must be competent,
conscientious, and properly trained. Franchisee acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement shall, or
may be construed to, create any type of employer or joint employer relationship between (a) Franchisee
or any of Franchisee’s personnel, and (b) Franchisor in any matter.

8. STUDIO IMAGE AND OPERATING STANDARDS

8.1 Compliance. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that every detail regarding the appearance and
operation of its Studio isimportant to Franchisor, Franchisee, the System and other owners and operators
of CycleBar Studios in order to maintain high and uniform operating standards, to increase demand for
the classes sold by all franchisees, and to protect Franchisor’s and the System’s reputation and goodwill,
and, accordingly, Franchisee agrees to comply strictly at all times with the requirements of this
Agreement and the System Standards (whether contained in the Manual or any other written or oral
communication to Franchisee by Franchisor) relating to the appearance or operation of the Studio.
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Franchisee acknowledges that other CycleBar Studios may operate under different forms of agreement
with Franchisor, and that the rights and obligations of the pParties to other agreements may differ from
those hereunder.

8.2 Franchisor’s Right to Inspect. To determine whether Franchisee is complying with this
Agreement and the System Standards, Franchisor reserves the right, at any reasonable time and without
prior notice, and subject to Applicable Laws, to inspect and assess all aspects of the Studio’s appearance
and operations, including the right to: (1) inspect and examine the Studio premises, fithess equipment,
facilities and operation of the Studio in person or by web accessible surveillance cameras with audio,
which are required to be installed in each classroom in the Studio; (2) interview Franchisee and
Franchisee’'s employees and any independent contractors; (3) interview members and customers of and
suppliers to the Studio and any other person with whom Franchisee does business; (4) confer with
members and staff of government agencies with authority over Franchisee about matters relevant to the
Studio; and (5) use “ mystery shoppers,” who may pose as customers. Franchisor will bear the costs of all
such initial inspections, but it reserves the right to require Franchisee to reimburse it costs (including
travel expenses, room and board, employee/representative wages, and related fees) associated with
re-inspections or follow-up visits that Franchisor or its designees conduct after any inspection of the
Studio reveals one or more failures to comply with System Standards, and/or if any follow-up visit is
necessary because Franchisor or its designated representatives were for any reason prevented from
properly inspecting any part of the Studio.

8.3 Personnel. Franchisee agrees to engage in the operation of the Studio only persons of high
character and ability who maintain and exhibit traits of enthusiasm, cleanliness, neatness, friendliness,
honesty and loyalty, it being recognized by Franchisee that such persons are necessary in order to
promote and maintain customer satisfaction and the goodwill of the System. Franchisee agrees to staff
the Studio at al times with a sufficient number of qualified, competent personnel who have been trained
in accordance with this Agreement and the System Standards. Franchisee, not Franchisor, shal be
considered the employer of all employees and the principal of all independent contractors of the Studio.

It is the sole responsibility of Franchisee to hire, discipline, discharge and establish wages, hours,
benefits, employment policies and other terms and conditions of employment for its employees and
independent contractors. Franchisee is solely responsible for obtaining its own independent legal advice
regarding the employment of employees and retention of independent contractors, and for complying
with any and all Applicable Laws pertaining thereto. Franchisor shall have no responsibility for the
terms and conditions of Franchisee's relationship with Franchisee's employees and/or independent
contractors. Franchisee shall engage in no discriminatory employment practices and shall in every way
comply with all Applicable Laws, including all wage-hour, civil rights, immigration, employee safety and
related employment and payroll related laws. Franchisee shall make all necessary filings with, and pay
all taxes and fees due to, the Internal Revenue Service and all other federal, state and local governmental
agencies or entities to which filings and payments are required. Franchisee acknowledges that nothing in
this Section or Agreement shall, or may be construed to, create any type of employer or joint employer
relationship between (@) Franchisee or any of Franchisee's personnel, and (b) Franchisor in any matter.
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8.4 Products and Services to be Offered for Sale.

A. Approved Services and Approved Products Generally. Franchisee acknowledges that the
presentation of a uniform image to the public and the offering of uniform services and products is an
essential element of a successful franchise system. In order to iensure consistency, quality and
uniformity throughout the System, Franchisee agrees (1) to sell erand offer for sale only the Approved
Services and Approved Products; (2) to sell erand offer for sale all of the Approved Services and
Approved Products required by Franchisor; (3) not to deviate from the System Standards; and (4) to
discontinue selling and offering for sale any services or products that Franchisor may, in its discretion,
disapprove at any time. Franchisor shall supply Franchisee with a list of suppliers from which
Franchisee is required to purchase fitness equipment, cycling egquipment/accessories, and other products
or services for the Studio. Franchisor may change this list from time to time, and upon notification to
Franchisee, Franchisee shall only purchase fithess equipment, cycling equipment/accessories, and other
required products or services from approved suppliers as specified on the changed list. Franchisor and its
affiliates may be designated-er, approved, or sole suppliers of certain items and services. Franchisee
agrees to keep the Studio and fitness equipment in clean condition, with all equipment well-maintained
and operational, and be able at al times during business hours to provide members with all services and
products specified by Franchisor.

B. Required Use of Approved Suppliers. Franchisee agrees that all exercise equipment must
be purchased exclusively from approved suppliers, must be maintained according to manufacturer or
Franchisor specifications, as applicable;—ane—{(i). Franchisee must, if required by Franchisor as a
condition to site selection approval, use real estate attorney from the panel recommended by Franchisor
to review and negotiate the lease for the Studio.

C. No Deviation or Supplement with Regards to Approved Services and/or Related
Methodology. Franchisee and its instructors must teach classes exactly as specified in the Manual and in
other training materials provided by Franchisor. Franchisee agrees not to add any exercises, cycling
methods, workout regimens, or other forms of cycling instructions or music that are not approved by
Franchisor, and Franchisee agrees not to leave out any exercises, cycling methods, workout regimens, or
other forms of cycling instructions or music that are required by Franchisor.

D. Non-Approved Services, Products or Suppliers. If Franchisee proposes to offer for sale
any products, classes or services other than then-current Approved Services and Approved Products,
Franchisee shall first notify Franchisor in writing and submit sufficient information, specifications and
samples concerning such product, classes and/or supplier and/or service for a determination by the
Franchisor whether such product, classes or supplier of service complies with the Franchisor’'s
specifications and standards and/or whether such supplier meets the Franchisor’s approved supplier
criteria.  Franchisor reserves the right to charge Franchisee reasonable costs in connection with
Franchisor’s review, evaluation and approval of aternative suppliers. These charges may include
reimbursement for travel, accommodations, meal expenses, and personnel wages. Franchisor may from
time to time prescribe procedures for the submission of requests for approved products and/or suppliers
or services and obligations that approved suppliers must assume (which may be incorporated in awritten
agreement to be executed by approved suppliers). Franchisor reserves the right to revoke its approval of
a previoudly authorized supplier, product, class or service when Franchisor determines in its discretion
that such supplier, product, class or service is not meeting the specifications and standards established by
Franchisor. If Franchisor modifiesitslist of approved products, classes and/or suppliers and/or services,
Franchisee shall not, after receipt in writing of such modification, reorder any product or utilize any
supplier, product, class or service that is no longer approved.
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E. Franchisor Rights. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor and certain of its
affiliates are (or may at any time in future become) an approved-er, designated, or sole supplier for
certain cycling/fitness equipment, other equipment, products, logo items, signage and artwork, and other
items and services used or sold in CycleBar Studios; that Franchisor and such affiliates may derive
income from the sale of such items, and that the prices charged by Franchisor or such affiliates may
reflect an ordinary and reasonable profit consistent with a business of the kind that produces and/or
supplies such items. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor and its affiliates may sell
products and services to members located anywhere, even if such products and services are similar to
what Franchisor sells to Franchisee and what Franchisee offers at its Studio. Franchisor and its affiliates
may use the internet or alternative channels of commerce to sell products and services, including those
identified by the Marks. Franchisee may only sell the products and services from the Studio’ s approved
location and may only use the internet or aternative channels of commerce, as permitted by Franchisor,
in order to register members for approved classes. Nothing in the foregoing shall prohibit Franchisee
from obtaining members over the Internet provided Franchisee’s internet presence and content comply
with the requirements of this Agreement.

F. Advertising Outside Designated Territory. Unless Franchisor agrees otherwise,
Franchisee may not actively solicit potential members or customers, or otherwise promote its Studio
through any targeted advertising/marketing, outside of the Designated Territory. Nothing in this
Agreement, however, shall prohibit Franchisee from servicing members and other customers that contact
Franchisee or its Studio, regardless of where those members/customers reside or work.

G. No Unauthorized Sales of Certain Items. Unless Franchisor directs or agrees otherwisein
writing, Franchisee agrees not to sell vitamins, supplements or other nutritional products or food items,
including bottled water, at the Studio.

H. Non-Compliance Fee. In addition to Franchisor’s other rights under this Agreement,
Franchisor reserves-theright-temay charge its then-current per day Non-Compliance Fee for each day
Franchisee offers or sells unauthorized products or services from the Studio.

85 Compliance with Laws. Franchisee agreesto comply with al Applicable Laws and, as soon as
practicable, but in any event prior to conducting any activities in connection with the Studio, obtain all
insurance required by this Agreement or Applicable Laws and any required governmental permits,
certificates or licenses necessary to occupy the Authorized Location and operate the Studio. Franchisee
also agrees to file and publish, if required by Applicable Laws, a certificate of doing business (whether
under a fictitious name or otherwise). Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that it has the sole
responsibility to investigate and comply with any Applicable Lawsin the jurisdiction in which the Studio
islocated that relate to the ownership, development and operation of the Studio and businesses generally
(including, for example, requirements related to accessibility, protection of personally identifiable
information, having staff during operating hours that are trained in certain life-saving procedures, and
having certain life-saving and first aid equipment on premises, form and content of membership
agreements, and other requirements that relate to gyms, fitness facilities, health spas, and similar
businesses). Franchisee agrees to immediately provide Franchisor with a copy of any notice received by
Franchisee from any person or state, local or governmental agency pertaining to compliance with any
Applicable Laws including any such notices that any audit, investigation, or similar proceeding by any
such person or governmental authority is pending or threatened against Franchisee on the basis of any of
any the foregoing. Franchisee hereby certifies and represents that Franchisee, and any of its affiliates,
any of its partners, members, shareholders or other equity owners, and their respective employees,
officers, directors representatives or agents, are not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any
person, group, entity or nation named by any Executive Order or the United States Treasury Department
as aterrorist, “ Specially Designated National and Blocked Person,” or other banned or blocked person,
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entity, nation or transaction pursuant to any law, order, rule or regulation that is enforced or administered
by the Office of Foreign Assets Control.

8.6 Operational Efforts. Franchisee agrees to keep Franchisor advised, in writing, of any
Designated mManager and all instructors involved in the operation of the Studio and their contact
information. Franchisee agrees to keep the Studio open for the hours stated in the Manual and as deemed
appropriate by Franchisor. If Franchisee does not have a Designated Manager, then Franchisee (or its
Operating Principal, as applicable) must be on-site at the Studio during normal business hours to manage
day-to-day operations. Each Operating Principal must have the authority to act for Franchisee in all
matters relating to the Studio, including voting responsibilities. Any change in the Operating Principal(s)
is subject to Article 14 below and the training requirements of this Agreement.

8.7 Performance Standards. Franchisee and Franchisor have a shared interest in the Studio
performing at or above the System Standards. Franchisor would not have entered into this franchise
relationship if Franchisor had anticipated that Franchisee would not meet the following performance
standards (the “ Performance Standards”):

A. System Standards. Franchisor may choose, in its sole discretion, to evaluate the Studio
for compliance with the System Standards using various methods (including, but not limited to,
inspections, field service visits, surveillance camera monitoring, member comments/surveys, and secret
shopper reports). Franchisee must meet minimum standards for cleanliness, equipment condition, repair
and function, and customer service. Franchisee's employees, including any independent contractors,
must meet minimum standards for courteousness and customer service.

B. Minimum Monthly Gross Sales Quota. Unless waived by Franchisor due to unique
market conditions, Franchisee must meet a certain minimum monthly Gross Sales gquota (the “ Minimum
Monthly Gross Sales Quota’), as follows: (i) Franchisee must achieve and maintain trailing 12-month
average monthly Gross Sales of $30,000 by the first (1) anniversary of the opening of the Studio; and
(i) Franchise must achieve and maintain trailing 12-month average monthly Gross Sales of $40,000 by
the second (2™) and each successive anniversary of the opening of the Studio. If Franchisee failsto meet
the Minimum Monthly Gross Sales Quota for 36 consecutive months at any time during the Term,
Franchisor, at its sole discretion, may institute a mandatory corrective training program or terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to Franchisee.

9. ADVERTISING AND MARKETING
9.1 Fund.

A. Franchisee will be required to pay the appropriate Fund Contribution to Franchisor as
described in Section 5.6 of this Agreement. In the event Franchisor increases the Fund Contribution from
what it is as of the Effective Date, Franchisor will provide at least sixty (60) days written notice of such
increase in the Fund Contribution.

B. The Fund is administered by Franchisor (or its affiliates) with the assistance and advice
provided by a marketing fund committee (the “MFC”) pursuant to a charter agreement among Franchisor
and the members of the MFC, which servesin an advisory capacity only. The MFC represents CycleBar
Studio franchisees and advises Franchisor with regard to all advertising, marketing and public relations
programs and activities financed by the Fund, including the creative concepts, materials and
endorsements used and the geographic market, media placement and allocation. The MFC is purely
advisory in nature and has no operational or ultimate decision-making authority.
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C. Franchisee agrees that the Fund may be used to pay the costs of preparing and producing
associated materials and programs as Franchisor may determine, including, without limitation, the use of
social media; formulating, developing and implementing advertising and promotional campaigns; video,
audio and written advertising materials employing advertising agencies;, sponsorship of sporting,
charitable or similar events, administering regional, national and multi-regional advertising programs
including purchasing direct mail and other media advertising, website devel opment/operation and to pay
Internet, Intranet, URL, 800 or similar number, and other charges, fees and/or expenses, including
employing advertising agencies to assist with marketing efforts; supporting public relations, market
rescarch and other advertising, promotional and marketing activities, the reasonable costs of
administering the Fund, including accounting expenses and the actual costs of salaries and fringe benefits
paid to Franchisor's employees engaged in administration of the Fund and/or creation, development
and/or placement of any creative and/or implementation of any campaigns associated with the same. A
brief statement regarding the availability of CycleBar franchises may be included in advertising and other
items produced using the Fund.

D. Franchisor may spend in any calendar year more or less than the total Fund
Ccontributions to the Fund in that year. Franchisor may cause the Fund to invest any surplus for future
use by the Fund. Franchisor (or its affiliates) may borrow from its affiliates (or Franchisor) or other
lenders on behalf of the Fund to cover deficits of the Fund.

E. Franchisor, its affiliates, and/or their respective employees, agents, contractors, and
designated vendors can provide goods, services, materials, etc. (including administrative services and/or
“in-house advertising agency” services) and be compensated and/or reimbursed for the same by the Fund,
provided that any such compensation must be reasonable in amount. Franchisor can arrange for goods,
services, materials, etc. (including administrative services) to be provided by independent
persons/companies and all related costs, fees, etc. will be paid by the Fund.

F. The Fund need not be segregated from but will be accounted for separately from
Franchisor’s other funds and Franchisor will not use the Fund for its general operating expenses. All
taxes of any kind incurred in connection with or related to the Fund, its activities, contributions to the
Fund and/or any other Fund aspect, whether imposed on Franchisor, the Fund or any other related party,
will be the sole responsibility of the Fund. Franchisor will not be required to audit the Fund, but will
provide an annual accounting of the Fund at the written request of Franchisee that is made 120 days after
the fiscal year at issue. All interest earned on monies contributed to, or held in, the Fund will be remitted
to the Fund and will be subject to the restrictions of the relevant franchise agreements.

G. Franchisee acknowledges that the Fund Contributions are intended to maximize general
public recognition of and the acceptance of the System and Marks generally, for the benefit of the System
as awhole. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor undertakes no obligation, in administering the
Fund Contributions to make expenditures that are equivalent or proportionate to Franchisee’'s
contribution, or to ensure that any particular CycleBar Studio benefits directly or pro rata from
advertising or promotion conducted with the Fund Contributions.

H. Franchisor maintains the right to terminate the collection and disbursement of the Fund
Contributions and the Fund. Upon termination, Franchisor will disburse the remaining funds for the
purposes authorized under this Agreement.

9.2 Initial Marketing Spend; Local Marketing Activities.

A. Initial Marketing Spend. Franchisee must spend a minimum of $15,000 (the “Initial
Marketing Spend”’) in connection with the pre-opening sales and marketing activities set forth in
connection with (i) Franchisee's approved Opening Support Program, and (ii) other marketing and

20.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD | Ex. A-% — Form of Franchise Agreement
1320.616-002/3927901320.010.003/397906




promotional activities that Franchisor approves or designates. Franchisor may also require that
Franchisee expend all or any portion of the Initial Marketing Spend on initial marketing/advertising
and/or public relations materials or services that are purchased from an Aapproved Ssupplier. The Initial
Marketing Spend will not count towards Franchisee's local advertising expenditure requirements
provided in Section 9.2.B below.

B. Local Advertising Requirement. Franchisee is responsible for local advertising and
marketing activities to attract members to the Studio. Franchisee must expend at least $1,500 per month
on approved local advertising and marketing activities designed to promote the Studio within the
Designated Territory. Upon Franchisor's written request, Franchisee must provide Franchisor with an
accounting of all expenditures made by Franchisee to comply with this Section, along with any invoices
or other documentation to support such expenditures. Franchisor may, at any time and on notice to
Franchisee, change the amount that Franchisee must spend on local advertising and marketing activities
for its Studio.

C. Advertising Standards. Franchisee's advertising will be in good taste and conform to
ethical and legal standards and Franchisor’s requirements. Franchisor may require Franchisee to submit
samples of all advertising and promotional materials (and any use of the Marks and/or other forms of
commercia identification) for any media, including the Internet or otherwise. Franchisor retains the
right to approve-er, disapprove, or revoke its approval of such advertising, in its sole discretion.
Franchisee agrees not to use any materials or programs or medium of advertising disapproved by
Franchisor.

D. Approval. Franchisor must approve any form of co-branding of the Marks, or advertising
with-etheror use of the Marks to endorse or support other organizations, brands, products or services, in
writing, in advance.

E. Opening Support Program. Franchisee must also expend all required amounts that
Franchisor prescribes or otherwise approves as part of Franchisee's Pre-Sales Phase plan, including any
amounts due to Franchisor’s approved supplier for the Opening Support Program.

F. Full Participation. Franchisee must participate in all advertising and sales promation
programs that Franchisor may develop from time to time to promote and enhance the collective success
of the System.

9.3 Social Media Activities. As used in this Agreement, the term “ Social Media’ is defined as a
network of services, websites, and other electronic, virtual, or digital mediums, including, but not limited
to, blogs, microblogs, and social networking sites, video-sharing and photo-sharing sites, customer
review sites, marketplace sites, Wikis, chat rooms and virtual worlds, that allows participants to
communicate online and form communities around shared interests and experiences. While it can be a
very effective tool for building brand awareness, it can also be devastating to abrand if used improperly.

Therefore, Franchisee must strictly follow the Social Media guidelines, code of conduct, and etiquette as
set forth in the Manual, which may require Franchisee to comply with Franchisor’s then-current privacy
policy. Any use of Social Media by Franchisee pertaining to the Studio must be in good taste and not
linked to controversial, unethical, immoral, illegal or inappropriate content. Franchisor reserves the right
to “occupy” any Socia Media websites/pages and be the sole provider of information regarding the
Studio on such websites/pages (e.g., a system-wide Facebook page). At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee
will promptly modify or remove any online communication pertaining to the Studio that does not comply
with this Agreement or the Manual.

94 Franchisee Marketing Groups. Franchisor may decide to form one or more associations and/or

sub-associations of CycleBar Studios to conduct various marketing-related activities on a cooperative
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basis (a “Co-Op”). If one or more Co-Ops (local, regional and/or national) are formed covering
Franchisee's area, then Franchisee must join and actively participate. Franchisee will be entitled to one
(2) vote if Franchisee isin Good Standing at the time the vote is taken. Franchisee will be considered in
“Good Standing” if it is not in default of any obligation to Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s affiliates,
whether arising under this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor (or any
of Franchisor’'s affiliates), the Manual or other System reguirementsStandards. Franchisee may be
required to contribute such amounts as are determined from time to time by such Co-Ops.

10. FINANCIAL REPORTS, AUDITS, COMPUTER SYSTEM AND INSURANCE
REQUIREMENTS

10.1  Records and Reports. Franchisee shall maintain and preserve for four (4) years or such period
as may be required by law (whichever is greater) from the date of their preparation such financial
information relating to the Studio as Franchisor may periodically require, including without limitation,
Franchisee’s sales and use tax returns, register tapes and reports, sales reports, purchase records, and full,
complete and accurate books, records and accounts prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and in the form and manner prescribed by Franchisor. Franchisee agrees that its
financial records shall be accurate and up-to-date at all times. Franchisee agreesto promptly furnish any
and al financia information, including tax records and returns, relating to the Studio to Franchisor on
request.

10.2 Right to Conduct Audit or Review. Franchisor shall have theright, in its sole determination, to
require areview by such representative(s) as Franchisor shall choose, of all information pertaining to the
Studio, including financial records, books, tax returns, papers, and business management software
programs of Franchisee, at any time during normal business hours without prior notice for the purpose of
accurately tracking unit and System-wide sales, sales increases or decreases, effectiveness of advertising
and promotions, and for other reasonable business purposes. Such review will take place at the Studio or
Franchisee's head office (if different), or both, and Franchisee agrees to provide all information
pertaining to the Studio requested by Franchisor during its review. If (a) the audit is conducted because
of a failure by Franchisee to furnish reports, supporting records or other required information or to
furnish the reports and information on atimely basis, or (b) the audit otherwise reveals an underreporting
of two percent (2%) or more by Franchisee, then Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for al costs of
the audit or review including, without limitation, travel, lodging, wage expense and reasonable
accounting and legal expense. The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies
Franchisor may have under this Agreement or applicable law.

10.3  Computer System and Software. Franchisee must acquire the Sstudio Mmanagement Ssystem
for use in the operation of the Studio, as well as any audio-visual eguipment Franchisor specifies.

Franchisee agrees to record all of its receipts, expenses, invoices, member lists, class and-employee
schedules and other business information required by Franchisor from time to time promptly in the

computer system and use the software that Franchisor specifies or otherwise approves. Franchisor
reserves the right to change the computer systern and the accounting, busi ness operatl ons, customer
service and other software at any time. -Ba . { ‘

members—FranehrseeFranchlsee must upgrade and mai ntaln the computer system and software in the
Studio, as requ|red by Franchiso Franchlsor from time to time, and pay any fees assouated with such upgradas
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member-tafermatien-andFranchisee will provide Franchisor with any passwords necessary to access the
computer system and software at Franchisor’ s shal-be-the-sele-ewner-ef-such-informationdiscretion.

10.4 Information Security. Franchisee may from time to time have access to information that can be
used to identify an individual, including names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses,
employee identification numbers, signatures, passwords, financial information, credit card information,
biometric or health data, government-issued identification numbers and credit report information
(“ Personal Information”). Franchisee may gain access to such Personal Information from Franchisor, its
affiliates, its vendors, or Franchisee's own operations. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that, as
between it and Franchisor, all Persona Information (other than Restricted Data, as defined below) is
Franchisor’s Confidential Information and is subject to the protections in Article 12 below. Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor may from time to time share Franchisee' s and/or its owners
names as well as personal and business addresses, telephone numbers, and e-mail addresses with
Franchisor’s affiliates and third-parties.

During and after the Term, Franchisee (and if Franchisee is alegal entity, each of its Owners)
agree to, and to cause its respective current and former employees, representatives, affiliates, successors,
and assigns to: (a) collect, disclose, process, retain, and use all Persona Information only in strict
accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, orders, the guidance and codes issued by industry or
regulatory agencies, and the privacy policies and terms and conditions of any applicable Internet
presence; (b) assist Franchisor with meeting its compliance obligations under applicable laws and
regulations relating to Personal Information; and (c) promptly notify Franchisor of any communication or
reguest from any customer or other data subject to access, correct, delete, opt-out of, or limit activities
relating to any Personal Information.

If Franchisee becomes aware of a suspected or actual breach of security or unauthorized access
involving Personal Information, Franchisee will notify Franchisor immediately and specify the extent to
which Personal Information was compromised or disclosed. Franchisee also agrees to follow
Franchisor’'s instructions regarding curative actions and public statements relating to the breach.
Franchisor reserves the right to conduct a data security and privacy audit of any of the Studio and
computer system at any time, from time to time, to ensure that Franchisee is complying with Franchisor’s
reguirements. Franchisee must promptly notify Franchisor if it receives any complaint, notice, or
communication, whether from a governmental agency, customer or other person, relating to any Personal
Information, or Franchisee's compliance with Franchisee's obligations relating to Personal Information
under this Agreement, and/or if Franchisee has any reason to believe that it will not be able to satisfy any
of its obligations relating to Personal Information under this Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Franchisee agrees that Franchisor
does not control or own any of the following Personal Information (collectively, the “ Restricted Data’):
(&) any Persona Information of employees, officers, contractors, owners or other personnel of
Franchiseg, its affiliates, or the Studio; (b) such other Personal |nformation as Franchisor may from time
to time expressly designate as Restricted Data; and/or (c) any other Personal Information to which
Franchisor does not have access. Regardless of any guidance Franchisor may provide generally and/or
any specifications that Franchisor may establish for Personal Information, Franchisee has sole and
exclusive responsibility for all Restricted Data, including establishing protections and safeguards for
such Restricted Data.

10.5 464 Insurance.

A. Prior to opening the Studio for business and throughout the entire Term, Franchisee will
keep in force at Franchisee's own expense and by advance payment of the premium, theall insurance

coverages required by applicable law, and that it believes are appropriate for its own protection;
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Franchisee must, at a minimum, maintain the minimum insurance coverages and coverage amounts
specified in the Manual from time to time., which as of the Effective Date are as follows:

1) Commercial General Liability insurance covering Franchisee's day-to-day business
operations and premises liability exposures with limits not less than the following:

Required Coverages Minimum Limits of Coverage
Each Occurrence: $1,000,000

General Aggregate: $5,000,000 (per Studio)
Products Compl eted Operations Aggregate: $5.000,000

Personal and Advertising Injury: $1,000,000

Participant Legal Liability: $1,000,000
Professional Liability: $1,000,000

Damage to Premises Rented: $1,000,000

Employee Benefits Liability (each employee): $1,000,000

Employee Benefits Liability (aggregate): $2,000,000

Medical Expense (any one person): $5,000

Sexual Abuse and Molestation: included (not excluded)

Such insurance shall include coverage for contractual liability (for liability assumed under an
“insured contract”), products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, premises liability,
third party property damage and bodily injury liability (including death).

2 Automobile Liability insurance covering liability arising out of Franchisee's use,
operation or maintenance of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos, trucks or other
vehicles) in connection with its ownership and operation of the franchise, with limits not less than the
minimum compulsory requirements in Franchisee' s state. This requirement only applies to the extent that
owned, leased or hired/rented vehicles are used in the operation of the franchise.

(©)] Workers Compensation insurance covering al of Franchisee's employees with
statutory coverage and limits as required by state law. Such insurance shall include coverage for
Employer's Liability with limits not less than $500,000 each accident, $500,000 disease — each
employee, and $500,000 disease — policy limit.

4 Property insurance written on a special causes of 10ss coverage form with limits not less
than the current replacement cost of the Studio’s business personal property (including furniture, fixtures
and equipment) and leasehold improvements (tenant improvements). Such property insurance shall
include glass coverage with limits not less than $25,000, signage coverage with limits not less than
$10,000, and business interruption/extra expense coverage with limits not less than twelve months of
rent.

(5) Employment Practices Liability insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per
claim in the aggregate, with a retention not larger than $25,000, providing defense and coverage for
claims brought by any of Franchisee' s employees or other personnel alleging various employment-related
torts. Said policy shall also include third party employment practices liability coverage.

B. All insurance policies must be written by an insurance company licensed in the state in
which Franchisee operates its Studio. The insurance company must have at least an “A” Rating

Classification as indicated in A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide. Franehiser—as-weH—as-tsparent—and
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C. Franchisor reserves the right, from time to time, in its discretion, to upgrade the
insurance requirements or lower the required amounts as to policy limits, deductibles, scope of coverage,
or rating of carriers in response to current industry standards, market conditions and/or landlord
requirements. Within sixty (60) days of receipt of notice from Franchisor, Franchisee agreesto reviseits
coverage, as specified in any notice from Franchisor.

D. Franchisor reserves the right to designate, or require pre-approval of, the provider of any
insurance required in connection with the Studio.

E. Franchisee's obligation to obtain and maintain insurance shall not be limited by reason
of any insurance that may be maintained by Franchisor nor relieve Franchisee of liability under the
indemnity provisions set forth in this Agreement. At Franchisor’s designation, Franchisor, as well asits
parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries, shall be included as additional insureds on the Studio’s insurance
policies, including without limitation, the Studio’'s Commercial General Liability and any Umbrella
Excess Liability insurance policies. All insurance policies ard-ceverage-must nrameFranehisoras-an
additronal-Hsured-waive any subrogation rights or other rights to assert a claim back against Franchisor
and shall contain a clause requiring notice to Franchisor thirty (30) days in advance of any cancellation
or material change or cancellation to any such policy. Franchisee shall give Franchisor certificates of
coverage at least annually. Failure to obtain or the lapse of any of the required insurance coverage shall
be grounds for the immediate termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 15.1, and Franchisee
agrees that any losses, claims or causes of action arising after the lapse of or termination of insurance
coverage will be the sole responsibility of Franchisee and that Franchisee will hold Franchisor harmless
from all such losses, claims and/or causes of action. In addition, but not to the exclusion of the foregoing
remedy, if Franchisee fails to procure or maintain the required insurance, Franchisor shall have the right
and authority, but not the obligation, to procure immediately the insurance and Franchisee shall
reimburse Franchisor for the cost of the insurance plus reasonable expenses immediately upon written
notice. Franchisee is required to submit to Franchisor a copy of a Certificate of Insurance, with
Franchisor as an additional insured, showing compliance with the foregoing requirements at least thirty
(30) days before Franchisee commences operation of the Studio.  Franchisor shall have a security
interest in all insurance proceeds to the extent Franchisee has any outstanding obligations to Franchisor.

11. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION

11.1  Independent Contractor. The only relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee created by
this Agreement is that of independent contractor. The business conducted by Franchisee is completely
separate and apart from any business that may be operated by Franchisor and nothing in this Agreement
shall create a fiduciary relationship between them or constitute either pParty as agent, legal
representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, servant or fiduciary of the other pParty for
any purpose whatsoever. Franchisee shall hold itself out to the public as an independent contractor
operating the business pursuant to a license from Franchisor, and Franchisee agrees to take such action
including exhibiting a notice to that effect in such content, form and place as Franchisor may specify. It
is further specifically agreed that Franchisee is not an affiliate of Franchisor and that neither pParty shall
have authority to act for the other in any manner to create any obligations or indebtedness that would be
binding upon the other pParty. Neither pParty shall be in any way responsible for any acts and/or
omissions of the other, its agents, servants or employees and no representation to anyone will be made by
either pParty that would create an implied or apparent agency or other similar relationship by and
between the pParties.
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11.2  Indemnification. Franchisee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Franchisor, its owners,
affiliates, successors and assigns, and the directors, officers, owners, managers, employees, servants, and
agents of each (collectively, the “Indemnitees’), harmless from and against any and all losses, damage,
claims, demands, liabilities and causes of actions of every kind or character and nature, as well as costs
and expenses incident thereto (including reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs), that are brought
against any of the Indemnitees (collectively, the “Claims”) that arise out of or are otherwise related to
Franchisee's (a) breach or attempted breach of, or misrepresentation under, this Agreement or in
connection with the offer/sale of the Studio prior to the execution of this Agreement, (b) ownership,
construction, development, management, or operation of the Studio in any manner, (c) gross negligence
or intentional misconduct, and/or (d) alleging Franchisee's or its representatives violation of Applicable
Laws as set forth in Section 8.5 above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Indemnitee may choose to
engage counsel and defend against any such Claim and may require immediate reimbursement from the
Franchisee of al expenses and fees incurred in connection with such defense. This indemnity will
continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding this Agreement’s expiration or
termination. Indemnitees need not seek recovery from any insurer or other third-party, or otherwise
mitigate its losses and expenses, in order to maintain and recover fully a claim against Franchisee under
this Section. Any Indemnitee’ s failure to pursue arecovery or mitigate aloss will not reduce or alter the
amounts that person may recover from Franchisee under this Section.
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12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

12.1  Franchisor’s Confidential Information.

A. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that all information relating to the System and to
the development and operation of the Studio, including, without limitation, the Manual, Franchisor’s
training programs, members and supplier lists, customer data, or other information or know-how
distinctive to the development or operation of a CycleBar Studio (all of the preceding information is
referred to herein as the “ Confidential Information”) is considered to be proprietary and trade secrets of
Franchisor. Confidential Information does not include information, knowledge, or know-how, which is
lawfully known to the public without violation of applicable law or an obligation to Franchisor or its
afflllates or any R&stncted Data Franchlsee (and |ts Owners, if Franchisee is a legal entity) agrees that
es i , during and after the Term ane-is
H@%—Ee—be—used—ﬁer—any—pamese—etheF—t-hanFranchlsee WI|| and cause its spouses, immediate family
members, affiliates, and assigns to: (i) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose Confidential Information
strictly to the limited extent, and in such a manner, as necessary for the development and operation of

athe Studio in accordance with this Agreement-er-¢divulgedto-anyene-directhy-or-indirecty-at-any-time;
exeept-to-Franchisee’s-Studio-empleyees-er, and not for any other purposes of any kind; (ii) process,

retain, use, collect, and disclose Confidential Information strictly in accordance with the privacy policies
and System Standards and Franchisee’'s and its representative’ s instructions; (iii) keep confidential and
not disclose, sell, distribute, or trade Confidentia Information to any person other than those of
Franchlsee s empl ove& mdependent contractors, and representatives who hao‘e—a—need to know the
Harsuch Confidential
Informatlon for the purpose of assisting Franchlsee |t is operanon of the Studlo in accordance with this
Agreement; (iv) not make unauthorized copies of any portion of Confidential Information; (v) adopt and
maintain administrative, physical, and technical safeguards to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of
any portion of Confidential Information, including by establishing reasonable security and access
measures, restricting its disclosure to key personnel, and/or by requiring persons who have access to such
Confidential Information to be bound by contractual obligations efto protect such eConfidentiality and
nen-uselnformation and preserve Franchisor’s rights and controls in such Confidential Information, in
each case that are no |ess protective or beneficial to Franchisor than the terms of this Agreement; and (vi)
at Franchisor’s request, destroy or return any portion of the Confidential Information. Upon Franchisor’s
request, Franchisee shall require the Studio’s employees and any independent contractors to execute a
nondisclosure and non-competition agreement in aform satisfactory to Franchisor. Franchisee shall not
acquire any interest in the Confidential Information other than the right to utilize it in the development

and operatl on of its Studlo in accordance W|th th|s Agreement—anel—agiﬂe&sﬂet—te—eepy—dapl-reate—meeml

trfermation.  If Franchlsee or Franchisee’ s empl oyees or any mdependent contractors Iearn about an
unauthorized use of any Confidential Information, Franchisee must promptly notify Franchisor.
Franchisor is not obligated to take any action but will respond to the information as it deems appropriate.
If Franchisee at any time conducts, owns, consults with, is employed by or otherwise assists a similar or
competitive business to that franchised hereunder, the doctrine of “inevitable disclosure” will apply, and
it will be presumed that Franchisee is in violation of this covenant; and in such case, it shall be
Franchisee’ s burden to prove that Franchisee is not in violation of this covenant.

B. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor is not making any representations or
warranties, express or implied, with respect to the Confidential Information. Franchisor and its affiliates
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have no liability to Franchisee and its affiliates for any errors or omissions from the Confidentia
Information.

C. B-—Franchisee agrees that any new concept, process or improvement in the operation or
promotion of the Studio developed by or on behalf of Franchisee that relates to or enhances CycleBar
Studios or the System, or any aspect of Franchisor’s business, shall be the sole property of Franchisor,
and Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor and shall provide Franchisor with all necessary
information and execute all necessary documents to memorialize said ownership, or, if necessary,
Franchisee's assignment of such ownership to Franchisor, without compensation. Franchisee
acknowledges that Franchisor may utilize or disclose such information to other Franchisees.

D. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement restricts or prohibits
Franchisee from initiating communications directly with, responding to any inquiries from, providing
testimony before, providing confidential information to, reporting possible violations of law or regulation
to, or from filing a claim or assisting with an investigation directly with a self-regulatory authority or a
government agency or entity, including the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or from making
other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of state or federal law or
regul ation. Franchisee does not need the prior authorization of Franchisor to engage in conduct protected
by the preceding sentence, and Franchisee does not need to notify Franchisor that Franchisee has
engaged in such conduct. Nothing in this provision is intended to exert controls over Franchisee's
relationships with its employees or to create or imply an employment relationship between Franchisor
and Franchisee or Franchisee' s employees.

12.2  Injunctive Relief. Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence of any claims it may have
against Franchisor, whether or not arising out of this Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the
enforcement of this Article 12. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that any failure to comply with the
requirements of this Article 12 will cause Franchisor irreparable injury for which no adequate remedy at
law is available, and Franchisee accordingly agrees that Franchisor shall be entitled to injunctive relief as
specified in Section 16.5 herein to enforce the terms of this Article 12. Franchisee shall pay all costs and
expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Franchisor in connection
with the enforcement of this Article 12. The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to any other
remedies Franchisor may have under this Agreement or applicable law.

13. COVENANTS NOT TO COMPETE

13.1 Non-Competition Covenants of Franchisee.

A. During the Term of this Agreement. Franchisee agrees that neither Franchisee, its
principals, owners, or guarantors, nor any immediate family of Franchisee, its principals, owners, or
guarantors (“ Restricted Parties”), will, directly or indirectly, for themselves or through, on behalf of, or
in conjunction with any other person, partnership or corporation own, maintain, engage in, be employed
or serve as an officer, director, or principal of, lend money or extend credit to, |ease/sublease space to, or
have any interest in or involvement with any fitness or exercise business (except a business that it
operates pursuant to a franchise agreement with Franchisor or its affiliates), any fitness or exercise
marketing or consulting business, any business offering products of a similar nature to those of the
Studio, or in any business or entity which franchises, licenses or otherwise grants to others the right to
operate such aforementioned businesses (each a “ Competing Business’). Franchisee further agrees that,
during the Term, the Restricted Parties shall not divert, or attempt to divert, any customer or prospective
customer to a Competing Business in any manner.
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B. After the Term of this Agreement. Franchisee agrees that, unless (and then only to the
extent) prohibited by Applicable Law, Franchisee, the Restricted Parties, and its owners will comply with

the following:

@ Prohibition on Franchising Activities. Franehisee-agrees-that,fFor a-period-of
two (2) years after the expiration-ane-nenrenewal-transfer-or, termination, or nonrenewal (by Franchisor
or by Franchisee for any reason) of this Agreement—egareless-of-the-cause or after Franchisee has
assigned its interest in this Agreement, neither #Franchisee nor any other Restricted Party will, directly
or indirectly, for themselves or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any other person,
partnership or corporation, be involved with any business that competes in whole or in part with
Franchisor by offering or granting licenses or franchises, or establishing joint ventures, for the ownership
or operation of a Competing Business. The geographic scope of the covenant contained in this Sectionis
any location where Franchisor can demonstrate it has offered or sold franchises as of the date this
Agreement isterminated or expires.

2 Prohibition on Competing Businesses. For two (2) years after the expiration,
termination, or non-renewal (by Franchisor or by Franchisee for any reason) of this Agreement or after
Franchisee has assigned its interest in this Agreement, neither Franchisee nor any other Restricted
Partiesy shalt-netwill own, maintain, engage in, be employed as an officer, director, or principa of, lend
money to, extend credit to, lease/sublease space to, or have any interest in or involvement with, any other
Competing Business: (i) at the Authorized Location; or (ii) within a ten (10) mile radius of (a) the
Authorized Location, or (b) any other CycleBar Studio owned by Franchisor, its affiliates, or any
franchisee, which is open, under lease or otherwise under development as of the date this Agreement
expires or is terminated.

3 Transfer of All Ownership Interests. If an owner of Franchisee ceases to be an
owner of Franchisee for any reason, the former owner shall comply with the provision of this Section
13.1.B as though this Agreement were terminated as of the date on which the owner ceased to be an
owner.

13.2  Non-Solicitation Covenants.

A. During the Term of this Agreement. Franchisee represents-and-warrantsagrees that it will
not, during the Term of this Agreement, divert or seek to divert customers from another CycleBar Studio

to its Studio.

B. After the Term of this Agreement. Franchisee agrees that, Ffor two (2) years after the
expiration, termination or non-renewal (by Franchisor or by Franchisee for any reason) of this Agreement
or after Franchisee has assigned its interest in this Agreement, neither Franchisee nor any other
Restricted Partiesy saal-netwill (i) solicit business from customers of Franchisee’s former Studio or any
other CycleBar Studio, or (ii) contact any of Franchisor’'s suppliers or vendors for any competitive
business purpose.
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13.3  Enforcement of Covenants.

A. Franchisee expressly agrees that the existence of any claims it may have against
Franchisor, whether or not arising out of this Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the
enforcement of the covenantsin this Article 13. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that in view of the
nature of the System and the business of Franchisor, the restrictions contained in this Article 13 are
reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interests of the System and Franchisor. Franchisee
further acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee’s violation of the terms of this Article 13 will cause
irreparable injury to Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law is available, and Franchisee
accordingly agrees that Franchisor shall be entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive relief and
damages, as well as, an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits, and other benefits arising from such
violation, which remedies shall be cumulative and in addition to any other rights or remedies to which
Franchisor shall be entitled. Franchisee agrees to waive any bond that may be required or imposed in
connection with the issuance of any preliminary or provisional relief. Franchisee shall pay all costs and
expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by Franchisor in connection
with the enforcement of this Article 13. If Franchisee violates any restriction contained in this Article
13, and it is necessary for Franchisor to seek equitable relief, the restrictions contained herein shall
remain in effect until two (2) years after such relief is granted. If Franchisee contests the enforcement of
Article 13 and enforcement is delayed pending litigation, and if Franchisor prevails, the period of
non-competition shall be extended for an additional period equal to the period of time that enforcement
of this Article 13 is delayed.

B. Franchisee agrees that the provisions of this covenant not to compete are reasonable. If,
however, any court should find this Article 13 or any portion of this Article 13 to be unenforceable
and/or unreasonable, the court is authorized and directed to reduce the scope or duration (or both) of the
provision(s) in issue to the extent necessary to render it enforceable and/or reasonable and to enforce the
provision so revised.

C. Franchisor shall have the right, in Franchisor’s discretion, to reduce the scope of any
covenant not to compete set forth in this Agreement, or any portion thereof, without Franchisee's
consent, effective immediately upon receipt by Franchisee of written notice thereof, and Franchisee shall
comply with any covenant as so modified.

14. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

14.1  Franchisor’s Approval Required. All rights and interests of Franchisee arising from this
Agreement are personal to Franchisee and except as otherwise provided in this Article 14, Franchisee
shall not, without Franchisor’s prior written consent, voluntarily or involuntarily, by operation of law or
otherwise, sell, assign, transfer, pledge or encumber its interest in this Agreement, in the license granted
hereby, in the assets of the Studio, any of its rights hereunder, or in the lease for the premises at which
the Studio is located (each a “Transfer”), and any purported Transfer shall be null and void. If
Franchisee is a corporation, limited liability, partnership, or an individual or group of individuals, any
assignment (or new issuance), directly or indirectly, occurring as a result of a single transaction or a
series of transactions that alters the percentages of ownership interests reflected on Exhibit 1 to this
Agreement must promptly be reported to Franchisor and is a Transfer within the meaning of this
Article14. Any proposed Transfer shall be subject to Franchisor’s right of first refusal provided in
Section 14.5 below.

14.2  Conditions for Approval of Transfer. Franchisee must provide Franchisor with all information
or documents that Franchisor requests about the proposed Transfer, the transferee, and its owners. Upon
Franchisor’s receipt of such information, Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold its approval of a
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proposed transfer, provided that the prospective transferee, in Franchisor’'s reasonable judgment, is of

good moral character and reputation, has no conflicting interests, has a good credit rating and sufficient

and competent business experience, aptitude and financial resources acceptable to Franchisor's
then-current standards for franchisees; and that the following conditions are met: (1) Franchisee pays
Franchisor a transfer fee in an amount equal to $10,000 (except in those cases set forth at the end of this
Section where only an administrative fee is charged), as well as any applicable broker fees due in

connection with the transaction; (2) Franchisee and its related parties sign a prescribed form of general

release in favor of Franchisor and its related parties in a form acceptable to Franchisor; (3) the proposed

transferee (and, if appropriate, their respective owners) must pay the applicable Training Fee of $30,000;

(4) the proposed transferor and transferee and their respective owners must execute a form of consent to
transfer pursuant to which, at Franchisor’s option, either () transferee agrees to execute Franchisor’'s
then-current form of franchise agreement that will then govern the balance of the Term, or (b) this
Agreement is assigned to and assumed by the proposed transferee; (5) the Studio and equipment must be
upgraded, refurbished or repaired if Franchisor, in its sole discretion, decides it is necessary; (6) the
transferee () completes (or has its Operating Principal complete) the Owner/Operator Module and hasits
Designated Manager complete the Designated Manager Training Program, and (b) has at least one (1)

Authorized Instructor prior to reopening, and/or resuming the provision of Approved Services at, the
Studio; (7) al monies owed, however arising, by Franchisee or its affiliates to Franchisor, its affiliates,

and all suppliersto the Studio are paid; and (8) there must not be an outstanding default of any provision

of this Agreement or of any other agreement between Franchisee (or its affiliates) and Franchisor (or its
affiliates). Instead of the standard transfer fee, Franchisee must pay an administrative fee at the time of

proposing any transfer or assignment amounting to (a) $500 if Franchisee is an individual (or individuals)
and the transfer is from Franchisee to an entity that is wholly owned by such individual(s), or (b) $1,500

if the transfer is from Franchisee to an immediate family member.

14.3  Death or Disability of Franchisee. In the event of the death or disability of Franchisee, if an
individual, or of a stockholder of a corporate Franchisee, or of a partner of a Franchisee which is a
partnership, or a member of a Franchisee which is a limited liability company, the transfer of
Franchisee's or the deceased stockholder’s, partner’s or member’ sinterest in this Agreement to hisor her
heirs, trust, personal representative or conservators, as applicable, must occur within six (6) months of
the death or disability, but, shall not be deemed a Transfer by Franchisee (provided that the responsible
management employees or agents of Franchisee have been satisfactorily trained at Franchisor’s Initial
Training Program) nor obligate Franchisee to pay any transfer fee. If Franchisor determines (i) thereis
no imminent transfer to a qualified successor or (ii) there is no heir or other principal person capable of
operating the Studio, Franchisor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to immediately appoint a
manager and commence operating the Studio on behalf of Franchisee or its estate. Franchisee shall be
obligated to, and shall, pay to Franchisor all reasonable costs and expenses for such management
assistance, including without limitation, the manager’s salary, room and board, travel expenses and all
other related expenses of the Franchisor appointed manager. Operation of the Studio during any such
period shall be for and on behalf of Franchisee, provided that Franchisor shall only have a duty to utilize
reasonabl e efforts and shall not be liable to Franchisee or its owners for any debts, loses or obligations
incurred by the Studio, or to any creditor of Franchisee for any supplies, inventory, equipment, furniture,
fixtures or services purchased by the Studio during any period in which it is managed by a Franchisor
appointed manager. Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, extend the six (6) month period of time for
completing a transfer contemplated by this Section.

14.4 Relocation. Franchisee may not relocate the Studio from the Authorized Location without
Franchisor’s prior written approval, which Franchisor may provide in its sole discretion. Franchisee
agrees and acknowledges that: (i) it must pay Franchisor a $5,000 relocation fee at the time Franchisee
makes any relocation request; and (ii) Franchisor is not likely to approve any relocation request unless (a)

3L
CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD | Ex. A-% — Form of Franchise Agreement
1320.616-002/3927901320.010.003/397906




due to extreme circumstances that are beyond Franchisee's control, and (b) Franchisee is in full
compliance with this Agreement.

145  Franchisor’s Right of First Refusal. If Franchiseree (or any of its owners) desire to engage in
a Transfer, Franchisee (or its owners) agree to obtain from a responsible and fully disclosed buyer, and
send to Franchisor, atrue and complete copy of a bonafide, executed written offer (which may include a
letter of intent) relating exclusively to an interest in Franchisee or in this Agreement and the Studio. The
offer must include details of the payment terms of the proposed sale and the sources and terms of any
financing for the proposed purchase price. To be a valid, bona fide offer, the proposed purchase price
must be in a dollar amount, and the proposed buyer must submit with its offer an earnest money deposit
equal to five percent (5%) or more of the offering price. The right of first refusal process will not be
triggered by a proposed Transfer that would not be allowed under Sections 14.1 and 14.2 above.
Franchisor may require Franchisee (or its owners) to send to Franchisor copies of any materials or
information sent to the proposed buyer or transferee regarding the possibl e transaction.

Within 30 days after Franchisor receives an exact copy of the bona fide offer and all relevant
information that Franchisor requests, Franchisor may, by written notice delivered to Franchisee or its
selling owner(s), elect to purchase the interest offered for the price and on the terms and conditions
contained in the offer. Franchisor may substitute any form of payment proposed in the offer as
acceptable consideration. If Franchisor exercises its right of first refusal, Franchisor will have 30 days
from the date that Franchisor notified Franchisee of its intended purchase. Franchisee and its owners
must make all customary representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or
the ownership interests in alegal entity, as applicable, and Franchisee and its selling owner(s) (and their
immediate family members) must comply with the obligations regarding Competing Businesses, as
though this Agreement had expired on the date of the purchase. Franchisor has the unrestricted right to
assign this right of first refusal to a third party, who then will have the rights described in this Section
14.5.

If Franchisor decides not to exercise its right of first refusal, Franchisee or its owners may
complete the sale to the proposed buyer on the original offer’s terms, but only if Franchisor otherwise
approved the Transfer in accordance with, and Franchisee (and its owners) and the transferee comply
with the conditions in, Sections 14.1 and 14.2 above. If Franchise does not complete the sale to the
proposed buyer within 60 days after either Franchisor notifies Franchisee that it does not intend to
exerciseitsright of first refusal or the time Franchisor’s exercise expires, or if there is a material change
in the terms of the sale (which Franchisee agrees to tell Franchisor promptly), Franchisor or its designee
will have an additional right of first refusal during the 30-day period following either the expiration of
the 60-day period or Franchisor’s receipt of notice of the material change(s) in the sale’ sterms, either on
the terms originally offered or the modified terms, at Franchisor’s or its designee’s option.

14.6  Transfer by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have theright to transfer, assign or delegate all or any
part of its rights or obligations herein to any person or legal entity, directly or indirectly, by merger,
assignment, pledge or other means.

15. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

15.1 Termination of Franchise by Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement for “good cause” upon delivering notice of termination to Franchisee. For purposes of this
Agreement, “ good cause” shall include, without limitation: (i) amaterial breach of this Agreement or any
other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s affiliates, (ii) intentional,
repeated or continuous breach of any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement between
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Franchisee and Franchisor or any of Franchisor's affiliates, and (iii) the breaches (and, if applicable,
failure to cure such breaches) described below in this Section 15.

A. Immediate Termination. Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default and Franchisor may
terminate this Agreement and all rights granted hereunder, without affording Franchisee any opportunity
to cure the default, effective immediately upon receipt of notice by Franchisee, and such termination
snall be for good cause where the grounds for termination are:

(@D Franchisee has made any material misrepresentation or omission in the
Application Materials or otherwise in connection with applying for the franchise or in executing or
performing under this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor or any of
Franchisor’s affiliates;

2 Franchisee becomes insolvent by reason of Franchisee' sinability to pay debts as
they become due, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or makes an admission of
Franchisee’ s inability to pay obligations as they become due;

3 Franchisee files a petition in bankruptcy, or an involuntary petition in
bankruptcy is filed against Franchisee or a receiver is appointed for Franchisee's business, or a fina
judgment remains unsatisfied or of record for thirty (30) days or longer; or if Franchiseeis a corporation,
limited liability company or partnership, Franchisee is dissolved;

4 Franchisee voluntarily or otherwise abandons the Studio. For purposes of this
Agreement, the term “abandon” means: (i) failure to actively operate the Studio for more than two (2)
business days without Franchisor’s prior written consent; or (ii) any other conduct on the part of
Franchisee or its principals that Franchisor determines indicates a desire or intent to discontinue
operating the Studio in accordance with this Agreement or the Manual;

5) Franchisee or any of its principal officers, directors, partners or managing
members is convicted of or pleads no contest to a felony or other crime or offense that adversely affect
the reputation of the System or the goodwill associated with the Marks;

(6) Franchisee or its owners make an unauthorized direct or indirect Transfer or
attempted or purported Transfer or fails or refuses to transfer the Franchise or the interest in the
Franchise of adeceased or disabled controlling owner thereof as required;

@) Franchisee falsifies any financial reports or records required to be provided by
Franchisee to Franchisor under this Agreement;

(8 Franchisee's: (i) disclosure, utilization, or duplication of any portion of the
System, the Manua or other proprietary or Confidential Information relating to the Studio that is
contrary to the provisions of this Agreement; or (ii) misdseuse of the Marks in any manner not expressly
authorized by Franchisor;

9 Franchisee violates any health or safety law, ordinance or regulation or operates
the Studio in a manner that presents a health or safety hazard to its members or to the public;

(10)  Franchisee fails to obtain lawful possession of an acceptable location and to
open for business as a franchised CycleBar Studio within six (6) months after this Agreement is accepted
by Franchisor, unless Franchisor agrees otherwise in writing;
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(11)  Franchisee defaults under the lease agreement or otherwise loses the right to
possess the premises at the location at which the Studio is located;

(12)  Franchisee fails to comply with the covenants not to compete as required in
Article 13 herein;

(13)  Franchisee permits the offer or sale of products and services other than the
Approved Services at the Studio in violation of the terms of this Agreement on two (2) or more occasions
in any 24-month period, regardless of whether Franchisee subsequently cured the prior default(s);

(14)  Franchisee, after curing a default pursuant to Section 15.1.B herein, commits the
same act of default again within any six (6)-month period whether or not such default is cured after
notice thereof is delivered to Franchisee; or

(15)  Franchisee (or any of its owners) fails on three (3) or more separate occasions
within any twelve (12) consecutive month period to comply with any provision of this Agreement,
whether or not Franchisor notifies Franchisee of the failures, and if Franchisor does notify Franchisee of
the failures, whether or not Franchisee corrects the failures after Franchisor’'s delivery of notice to
Franchisee.

B. Termination with Notice. In addition to the provisions of Section 15.1.A, if Franchisee shall be
in default under the terms of this Agreement and the default shall not be cured or remedied (to
Franchisor’s satisfaction) within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Franchisor (or 10
days prior notice in the event of a default that is described in Subsections (6), (7) or (8) below), in
addition to al other remedies available to Franchisor at law or in equity, Franchisor may immediately
terminate this Agreement on written notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall be in default, and each of the
following shall constitute good cause for termination under this Section:

D Failure, refusal or neglect by Franchisee to obtain Franchisor’'s prior written
approval or consent any time such approval or consent is required by this Agreement;

2 Franchisee's failure to comply with any provision of this Agreement that does
not otherwise provide for immediate termination, or Franchisee's bad faith in carrying out the terms of
this Agreement;

3 Failure by Franchisee to maintain books and financial records for the Studio
suitable for proper financial audit or failure by Franchisee to permit Franchisor to carry out its rights to
conduct an inspection or audit as provided in this Agreement or failure by Franchisee to submit as
required by this Agreement all reports, records and information of the Studio;

4 Franchisee, or if Franchisee has elected not to directly supervise “ on-premises’
the day-to-day Studio operations, then Franchisee’'s management employee, fails to complete, to
Franchisor’s satisfaction, the Initial Training Program as provided in this Agreement;

) Franchisee fails to pay when due any amount owing to Franchisor or its affiliates
under this Agreement or any other agreement, or is unable to obtain adequate financing to cover all costs
of developing, opening and operating the Studio;

(6) Franchisee fails to pay when due any amounts owing to any person or entity in
connection with the construction, leasing, financing, operation or supply of the Studio;
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@) Franchisee closes any bank account without completing all of the following after
such closing: (i) immediately notifying Franchisor in writing, (ii) immediately establishing another bank
account, and (iii) executing and delivering to Franchisor all documents necessary for Franchisor to begin
and continue making withdrawals from such bank account by electronic funds transfer;

(8 Franchisee fails to maintain or suffers cancellation of any insurance coverage
required under this Agreement or Applicable Laws;

9 Franchisee allows (@) the Approved Services to be provided by anyone other
than an Authorized Instructor, or (b) Instructor Bootcamp to be provided by anyone other than a Master
Trainer that has been approved by Franchisor to provide Instructor Bootcamp;

(10)  Franchisee offers in conjunction with the operation of the Studio products or
services that have not been approved by Franchisor;

(11)  Franchiseefails to abide by the pertinent marketing and advertising requirements
and procedures and participate in marketing programs for the Studio as established by Franchisor;

(12)  Franchisee fails to comply with the Performance Standards as set forth in the
provisions of this Agreement, as prescribed by Franchisor, or in the Manual, including, but not limited to,
the Minimum Monthly Gross Sales Quota for a period of 36 consecutive months, System Standards for
cleanliness, customer service, equipment maintenance, and any other System Standards which effect or
enhance the member experience at the Studio; or

(13) Franchisee fails to (a) utilize Franchisor’s then-current approved supplier to
provide the Opening Support Program, (b) actively engage in the Pre-Sales Phase activities set forth in
the plan that Franchisor and/or its approved supplier approves in connection with the Opening Support
Program, and/or (c) fails to timely acquire the Pre-Sales Start-Upand Soft Opening Retail Inventory Kit
or expend the required minimum amounts that Franchisor prescribes in connection with the Pre-Sales
Phase and other pre-opening activities designed to promote the Studio consistent with the terms of this
Agreement.

15.2  Cross-Default. If there are now, or hereafter shall be, other franchise agreements or any other
agreements in effect between Franchisee or any of its affiliates and Franchisor or any of its affiliates, a
default by Franchisee or any of its affiliates and/or owners under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement or any other such agreement, shall at the option of Franchisor, constitute a default under this
Agreement and all such other agreements.

153  Obligations of Franchisee upon Termination, Expiration or Non-Renewal. Immediately
upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this Agreement for any reason:

A. All rights, privileges and licenses granted by Franchisor to Franchisee shall immediately
cease and be null and void and of no further force and effect, and all such rights, privileges and licenses
shall immediately revert to Franchisor;

B. Franchisee shall cease operating the Studio, and shall immediately, at its own expense,
remove and cease using or displaying al signs, obliterate or remove al letterheads, 1abels or any other
item or form of identification that would in any way link or associate Franchisee, its goods and/or
services with Franchisor, and shall immediately cease to use, in any manner, the Marks, Confidential
Information, System and any other intellectual property of Franchisor or its affiliates;
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C. Franchisee shall immediately terminate all advertising and promotional efforts and any
other act that would in any way indicate that Franchisee is or was ever an authorized CycleBar Studio
franchisee;

D. Franchisee shall cancel any assumed name of Franchisee or equivalent registration that
contains any Mark, and Franchisee shall furnish Franchisor with evidence satisfactory to Franchisor of
compliance with this obligation within five (5) days after termination, expiration or non-renewal of this
Agreement;

E. Franchisee agrees not to use any reproduction, counterfeit, copy, or colorable imitation
of the Marks that is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception, or that is likely to dilute Franchisor’s
rights in and to the Marks, and further agrees not to use any trade dress or designation of origin or
description or representation that falsely suggests or represents an association or connection with
Franchisor;

F. Franchisee shall pay all amounts owing to Franchisor and its approved suppliers under
this Agreement and otherwise in connection with the Studio. In the event of termination for any default
of Franchisee, such sums shall include all damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable legal fees,
incurred by Franchisor as aresult of the default;

G. Franchisee shall comply with the covenants set forth in Articles 12 and 13 of this
Agreement;

H. Franchisee shall, at Franchisor’s option, assign to Franchisor any interest that Franchisee
hasin any lease for the premises of the Studio; and

l. Franchisor shall have the option, exercisable by giving written notice thereof within
thirty (30) days from the date of such termination, expiration or non-renewal to purchase any and all
equipment, furniture, fixtures, signs, sundries and supplies owned by Franchisee and used in the Studio,
at the lesser of (i) Franchisee's cost less depreciation computed on a reasonable straight line basis (as
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and consistent with industry
standards and customs) or (ii) fair market value of such assets, less (in either case) any outstanding
liabilities of the Studio. In addition, Franchisor shall have the option to assume Franchisee’s lease for the
lease location of the Studio, or if an assignment is prohibited, a sublease for the full remaining term on
the same terms and conditions as Franchisee's lease. No value will be attributed to the value of the
Marks or the System or to the assignment of the lease (or sublease) for the premises or the assignment of
any other assets used in conjunction with the Studio, and Franchisor will not be required to pay any
separate consideration for any such assignment or sublease.

If the pParties cannot agree on fair market value within thirty (30) days of Franchisor’s notice of
intent to purchase, fair market value shall be determined by an experienced, professional and impartial
third-party appraiser without regard to goodwill or going concern value, designated by Franchisor and
acceptable to Franchisee, whose determination shall be final and binding on both pParties. The cost of
such appraisal shall be borne equally by Franchisor and Franchisee. If the pParties cannot agree upon an
appraiser, one shall be appointed by the American Arbitration Association, upon petition of either pParty.

Franchisor shall have the right to withhold from the purchase price funds sufficient to pay all
outstanding debts and liabilities of Franchisee and the Studio and to pay such debts and liabilities from
such funds.
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J B—Franchisor and Franchisee agree that Franchisor will suffer compensable damages
including, among others, the amount of the Royalty and Fund Contributions it would have received, and
for which it bargained in entering into this Agreement, if Franchisee terminates this Agreement without
cause or Franchisor terminates this Agreement because of Franchisee's breach (the “Lost Revenue
Damages”);. Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that, because Royalty and Fund Contributions are
calculated as a percentage of the Studio’s Gross Sales, it will be impossible to calculate Lost Revenue
Damages once the Studio ceases operation. To bring certainty to that determination, Franchisor and
Franchisee agree that Lost Revenue Damages will equal the net present value of: (1) the lesser of 36 or
the number of calendar months remaining on the Term absent the termination, multiplied by (2) the sum
of the Royalty and Fund Contribution percentages in effect as of the termination date, multiplied by (3)
the average monthly Gross Sales of the Studio during the 24 full calendar months immediately preceding
the termination date, minus (4) any cost savings Franchisor experienced as a result of the termination;
provided, however, that if (i) as of the termination date, the Studio had not operated a full 24 calendar
months, monthly average Gross Sales will equal the highest monthly Gross Sales achieved during the
period in which it operated, and (ii) if the termination was based on Franchisee’s unapproved closure of
the Studio, average monthly Gross Sales would be based on the 24 full calendar months immediately
preceding the closure of the Studio.

&-Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge and agree that (a) their agreement on the calculation
of Lost Revenue Damages is a reasonable determination of actual damages that will be suffered by
Franchisor in the event of a termination as described above and is hot a penalty, and (b) Lost Revenue
Damages represent only lost Royalty and Fund Contributions, and the right to recover such damagesis
not exclusive of and does not replace any other rights Franchisor has under this Agreement or applicable
law if this Agreement is terminated as described above, including the right to seek other damages it
suffers as aresult of atermination as described above or the events on which such termination was based.

K. Termination, expiration or non-renewal of this Agreement shall not affect, modify or
discharge any claims, rights, causes of action or remedies, which Franchisor may have against
Franchisee, whether under this Agreement or otherwise, for any reason whatsoever, whether such claims
or rights arise before or after termination.

15.4  Franchisor’s Rights and Remedies in Addition to Termination.

If Franchisee shall be in default in the performance of any of its obligations or breach any term or
condition of this Agreement, in addition to Franchisor’s right to terminate this Agreement, and without

limiting any other rights or remedies to which Franchisor may be entitled at law or in equity, or if
37.
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Franchisor has issued a notice to Franchisee in exercise of its rights to purchase the Studio under Section
15.3.1 above, then, Franchisor may, at its election, immediately or at any time thereafter, and without
notice to Franchisee, cure such default on Franchisee's behalf and, in its discretion, either directly or
through its designee, enter upon and take possession of the Studio, for a period not to exceed 180 days,
and thereafter take, in the name of Franchisee, all other actions necessary to effect the provisions of this
Agreement. Franchisee agrees that any such entry or other action shall not be deemed a trespass or other
illegal act, and Franchisor shall not be liable in any manner to Franchisee for so doing, and Franchisee
shall pay the entire cost thereof to Franchisor on demand, including reasonable compensation to
Franchisor for the management of the Studio. |f Franchisor exercises its rights under this Section, then
Franchisor is not required to use Franchisee's employees and reserves the right to designate its own
personnel to manage and operate the Studio.

During the period in which Franchisor or its designee operates the Studio under this Section,
Franchisee will cooperate with Franchisor and its designees to support the operation of the Studio in
compliance with all the System Standards, including making available any and all books, records, and
accounts. Franchisee agrees that all funds derived from the operation of the Studio during this period
will be held and used solely by Franchisor or its designee, will be used to pay expenses associated with
the operation of the Studio (including payment of any fees and other amounts owed by Franchisee to
Franchisor under this Agreement and Franchisor’s then-current fee for such interim operation of the
Studio), and will be accounted for separately from Franchisor’ s other revenue and expenses.

Franchisee agrees that Franchisor or its designee must exercise only areasonable degree of care
in operating the Studio and is under no duty to take extraordinary measures or, in any way, fund the
operations to ensure the Studio’ s success or continued operations during or after such period. Franchisee
agrees that it continues to bear the sole liability for any and all accounts payable, obligations, and/or
contracts, including all obligations under the Studio lease and all obligations to its vendors and
employees and contractors, unless and until Franchisor expressly assumes them in connection with the
purchase of the Studio under Section 15.3.1 above. Franchisor may €elect to cease such interim operations
of the Studio at any time with notice to Franchisee. Franchisor (or its designee) will not be liable to
Franchisee or its owners for any debts, |osses, or obligations the Studio incurs, or to any of Franchisee's
creditors.

Franchisor’s decision to operate the Studio on an interim basis, will not affect Franchisor’s right
to terminate this Agreement under Section 15.1.A(4) above. Franchisee' s indemnification obligations set
forth under Section 11.2 will continue to apply during any period that Franchisor or its designee operate
the Studio.

16. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

16.1

Governing

Franchisor and Franchisee agree that all matters relating to arbitration will be governed by the

substantive and procedural provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. 881 et seg.), which they
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acknowledge and agree will supersede any conflicting provisions of any state's laws relating to
arbitration. Except to the extent governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051et seq.), or other applicable federal laws, this
Agreement and any other agreement between Franchisor (or its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries) and
Franchisee (or its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries, if applicable), and the rights granted and
rel ati onships created thereunder, shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of California, without
regard to its conflicts of laws rules, except that the provisions regarding competitive activities shall be
interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state in which the Studio is located. The
Parties further acknowledge and agree that the adoption of Californialaw in this Section is not intended
to circumvent or, in any manner, satisfy any jurisdictional requirements contained in any such laws that
are expressly and specificaly directed to the offer or sae of franchises or the relationships between
franchisors and franchisees.

Franchisee agrees that, except as set forth in Section 16.5 below, before it or any of its owners or
representatives initiates an arbitration or litigation against Franchisor, its parents, affiliates, and
subsidiaries, or their respective owners, officers, directors, employees or representatives, Franchisee will
provide Franchisor with written notice of the underlying claim or dispute (the “ Dispute”) specifying, in
detail, the precise nature and grounds of the Dispute. Within thirty (30) days after delivery of such claim
or dispute to Franchisor, Franchisor and Franchisee will use good faith efforts to discuss and resolve the
Dispute informally for a reasonable period which shall be no more than sixty (60) days unless mutually
extended by the Parties.

16.3 Medlatlon A

reeetutren—preeedure—set—iertha—n%eeﬁenExcept as provr ded in Sectl on 16 5 beI ow, the Partles aqree to
submit any Dispute they are unable to resolve informally, as described in Section 16.2 above, witt-be

submitted—first—to mediation to be conducted by JAMS using its then-current mediation rules and
procedures (see www.jamsadr.com/mediation) and to take place at Franchisor’'s or, as applicable,
Franchisor’s successor’s or assign’s, then current prlnC|paI place of business (currently, IrV|ne

may—bespeemeaH-yLemereed—by-FFanehreer Each pParty WI|| bear |ts own costs efrn part|C| patlnq in the
mediation, and Franchlsor and Franchlsee WI|| share JAMS and the medlator s fees equal—l—y——'Fhrs
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thrs—Agreement—and costs equal ly. Nerther Party WI II be reqw red to med| ate for more than one ( 1) dav

16.4 Mandatory Blndlnq Arbitration. E*eept—as—prewded—m—See&en—lé%—ef—thrs—Agreement—

obllqatlon to medlate (as descrlbed in Sectlon 16. 3) or the mformal dlspute processes described in
Sections 16.2 and 16.3 do not resolve the Dispute to the Parties satisfaction, all controversies, disputes,

or claims between Franchisor, or any of its parents, affiliates, and employeesy,—en-the-ene-hand;—and

Franehisor—er—any—of—s—afftHates{and—any—ef—their—ssubsidiaries, and its and their respective
eharehetelersowners officers, directors, agents and emponeec (the ! Franchlsor Partlec’) on the etherone

hand, whatey X _
Agreement—er—any—ether—agreement—betweenand Franchlsee or any of |ts Q ents, afflllates—( and
subsrdlarles anyd eﬁts and therr respectlve owners, guarantors afftHatesand-employeesyand-Hranehiser

o ‘ ar ; officers, directors, agents, and
empone%)—(r—H—Franehlser—s (the ! Franchlsee Partles’ ), on the other hand, arising out of or related to:
(1) this Agreement or any other agreement between any of the Franchisor Parties and Franchisee Parties;
(2) the relationships withbetween any Franchisor Parties and Franchisee Parties; (i3) the scope or

vaI|d|ty of this Agreernent or any other agreement between—Franehrseeer—anyLef—rts—aﬁ-mat%-(and—anyLef

a r y O referenced in
clause (1) above or any prowsron of any of such agreements (incl ud|ng the validity and scope of the

arbitration provision under this Section, which Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledges is to be

determined by an arbitrator, not a court); or (iv4) any Perfermance-Standare-{each,—aClaim™-wit-be
proeessedHn-the foHowing-manner:

A—System Standard, must be submitted for binding arbitration, on demand of either Party, to
JAMS. The arbitration proceedings will be conducted by one mutually acceptable arbitrator and, except
as this Section otherwise provides, according to JAMS' then-current Comprehensive Arbitration Rules &
Procedures (see www.jamsadr.com/rules-comprehensive-arbitration/). If the Parties are unable to agree
on an arbitrator, an arbltrator having at Ieast five (5) years experlence |n the areas involved WI|| be
appointed by JAMS. y

I I".II.

B-All clai e30
Franemseeeeea&appheabte—ﬁanemser—sproceedl ngs wi II be conducted at awltable Iooatl on chosen by
the arbitrator that is within 50 miles of Franchisor’s (or its successor's or assign’s, as applicable)
then current pr|n0| ipal place of busr ness (currently, Irvine, Californi a)—er—anether—leeatten—that—Franeh&r

All matters relatl ng to arbltratlon WI|| be governed by the Federal Arbltratl onAct (9 U S. C §§ 1 et seq )
The interim and final awards of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon each pParty, and judgment
upon the arbitrator's awards may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

The arbitrator has the right to award or include in his or her awards any relief which he or she
deems proper, including-witheutHmHatien,- money damages, pre- and post-award interest, interim costs
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and attorneys fees, specific performance, and injunctive relief, provided that the arbitrator may not
declare any of the trademarks owned by Franchisor, or its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries, generic or
otherwise invalid:, or award any punitive or exemplary damages against any Party to the arbitration
proceeding (Franchisor and Franchisee hereby waiving to the fullest extent permitted by law any such
right to or claim for any punitive or exemplary damages against any Party to the arbitration proceeding).

Franchisor and Franchisee will share equally in all fees and costs assessed by JAMS in
connection with initiating and conducting the arbitration proceedings, and each Party agrees to pay its
share of such fees and costs as they become due. |f a Party fails to timely pay such fees or costs, the
other Party may, in its discretion, advance such costs on behalf of the nonpaying Party. At the
conclusion of the arbitration, the arbitrator shall award to the prevailing Party its fees and costs,
including all reasonable experts’, attorneys and other professionals’ feesincurred in the proceedings.

DB-—Franehiser-and-ranchisee-agreetoln any arbitration proceeding, each Party will be bound by

the prowsons of any appllcable contractual or statutory Ilmltatlons prows on, whichever expires earlier.

! al Each pParty must submit or
f|Ie any clalm whi ch would conaltute a compulsory counterclalm (as defined by Rule 13 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding. Any claim which is not submitted or filed as
required will be forever barred. The arbitrator may not consider any settlement discussions or offers that
might have been made by eitherFranchisor-or-Franehiseeany Party.

The arbitrator shall have full authority to manage any necessary exchange of information among

the Parties with a view to achieving an efficient and economical resolution of the dispute. The Parties
may only serve reasonable requests for documents, which must be limited to documents upon which a
Party intends to rely or documents that are directly relevant and material to a significant disputed issuein
the case or to the case's outcome. The document requests shall be restricted in terms of time frame,
subject matter and persons or entities to which the requests pertain, and shall not include broad
phraseology such as “al documents directly or indirectly related to.” No interrogatories or requests to
admit shall be propounded, unless the Parties later mutually agree to their use.

The provisions of this Section are intended to benefit and bind certain third-party
non-signatories. The provisions of this Section will continue in full force and effect subseguent to and
notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Any provisions of this Agreement
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below that pertain to judicial proceedings shall be subject to the agreement to arbitrate contained in this
Section.

If any court or arbitrator determines that all or any part of this Section is unenforceable with
respect to a particular dispute, controversy or claim that otherwise would be subject to arbitration under
this Section, then all Parties agree that this arbitration clause shall not apply to that dispute, controversy
or clam and that such dispute, controversy or claim shall be resolved in a judicia proceeding in
accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement.

The parties to any mediation or arbitration will execute an appropriate confidentiality agreement,
excepting only such disclosures and filings as are required by law.

16.5 Other Proceedings (Right to Injunctive Relief).—ranechisee-acknewledges-and-agrees-that

d O )1 ala’ O - - alda - - O N
v1OatO O A ProvTS O
<

Nothing in this Agreement, including the provisions of Sections 16.2 through 16.4, bars Franchisor’s
right to seek and obtain in any court of competent jurisdiction injunctive or other equitable relief against
actual or threatened conduct that it believesis likely to cause loss or damage to the Marks, its proprietary
information, or the System, in each case, under customary equity rules, including applicable rules for
obtaining restraining orders and injunctions. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor may obtain such
injunctive relief in addition to such further or other relief as may be available at law or in equity.
Franchise agrees that Franchisor will not be required to post a bond to obtain injunctive relief and that
Franchisee’' s only remedy if an injunction is entered against it will be the dissolution of that injunction, if
warranted, upon due hearing (all claims for damages by injunction being expressly waived hereby).

16.6 Cheiee—ofFerumConsent to Jurisdiction. Subject to the obligation to submit to binding
arbitration under Section 16.4 above, Franchisor and Franchisee agree that all controversies, disputes, or
claims between them or any Franchisor Parties and Franchisee Parties arising out of or related to this
Agreement or any other agreement between a Franchisor Party and a Franchisee Party or their
relationships with each other must be commenced exclusively in state or federal court closest to
Franchisor’s (or its successor’'s or assign's, as applicable) then-current principal place of business
(currently, Irvine, California), and the Parties irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of those courts and
waive any objection to either the jurisdiction of or venue in those courts.
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16.7  Waiver of Punitive Damages. Franchisee hereby waives to the fullest extent permitted by law,

any right to or claim for any punitive, exemplary, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages
(including, without limitation, lost profits) against Franchisor arising out of any cause whatsoever
(whether such cause be based in contract, negligence, strict liability, other tort or otherwise) and agrees
that in the event of a dispute, that Franchisee’s recovery is limited to actual damages. If any other term
of this Agreement is found or determined to be unconscionable or unenforceable for any reason, the
foregoing provisions shall continue in full force and effect, including, without limitation, the waiver of
any right to claim any consequential damages. Nothing in this Section or any other provision of this
Agreement shall be construed to prevent Franchisor from claiming and obtaining expectation or
conseguential damages, including lost future royalties for the balance of the Term if it is terminated due
to Franchisee's default, which the pParties agree and acknowledge Franchisor may claim under this
Agreement.

16.8 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE TO WAIVE TRIAL BY
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR EQUITY,
REGARDLESS OF WHICH PARTY BRINGS SUIT. THIS WAIVER SHALL APPLY TO ANY
MATTER WHATSOEVER BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO WHICH ARISES OUT OF OR IS
RELATED IN ANY WAY TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE PERFORMANCE OF EITHER PARTY,
AND/OR FRANCHISEE' S PURCHASE FROM FRANCHISOR OF THE FRANCHISE AND/OR ANY
GOODS OR SERVICES.

169 WAIVER OF CLASS ACTIONS. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT ALL PROCEEDINGS
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE OPERATIONS OF THE
STUDIO, WILL BE CONDUCTED ON AN INDIVIDUAL, NOT A CLASSWIDE BASIS, AND
THAT ANY PROCEEDING BETWEEN FRANCHISEE, FRANCHISEE'S GUARANTORS AND
FRANCHISOR OR ITS AFFILIATES/OFFICERSEMPLOYEES MAY NOT BE CONSOLIDATED
WITH ANY OTHER PROCEEDING BETWEEN FRANCHISOR AND ANY OTHER THIRD-PARTY.

16.10 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.

A. If legal action or arbitration is necessary to enforce the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the prevailing pParty shall be entitled to recover reasonable compensation for preparation,
investigation, court costs, arbitration costs (if applicable) and reasonable attorneys fees, from the
non-prevailing pParty as fixed by an arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction.

B. Separate and distinct from the right of a prevailing pParty to recover expenses, costs and
fees in connection with any legal proceeding or arbitration, the prevailing pParty shall also be entitled to
receive all expenses, costs and reasonable attorneys’ feesincurred in connection with the enforcement of
any arbitration award or judgment entered. Furthermore, the right to recover post-arbitration award and
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post judgment expenses, costs and attorneys fees shall be severable and shall survive any award or
judgment and shall not be deemed merged into such judgment.

C. Apart from the obligations in Sections 16.10.A and 16.10.B, Franchisee agrees and
acknowledges that it will be responsible for the legal fees and other costs that Franchisor incurs in
connection with certain modifications that Franchisor agrees to make to the Franchise Agreement,
including without limitation, modifications made to address the following situations: (i) relocation; or (ii)
any other amendment to extend a given performance deadline of Franchisee, modify the Designated
Territory awarded hereunder, or otherwise modify, amend or supplement this Agreement in any way at
the request of Franchisee or as necessary for Franchisee to avoid this Agreement being in default or
subject to termination. Franchisor may set forth flat fee amounts designed to help defray the costs
associated with addressing certain of the foregoing situations in the context of this Agreement or any
other agreement with Franchisor, whether in the Manual or otherwise in awriting distributed to System
franchisees.

16.11 No Withholding of Payments. Franchisee shall not withhold all or any part of any payment to
Franchisor or any of its affiliates on the grounds of Franchisor’s alleged nonperformance or as an offset
against any amount Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s affiliates allegedly may owe Franchisee under this
Agreement or any related agreements.

16.12 Limitation of Actions. Franchisee further agrees that no cause of action arising out of or under
this Agreement may be maintained by Franchisee against Franchisor unless brought before the expiration
of one (1) year after the act, transaction or occurrence upon which such action is based or the expiration
of one year after the Franchisee becomes aware, or should have become aware after reasonable
investigation, of facts or circumstances reasonably indicating that Franchisee may have a claim against
Franchisor hereunder, whichever occurs sooner, and that any action not brought within this period shall

be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off. Franchisee hereby waives the right to obtain any
remedy based on alleged fraud, misrepresentation, or deceit by Franchisor, including, without limitation,

rescission of this Agreement, in any mediation, judicial, or other adjudicatory proceeding arising
hereunder, except upon a ground expressly provided in this Agreement, or pursuant to any right expressly
granted by any applicable statute expressly regulating the sale of franchises, or any regulation or rules
promulgated thereunder.

16.13 Third-Party Beneficiaries. Franchisor's officers, directors, shareholders, agents and/or
employees are express third-party beneficiaries of the provisions of this Agreement, including the dispute
resolution provisions set forth in this Article 16, each having authority to specifically enforce the right to
mediate/arbitrate claims asserted against such person(s) by Franchisee.

17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

17.1  Severability. Each article, section, paragraph, term and provision of this Agreement, or any
portion thereof, shall be considered severable and if, for any reason, any such portion of this Agreement
is held by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable due to any applicable
existing or future law or regulation, such portion shall not impair the operation of or have any effect
upon, the remaining portions of this Agreement which will remain in full force and effect. No right or
remedy conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor or Franchisee by this Agreement is intended to be, nor
shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted,
but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy.

17.2  Waiver and Delay. No failure, refusal or neglect of Franchisor to exercise any right, power,

remedy or option reserved to it under this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance by Franchisee

with any obligation, condition, specification, standard or operating procedure in this Agreement, shall
44,
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constitute a waiver of any provision of this Agreement and the right of Franchisor to demand exact
compliance with this Agreement, or to declare any subsequent breach or default or nullify the
effectiveness of any provision of this Agreement. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any
payment(s) due it under this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any
preceding breach by Franchisee of any terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement.

The following provision applies if Franchisee or the franchise granted hereby are subject to
the franchise registration or disclosure laws in California, Hawaii, lllinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia,
Washington, or Wisconsin: No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on
behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

17.3  Franchisor’s Discretion. Except as otherwise specifically referenced herein, all acts, decisions,
determinations, specifications, prescriptions, authorizations, approvals, consents and similar acts by
Franchisor may be taken or exercised in the sole and absolute discretion of Franchisor, regardliess of the
impact upon Franchisee. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that when Franchisor exercises its
discretion or judgment, its decisions may be for the benefit of Franchisor or the System and may not be in
the best interest of Franchisee as an individual franchise owner.

17.4  Notices. All notices which the pParties hereto may be required or permitted to give under this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or mailed by certified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, postage paid, or by reliable overnight delivery service, addressed as follows:

If to Franchisor: CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
17877 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100
Irvine, CA 92614
Attention: President

If to Franchisee: At the Studio’s address or, if the Studio has been
permanently closed, to:

Except for Franchisor’s right to send notices to the Studio’s address as indicated above, agither pParty
may change its notice address at any time by written notice given to the other pParty as herein provided.
Notices will be deemed delivered when actually delivered if delivered by hand, three (3) business days
after postmark by the United States Postal Service if delivered by certified or registered mail, or the next
business day after deposit with reliable overnight delivery serviceif delivered in that manner.

17.5 No Recourse Against Nonparty Affiliates. Franchisee agrees that it will look only to
Franchisor to perform under this Agreement. Franchisor’s affiliates are not parties to this Agreement and
have no obligations under it. Franchisee may not look to Franchisor's affiliates for performance.
Franchisee agrees that Franchisor’'s and its affiliates members, managers, owners, directors, officers,
employees and agents shall not be personally liable or named as a party in any action between Franchisor
or its affiliates and Franchisee or its affiliates or their respective owners.
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17.6  Non-Disparagement. Franchisee agrees that it will not (and to use its best efforts to cause its
current and former shareholders, members, officers, directors, principals, agents, partners, employees,
representatives, attorneys, spouses, affiliates, successors and assigns not to) (i) make any untrue or
derogatory statements concerning Franchisor and its affiliates, as well as their present and former
officers, employees, shareholders, directors, agents, attorneys, servants, representatives, successors and
assigns; or (ii) undertake any act which would (@) subject the Marksto ridicule, scandal, reproach, scorn,
or indignity, (b) which would negatively impact the goodwill of Franchisor or its affiliates, the Marks,
the System, or any other brands owned or controlled by Franchisor or its affiliates, or () constitute an act
of moral turpitude.

17.7  Security Interest. Franchisee hereby collaterally assigns to Franchisor the lease for the
Authorized Location and grants Franchisor a security interest in all of the assets of the Studio, including
but not limited to inventory, accounts, supplies, equipment, contracts, cash derived from the operation of
the Studio and sale of other assets, and proceeds and products of al those assets. Franchisee agrees to
execute such other documents as Franchisor may reasonably request in order to further document, perfect
and record its security interest. |f Franchisee defaults in any of its obligations under this Agreement,
Franchisor may exercise al rights of a secured creditor granted to Franchisor by law, in addition to
Franchisor’s other rights under this Agreement and at law. If an approved third-party lender requires that
Franchisor subordinate Franchisor’s security interest in the assets of the Studio as a condition to lending
Franchisee working capital for the construction or operation of the Studio, Franchisor will agree to
subordinate pursuant to terms and conditions determined by Franchisor. This Agreement shall be
deemed to be a Security Agreement and Financing Statement and may be filed for record as such in the
records of any county and state that Franchisor deems appropriate to protect itsinterests.

17.8 Survival. All of Franchisor's and Franchisee's (and Franchisee's Owners’) obligations which
expressly or by their nature survive this Agreement’s expiration or termination will continuein full force
and effect subseguent to and notwithstanding its expiration or termination and until they are satisfied in
full or by their nature expires. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the parties expressy
acknowledge that each of the following provisions of this Agreement will survive the Agreement’s
expiration or termination: Section 10.4 (Information Security); Section 11 (Relationship of the Parties;
Indemnification); Section 12 (Confidentia Information); Section 13.1.B (Non-Competition Covenants of
Franchisee; After the Term of this Agreement); Section 13.2.B (Non-Solicitation Covenants; After the
Term of this Agreement) Section 15.3 (Obligations of Franchisee upon Termination, Expiration or
Non-Renewal); Section 16 (Resolution of Disputes); Section 17 (Miscellaneous Provisions); Section 18
(Acknowledgements); and Section 19 (Entire Agreement).

18. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

181 THE SUBMISSION OF THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER AND
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ONLY UPON THE EXECUTION HEREOF BY
THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE. THE DATE OF EXECUTION BY THE
FRANCHISOR SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO BE THE DATE OF EXECUTION OF THIS
AGREEMENT.

18.2 THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT BE BINDING ON THE FRANCHISOR UNLESS AND
UNTIL IT SHALL HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER OF
THE FRANCHISOR.

18:418.3 FRANCHISEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THIS AGREEMENT, THE FRANCHISE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (“FDD"”), AND THE EXHIBITSHERETO CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE
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AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES. THIS AGREEMENT TERMINATES AND SUPERSEDES ANY
PRIOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES CONCERNING THE SAME SUBJECT MATTER.

18:518.4 FRANCHISEE AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT FULFILLMENT OF ANY
AND ALL OF FRANCHISOR'S OBLIGATIONS WRITTEN IN THISAGREEMENT OR BASED ON
ANY ORAL COMMUNICATIONS WHICH MAY BE RULED TO BE BINDING IN A COURT OF
LAW SHALL BE FRANCHISOR’'S SOLE RESPONSIBILITY AND NONE OF FRANCHISOR'S
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, NOR ANY INDIVIDUALS ASSOCIATED WITH FRANCHISOR
SHALL BE PERSONALLY LIABLE TO FRANCHISEE FOR ANY REASON.

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the exhibits hereto, constitute the entire
and only agreement between the pParties concerning the granting, awarding and licensing of Franchisee
as an authorized CycleBar Studio franchisee at the Studio location, and supersede all prior and
contemporaneous agreements. There are no representations, inducements, promises, agreements,
arrangements or undertakings, oral or written, between the pParties other than those set forth herein.
Except for those permitted to be made unilaterally by Franchisor hereunder, no amendment, change or
variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either pParty unless mutually agreed to by the pParties
and executed by their authorized officers or agentsin writing. This Agreement does not alter agreements
between Franchisor and Franchisee for other locations. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related
agreement, however, is intended to disclaim the representations Franchisor made in the FDD that
Franchisor furnished to Franchisee. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
agreement. Faxed, scanned or electronic signatures shall have the same effect and validity, and may be
relied upon in the same manner, as original signatures.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pParties have executed this Agreement on the dates set forth
below to be effective as of the Effective Date.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, “FRANCHISEE”
aDelaware limited liability company
[if anindividual]

By: [Name], individually
Name:

Title: Sign:

EFFECTIVE DATE: Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT 1
TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

1. Name and Address of Franchisee:

Franchisee Name:
Attention:
Address:

Email Address:

2. Form of Owner (check and complete one):
Individual
- __ Limited Liability -
Corporation Company Partnership
State Formed: Date:
3. Owners. The following identifies the owner that Franchisee has designated as, and that Franchisor

approves to be, the Operating Principal and lists the full name of each person who is one of Franchisee's

owners{as-defined-n-theFranehise-Agreement), or an owner of one of Franchisee's owners, and fully describes

the nature of each owner’sinterest (attach additional pagesif necessary).

Owner’s Name Type / %-age of Interest
Operating Principal: %
Other Owners: %
%
4, Designated Manager:

5. Authorized Location (if determined on Effective Date):

6. Designated Territory (if determined on Effective Date):
1. Designated Market Area (if Authorized Location and Designated Territory undetermined as of
Effective Date):
Ex1-1
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EXHIBIT 2
TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
AUTHORIZED LOCATION ADDENDUM

This Addendum is made to the Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) between CycleBar

Franchising SPV, LLC (“Franchisor’), and (“ Franchisee”), dated
, 20 .
1 Preservation of Agreement. Except as specifically set forth in this Addendum, the Franchise

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and conditions. This Addendumis
attached to and upon execution becomes an integral part of the Franchise Agreement.

2. Authorized Location. The parties hereto agree that the Authorized Location referred to in Section 1.1
of the Franchise Agreement shall be the following:

3. Designated Territory, if any. Pursuant to Section 1.2 of the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee's
Designated Territory will be defined as follows (if identified on a map, please attach map and reference
attachment bel ow):

ACKNOWLEDGED AND ACCEPTED:
“FRANCHISEE”

[if an individual]

[Name], individually

Sign:
Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT 3
TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

GUARANTEE, INDEMNIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

For value received, and in consideration for, and as an inducement to CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC (the
“Franchisor”) to execute the Franchise Agreement (the “ Franchise Agreement”), dated ,20
(the “Effective Date’), by and between Franchisor and or his assignee, if a
partnership, corporation or limited liability company islater formed (the “ Franchisee™), the undersigned (each a
“Guarantor”), jointly and severally, hereby unconditionally guarantee to Franchisor and its successors and
assigns the full and timely performance by Franchisee of each obligation undertaken by Franchisee under the
terms of the Franchise Agreement.

Upon demand by Franchisor, Guarantor will immediately make each payment required of Franchisee under the
Franchise Agreement. Guarantor hereby waives any right to require Franchisor to: (a) proceed against
Franchisee for any payment required under the Franchise Agreement; (b) proceed against or exhaust any
security from Franchisee; or (c) pursue or exhaust any remedy, including any legal or equitable relief, against
Franchisee. Without affecting the obligations of Guarantor under this Guarantee, Indemnification and
Acknowledgment (the “ Guarantee”), Franchisor may, without notice to Guarantor, extend, modify, or release
any indebtedness or obligation of Franchisee, or settle, adjust or compromise any claims against Franchisee.

Guarantor waives notice of amendment of the Franchise Agreement and notice of demand for payment by
Franchisee and agrees to be bound by any and all such amendments and changes to the Franchise Agreement.

Guarantor hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Franchisor harmless against any and all losses,
damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys fees, reasonable
costs of investigations, court costs, and arbitration fees and expenses) resulting from, consisting of, or arising
out of or in connection with any failure by Franchisee to perform any obligation of Franchisee under the
Franchise Agreement, any amendment, or any other agreement executed by Franchisee referred to therein.

Guarantor hereby acknowledges and agrees to be individually bound by all obligations and covenants of
Franchisee contained in the Franchise Agreement, including those related to non-competition and
confidentiality.

If Guarantor is a business entity, retirement or investment account, or trust acknowledges and it agrees that if
Franchisee (or any of its affiliates) is delinquent in payment of any amounts guaranteed hereunder, that no
dividends or distributions may be made by such Guarantor (or on such Guarantor’s account) to its owners,
accountholders or beneficiaries or otherwise, for so long as such delinquency exists, subject to applicable law.

This Guarantee shall terminate upon the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, except that this
Guarantee shall continue in full force and effect with respect to all obligations and liahilities of Franchisee and
Guarantor that arise from events that occurred on or before the effective date of such expiration or termination
or that are triggered by or survive expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement This Guarantee is
binding upon each Guarantor and its respective estate, executors, administrators, heirs, beneficiaries, and
successors in interest.

The validity of this Guarantee and the obligations of Guarantor(s) hereunder shall in no way be terminated,
restricted, diminished, affected or impaired by reason of any action that Franchisor might take or be forced to

Q
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take against Franchisee, or by reason of any waiver or failure to enforce any of the rights or remedies reserved
to Franchisor in the Franchise Agreement or otherwise.

The use of the singular herein shall include the plural. Each term used in this Guarantee, unless otherwise
defined herein, shall have the same meaning as when used in the Franchise Agreement.

The provisions contained in Article 16 of the Franchise Agreement (Resolution of Disputes), including, without
limitation, Section 16.1 (Governing Law), Section 16.3 (Mediation), Section 16.4 (Mandatory Binding
Arbitration), Section 16.6 (Sheiee-efForumConsent to Jurisdiction), and Section 16.10 (Attorneys Fees and
Costs), are incorporated into this Guarantee by reference and shall govern this Guarantee and any disputes
between the Guarantors and Franchisor. The Guarantors shall reimburse Franchisor for all costs and expenses
it incurs in connection with enforcing the terms of this Guarantee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of the Effective
Date.

GUARANTORS

Area Developer (if applicable):
[Name of Developer]
By:

Name:
Title:

Address:

OWNER/GUARANTOR SPOUSE/GUARANTOR

Q
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Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:

Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:
Ex3-3
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EXHIBIT 4
TO
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

ADDENDUM TO LEASE
This Addendum to Lease (this “Addendum”) modifies and supplements that certain lease dated

, 20 (the “Lease"), by and between Tenant and Landlord concerning the
premises located at (the “Premises’).

Landlord and Tenant, intending that CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
(“ Franchisor”) (and its successors and assigns) be athird-party beneficiary of this Addendum, agree as follows:

Q) Tenant may display the trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols owned by Franchisor
and used to identify the service and/or products offered at the Studio, including the name “ CycleBar,” the
Studio design and image developed and owned by Franchisor, asit currently exists and asit may be revised and
further developed by Franchisor from time to time, and certain associated logos in accordance with the
specifications required by Franchisor, subject only to the provisions of applicable law and in accordance with
provisionsin the Lease no less favorable than those applied to other tenants of Landlord;

2 Tenant shall not, and the Landlord shall not permit Tenant to, sublease or assign all or any part of the
Lease or the Premises, or extend the term or renew the Lease, without Franchisor’s prior written consent;

(©)) Landlord shall concurrently provide Franchisor with a copy of any written default notice sent to Tenant
and thereupon grant Franchisor the right (but not the obligation) to cure any deficiency or default under the
Lease, should Tenant fail to do so, within five (5) days after the expiration of the period in which Tenant may
cure the default;

4 The Premises shall be used only for the operation of a CycleBar Studio;

5) Tenant may, without Landlord’s consent (but subject to providing Landlord with written notice
thereof), at any time assign this Lease or sublease the whole or any part of the Premises to Franchisor or any
successor, subsidiary or affiliate of Franchisor;

(6) In the event of an assignment of the Lease to Franchisor as described in (6) above, Franchisor may
further assign this Lease, subject to Landlord’s consent, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld based on
the remaining obligations of assignee under the Lease, to a duly authorized franchisee of Franchisor, and
thereupon Franchisor shall be released from all further liability under the Lease;

(7 Franchisor, and its designated agents, will have the right to enter the Premises to make any
modifications necessary to protect the CycleBar brand and franchise system,

(8 Tenant agrees that Landlord may, upon Franchisor’s request, disclose all reports, information, and data
in Landlord’ s possession with respect to sales made in, upon, or from the Premises, to Franchisor;

9 Until changed by Franchisor, notice to Franchisor shall be sent as follows:

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
17877 Von Karman Ave, Suite 100
Irvine, CA 92614

Attn: Head of Real Estate

Q
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(10) Landlord acknowledges that Tenant's operations at the Premises are independently owned and
operated, and that Tenant alone is responsible for all obligations under the Lease, unless and until, Franchisor
(or its effiliate or designee) expressly assumes such obligations in writing signed by an officer of Franchisor (or
its applicable affiliate or designee);

(11) Any lien of Landlord in Tenant’s trade fixtures, “trade dress,” signage and other property at the
Premisesis hereby subordinated to Franchisor’s interest in such items;

(12)  None of the provisions in this Addendum or any rights granted Franchisor hereunder, may be amended
absent Franchisor’s prior written consent.

AGREED:

TENANT LANDLORD
By: By:

Its: Its:

Date: Date:

Y
S

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023-102024 FDD | Ex. A-+ — Form of Franchise Agreement
1320-016:002/3927901320.010.003/397906







and
“UTTa

7y
VAl

[TJaYa

TG IToUT

(“Eranch

\







Sian-
SHghH=

Bys-
Namea-
TYUATTTO

LILL1AZ]

Titla-

PData-
Fatcs




EXHIBITB
STATE AGENCIES/AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
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STATE AGENCIES/AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Listed here are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the state agencies having
responsibility for the franchising disclosure/registration laws.
franchises in any or all of these states. There may be states in addition to those listed below in which we
have appointed an agent for service of process. There may also be additional agents appointed in some of

the states listed.

CALIFORNIA

Department of Financial Protection & Innovation
Commissioner of Financial Protection &

Innovation
1 (866) 275-2677

Los Angeles

320 West 4™ Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, California 90013
(213) 576-7505

Sacramento

2101 Arena Blvd.
Sacramento, California 95834
(916) 445-7205

San Diego

1350 -Front-Street

1455 Frazee Road, Suite 315

San Diego, California 9210192108
(619) 525610-46442093

San Francisco

One Sansome Street, Ste. 600
San Francisco, California 94104
(415) 972-8559

HAWAII

(state administrator)

Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

P.O. Box 40
Honolulu, Hawaii 96810
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(808) 586-2722
(agent for service of process)

Commissioner of Securities of the

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs

Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 265203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2722

ILLINOIS

Franchise Bureau

Office of the Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

(state administrator)

Indiana Secretary of State
Securities Division, E-111
302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681

(agent for service of process)

Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House

200 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6531

We may not yet be registered to sell



MARYLAND
(state administrator)

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6360

(agent for service of process)

Maryland Securities Commissioner
at the Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6360

MICHIGAN
(state administrator)

Michigan Attorney General’s Office
Consumer Protection Division

Attn: Franchise Section

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 West Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 4893348909

(517) 373-7177

(agent for service of process)

Michigan Department of Commerce,
Corporations and Securities Bureau
P.O. Box 30054

6546 Mercantile Way

Lansing, Michigan 48909

MINNESOTA
(state administrator)

Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

(651) 539-1600
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(agent for service of process)

Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

(651) 539-1600

NEW YORK
(state administrator)

Office of the New York State Attorney General
Investor Protection Bureau

Franchise Section

28 Liberty Street, 215 Floor

New York, NY 10005

(212) 416-8236 Phone

(212) 416-6042 Fax

(agent for service of process)

Attention: New York Secretary of State
New York Department of State

One Commerce Plaza,

99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
Albany, NY 12231-0001

(518) 473-2492

NORTH DAKOTA

(state administrator)

North Dakota Securities Department

600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol - Fourteenth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712

(agent for service of process)

Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol - Fourteenth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712



OREGON

Department of Business Services Division of
Finance & Corporate Securities

350 Winter Street, NE, Room 410

Salem, Oregon 97310-3881

(503) 378-4387

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Business Regulation
Division of Securities

John O. Pastore Complex Building 69-1
1511 Pontiac Avenue

Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

(401) 462-9645

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA
(state administrator)

State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities

and Retail Franchising

1300 East Main Street, Ninth Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

(agent for service of process)

Clerk, State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1%t Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9733
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WASHINGTON

(state administrator)

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

P.O. Box 41200

Olympia, Washington 98504-1200
(360) 902-8760

(agent for service of process)

Director

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road, S.W.

Tumwater, Washington 98501

WISCONSIN
(state administrator)

Securities and Franchise Registration
Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions
4022 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 266-1064

(agent for service of process)

Office of the Secretary

Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions
P.O. Box 8861

Madison, Wisconsin 53708-8861

(608) 261-9555
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- Deloitte & Touche LLP
695 Town Center Drive
Suite 1000

Costa Mesa, CA 92626
USA

Tel:+1 714 436 7100
Fax:+1 714 436 7200
www.deloitte.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Member of XPOF Assetco, LLC:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of XPOF Assetco, LLC and subsidiaries (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, changes to member’s equity and cash flows for the period from
March 6, 2023 to December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements
(collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the period from March 6, 2023 to December 31, 2023 in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has significant transactions and
relationships with its Member, Xponential Fitness LLC, and its affiliates. Accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements may not be indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if
the Company had operated without such affiliations. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

March 30, 2024



Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Deferred costs, current portion

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Intangible assets, net

XPOF ASSETCO, LLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(amounts in thousands)

Assets

Deferred costs, net of current portion

Total assets

Current Liabilities:
Accrued expenses

Liabilities and Member's equity

Deferred revenue, current portion

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)

Member's equity:

Member contribution

Receivable from Member (Note 6)

Accumulated deficit
Total member's equity

Total liabilities and member's equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31,
2023

$ 8,000
8

4,065

12,073

11,102

88,881

45,350

$ 157,406

$ 722
9,918
10,640

111,320
121,960

51,612
(11,690)
(4.476)
35,446
S 157406



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
(amounts in thousands)

For the period March 6, 2023
(date of inception) to

December 31, 2023
Revenue, net:

Franchise revenue

$ 521

Operating costs and expenses:

Costs of franchise revenue 221

Selling, general and administrative expenses 180

Depreciation and amortization 4,596

Total operating costs and expenses 4,997

Operating loss (4,476)
Net loss $ (4,476)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES TO MEMBER'S EQUITY
(amounts in thousands)

Total
Member Receivable Accumulated Member's
Contribution from Member Deficit Equity
Balance at March 6, 2023 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 —
Member contributions (Note 7) 51,612 — — 51,612
Receivable from Member (Note 6) — (11,690) — (11,690)
Net loss — — (4,476) (4,476)
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 51,612 $ (11,690) $ (4,476) $ 35,446

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of intangible assets
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Deferred costs
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Member contributions
Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Noncash investing and financing activity:
Contributions of assets and liabilities from Member

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the period March 6,
2023 (date of inception)
to December 31, 2023

$ (4,476)

4,596
180

221
(521)

8,000

8,000

8,000

$ 8,000

$ 43,612



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

Note 1 — Organization and Description of Business

XPOF Assetco, LLC (the “Company”), a Delaware limited liability company (LLC), was formed on March 6, 2023.
The single member of the Company is Xponential Fitness LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Member”).
The Company is the direct parent and sole member of Club Pilates Franchise SPV, LLC; CycleBar Franchising SPV,
LLC; Stretch Lab Franchise SPV, LLC; Stride Franchise SPV, LLC; Row House Franchise SPV, LLC; Yoga Six
Franchise SPV, LLC; AKT Franchise SPV, LLC; PB Franchising SPV, LLC; Rumble Franchise SPV, LLC and BFT
Franchise SPV, LLC, (together “Subsidiaries”) each a Delaware limited liability corporation. The Company was
formed in connection with a contemplated reorganization of Xponential Fitness LLC’s structure. The Company,
through its brands, licenses its proprietary systems to franchisees who in turn operate studios to promote training and
instruction programs to their club members. There were no operations of the Company prior to March 6, 2023.

The Member contributed $8,000 in cash, $8,910 in property and equipment and $90,812 in intangible assets as of
March 15, 2023. The majority of the intangible assets contributed consist of trademarks related to Club Pilates,
CycleBar and Pure Barre brands. On December 31, 2023, the Member contributed deferred revenue and deferred costs
related to franchise agreement contracts with customers of $96,875 and $40,765, respectively. As the Company and
the Member are under common control, all of the assets and liabilities were contributed at their respective carrying
value as of the contribution date. The assets contributed collateralize the existing debt of the Member.

Basis of presentation — The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”).

The Company has numerous transactions with its Member and affiliates. The Company relies on resources from the
Member and other related parties under common control of the Member or the Member’s parent to support its
operations including centralized cash collection and management support functions, as necessary to operate the
Company’s franchising business. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements may not necessarily be indicative
of the conditions that would have existed or the results of operations that would have occurred if the Company had
operated without such affiliations. The Member has committed to continue to provide these services to the Company
for the Company’s franchising operations.

Principles of consolidation — The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the accounts of its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates — The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results
could differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and cash equivalents — The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original
maturity of ninety days or less to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of credit risk — The Company holds its cash balances in one financial institution. As the cash balances
exceed the amounts covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the excess balances could be at a risk of
loss.

Accounts receivable and allowance for expected credit losses — Accounts receivable primarily consist of amounts
due from franchisees for franchise territory fees. Receivables are unsecured; however, the franchise agreements
provide the Company the right to withdraw funds from the franchisee’s bank account or to terminate the franchise for
nonpayment. On a periodic basis, the Company evaluates its accounts receivable balance and establishes an allowance



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

for expected credit losses based on a number of factors, including evidence of the franchisee’s ability to comply with
credit terms, economic conditions and historical receivables. Account balances are written off against the allowance
after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. As of
December 31, 2023, no allowance for expected credit losses was recorded.

Property and equipment, net — Property and equipment includes software and digital platform and are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line method, based on the following estimated
useful lives:

Software and digital platform 3-5 years

Software and digital platform consist primarily of costs associated with web development projects. The Company
capitalizes eligible costs to acquire, develop, or modify digital platforms that are incurred subsequent to the
preliminary project stage. Depreciation of these assets begins upon the initial usage of the digital platforms.

The cost and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is
included in the results of operations during the period of sale or disposal.

Intangible assets — Intangible assets consist of indefinite and definitive-lived trademarks and web design and
domains.

The Company tests for impairment of trademarks with an indefinite life annually or sooner whenever events or
circumstances indicate that trademarks might be impaired. The Company first assesses qualitative factors to determine
whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair
value of the trademarks is less than the carrying amount. In the absence of sufficient qualitative factors, trademark
impairment is determined utilizing a two-step analysis. The two-step analysis involves comparing the fair value to the
carrying value of the trademarks. The Company determines the estimated fair value using a relief from royalty
approach. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value, the Company impairs the trademarks to their fair value. There
were no impairments recorded for the period ended December 31, 2023.

The recoverability of the carrying values of all intangible assets with finite lives is evaluated when events or changes
in circumstances indicate an asset’s value may be impaired. Impairment testing is based on a review of forecasted
undiscounted operating cash flows. If such analysis indicates that the carrying value of these assets is not recoverable,
the carrying value of such assets is reduced to fair value, which is determined based on discounted future cash flows,
through a charge to the consolidated statement of operations. Definite-lived intangible asset impairments during the
period ended December 31, 2023, related to trademarks of the Row House and Stride brands for which the carrying
value was deemed not recoverable in the amount of $127 and $53, respectively. Impairment expense is included in
selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations.

Revenue recognition — The Company accounts for revenue in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”), which provides a five-step model for recognizing
revenue from contracts with customers as follows:

. Identify the contract with a customer

. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Determine the transaction price

. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
. Recognize revenue when or as performance obligations are satisfied

The Company’s contracts with customers consist of franchise agreements with franchisees. The Company’s revenues
primarily consist of franchise license revenues.



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

Franchise revenue —

The Company enters into franchise agreements for each franchised studio. The Company’s performance obligation
under the franchise license is granting certain rights to access the Company’s intellectual property; all other services
the Company provides under the franchise agreement are highly interrelated, not distinct within the contract, and
therefore accounted for as a single performance obligation, which is satisfied over the term of each franchise
agreement. Those services include initial development, operational training, preopening support and access to the
Company’s technology throughout the franchise term. Fees generated related to the franchise license include
development fees, royalty fees, marketing fees, technology fees and transfer fees, which are discussed further below.
Variable fees are not estimated at contract inception, and are recognized as revenue when invoiced, which occurs
monthly. The Company has concluded that its agreements do not contain any financing components.

Franchise development fee revenue — The Company’s franchise agreements typically operate under ten-year terms
with the option to renew for up to two additional five-year successor terms. The Company determined the renewal
options are neither qualitatively nor quantitatively material and do not represent a material right. Initial franchise fees
are non-refundable and are typically collected upon signing of the franchise agreement. Initial franchise fees are
recorded as deferred revenue when received and are recognized on a straight-line basis over the franchise life, which
the Company has determined to be ten years, as the Company fulfills its promise to grant the franchisee the rights to
access and benefit from the Company’s intellectual property and to support and maintain the intellectual property.

The Company may enter into an area development agreement with certain franchisees. Area development agreements
are for a territory in which a developer has agreed to develop and operate a certain number of franchise locations over
a stipulated period of time. The related territory is unavailable to any other party and is no longer marketed to future
franchisees by the Company. Depending on the number of studios purchased under franchise agreements or area
development agreements, the initial franchise fee ranges from $60 (single studio) to $350 (ten studios) and is paid to
the Company when a franchisee signs the area development agreement. Area development fees are initially recorded
as deferred revenue. The development fees are allocated to the number of studios purchased under the development
agreement. The revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the franchise life for each studio under the
development agreement. Development fees and franchise fees are generally recognized as revenue upon the
termination of the development agreement with the franchisee.

Franchise royalty fee revenue — Royalty revenue represents royalties earned from each of the franchised studios in
accordance with the franchise disclosure document and the franchise agreement for use of the brands’ names,
processes and procedures. The royalty rate in the franchise agreement is typically 7% of the gross sales of each location
operated by each franchisee. Royalties are billed on a monthly basis. The royalties are entirely related to the
Company’s performance obligation under the franchise agreement and are billed and recognized as franchisee sales
occur.

Technology fees — The Company may provide access to third-party or other proprietary technology solutions to the
franchisees for a fee. The technology solution may include various software licenses for statistical tracking,
scheduling, allowing club members to record their personal workout statistics, music and technology support. The
Company bills and recognizes the technology fee as earned each month as the technology solution service is
performed.

Transfer fees — Transfer fees are paid to the Company when one franchisee transfers a franchise agreement to a
different franchisee. Transfer fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the new or
assumed franchise agreement, unless the original franchise agreement for an existing studio is terminated, in which
case the transfer fee is recognized immediately.

Training revenue — The Company provides coach training services either through direct training of the coaches who
are hired by franchisees or by providing the materials and curriculum directly to the franchisees who utilize the
materials to train their hired coaches. Direct training fees are recognized over time as training is provided. Training
fees for materials and curriculum are recognized at the point in time of delivery of the materials.

The Company also offers coach training and final coach certification through online classes. Fees received by the
Company for online class training are recognized as revenue over time for the 12-month period that the Company is
obligated to provide access to the online training content.



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

Costs of franchise revenue — Costs of franchise revenue consists of commissions related to the signing of franchise
agreements. Costs of franchise revenue excludes depreciation and amortization.

Selling, general and administrative expenses — The Company’s selling, general and administrative expenses
primarily consist of asset impairment and other charges.

Income taxes — As a single member LLC, the Company is considered a disregarded entity. As such, the Company
itself is typically not subject to an income tax liability as the taxable income or loss of the Company is passed through
to the Member. Therefore, no liability for federal income taxes has been included in the financial statements. The
Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740. ASC 740 prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement process for accounting for uncertain tax positions and provides guidance on various related
matters such as derecognition, interest, penalties and required disclosures. As of December 31, 2023, the Company
does not have any uncertain tax positions.

Comprehensive income — The Company does not have any components of other comprehensive income recorded
within the consolidated financial statements and therefore does not separately present a consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurements — ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, applies to all financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured and reported on a fair value basis and requires disclosures that establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. ASC 820 establishes a
valuation hierarchy for disclosures of the inputs to valuations used to measure fair value.

This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be accessed
at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability (i.e., interest rates and yield curves), and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
observable market data by correlation or other means (market corroborated inputs).

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that reflect assumptions about what market participants would use in pricing the asset
or liability. These inputs would be based on the best information available, including the Company’s own data.

Note 3 — Contract Liabilities and Costs from Contracts with Customers

Contract liabilities — Contract liabilities consist of deferred revenue resulting from franchise fees and development
fees paid by franchisees, which are recognized over time on a straight-line basis over the franchise agreement term.
The Company classifies these contract liabilities as either current deferred revenue or non-current deferred revenue in
the consolidated balance sheet based on the anticipated recognition of the revenue. The following table reflects the
change in franchise development contract liabilities for the period ended December 31, 2023.

Amount

Balance at March 6, 2023 $ —
Contract liabilities contributed by Member 96,875
Revenue recognized that was included in deferred

revenue at the beginning of the period —
Increase, excluding amounts recognized as revenue

during the period 24,363
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 121,238




XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

The following table illustrates estimated revenue expected to be recognized in the future related to performance
obligations that were unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of December 31, 2023. The expected future recognition
period for deferred franchise development fees related to unopened studios is based on management’s best estimate
of the beginning of the franchise license term for those studios. The Company elected to not disclose short term
contracts, sales and usage-based royalties, marketing fees and any other variable consideration recognized on an “as
invoiced” basis.

Contract liabilities to be recognized in revenue in Amount
2024 $ 9,918
2025 10,895
2026 12,188
2027 13,005
2028 12,974
Thereafter 62,258
$ 121,238

The following table reflects the components of deferred revenue:

December 31,
2023
Franchise and area development fees $ 121,238
Non-current portion of deferred revenue 111,320
Current portion of deferred revenue $ 9,918

Contract costs — Contract costs consist of deferred commissions resulting from franchise and area development sales
by third-party brokers and sales personnel. The total commission is deferred at the point of a franchise sale. The
commissions are evenly split among the number of studios purchased under the development agreement and begin to
be amortized when a subsequent franchise agreement is executed. The commissions are recognized on a straight-line
basis over the initial ten-year franchise agreement term to align with the recognition of the franchise agreement or
area development fees. The Company classifies these deferred contract costs as either current deferred costs or non-
current deferred costs in the consolidated balance sheet. The associated expense is classified within costs of franchise
revenue in the consolidated statement of operations. At December 31, 2023, there were approximately $4,065 and
$45,350 of current deferred costs and non-current deferred costs, respectively. The Company recognized
approximately $221 in franchise sales commission expense for the period ended December 31, 2023.

Note 4 — Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,
2023
Software and digital platform $ 13,946
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,844)
Total property and equipment $ 11,102

Depreciation expense for the period ended December 31, 2023 was $2,844.

Note S —Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following:



XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2023

Amortization
period Gross Accumulated Net
(years) amount amortization amount
Trademarks 8.6 $ 17,824 $ (1,646) $ 16,178
Web design and domain 2 179 (83) 96
Total definite-lived intangible assets 18,003 (1,729) 16,274
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trademarks N/A 72,607 — 72,607
Total intangible assets $ 90,610 $ (1,729) $ 88,881

The estimated amortization expense of intangible assets is as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2024 $ 2,145
2025 2,067
2026 2,067
2027 2,064
2028 2,012
Thereafter 5,919
Total $ 16,274

Amortization expense for the period ended December 31, 2023, was $1,752.

Note 6 — Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions consist of allocations of expenses from the Member, including commissions paid
to employees of the Member related to the sale of franchise and area development agreements, borrowings from, and
excess cash transfers to the Member and other related parties under common control of the Member. During the period
ended December 31, 2023, the net result of the related party transactions with the Member and its affiliates is a
receivable of $11,690 and is recorded as a reduction to Member's equity as the Member has no plan to repay the
receivable in the foreseeable future.

In addition, the Member has a credit facility that requires collateral. All obligations under the Member’s credit facility
are secured by substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of the Company.

Note 7 — Member’s Equity

The capital structure of the Company consists of one class of membership interests (the “Interests”). The Member
owns all of the Interests issued and outstanding and is the sole member of the Company and contributed $8,000 in
cash, $8,910 in property and equipment and $90,812 in intangible assets as of March 15, 2023 to use in its operations
and to satisfy minimum net worth requirements to qualify for large franchisor exemptions available under certain state
franchise registration laws.

On December 31, 2023, the Member contributed deferred revenue and deferred costs related to franchise agreement
contracts with customers of $96,875 and $40,765, respectively. As the Company and the Member are under common
control, all of the assets and liabilities were contributed at their respective carrying cost as of the contribution date.

Note 8 — Contingencies and Litigation
The Company is subject to normal and routine litigation brought by customers, franchisees, vendors or others. The

Company intends to defend itself in any such matters. The Company believes that the ultimate determination of
liability in connection with legal claims pending against it, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on its
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands)

business, annual results of operations, liquidity or financial position; however, it is possible that the Company’s
business, results of operations, liquidity, or financial condition could be materially affected in a particular future
reporting period by the unfavorable resolution of one or more matters or contingencies during such period.

Note 9 — Subsequent events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2024, which is the date these consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.

On February 13, 2024, the Member entered into an asset purchase agreement with a buyer, pursuant to which the
Company divested the Stride brand, including the intellectual property, franchise rights and franchise agreements for
open studios. The buyer of the Stride brand is a member of management and stockholder of the Member's parent. The
Company received no consideration from the divestiture of the Stride brand and the Member will assist the buyer with
transition support including cash payments of approximately $265 payable over the next year. The divestiture allows
the Company to better focus and utilize its resources on its other brands. The assets divested did not meet all criteria
to be classified as assets held for sale as of the balance sheet date, and as such are not presented and disclosed as assets
held for sale in the consolidated financial statements.
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GUARANTY OF PERFORMANCE

For value received, XPOF ASSETCO, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company located at 17877
VON KARMAN AVENUE, SUITE 100, IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 92614 (the “Guarantor™),
absolutely and unconditionally guarantees the performance by CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING
SPV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company located at 17877 VON KARMAN AVENUE,
SUITE 100, IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 92614 (the “Franchisor”), of all of the obligations of
Franchisor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the franchise registration in each state
where the franchise is registered, and under its Franchise Agreement identified in its 2024 Franchise
Disclosure Document, as it may be amended, and as that Franchise Agreement may be entered into
with franchisees as amended, modified or extended from time to time. This guaranty continues in
full force and effect until all obligations of the Franchisor under its franchise registrations and
Franchise Agreements are satisfied or until the liability of Franchisor to its franchisees under the
Franchise Agreement has been completely discharged, whichever first occurs. The Guarantor is not
discharged from liability if a claim by a franchisee against the Franchisor remains outstanding.
Notice of acceptance is waived. The Guarantor does not waive notice of Franchisor’s default. This
guaranty is binding on the Guarantor and its successors and assignees.

The Guarantor signs this guaranty at [rvine, California on the 30th _day of _March , 2024,

GUARANTOR:

XPOF ASSETCO, LLC

By: /)//
74

Name: John Meloun
Title: ¢ Chief Financial Officer
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CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
STATEMENT OF PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE

[Note: Dates and Answers Must Be Completed
in the Prospective Franchisee's Own Handwriting.]

** If the state franchise registration and disclosure laws of California, Hawaii, lllinois, Indiana,
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia,
Washington, or Wisconsin apply to you, then you are not required to complete this Statement of
Prospective Franchisee. Do not sign this Statement if you are a resident of Maryland or the
franchise is to be operated in Maryland. **

Since the Prospective Franchisee (adlso called “me,” “our,” “us” “we” and/or “1” in this
document) and CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC (also called the “ Franchisor” or “ CycleBar") both have
an interest in making sure that no misunderstandings exist between them, and to verify that no violations
of law might have occurred, and understanding that the Franchisor is relying on the statements |/we make
in this document, |/we assure the Franchisor as follows:

A. The following dates and information are true and correct:;

1 , 20 The date on which I/we received a Uniform Franchise Disclosure
Document about a Franchise.

Initials

2. ,20 The date when I/we received a fully completed copy (other than
signatures) of the Franchise Agreement, Development

Initials Agreement (if appropriate) and al other documents I/we later
signed.

3. , 20 The earliest date on which I/we signed the Franchise Agreement,
Development Agreement or any other binding document (not

Initials including any Letter or other Acknowledgment of Receipt.)

4. , 20 The earliest date on which I/we delivered cash, check or other
consideration to the Franchisor, or any other person or company.

Initials

B. Representations and Other Matters:

1 No oral, written, visual or other promises, agreements, commitments, representations,
understandings, “side deals,” options, rights-of-first-refusal or otherwise of any type (collectively, the
“representations’), including, but not limited to, any which expanded upon or were inconsistent with the
Disclosure Document, the Franchise Agreement, or any other written documents, have been made to or
with me/us with respect to any matter (including, but not limited to, advertising, marketing, site location
and/or development, operational, marketing or administrative assistance, exclusive rights or exclusive or
protected territory or otherwise) nor have I/we relied in any way on any such representations, except as
expressly set forth in the Franchise Agreement, or a written Addendum thereto signed by the Prospective
Franchisee and the Franchisor, except as follows:

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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(If none, the Prospective Franchisee should write NONE in hig/her/their own handwriting.)

Prospective Franchisee’s Initials:

2. No oral, written, visual or other claim, guarantee or representation (including, but not limited to,
charts, tables, spreadsheets or mathematical calculations to demonstrate actual or possible results based
on a combination of variables, such as multiples of price and quantity to reflect gross sales, or otherwise),
which stated or suggested any specific level or range of actual or potential sales, costs, income, expenses,
profits, cash flow, tax effects or otherwise (or from which such items might be ascertained), from
franchised or non-franchised units, was made to melus by Franchisor, its affiliates or
agents/representatives, nor have l/we relied in any way on any such, except for information (if any)
expressly set forth in Item 19 of the Franchisor's Disclosure Document (or an exhibit referred to therein),
except asfollows:

Prospective Franchisee's Initials:

3. No contingency, prerequisite, reservation or otherwise exists with respect to any matter
(including, but not limited to, the Prospective Franchisee obtaining any financing, the Prospective
Franchisee's selection, purchase, |ease or otherwise of alocation, any operational matters or otherwise) or
the Prospective Franchisee fully performing any of the Prospective Franchisee's obligations, nor is the
Prospective Franchisee relying on the Franchisor or any other entity to provide or arrange financing of
any type, nor have l/we relied in any way on such, except as expressy set forth in the Franchise
Agreement, Development Agreement (if and as appropriate) or awritten Addendum thereto signed by the
Prospective Franchisee and the Franchisor, except as follows:

(If none, the Prospective Franchisee should write NONE in hig/her/their own handWriti ng.)

Prospective Franchisee’s Initials:

4. The individuals signing for the “ Prospective Franchisee” constitute all of the executive officers,
partners, shareholders, investors and/or principals of the Prospective Franchisee and each of such
individuals has received the Uniform Franchise Disclosure Document and all exhibits and carefully read,
discussed, understands and agrees to the Franchise Agreement, Development Agreement (if and as
appropriate), each written Addendum and any Personal Guarantees.

Prospective Franchisee's Initials:

5. I/'we have had an opportunity to consult with an independent professional advisor, such as an
attorney or accountant, prior to signing any binding documents or paying any sums, and the Franchisor
has strongly recommended that 1/we obtain such independent professional advice. |/we have also been
strongly advised by the Franchisor to discuss my/our proposed purchase of, or investment in, a CycleBar
Studio Franchise with existing Franchisees prior to signing any binding documents or paying any sums
and I/we have been supplied with alist of existing CycleBar Studio Franchisees.

Prospective Franchisee's Initials:

6. I confirm that, as advised, I've spoken with past and/or existing CycleBar Studio Franchisees,
and that | made the decision as to which, and how many, CycleBar Studio Franchisees to speak with.

Prospective Franchisee’s Initials:
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7. I/we understand that: entry into any business venture necessarily involves some unavoidable risk
of loss or failure, the purchase of a CycleBar Franchise (or any other) is a speculative investment, an
investment beyond that outlined in the Disclosure Document may be required to succeed, there exists no
guaranty against possible loss or failure in this or any other business and the most important factorsin the
success of any CycleBar Franchise, including the one to be operated by me/us, are my/our personal
business, marketing, sales, management, judgment and other skills.

Prospective Franchisee’s Initials:

If there are any matters inconsistent with the statements in this document, or if anyone has
suggested that | sign this document without all of its statements being true, correct and complete, |1/we
will () immediately inform the Brand President of CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC (513-815-8467), and
(b) make a written statement regarding such next to my signature below so that the Franchisor may
address and resolve any such issue(s) at this time and before either party goes forward.

I/'we understand and agree that the Franchisor does not furnish or endorse, or authorize its
salespersons or others to furnish or endorse, any oral, written or other information concerning actual or
potential sales, costs, income, expenses, profits, cash flow, tax effects or otherwise (or from which such
items might be ascertained), from franchised or non-franchised units, that such information (if any) not
expressly set forth in Item 19 of the Franchisor’s Disclosure Document (or an exhibit referred to therein)
is not reliable and that 1/we have not relied on it, that no such results can be assured or estimated and that
actual results will vary from unit to unit, franchise to franchise, and may vary significantly.

Prospective Franchisee’s Initials:

I/'we understand and agree to al of the foregoing and represent and warrant that al of the above
statements are true, correct and complete.

Date:

If the franchised business that you will operate is located in Maryland or if you are a resident of
Maryland, the following shall apply:

Any acknowledgments or representations of the franchisee which disclaim the occurrence and/or
acknowledge the non-occurrence of acts that would constitute a violation of the Franchise Law
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

If any California franchisee completes this Statement of Prospective Franchisee, we will destroy,
disregard, and will not rely on such Statement of Prospective Franchisee.

This Statement of Prospective Franchisee does not waive any liability we may have under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.
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PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE (Individual)

Signature

Printed Name

Signature

Printed Name

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE (Corp., LLC or Partnership) [Must be accompanied by
appropriate personal guarantee(s)]

Legal Name of Entity

a
State of incorporation, formation, etc.

By:

Name

Signature

Title:
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CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
GENERAL RELEASE OF ALL CLAIMS

(FRANCHISEE”) and , an individual

(“GUARANTOR?”) enter into this General Release on , with reference to the
following facts:

1. On , CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, a Delaware

limited liability company (“FRANCHISOR”), and FRANCHISEE entered into a Franchise Agreement
(the  “Franchise = Agreement”) to operate a  Franchised Business located at
(the “Premises”). GUARANTOR guaranteed FRANCHISEE’s
performance under the Franchise Agreement pursuant to a Guarantee and Assumption of Obligations (the

“Guarantee™). In  consideration of FRANCHISOR’S processing and approval of
, the Franchise Agreement provides
that FRANCHISEE must sign this General Release as a condition to such . All capitalized

terms not otherwise defined in this General Release shall have the same meaning as in the Franchise
Agreement and/or the Guarantee.

2. For valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
FRANCHISEE and GUARANTOR hereby release and forever discharge FRANCHISOR, its parents and
subsidiaries and the directors, officers, employees, attorneys and agents of said corporations, and each of
them, from any and all claims, obligations, liabilities, demands, costs, expenses, damages, actions and
causes of action, of whatever nature, character or description, known or unknown (collectively
“Damages”), which arose on or before the date of this General Release, including any Damages with
respect to the Franchise Agreement, the Franchised Business, the Premises and the Guarantee.
FRANCHISEE waives any right or benefit which FRANCHISEE or GUARANTOR may have under
Section 1542 of the California Civil Code or any equivalent law or statute of any other state. Section
1542 of the California Civil Code reads as follows:

"Section 1542. Certain claims not affected by general release. A general release does not
extend to claims that the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his
or her favor at the time of executing the release and that, if known by him or her, would
have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party."

3. This General Release sets forth the entire agreement and understanding of the parties
regarding the subject matter of this General Release and any agreement, representation or understanding,
express or implied, heretofore made by any party or exchanged between the parties are hereby waived and
canceled.

4. This Agreement shall be binding upon each of the parties to this General Release and
their respective heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

Any general release provided fer-hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

Any general release provided fer-hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the Minnesota
Franchise Act.

Any general release provided fer-hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, and rules adopted thereunder.

[Signature Page Follows]

1.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this General Release as of the day
and year set forth above.

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Print Name:

Title:

GUARANTOR:
, an individual
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES FOR THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OF
CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC

The following are additional disclosures for the Franchise Disclosure Document of CY CLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC required by various state franchise laws. Each provision of these additional
disclosures will only apply to you if the applicable state franchise law applies to you.

FOR THE FOLLOWING STATES: CALIFORNIA, HAWAII, ILLINOIS, INDIANA,
MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, NEW YORK, NORTH DAKOTA, RHODE ISLAND,
SOUTH DAKOTA, VIRGINIA, WASHINGTON-OR WISCONSIN.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

CALIFORNIA
The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial Protection

and Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the
Commissioner.

1 THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY
OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE
DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. SECTION 31125 OF THE CALIFORNIA CORPORATION CODE REQUIRESUSTO
GIVE YOU A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, IN A FORM CONTAINING THE INFORMATION
THAT THE COMMISSIONER MAY BY RULE OR ORDER REQUIRE, BEFORE A SOLICITATION
OF A PROPOSED MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING FRANCHISE.

3. OUR WEBSITE, https://lwww.xponential.com/franchising, HAS NOT BEEN
REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL
PROTECTION & INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THE
WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL
PROTECTION & INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

4, Section 31512.1 of the California Corporations Code requires that any provision of the
Franchise Agreement, Disclosure Document, acknowledgement, questionnaire, or other writing,
including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed contrary to
public policy and shall be void and unenforceable: (a) representations made by the franchisor or its
personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee; (b) reliance by afranchisee on any representations made
by the franchisor or its personnel or agents; (c) reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure
document, including any exhibit thereto; or (d) violations of any provision of thisdivision.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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5. 4—TFHEFOLLOWANG—STATEMENTAS-ADBDED—TO-—THE-END—-OFHFEMThe
following statement is added to the end of Item 3:

Neither we, our parent, predecessor or affiliate nor any person in Item 2 of the Franchise
Disclosure Document is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities
association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, 15 U.S.C.A Sections 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from
membership in that association or exchange.

6. 5-The following statement is added to the Remarks column of Item 6 for the row entitled
Late Fees:

The highest rate of interest allowed by Californialaw is 10% annually.

7. 6-The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17:

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement require you to sign a
general release of claims upon renewal or transfer of the Franchise Agreement or Area
Development Agreement. California Corporations Code Section 31512 provides that any
condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise
to waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or order thereunder is
void. Section 31512 might void awaiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment
Law (California Corporations Code Section 31000 — 31516). Business and Professions
Code Section 20010 might void a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations
Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 — 20043).

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil
Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

Cdlifornia Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights
to the franchisee concerning termination, transfer or nonrenewal of a franchise. If the
Area Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement contain a provision that is
inconsistent with the law, and the law applies, the law will control.

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement contain a covenant not to
compete that extends beyond termination of the franchise. This provision might not be
enforceable under Californialaw.

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement provides for termination
upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law
(11 U.S.C.A Section 101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement and Area Devel opment Agreement require binding arbitration.
The arbitration will be conducted at our then current principal place of business
(currently Irvine, California) or another location that we designate with the costs being
borne as provided in the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement.

Prospective devel opers and franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to
determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and
Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the
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Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of the Franchise Agreement and Area
Development Agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

Under the Franchise Agreement, we reserve the right to require that franchisees comply
with maximum and minimum prices it sets for goods and services. The Antitrust Law
Section of the Office of the California Attorney General views maximum price
agreements as per se violations of the California’s Cartwright Act (Cal. Bus. and Prof.
Code 88§ 16700 to 16770).

8. #-Thefollowing paragraphs are added at the end of Item 19:

The financial performance representations do not reflect the costs of sales, operating
expenses, or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or
gross sales figures to obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an
independent investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your
Studio. Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the Franchise Disclosure Document,
may be one source of thisinformation.

HAWAII

1. THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE
FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE
DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE
DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION
PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR
SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR
TO THE EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING
FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR,
WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE OFFERING CIRCULAR, TOGETHER
WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE
FRANCHISE.

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN
MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR
AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS,
CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR
AND THE FRANCHISEE.

2. DO NOT SIGN THE REPRESENTATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
QUESTIONNAIRE IF YOU ARE LOCATED, OR YOUR STUDIO WILL BE LOCATED IN
HAWAII.
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ILLINOIS

1. The "Summary" section of Item 17.u, entitlted Dispute resolution by arbitration or
mediation, and the "Summary" section of Item 17.v, entitled Choice of forum, are supplemented with
the following:

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinoisis
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.

2. The "Summary" section of Item 17.w, entitled Choice of law, is deleted and replaced with
the following:

Except for the U.S. Federal Arbitration Act and other federal laws in the U.S,, the laws
of the State of Illinois will govern the Franchise Agreement and Area Development
Agreement.

3. Thefollowing paragraphs are added to the end of I1tem 17:

Section 41 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinoisis void.

Your rights upon termination and non-renewal of a franchise agreement/area
development agreement are subject to sections 19 and 20 of the lllinois Franchise
Disclosure Act.

MARYLAND
1 Thefollowing is added to the end of Item 5 and Item 7:

Pursuant to an order of the Maryland Securities Commissioner, we have posted a Surety
Bond in the requested amount. The terms of the Surety Bond will remain in effect until

we have completed all of our initial obligations to you under the Franchise Agreement
and you have opened your Studio. If you have signed an Area Development Agreement,

the Surety Bond will remain in effect until we have completed all of our initial obligation
to you under the Area Development Agreement and your first Studio under the Area
Development Agreement has opened. A copy of the Surety Bond is on file with the
Maryland Securities Commissioner.

2. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" sections of Item 17.c, entitled
Requirements for renewal or extension, and Item 17.m, entitled Conditions for franchisor approval
of transfer:

However, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will
not apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law.
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3. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" section of Item 17.h, entitled

"Cause"' defined — non-curable defaults:

The Area Development Agreement and Franchise Agreement provides for termination
upon bankruptcy. This provision might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law
(111 U.S.C. Sections 101 et seq.) but we will enforce it to the extent enforceable.

4. The "Summary" sections of Item 17.v, entitled Choice of forum, and 17.w, entitled

Choice

of law, are amended to add the following:

A franchisee may bring suit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. The following language is added to the end of the chart in Item 17:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

The franehiseArea Development aAgreement and Franchise Agreement provides that
disputes are resolved through arbitration. A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is
an unfair anedor deceptive practice to require a franchisee to waive its right to file a
lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the Maryland Franchise Law. Inlight of the
Federal Arbitration aAct, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection
requirement is legally enforceable.

MINNESOTA

entirety

1. The disclosure in the Item 6 chart, entitled “~Lost Revenue Damages,”- is deleted in its

2. The following language is added to the end of Item 13:

Provided you have complied with all provisions of the Franchise Agreement applicable
to the Marks, we will protect your rights to use the marks and we also will indemnify you
from any loss, costs or expenses from any claims, suits or demands regarding your use of
the Marks in accordance with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.12 Subd. 1(g).

3. Thefollowing is added at the end of the chart in Item 17:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat.
Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that you
be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) of the Franchise
Agreement and Area Development Agreement and 180 days' notice for non-renewal of
the Franchise Agreement and Area Devel opment Agreement.

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibits us from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of ajury trial or requiring
the Area Developer or Franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties
or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure Document, Area Devel opment
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Agreement or Franchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce any of Area Developer’s or
Franchisee's rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or Area
Developer's or Franchisee’ s rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by
the laws of the jurisdiction.

Any release required as a condition of renewal or transfer/assignment will not apply to
the extent prohibited by governing law with respect to claims arising under Minn.
Rule 2860.4400D.

NORTH DAKOTA

1. Thedisclosure in the Item 6 chart, entitled “Lost Revenue Damages,™ will not be enforced
to the extent prohibited by applicable law.

2. The following is added to the “Remarks’ section of the Item 6 row entitled “Cost of
Enforcement or Defense™:

Sections of the Franchise Disclosure Document requiring you to pay al costs and
expenses incurred by us in enforcing the Franchise Agreement may not be enforceable
under Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, and are amended
accordingly to the extent required by law.

3. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" sections of Item 17.c, entitled
Requirements for renewal or extension, and Item 17.m, entitled Conditions for franchisor approval
of transfer:

However, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will
not apply to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

4. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" section of Item 17., entitled
Franchisee’s obligation on termination/non-renewal:

The requirement to pay damages will not be enforced to the extent prohibited by
applicable law.

5. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" section of Item 17.r, entitled
Non-competition covenants after the franchise is terminated or expires:

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota, however, we and you will enforce the
covenants to the maximum extent the law allows.

6. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" section of Item 17.u, entitled Dispute
resolution by arbitration or mediation:

To the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (unless such
requirement is preempted by the Federal Arbitration Act), arbitration will be at a site to
which we and you mutually agree.
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7. The"Summary" section of Item 17.v, entitled Choice of forum, is deleted and replaced with

the following:

Y ou must sue us in the court nearest to our or, as applicable, our successor’'s or assign’s
then current principal place of business (currently, Irvine, California) except that, subject
to the arbitration requirement, and to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law, you may bring an action in North Dakota.

8. The "Summary" section of Item 17.w, entitled Choice of law, is deleted and replaced with

the following:

Except as otherwise required by North Dakota law, and except for the U.S. Trademark
Act, the Federal Arbitration Act, other federal laws, and disputes involving
non-competition covenants (which are governed by the law of the state in which your
Studio is located), California law applies.

RHODE ISLAND

Choice

1. Thefollowing language is added to the end of the “ Summary” sections of Item 17.v, entitled
of forum, and 17.w, entitled Choice of law:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside
this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a
claim otherwise enforceable under this Act. To the extent required by applicable law
Rhode Island law will apply to claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise
Investment Act.”

VIRGINIA

Termin

1. The following language is added to the end of the “ Summary” section of Item 17.e, entitled
ation by franchisor without cause:

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or
termination stated in the Franchise Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement
does not constitute “ reasonabl e cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail
Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN ILLINOIS

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20___ (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting
provisions of the Area Development Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the
meanings as defined in the Area Devel opment Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the
Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) Developer is domiciled in the
State of Illinois, or (b) the offer of the franchise is made or accepted in the State of Illinois and the
Studios that Developer develops under the Area Development Agreement are or will be located in the
State of Illinois.

2. Waiver of Jury Trial; Class Actions. The following is added to the end of Sections 12.H
(Waiver of Jury Trial) and 12.1 (Waiver of Class Actions) of the Area Development Agreement:

Nothing contained in this section shall constitute a condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of lllinois, to the extent
applicable.

3. Limitation of Actions. The following is added to the end of Section 12.K (Limitation of
Actions) of the Area Development Agreement:

However, nothing contained in this section shall constitute a condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person to waive compliance with any provision of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinais, to the extent
applicable.

4. 1linois Franchise Disclosure Act. The following language is added to the end of the Area
Development Agreement:

Except for the U.S. Federal Arbitration Act and other federal lawsin the U.S,, the laws
of the State of Illinoiswill govern this Agreement.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in an area
devel opment agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of 1llinois
isvoid. However, an area devel opment agreement may provide for arbitration outside of
[llinois.

Section 41 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinoisis void.
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Developer’s rights upon termination and non-renewal of an area development agreement
are subject to sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

EIGNATUREPAGETOFOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Capacity:
Date: Date:
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MARYLAND

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvinep CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20___ (the “Area Development Agreement”) that
has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or
conflicting provisions of the Area Development Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider
have the meanings as defined in the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms
part of the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) Developer is aresident
of the State of Maryland; or (b) the Studios that Developer develops under the Area Development
Agreement are or will be developed in the State of Maryland; or (c) the offer to sell is made in the State
of Maryland; or (d) the offer to buy is accepted in the State of Maryland.

2. Development Fee:. The following is added to the end of Section 4 (Development Fee) of
the Development Agreement:

Pursuant to an order of the Maryland Securities Commissioner, we have posted a Surety Bond in
the requested amount. The terms of the Surety Bond will remain in effect until we have
completed all of our initial obligations to you under the Area Development Agreement and you
have opened your first Studio under the Area Development Agreement. A copy of the Surety
Bond is on file with the Maryland Securities Commissioner.

3.

4. Insolvency. The following is added to the end of Section 8.A.(1)(b) (Termination of
Franchise by Franchisor) of the Area Devel opment Agreement:

The provision which provides for termination upon Developer’ s bankruptcy might not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Sections 101 et seq.).

5. Release. The following is added to the end of Section 9.C (Conditions for Approval of
Transfer) of the Area Development Agreement:

Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or
assignment/transfer will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

6. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction. The following is added to the end of Sections
12.A (Governing Law) and 12.F (Ehseice-of-FerumConsent to Jurisdiction) of the Area Devel opment
Agreement:

; provided, however, FranehiseeDeveloper may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims
arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Maryland law
may apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure
Law.
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7. Mediation-ard; Mandatory Binding Arbitration. The following is added to the end of
Sections 12.C (Mediation) and 12.D (Mandatory Binding Arbitration) of the Area Development
Agreement:

A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require
a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration
Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally
enforceable.

8. Waiver of Jury Trial, Class Actions; Limitation of Actions. The following is added to the
end of Sections 12.H (Waiver of Jury Trial), 12.1 (Waiver of Class Actions) and 12.K (Limitation of
Actions) of the Area Development Agreement:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Capacity:
Date: Date:
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MINNESOTA

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20___ (the “Area Development Agreement”) that
has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or
conflicting provisions of the Area Development Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider
have the meanings as defined in the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms
part of the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the Studios that
Developer will develop under the Area Development Agreement will be developed in the State of
Minnesota; and/or (b) any of the offering or sales activity relating to the Area Development Agreement
occurred in the State of Minnesota.

2. Termination. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 8.A (Termination of
Franchise by Franchisor) of the Area Development Agreement:

However, with respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Franchisor will comply with
Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.14, Subd. 3, 4, and 5, which require (except in certain specified
cases) that Developer be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) of this
Agreement.

3. Release. The following is added to the end of Section 9.C (Conditions for Approval of
Transfer) of the Area Development Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply
to the extent prohibited by the Minnesota Franchises Law.

4. Governing Law. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 12.A (~Governing
Law™) of the Area Development Agreement:

Nothing in this Agreement will abrogate or reduce any of Developer's rights under the
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 80C or Developer’s right to any procedure, forum or remedies that
the laws of the jurisdiction provide.

5. Other Proceeding (Right to Injunctive Relief). The following language is added to the end
of Section 12.E (Other Proceeding (Right to Injunctive Relief)) of the Area Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a court will determine if a bond is required to obtain
injunctive relief.
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6. Consent to Jurisdiction. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 12.F
(~Chetee-ofFerum™Consent to Jurisdiction) of the Area Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Minn. Stat. Section 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit
Franchisor, except in certain specified cases, from requiring litigation to be conducted outside of
Minnesota. Nothing in this Agreement shall abrogate or reduce any of Developer’s rights under
Minnesota Statutes chapter 80C or Developer’s right to any procedure, forum or remedies that
the laws of the jurisdiction provide.

7. Waiver of Punitive Damages-and; Jury Trial. If and then only to the extent required by
the Minnesota Franchises Law, Sections 12.G (“Waiver of Punitive Damages™) and 12.H (~Waiver of
Jury Trial*) of the Area Development Agreement are hereby del eted.

8. Limitations of Actions. The following is added to the end Section 12.K (Limitation of
Actions) of the Area Development Agreement:

; provided, however, that Minnesota law provides that no action may be commenced
under Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.17 more than 3 years after the cause of action accrues.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Capacity:
Date: Date:
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20___ (the “Area Development Agreement”) that
has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or
conflicting provisions of the Area Development Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider
have the meanings as defined in the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms
part of the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (@) an offer to sell is made
in the State of North Dakota; or (b) if Developer is domiciled in the State of North Dakota, the Studio
that Developer develops under its Area Development Agreement are or will be operated in the State of
North Dakota.

2. Covenants Regarding Competitive Activities. The following is added to the end of
Section 6.A (Noncompetition Restrictions) of the Area Development Agreement:.

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota; however, Franchisor will enforce the
covenants to the maximum extent the law allows.

3. Release. The following is added to the end of Section 9.C (Conditions for Approval of
Transfer) of the Area Development Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply
to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

4. Governing Law. Section 12.A (Governing Law) of the Area Development Agreement is
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following language:

Except to the extent governed by the Federa Arbitration Act, the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051 et seq.), or other federal
law, and except as otherwise required by North Dakota law, this Agreement, the
franchise, and all claims arising from the relationship between Franchisor and Devel oper
will be governed by the laws of the State of California, without regard to its conflict of
laws rules, except that any state law regulating the sale of franchises or governing the
relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this section.
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5. Mediation and Mandatory Binding Arbitration. Sections 12.C (Mediation) and 12.D
(Mandatory Binding Arbitration) of the Area Development Agreement are supplemented by adding
the following to the end of each Section:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law (unless such arequirement is preempted by the Federal Arbitration Act),
arbitration shall be held at a site to which Franchisor and Devel oper mutually agree.

6. CheieeefForumConsent to Jurisdiction. The following is added to the end of Section
12.F (Consent to Jurisdiction) of the Area Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law, Developer may bring an action in North Dakota for claims arising under
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

7. Waiver of Punitive Damages. The following is added to the end of Section 12.G (Waiver
of Punitive Damages) of the Area Development Agreement:

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that certain parts of this provision might not be
enforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. However, Franchisor
and Franchisee agree to enforce the provision to the extent the law allows.

8. Waiver of Jury Trial. To the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise Investment
Law, Section 12. H (Waiver of Jury Trial) of the Area Development Agreement is deleted.

9. Waiver of Class Actions; Limitation of Actions. The following is added to the end of
Sections 12.1 (Waiver of Class Actions) and 12.K (Limitations of Actions) of the Area Devel opment
Agreement:

The statutes of limitations under North Dakota Law applies with respect to claims arising
under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Capacity:
Date: Date:
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN RHODE ISLAND

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Developer™).

1. Background. Franchisor and Developer are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20 (the “ Area Development Agreement”) that
has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or
conflicting provisions of the Area Development Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider
have the meanings as defined in the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms
part of the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (@) an offer to sell is made
or accepted in the State of Rhode Island, or (b) Developer is aresident of the State of Rhode Island and
the Studios Developer develops under its Area Development Agreement are or will be operated in the
State of Rhode Island.

2. Governing Law. The following is added at the end of Section 12.A (Governing Law) of
the Area Devel opment Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “ To the
extent required by applicable law, Rhode Island law will apply to claims arising under
the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.”

3. CheieesfForumConsent to Jurisdiction. The following is added at the end of Section
12.F (Consent to Jurisdiction) of the Area Development Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A
provision in an area development agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum
outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with
respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.”

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Capacity:
Date: Date:

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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THE FOLLOWING PAGES IN THIS EXHIBIT ARE
STATE-SPECIFIC RIDERS TO THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN ILLINOIS

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchise are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting
provisions of the Franchise Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the meanings as
defined in the Franchise Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider isbeing signed because (a) Franchisee is domiciled in the State of Illinois, or (b)
the offer for the sale of the franchise iswas made or accepted in the State of Illinois and the Studio that
Franchisee operates under its Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in the State of Illinois.

2. Waiver of Jury Trial; Class Actions. The following is added to the end of Sections 16.8
(Waiver of Jury Trial) and 16.9 (Waiver of Class Actions) of the Franchise Agreement:

Nothing contained in this section shall constitute a condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois, to the extent
applicable.

3. Limitation of Actions. Section 16.12 (Limitation of Actions) of the Franchise Agreement
is amended by adding the following:

However, nothing contained in this section shall constitute a condition, stipulation, or
provision purporting to bind any person to waive compliance with any provision of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinais, to the extent
applicable.

4. llinois Franchise Disclosure Act. The following language is added to the end of the
Franchise Agreement:

Except for the U.S. Federal Arbitration Act and other federal laws in the U.S., the laws
of the State of Illinois will govern this Agreement.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinoisis
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.

Section 41 of the lllinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinoisis void.
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Franchisee's rights upon termination and non-renewal of a franchise agreement are
subject to sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

EIGNATUREPAGETOFOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, “FRANCHISEE”
aDelaware limited liability company
[if anindividual]

By: [Name], individually
Name:

Title: Sign:

Date: Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MARYLAND

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting
provisions of the Franchise Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the meanings as
defined in the Franchise Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) Franchisee is aresident of the State of Maryland; or
(b) the Studio that Franchisee operates under its Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in the State
of Maryland; or (c) the offer to sell sthe franchise was made in the State of Maryland; or (d) the offer to
buy #sthe franchise was accepted in the State of Maryland.

2. Releases. The following is added to the end of Sections 3.2.C (Successor Franchise) and
14.2 (Conditions for Approval of Transfer) of the Franchise Agreement:

Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or
assignment/transfer will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. Initial Franchise Fee. The following is added to the end of Section 5.1 (Initial Franchise
Fee) of the Franchise Agreement:

Pursuant to an order of the Maryland Securities Commissioner, we have posted a Surety
Bond in the requested amount. The terms of the Surety Bond will remain in effect until
we have completed all of our initial obligations to you under the Franchise Agreement
and you have opened your Studio. A copy of the Surety Bond is on file with the
Maryland Securities Commissioner.

4. Insolvency. The following is added to the end of Sections 15.1.A(2) and (3) (Termination
of Franchise by Franchisor) of the Franchise Agreement:

This Section might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Sections
101 et seq.).

5. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction. The following is added to the end of Sections
16.1 (Governing Law) and 16.6 (Eheice—ef—ForumConsent to Jurisdiction) of the Franchise
Agreement:

; provided, however, Franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Maryland law will apply
to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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6. Mediation-and; Mandatory Binding Arbitration. Sections16.3 (Mediation) and 16.4
(Mandatory Binding Arbitration) of the Franchise Agreement are supplemented by adding the
following to the end of the Section:

A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to require
a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation of the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. In light of the Federal Arbitration
Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement is legally
enforceable.

7. Waiver of Jury Trial, Class Actions; Limitation of Actions. The following is added to the
end of Sections 16.8 (Waiver of Jury Trial),16.9 (Waiver of Class Actions) and 16.12 (Limitation of
Actions) of the Franchise Agreement:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, “FRANCHISEE”
aDelaware limited liability company
[if an individual]

By: [Name], individually
Name:

Title: Sign:

Date: Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MINNESOTA

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting
provisions of the Franchise Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the meanings as
defined in the Franchise Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider isbeing signed because (a) the Franchisee is aresident of the State of Minnesota,
(b) the Studio that Franchisee will develop under the Franchise Agreement is or will be located in the
State of Minnesota; andfor (bc) any of the offering or sales activity relating to the Franchise Agreement
occurred in the State of Minnesota.

2. Releases. The following is added to the end of Sections 3.2.C (Successor Franchise) and
14.2 (Conditions for Approval of Transfer) of the Franchise Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply
to the extent prohibited by the Minnesota Franchises Law.

3. Ownership of Marks. The following language is added to the end of Section 4.1
(Ownership of Marks) of the Franchise Agreement:

Provided Franchisee has complied with all provisions of the Franchise Agreement
applicable to the Mark, Franchisor will protect Franchisee's rights to use the Marks and
Franchisor will indemnify Franchisee from any loss, costs or expenses from any claims,
suits or demands regarding Franchisee's use of the Marks in accordance with Minn. Stat.
Sec 80C.12 Subd. 1(g).

4. |Interest and Late Charges. The following language is added to the end of Section 5.11
(Interest and Late Charges) of the Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee and Franchisor acknowledge that under
Minnesota Statute 604.113 Franchisee's penalty for an insufficient funds check will be
limited to $30 per occurrence.

5. Injunctive Relief. The following language is added to the end of Section 12.2 (Injunctive
Relief) of the Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a court will determine if a bond is required to obtain
injunctive relief.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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6. Renewal and Termination. The following is added to the end of Sections 3.2 (Successor
Franchise) and 15.1 (Termination of Franchise by Franchisor) of the Franchise Agreement:

However, with respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, Franchisor will comply
with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified
cases, that Franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and
180 days notice of non-renewal of this Agreement.

7. Lost Revenue Damages. The following language is added to the end of Section
45-4.B15.3.J (Obligations of Franchisee upon Termination, Expiration or Non-Renewal) of the
Franchise Agreement:

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that certain parts of this provision might not be
enforceable under Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J. However, Franchisor and Franchisee
agree to enforce the provision to the extent the law allows.

8. Governing Law. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 16.1 (Governing
Law) of the Franchise Agreement:

Nothing in this Agreement will abrogate or reduce any of Franchisee's rights under the
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 80C or Franchisee's right to any procedure, forum or remedies that
the laws of the jurisdiction provide.

9. Consent to Jurisdiction. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 16.6
(SheieesfFerumConsent to Jurisdiction) of the Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Minn. Stat. Section 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit
Franchisor, except in certain specified cases, from requiring litigation to be conducted outside of
Minnesota. Nothing in this Agreement shall abrogate or reduce any of Franchisee's rights under
Minnesota Statutes chapter 80C or Franchisee's right to any procedure, forum or remedies that
the laws of the jurisdiction provide.

10. Waiver of Punitive Damages-and; Jury Trial. If and then only to the extent required by
the Minnesota Franchises Law, Sections 16.7 (Waiver of Punitive Damages) and 16.8 (Waiver of Jury
Trial) of the Franchise Agreement are hereby deleted.

11. Limitation of Actions. The following is added to the end of Section 16.12 (Limitation of
Actions) of the Franchise Agreement:

; provided, however, that Minnesota law provides that no action may be commenced
under Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.17 more than 3 years after the cause of action accrues.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, “FRANCHISEE”
aDelaware limited liability company
[if anindividual]

By: [Name], individually
Name:

Title: Sign:

Date: Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting
provisions of the Franchise Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the meanings as
defined in the Franchise Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell sthe franchise was made in North
Dakota; or (b) if Franchisee is domiciled in the State of North Dakota; or the Studio that Franchisee
operates under its Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in the State of North Dakota.

2. Releases. The following is added to the end of Sections 3.2.C (Successor Franchise) and
14.2 (Conditions for Approval of Transfer) of the Franchise Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply
to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

3. Covenants Not to Compete. The following is added to the end of Article 13 (Covenants
Not to Compete) of the Franchise Agreement:

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota; however, Franchisor will enforce the
covenants to the maximum extent the law allows.

4. Lost Revenue Damages. The following language is added to the end of Section
45.4.B815.3.J (Obligations of Franchisee Upon Termination, Expiration or Non-Renewal) of the
Franchise Agreement:

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that certain parts of this provision might not be
enforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. Accordingly, this
Section will not be enforced to the extent prohibited by applicable law.

5. Governing Law. Section 16.1 (Governing Law) of the Franchise Agreement is deleted in
its entirety and replaced with the following language:

Except to the extent governed by the Federa Arbitration Act, the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051 et seq.), or other federal
law, and except as otherwise required by North Dakota law, this Agreement, the
franchise, and all claims arising from the relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee
will be governed by the laws of the State of California, without regard to its conflict of
laws rules, except that any state law regulating the sale of franchises or governing the
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relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this section.

6. Mediation-and; Mandatory Binding Arbitration. Sections16.3 (Mediation) and 16.4
(Mandatory Binding Arbitration) of the Franchise Agreement are supplemented by adding the
following to the end of the Section:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law (unless such arequirement is preempted by the Federal Arbitration Act),
mediation or arbitration shall be held at a site to which Franchisor and Franchisee
mutually agree.

7. CheieeefFerumConsent to Jurisdiction. Section 16.6 (Consent to Jurisdiction) of the
Franchise Agreement is supplemented by adding the following to the end of the Section:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law, Franchisee may bring an action in North Dakota for claims arising
under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

8. Waiver of Punitive Damages. The following is added to the end of Section 16.7 (Waiver
of Punitive Damages) of the Franchise Agreement:

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that certain parts of this provision might not be
enforceable under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. However, Franchisor
and Franchisee agree to enforce the provision to the extent the law allows.

9. Waiver of Jury Trial. To the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise Investment
Law, Section 16.8 (Waiver of Jury Trial) of the Franchise Agreement is deleted.

10. Waiver of Class Actions; Limitation of Actions. The following is added to the end of
Sections 16.9 (Waiver of Class Actions) and 16.12 (Limitations of Actions) of the Franchise
Agreement:

The statutes of limitations under North Dakota Law applies with respect to claims arising
under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, “FRANCHISEE”
aDelaware limited liability company
[if an individual]

By: [Name], individually
Name:

Title: Sign:

Date: Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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RIDER TO THE CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN RHODE ISLAND

THIS RIDER (this “Rider”) is made and entered into by and between CYCLEBAR
FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, aDelaware limited liability company with its principal business address at
17877 Von Kaman Ave, Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“Franchisor”), and
, whose principal business addressis

(“Franchisee”).

1. Background. Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider supersedes any inconsistent or conflicting
provisions of the Franchise Agreement. Terms not otherwise defined in this Rider have the meanings as
defined in the Franchise Agreement. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) any of the offering or sales activity relating to the
Franchise Agreement occurred in Rhode Island, or (b) Franchisee is a resident of the State of Rhode
Island and the Studio that Franchisee develops under its Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in
the State of Rhode Island.

2. Governing Law. Thefollowing isadded at the end of Section 16.1 (Governing Law) of the
Franchise Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “ To the
extent required by applicable law, Rhode Island law will apply to claims arising under
the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.”

3. CheieesfForumConsent to Jurisdiction. The following is added at the end of Section
16.6 (Consent to Jurisdiction) of the Franchise Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside
this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a
claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.”

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, “FRANCHISEE”
aDelaware limited liability company
[if an individual]

By: [Name], individually
Name:

Title: Sign:

Date: Date:

[if alegal entity]

[Name], a [state/type]

By:
Name:
Title:
Date:
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EXHIBIT |
LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023-102024 FDD | Ex. | - List of Current Franchisees
1320.010.0023/392786397902




LIST OF OPEN FRANCHISEES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 206222023

Remaining
Development
Rights Under

ADA

Franchisee Address State Zip Code Phone

Ferrara, Keith 935 Bob Wallace Ave SW Suite 103 | Huntsville Alabama 256- 858-
1484
2. Figorski , Jason 2855 W Ray Rd, 9 Chandler Arizona 85224 480- 266- 0
8181
3. Milios, Sarah; 319 S. Regent St, Suite 206 Flagstaff Arizona 86001 928-551- 0
Milios, Greg 6385
4 Pitts, Jen 2484 S. Santan Village Parkway, Gilbert Arizona 85295 303-903-4803 0
Shops J Suite 106 & 107
5. Brown, Damon; 1534 S. Signal Butte Road Suite 101 | Mesa Arizona 85209 972- 816- 0
Brown, Tammy 2668
6. Figorski , Jason 7000 E Mayo Blvd, C-08 Phoenix Arizona 85054 602- 677- 0
7698
7. Figorski , Jason 2470 W. Happy Valley Rd, 1189 Phoenix Arizona 85085 480- 630- 0
8525
8. Gage-Matt-Gage: 10633 N. Tatum, Suite 103 Phoenix Arizona 85028 651.592.2767 0
HerLoucks
Kerri; Loucks
David; Robinson
Jeffrey; Chatfield
Bryce Chatfield
9. Figorski , Jason 7001 N. Scottsdale Rd., D 172/173 Scottsdale Arizona 852538525 | 480-433- 0
0 0952
10. | Teater, Shayla 17711 Chepal-PkwySuitel- Little ReekLITTLE Arkansas 72223 501 257 7514 0
CHENAL PKWY, SUITE 1-111 ROCK
11. | Pavin; SedoLasPecns 20nd]1929 CamariioBerkeley California 930109470 | 8065510 529- 0
CindyMorningstar, | University Ave. 4 384-94844881
Ryan; Cai, Kao
12. | Semmers; 26135-Carmel-Rancho-BlvdA- CarmelBurbank California 939239150 | 831805- 01
HeatherDaniel 33820 W Verdugo Ave -A 5 250390-
Burrell 3369663
13. | Orlando, Rachael 870 Herndon Ave, 102 Clovis California 93612 559- 326- 01
0441
14. | Sklar-Mulcahy, 4130 Sepulveda Blvd, C Culver City California 90230 323- 325- 0
Stephanie 5759
15. | Groen, Kevin; 360 Palladio Parkway, Ste. 405 Folsom California 95630 916- 524- 2
Groen, Shana 7315
16. | Orlando, Rachael 8464 N. Friant Rd, 108 Fresno California 93720 559- 433- 01
6619
17. | Violas, Stephanie; 4245 Campus Drive Irvine California 92612 949- 688- 0
Vincent, Michael 0950
18 | Makhmoor, Hamed | 825 Spectrum Center Drive Irvine California 92618 949-988-0584 ¢}
E & Sahar
18.2 | Abdeali, Abid 1847 Ximeno Ave. Long Beach California 90815 805-217-1099 0
9
19.2 | Hopkins, Kelly; 3160 N Sepulveda Blvd, Space S- Manhattan Beach California 90266 310- 598- 0
o Hopkins, Joe 135 5758
21

=
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Franchisee

Address

Zip Code

Phone

Remaining
Development
Rights Under

ADA

20.2 | Hernandez, Raquel; | 7210 Day Creek Blvd., Suite 117 Rancho Cucamonga California 91739 619-252-7053 0
2 Costello, Rob
21.2 | Dordell, Chris; 42440 Bob Hope Drive, Suite 3 Rancho Mirage California 91739 612-532-8721 0
3 Fenske, Jason
22.2 | Hernandez, Raquel; | 455 W Stuart Ave. B100 Redlands California 92373 909- 855- 0
4 Costello, Rob 6450
23.2 | Telford, Alan 701 Pleasant Grove Blvd, 190 Roseville California 95678 916- 672- 0
5 0572
24.2 | Telford, Alan 1708 15th Street Sacramento California 95811 916- 837- 0
6- 8479
25. | Vaidya, Prachi; 9860 Hibert Street, Suite C-3 San Diego California 92131 201 208-4244 2
Madhav, Prasad
26.2 | Meisenbach, Mark; | 1040 University Ave, B213 San Diego California 92103 619- 832- 0
+ Stephenson-Law, 2955
Joy
27.2 | Shrivastava, Praful 12720 Carmel County Rd., H-110 San Diego California 92130 858- 925- 0
8- 7777
28. | Gadhiya, Manoj 130 Stockton Street, #130 San Jose California 95126 408 444-3844 2
29. | Mehta, Priyanka; 5293 Prospect Road, A & B San Jose California 95129 408 513-6685 0
Mehta, Chanakya
30.2 | Rubenstein, Jana 1646 San Elijo Road, Suite 101 San Marcos California 92078 760- 290- 0
9 3259
31.3 | Tipton, Jennifer; 56 - 31st Avenue San Mateo California 94403 619-861-1939 2
0- Singh Jagatpreet
32.3 | Sklar-Mulcahy, 1221 2nd Street, 100 Santa Monica California 90401 310- 878- 0
i Stephanie 1161
33.3 | Pineda, Dana 14622 Ventura Blvd #201 Sherman Oaks California 91403 323-578- 0
2 0334
34.3 | Bayyari, Jihan 331 West Washington Avenue Sunnyvale California 94086 408- 542- 0
3 9772
35.3 | Makhmoor, Hamed | 26485 Ynez rd, K Temecula California 92591 951- 395- 0
4. & Sahar 1960
E 1724D1
36 | Burrell,Dan 966 S Westlake Blvd. Unit-7 Westlake Village California 91361 310-999-7854 0
36.3 | Ibasco, Mike 535 E Hyman Ave. Aspen Colorado 81611 970- 710- 0
* 1501
38 | Hateh, Liz& 6300-S.-Main St N-103 Aurora Colorado 80016 303-974-6480 0
37.3 | Nickle, Mike 562 E Caslte Pines Pkwy, C1 & C2 Castle Pines Colorado 80108 303- 353- 0
9 2753
40 Benson,-Shauna: 13375 voyager Pkwy, Suite 120 Colorado Springs Colorado 80921 719-465-1661 &}
L] Ledercnnd Ll et Dopns Cenmds Lo e 0
384 720- 287-
2
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2 Locker, Saul 1230 West 38th Ave Denver Colorado 80211 2083 0
39.4 | Chapman, Sydnie, 3300 S. College Ave, 140 Fort Collins Colorado 80525 970- 821- 0
3 Whitmer, Zack 6437
40.4 | Locker, Saul 7600 Landmark Way, Suite A-201 Greenwood Village Colorado 80111 303-927- 0
4. 6889
41.4 | Binke, Dale; Binke, | 8501 West Bowles Ave, 1100 Littleton Colorado 80123 303-928- 0
5 Laurette 1774
42.4 | Binke, Dale; Binke, | 7824 Park Meadows Dr, 150 Lone Tree Colorado 80124 720- 616- 0
6- Laurette 7148
43. | Nickle, Mike 205 Ken Pratt Blvd Longmont Colorado 80501 303 419-7452 0
44.4 | Binke, Dale; Binke, | 459 McCaslin, Suite #6 Louisville Colorado 80027 303-875-4307 0
+ Laurette
45.4 | Russe; ParkerLoveland Colorado 801348053 | 719970 286- 0
8 BethChapman 1125661 McWhinney Blvd 8 648-74441033

Sydnie, Whitmer

Zack
46.4 | Jacobson, Travis & | 14215 Orchard Parkway, 400 Westminster Colorado 80023 720- 500- 0
9 Debbie 5698
47.5 | Anderson, Kevin & | 110 Albany Turnpike, Suite 611-B Canton Connecticut 601906019 | 860- 352- 0
0 Elizabeth 2334
48.5 | Giliotti, Rachel 535 Monroe Turnpike Monroe Connecticut 646806468 | 203-482- 0
2 8633203.482.

8633
49.5 | Ehrlich, Brett; 1010 High Ridge Rd Stamford Connecticut 690506905 | 347617- 1
3 Ehrlich, Whitney 610797-
06381323

50.5 | Bratland, Lindseyi 915 Hartford Turnpike Suite 28 Waterford Connecticut 638506385 | 312917 209- 0
4. 882-37829459
51.5 | Rocco, Cheryl; 55 Memorial Road West Hartford Connecticut 610706107 | 860.930.7474 0
5 Reimer, Diana
52.5| Ghabra, John & 1105 Delaware Ave NE Washington D.C. DC 20002 202- 413- 0
6= Lorenz, Dan & 1854

O'Connor, Sean
53.5 | Klainbaum, Motty 2956 Aventura Boulevard, Suite 1 Aventura Florida 33180 786- 520- 0
* 3698
54. | Renne, Andy 5560 N. Military Trail, 320 Boca Raton Florida 33496 561 672-7682 0
55.5 | Bouhadana, Joseph | 2270 S University Dr, 120 Davie Florida 33324 954- 635- 01
8 2473
56.5 | Kulp, Chase; Litos 525 N. Federal HWY, 100 Fort Lauderdale Florida 33301 954-512- 0
9 Kulp, Chelsea 8899
57.6 | Montone, Jenna; 13499 S Cleveland Avenue Ft Myers Florida 33907 239312 882- 0
o Montone. Dennis 209-05533782
58.6 | Aulisio, Gina; 3597 Southwest 32nd Ct., Suite 40 Gainesville Florida 32608 352- 545- 0
S Siraj.Henna 4445
59.6 | ZartlerBrent& 4700 International Parkway, Suite Heathrow Florida 32771 407.928.4826 10
2 AmyDemattia, 1200

Tanya

3
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60.6 | Havener, Hayes 1035 Riverside Avenue Jacksonville Florida 334- 327-
3 1211
61.6 | Jessica Eilbeck 5010 Gate Parkway Suite TBD Jacksonville Florida 32256 646.620.8889 0
4.
62.6 | De Las Carreras, 9075 SW 162nd Ave., Suite 100 Miami Florida 33196 305- 602- 0
5 Juan 2884
63.6 | Washburn, Mark 9118 Strata Place Naples Florida 34108 617.529.2800 0
6-
64.6 | Adams,Todd-& 8918 Strength Avenue New Port Richey Florida 34655 727-312- 0
+ MicheHleFaggiole 5106

Eric; Faggiole

Tara; Roach

Jessika
65.6 | ZartlerBrent& 13919 Narcoossee-Rd:1361 Alafaya | Orlando Florida 328323276 | 404808 783- 0
8 AmyDemattia, Trail, Suite 100 5 453-47490403

Tanya
66.6 | Zartler, Brent & 7940 Via Dellagio Way Orlando Florida 32819 407-716- 01
9 | Amy 8839
67.7 | Hoss, Kim & Clark, | 4550 Donald Ross Road Palm Beach Gardens | Florida 33418 561- 685- 0
o Frances 9449
68.7 | Delas-Carreras; 13617 S Dixie Hwy #122 Palmetto Bay Florida 33176 305- 964- 0
S JuanAnda, Robert; 5233

Huici, Bruce
69.7 | Fine, David; Fine, 15657Pines Blvd, 15657-61 Pembroke Pines Florida 33027 754~ 400- 0
2 Jess 7777
70.7 | AdamsTFodd-& 1765-E-9-Mile-Read;205 Bartram PensaeelaSt. Johns Florida 325143225 | 321904- 02
3 MicheleSusanne Market Dr. Suite A93160 9 626339-

Krivanek 19805158
71.7 | Hardiman, Ryan i 1413 FampaTallahassee Florida 336093231 | 813407 221- 0
4. | Buddy-& Market Street 2 8/7-56393344

BennisGosselin

Sarah; Gosselin

Chris
72.7 | Rossi, Steve; 5275 University Parkway, 101 University Park Florida 34201 941- 360- 0
5 Hopkins, Paige 8450
73.7 | Dorman, Dayana 3317 Lithia Pinecrest Rd. unit 3335 | Valrico Florida 33510 813-990- 0
6- 7978
74.7 | Adams, Todd & 5410 Murrell Road, Suite 205 Viera Florida 32955 321- 806- 0
+ Michelle 3121
75.7 | Watsen; 9312 Forest Hill Blvd Wellington Florida 33414 561-444-3185 0
8- BalphDoherty

Michelle
76.7 | Scarafino, Lynette; 16016 New Independence Parkway, | Winter Garden Florida 34787 407-757- 01
9 Scarafino, Steve Suite 120 4663
77.8 | Scarafino, Lynette; 110 S Orlando Avenue, Suite 1 Winter Park Florida 32789 407- 821- 01
6 Scarafino, Steve 4660
78.8 | Sheehan, Nick; 3280 Peachtree Rd. NE, - Atlanta Georgia 30305 470-427- 0
S DeMarco, Jen-& 3094

Joe
79.8 | Lynn, Angelo 4794 Ashford Dunwoody Rd. , 800 Dunwoody Georgia 30338 470- 299- 0
2 8782

i

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD | Ex. | - List of Current Franchisees
1320.010.0023/392786397902




Franchisee

Address

State

Zip Code

Phone

Remaining
Development
Rights Under

ADA

80. | Demattia, Tanya 4218 Washington Road, Suite 6 Evans Georgia 808 783-0403 0
81.8 | Lynn, Angelo 4880 Lower Roswell Rd. , 450 Marietta Georgia 30068 770- 672- 0
3 0198
82.8 | Patel, Minty 5525 Abercorn Street Savannah Georgia 31405 912-777- 0
4. 5667
83.8 | Cramer, Nicole 1430 West Appleway, Coeur d'Alene Idaho 83814 208-661-1531 0
5
84.8 | Green/Olander, 3690 E. Monarch Sky Ln, 120 Meridian Idaho 83646 208- 898- 10
6: JP/Michael 7433
85.8 | Figorski, Jason 124 Burr Ridge Parkway Burr Ridge Ilinois 60527 630- 842- 0
* 8676
86.8 | Gaulin, Abby & 175 N Halsted Chicago Illinois 60661 312- 439- 2
8 Mark 1331
87.8 | Gaulin, Abby & 720 N Lasalle Dr. Chicago Ilinois 60654 716-553-2446 02
9 Mark
88.9 | Top, Franklin 190 Waukegan Rd. Unit E Deerfield Ilinois 60015 224-518- 2
0 7915
89.9 | Figorski, Jason 20393 N. Rand Road, 120 Kildeer Ilinois 60074 224- 443- 0
i 8770
90.9 | Korabik, Bob & 362 Yorktown Center, - Lombard Illinois 60148 630- 729- 0
2 Betty 9512
91.9 | Figorski, Jason 7513 W. Lake Street River Forest Ilinois 60305 708- 689- 0
3 8263
92.9 | Fiore, Vincent 2686 E. Main St. St. Charles Illinois 60174 312- 969- 0
4. 9373
95 | Flanagan—Leigh 51-Danada-Square-E ] Hlinois 60189 630-517-0063 1
E LoassEoanana
Jehn
93.9 | Top, Franklin 116 Skokie Blvd. Wilmette Illinois 60091 224-518- 02
6 7915
97 | Wright-Niek 12697-Pennsylvania-St Carmel thdiana 46032 317-798-7589 0
94.9 | Cox, Jeff 111 S Green River Road, Suite G Evansville Indiana 47715 812-213- 0
8- 0081
99 | Wright-Niek L1545 1KEA-Way-Building-P6; Fishers Indiana 46037 347-284-1525 e
95.1 | Blahetka, Russ 6010 W. 86th St., 130 Indianapolis Indiana 46278 317-798- 0
ele} 7061
10 | Hodges, Jeff & 160-Jordan Creek Parkway, Sulile West Des Moines towa 50266 515-669-7089 0
L | Selleen 130
96.% | Figorski, Jason 5053 W, 117th St, - Leawood Kansas 66211 913- 225- 0
02 4569
97.2 | Janszen, John 2860 Richmond Road Lexington Kentucky 40513 N/AB65-770- 01
063 0646
98.1 | Janszen, John 4049 Finn Way Lexington Kentucky 40517 859- 286- 01
04 9703
5
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99.1 | LeckeBrown, 4600 Shelbyville Rd., 104 Louisville Kentucky 40207 502- 890- 0
05 | Annie-&Johnlustin 3216
100. | LeekeBrown, 12951 Shelbyville Rd., 100 Middletown Kentucky 40203 502- 873- 0
06 | Annie-&-Johnlustin 5194
101. | Saveie;Kak 4243 Ambassador Caffery PKWY, Lafayette Louisiana 70508 303-875-4307 0
07| Sovsle 113
B WhitneyCline
Jason; Cline, Nicole
102. | Marchese, Julie 82 HANOVER STREET, SUITE 12 | PertlardPORTLAN Maine 4101 207-671- 0
08 D 2420
103. | Loftin, Gerald 15 Digital Way Maynard Massachusetts 1754 978614- 0
09 344981-
B 23366772
104. | DiChiaro, John & 120-128 Medway Rd. Milford Massachusetts 1757 508- 488- 0
16 | Kiersten 9499
105. | Bass, Jeff 387 Revolution Dr. Somerville Massachusetts 2145 617- 863- 0
11 7588
106. | Ruggeri, Nancy & 386 Washington St. Wellesley Massachusetts 2481 781-235-0520 0
12 | Chris
1L | WayneJeff B Bloomfield-Hills Michigan 48302 248-654-8585 o]
3
107. | Khazaal, Adnan & 41847 Ford Rd. Canton Michigan 48187 313-460-4443 1
4 | Ali
Ty iams, : - — A
5 illiams. Eri Grand-Rapids VHEHGA
108. | Wayne, Jeff 20085 Haggerty Rd. Northville Michigan 48167 248- 653- 0
16 5855
+ obren—tenkolls
Peale
109. | Wilde, Jimmy; 413 N. Main St. Royal Oak Michigan 48067 248-721-4992 0
18 | VanOverbeke, Lisa
9
110. | Pettus, Zach & 2927 Girard Ave S, - Minneapolis Minnesota 55408 612- 353- 01
20 | Nitchals, Jean 4492
Lo | Pebesnsb A et bl s O B e wlimnneen Leoit 612-735-8775 ¢
1 NitchalsJean
12 | DuvendeekJeff 265-Radie-Dr—E Woodbury Minneseota 55125 £51-846-9100 &)
2
6
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111. | Harrison, William 4600 Hardy St. , 20 Hattiesburg Mississippi 601- 852-
23 1678

4. | Stockton, David

5 oo
112. | Schnapp, Paul 11623 Olive Boulevard, A Creve Coeur Missouri 63141 314~ 396- 0
26 6766

+ et
113. | Willard, Robert 2285 Highway K O'Fallen Missouri 63368 636- 321- 0
28 7022
114. | Schnapp, Paul 8027 Dale Ave, - Richmond Heights Missouri 63117 314~ 230- 0
29 9255
115. | Boyd, Lorenzo 5252 N. SERVICE ROAD SAINT PETERS Missouri 63376 636- 278- 0
30 1371
116. | ReHoes; 3330-S-Glenstone-Ave.2047 West SpringfieldBozeman | MisseuriMonta | 658045971 | 417-765- 0
31 | MeganMattox Oak Street SUITE 101-B na 8 93660

E Alicia
117.| Coulter, Dwight & 17255 DAVENPORT ST., SUITE OMAHA Nebraska 68118 402-802-5039 0
32 | Harbourne, Emily 135
118. | Lowe, Chris 2280 Paseo Verde PWKY, 160 Henderson Nevada 89052 725 251-6951 0
119. | Karolin, Carin 80 MORRISTOWN ROAD, UNIT BERNARDSVILLE | New Jersey 7924 917.842.1651
33 25 917-842.1651
13 | BridgeFit 125 Verlvalen St. Closter New-Jersey 7624 201-227-6400 0
4.
13 | Wicks Raymend Sheppes-AtUnion-Hill-Unit13; Benville New-Jersey 7834 646-799-2765 +
5 | R) 3056-NJ-10
13 | BridgeFit 2012 Hudson St. Fort Lee New-Jersey 7024 201-227-6400 0
6
120. | BridgeFitMcGinnis, | 720 Monroe St, C300 Hoboken New Jersey 7030 551- 313- 0
37 Becky & Stubbs 7037

= Jason
121. | McGinnis, Becky & | 65 Bay Street Jersey City New Jersey 7302 201- 375- 0
38 | Stubbs, Jason 4775
122. | Jones-Burton, 277 Eisenhower Parkway Livingston New Jersey 7039 973- 261- 0
39 | Charlotte & Delvin 5647

B Burton
123. | Zaltsman, Alex 351 Millburn Ave Millburn New Jersey 7041 973- 257- 0
40 5543
124. | McGinnis, Becky & | 656 Bloomfield Ave, #8 Montclair New Jersey 7042 973- 337- 0
41 | Stubbs, Jason 8237

7

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD | Ex. | - List of Current Franchisees
1320.010.0023/392786397902




Remaining
Development

Franchisee Address Zip Code Rights Under
ADA

125. | Karolin, Carin 28 Farm View Montvale New Jersey 7645 201- 746- 0
42 9996
126. | Trujillo, Pedro 327 Franklin Ave, 7 Wyckoff New Jersey 7481 201- 897- 0
43 3044
127. | Harden; 9900 Montgomery Blvd NE Suite B | Albuquerque New Mexico 87008 505- 292- 0
44 | MarkWilliams 9825

E Matthew
128. | Fioretth; 173 North 3rd Street Brooklyn New York 11211 718-971- 2321
45 | RebertLundberg 9289

. Lance
129. | Williams, Lee & 950 Franklin Ave, - Garden City New York 11530 516- 515- 02
46 | Christine 0380
130. | FierettibHand 415 Greenwich-St-Unit-1B839 New | New New York 100131174 | 646516 857- 0
47 | Robert York Ave YerkHuntington 3 971-27051020
131. | Fioretti; 39 W 21st St New York New York 10010 646- 329- 021
48 | RebertLundberg 5913

B Lance
132. | Fioretth; 420 Park Ave S New York New York 10016 646- 590- 021
49 | RebertLundberg 1222

B Lance
133. | Fioretti; 51 Astor Place New York New York 10003 646- 882- 021
50 | RebertLundberg 0018

B Lance
134. | Fioretti; 201 East 67th Street UES New York New York 10065 917- 409- 021
51 | RebertLundberg 0835

- Lance

2. | Rahul
135. | Jones-Burton, 5022 Acro St, - Cary North Carolina | 27519 919- 694- 0
53 | Charlotte & Delvin 5400

B Burton
136. | DelplecheCortina; | 4310-Sharon-Read201 S. Estes CharlotteChapel Hill | North Carolina | 282142751 | 617-470- 02
Ei | Debleshe Drive, Space E-01 4 ###9805.660.

B AdexMcBride, Paul 1026
137. | Palmer-MareCarr 7315 Waverly Walk Ave Suite F1-2 | Charlotte North Carolina | 28277 980- 339- 0
55 | Kia; Carr 7620

E Anthony*
138. | Palmer-MareCarr 339 S Kings Dr Charlotte North Carolina | 28204 704- 419- 0
56 Kia; Carr 4080

= Anthony*
139. | Jordan; 20601 Torrence Chapel Road, 5A Cornelius North Carolina | 28031 704~ 657- 0
57 | StuartDemattia 3466

B Tanya

140. | Pettit; #005-Nexts2105 W Cornwallis FayettevilleGreensbo | North Carolina | 283642740 | 916704- 0
58 | ChristyDouglas, Drive, Building B ro 8 263619-

B Thomas Dixon; 88521487

Douglas, Mary
8
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141. | Schermer, Torsten 2309 Matthews Township Parkway, | Matthews North Carolina 704-
59 Ste. 104 907-1000
142. | Cece, Joe & Mary 200 Park at North Hill Street, - Raleigh North Carolina | 27609 984- 269- 0
60 | Laurie 7290
16 | BridgeFit 8744-BrierCreek-PIKAWWY-100 Ralaigh Nerth-Carolina | 27617 919-249-7427 0
I
143. | Douglas, Thomas 400 W 4th Street, - Winston-Salem North Carolina | 27101 336- 829- 0
62 | Dixon 5795
144. | Logan, Mary; 820 43rd Avenue NE Bismarck North Dakota 58501 701- 426- 0
63 Heinert, Taylor 9618
145. | Purton, Joseph 3355 Richmond Rd., 101A Beachwood Ohio 44122 216- 307- 0
64 3077
146. | Olander; 2713 Edmondson Rd. Cincinnati Ohio 45209 513-631-7433 01
65 } Janszen

E John
147. | Olander; 5901 E. Galbraith Rd, Suite 235 Cincinnatti Ohio 45236 513-312- 01
66 i Janszen 5785

E John
148. | Olander; 4201 Weaverton Lane, - Columbus Ohio 43219 614~ 285- 01
67 i Janszen 2314

E John
149. | Zubrzycki, Steve & | 3655 Rigby Rd, - Dayton Ohio 45342 937-557- 0
68 Jane 8225
150. | Wood, John 99 First St. Hudson Ohio 44236 234- 284- 0
69 2990
151. | McElwee, Natalie; 7306 Yankee Rd, - Liberty Township Ohio 45044 513- 847- 0
76 | McElwee, Jon 6671
152. | SmaidiSorg, 10630 Fremont Pike Perrysburg Ohio 43551 419 540-508- 0
#+ | MehamedChad 41958440
153. | Olander; 4020 Powell Rd, 3H-3J Powell Ohio 43065 614- 400- 01
42 | MichaelJanszen 6493

B John
154. | Renner, Jeremiah 1609 West Lane Ave Upper Arlington Ohio 43221 614-571-1768 0
3
155. | Janszen, John 661 Worthington Rd, - Westerville Ohio 43082 614~ 448- 01
74 6718
156. | Yates, Chris 236 Market Street Westlake Ohio 44145 440- 471- 0
7 4820

157. | Allen, Kelly 1942 24th Ave NW Norman Oklahoma 73069 818-469-1442 0
76

9
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158. | Allen, Kelly 5730 N Classen Boulevard Suite 1 Oklahoma City Oklahoma 73118 405- 886- 0
7 &2 1223
L | Ateaaellh e Oklahoma City Oklahoma LAl elgnn s ¢
8
17 | bundbergErik: 9146-S-Yale-Ave: Tulsa Oklahema 74437 918-346-9399 0
9 Lundberg. Joanna
159. | Lundberg, Erik; 1513 E. 15th St, Tulsa Oklahoma 74120 918- 872- 0
80 | Lundberg, Joanna 0443
160. | Nelson, Stefanie 655 SW Powerhouse # 150 Bend Oregon 97702 541-797- 0
8% 0490
161. | Figorski, Jason 2110 NW Allie Ave, 608 Hillshoro Oregon 97124 503- 716- 0
82 2003
162. | Figorski, Jason 12284 Scholls Ferry Rd, - Tigard Oregon 97223 503- 716- 0
83 2001
163. | MeHugh-Cristy; 1475 Old York Road Abington Pennsylvania 19001 610-213-1434 0
84 | Beeth:
E SteveGlatter
Sandy; Moss
Kenneth
164. | Cordivari, Mark 222 East Main Street Collegeville Pennsylvania 19426 714- 305- 0
85 1456
165. | Bugni, Robin 20430 Rte 19 Cranberry Township | Pennsylvania 16066 20724 272- 02
86 575-60485101
166. | Cohen, Jeff 124 Woodcutter St, J2-B Exton Pennsylvania 19341 484- 879- 0
87 4892
167. | Lanigan; 1460 Bethlehem Pike, E North Wales Pennsylvania 19454 267- 470- 0
88 | StephanieByrne 4345
B Daniel*
168. | Fioretty 1521 Locust Street Philadelphia Pennsylvania 19102 267- 324- 021
89 | RebertLundberg 5018
= Lance
169. | Venbrux, Greg & 8001 McKnight Rd., - Pittsburgh Pennsylvania 15237 412-748- 0
96 | Nuch 0560
170. | Bernard, Jonathan 1320 Park Manor Blvd, 201 Pittsburgh Pennsylvania 15205 412- 223- 0
91 5345
19 | BridgeFit 500-W-Cermantown-Pike—1539 Plymeuth-Meeting Pennsylvanta 19462 267-551-4421 &)
2
171. | FriendByrne, 1357 Dilworthtown Crossing West Chester Pennsylvania 19382 610-999-7971 0
93 | RebDaniel*
| 172. | O'Rourke, Lisa 23 Providence Place Providence Rhode Island 2903 401- 680- 0
| 10
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94 0228
173. | Hayes, Claire 371 Putnam Pike Smithfield Rhode Island 2917 401.662.2232 0
95
10| LoenEeb LE Lok S D Chososten Sotrhcoralian | 20050 843-800-5660 0
6-
174. | Hanel, Sharon 4609 Forest Dr. Suite 4 Forest Acres South Carolina | 29206 864-616-1439 0
97
8 Delpleche; Alex
175. | Skoloff, Eric 307 East McBee Ave, B Greenville South Carolina | 29601 864- 451- 0
99 7499
176. | Knowles, Katie & 11 Palmetto Bay Rd, 106B Hllton Head South Carolina | 29928 843-715- 0
60 | Rob 2009
177. | Crowley, Chris & 120 West St. John Street Spartanburg South Carolina | 28306 864-706-0771 0
ot Garrow
178. | Spivey, Brad & 205 Franklin Road, Suite 100 Brentwood Tennessee 37027 615- 727- 0
62 | Trish 7797
179. | Sakhleh, Muna; 2372 Lifestyle Way, Suite 162 Chattanooga Tennessee 37421 423-779-8203 0
03 | Jaber, Sophie
180. | Plisco, Jonathan; 9040 Carothers Pkwy, A-207 Franklin Tennessee 37067 615- 656- 12
04 Plisco, Linda 1323
181. | McAlister, Jason 7685 Farmington Blvd., Suite 101 Germantown Tennessee 38138 901- 249- 01
05 8205
20 | Kumar-Devika 1050 -Glenbrook-Way,-110 Hendersonville Tennessee 37075 615-431-5933 9
6-
182. | Janszen, John 5430 Homberg Drive, - Knoville Tennessee 37919 865- 770- 1
67 0646
183. | McAlister, Jason; 3504 Lake District Drive W, Suite Lakeland Tennessee 38002 901-652-8341 01
02| preidiserdessien 109
184. | McAlister, Jason 588 S Cooper Street Memphis Tennessee 38104 901- 800- 01
09 2680
oL | el ey 2249 Medical Center Parkway, -Suite | Murfreeshoro Tennessee 37129 615-622-1091 ¢
6 A
185. | Spivey, Brad & 3820 CHARLOTTE AVE, #111 Nashville Tennessee 37209 423-748-0131 0
it | Trish
186. | Spivey, Brad & 1004 Division St. , - Nashville Tennessee 37203 615- 727- 0
42 | Trish 0809
1
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Development
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187. | Colten, Laura; 507 Pressler Street, Suite 900 512- 693-
13 | Colten, Kevin 8986
188. | Colten, Laura, 2400 E 6th Street Austin Texas 78702 512 693-8986 1
Colten, Kevin
189. | Salerno, Larry; 3620 Ranch Road 620 Suite 210 Bee Cave Texas 78738 713-703-1325 2
Salerno, Rhonda
190. | Salerno, Larry; 4701 183A Frontage Road, Suite E Cedar Park Texas 78613 512-626-8173 2
14 | Salerno, Rhonda
191. | Massey, Shannon; 11700 Preston Rd, 625 Dallas Texas 75230 214- 484- 0
15 Massey, Blake 9707
192. | Avalos, Jorge 2020 Cedar Springs, 180 Dallas Texas 75201 214-733- 0
16 9473
193. | NettinghamRivers, 3220-Teasley-Lnr#1169595 Sage DentonDallas Fort Texas 762107617 | 940817- 01
17 | KendraJana Meadow Trail Worth 7 #65752-
7 50063221
194. | Hatch, Darron 7470 Cimarron Market El Paso Texas 79912 915- 843- 0
18 8074
21 | Cozad-Greg T Whistlestop-Way-Unit6 Fairview Texas 75204 207-522-2775 2
9
22 | BridgeFit 2550 Cross timbers Rd, 136 Flower Mound Texas 75028 972-703-2780 ¢
0.
195. | Hagstrom-Eric-& 5924 Convair Drive, Suite 440 Fort Worth Texas 76109 972-890-4989 0
2% | AsmberLeigh, Josh;
B Leigh, Jessica
196. | Hagstrom, Eric & 12005 Dallas Parkway, Ste 200 Frisco Texas 75033 972-890-4989 0
22 | Amber
22 | Leal-Guillermo 3233 Seuthwest Freeway Houston Texas 77027 281-928-5919 0
3
22 | Hill-dames 118-\lintage-Park-BLVD-Sta-CB Houston Texas 77070 713-299-4679 0
4.
197. | Hok, Phanary; 2206 Edwards St., A Houston Texas 77007 832- 210- 0
28| Sieleaddele 1110
E Sona
198. | Hatfield, Greg 1533 N. Shepherd Houston Texas 77008 713-993- 0
26 6138
199. | Groegan; 2717 Commercial Center, E190 Katy Texas 77494 346- 388- 0
27 | AlisenCannon 1454
B Brandy; Nnaji
Ninika
200. | Fayad, Sean & Amy | 19230 IH 35 Kyle Texas 78640 512 888-3576 0
201. | Elder, Michelle & 7604 Milwaukee Ave, - Lubbock Texas 79424 806- 368-
28 | Brad 9263
202. | Hagstrom, Eric & 1871 N. Lakeforest Drive, Suite 100 | McKinney Texas 75071 469- 712- 0
29
12
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Franchisee Address State Zip Code Phone Rights Under
ADA

B Amber 7124
203. | Gieb, Leslie 3415 North Loop 250 West, 502 Midland Texas 79707 432- 305- 0
30 9055
204. | Carnes, Abbey 2084 Central Plaza New Braunfels Texas 78130 830- 302- 0
3% 4195
23 | Stelmach, Tracy; 2701 Pearland Pkwyy Pearland Texas 77001 281-835-4639 ¢}
2 Stelmach, Michael
23 | BridgeFit 5801 Preston-Rd- Plano Texas 75093 469-482-0081 9
3
205. | Nottingham, 2071 Summer Lee Drive, R103 Rockwall Texas 75032 903-517-4759 0
34 | Kendra
206. | Dillard, Sandra 19239 Stone Oak Pkwy San Antonio Texas 78258 210- 775- 0
35 5199

2o | BedeckhR L e e DR e Souihlle TFexas 76092 972-703-2757 0
6-
207. | RashidCheung, 18802 University Blvd suite 113 Sugar Land Texas 77479 832- 539- 0
37 | NadiaLeroy 1629

23 | Hilk-James 26400-Kuykendah-Rd-A140 Fhe-Weodlands Texas 77375 832-476-2977 0
8-

23 | Greenland, srttlddnalmand s Se e el s 75703 801-652-7495 ¢
9 Elizchohe: skHte-200

GCreenland—Cody

24 | Pierce, Cody 2324 Marketplace Dr. Waco Texas 76711 254-730-4847 0
0

24 | Openshaw,Secott 24-Pioneer-Crossing;-Suite-100 Saratoga-Springs Utah 84045 801-631-4339 o]
i

24 | Smith;Jay 3561 W.- 11400 South South-Jordan Utah 84095 801-541-7435 0
2
208. | Ryan, John & 3400 Columbia Pike, A Arlington Virginia 22204 703- 685- 0
43 | Marina 0560
209. | Van Kirk, Mark 301 W Broad Street Falls Church Virginia 22046 571- 249- 0
44 3216
210. | Suro, Donna 301 Maltby BLVD, D Henrico Virginia 23233 804- 364- 1
45 6085

6-
211. | Amory, April J. & 1624 Laskin Road, Suite 752 Virginia Beach Virginia 23451 757-575-4458 1
47 | Grubb, Kevin C.
212. | Bushey, Chris 2217 Upton Drive, 810 Virgnia Beach Virginia 23454 757- 689- 0
48 0942

| [213. | FigorskiNewbry, 425- 677-
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Franchisee Address

State

Zip Code

Remaining
Development
Rights Under

ADA

49 JasenMike 7425 166th Ave NE, C250 Redmond Washington 0017
214. | Nett, \eronica; 1280 Harrison St, E1 &E2 Seattle Washington 98109 206- 402- 0
50 | Nett-Beverly 6528
215. | Cramer, Nicole 2525 E 29th Ave ste 2 Spokane Washington 99223 646-799-2765 0
e
216. | Ickert, Mark 1700 Main Street, Suite #B Vancouver Washington 98660 360-862-2227 0
52
217. | Buston,Dean; 20350 W.-Lord St G-1173825 E BrookfieldAppleton Wisconsin 530455431 | 262920- 0
Lo | cehmies Calumet Street 1 505327-

B MarjerieCharles 65560009

David

4. Sehpisidnsess

Zb ) Remmeslm Ll e e e lo e — Meguon R ] 53092 262-518-0320 ¢}
B
218. | Rix, Natalie 1370 Pabst Farms Circle, Suite 360 Oconomowoc Wisconsin 53066 262- 468- 0
- 4804

*Studio reacquired by Company and sold to franchisee in 2023.
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FRANCHISEES THAT HAVE SIGNED FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS BUT ARE NOT YET
OPEN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 26222023

Franchisee

=

Anmrita Pleli

City

Castro Valley

State

California

Contact

amrita.pleli@cyclebar.com

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC

2023-102024 FDD | Ex. | - List of Current Franchisees

1320.010.0023/392786397902

2% Orlando, Rachael Fresno California peter.orlando@cyclebarfresno.com
3. Daniel Kuperschmid San Diego California Daniel .kuperschmid@hyattcyclebar.com
4.5 Hashem, Amir San Francisco California amir.hashem@cyclebar.com
5.6- Hashem, Amir San Francisco California amir.hashem@cyclebar.com
6. % Hashem, Amir San Francisco California amir.hashem@cyclebar.com
7.8 Dhamija, Rinky; Dhamija, Umang San Francisco California umang.dhamija@cyclebar.com
8.40- | Chancellor, Hunter Santa Barbara California hunter.chancellor@cyclebar.com
9.4 | Abdullah, Aamir Torrance California aamir.abdullah@cyclebar.com
10.22. | Locker, Lisa Bdenver Colorado lisa.locker@cyclebar.com
11.43- Locker, Lisa Denver Colorado lisa.locker@cyclebar.com
1216 | Locker, Lisa denver Colorado lisa.locker@cyclebar.com
1347 | Demattia,—FanyaScarafino, Lynette; Scarafino, | Charletteorlando Florida tanya-demattia@clubpilatessteve.scarafino@
Steve cyclebar.com
1419 | Lopez, Lazaro; Gonzalez, Yenia NAParkland Florida lazaro.lopez@cyclebar.com
15.21- | Rodney Ford; Geraldine Rodriguez Sarasota Florida rodney.ford@cyclebar.com
16.25: | Simmons, Michelle Atlanta Georgia michelle.simmons@cyclebar.com
17. Sara Nay; Tyler Nay Boise ldaho tyler.nay@cyclebar.com
18.26- | Flanagan, Leigh Ann; Flanagan, John Chicago Ilinois john.flanagan@cyclebar.com
19.27. | Cliver, Bryan Crown Point Indiana bryan.cliver@cyclebar.com
20.28- | Locke, Annie & John Louisville Kentucky annie.locke@cyclebar.com
21.29: | Russell, Sydni CevingtonMandeville Louisiana sydni.russell@cyclebar.com
22.3%. | Pettus, Zach & Nitchals, Jean Minneapolis Minnesota zach.pettus@cyclebar.com
23.32: | Hilton, Rachel; Hilton, Andrew Kansas City Missouri rhilton@purebarre.com
15




Franchisee City State Contact

24.34- | Willard, Robert St. Louis Missouri robert.willard@cyclebar.com
25.36- | Perlich, Brandon Reno Nevada brandonperlich@yahoo.com
26.37 | Hand—RebertCourtney Bonanno; James | HuntingtenHolbrook New York roberthandjames.bonanno@cyclebar.com

Bonanno
27.38: | Williams, Lee & Christine NAmanhasset New York lee.williams@cyclebar.com
28.39: | Williams, Lee & Christine Nnew ¥york New York lee.williams@cyclebar.com
29.40- | Deuglas—Fhomas—Dixen—Douglas—MaryNeal | GreensberePortland North maryneal .douglaspeterson@cyclebar.com

Peterson CarelinaOregon
30.43- | Bobby Ludwig Allentown Pennsylvania bobby.ludwig@cyclebar.com
31.44- | Plisco, Jonathan; Plisco, Linda Nashville Tennessee jonathan.plisco@cyclebar.com
32.45. | Layton, Brian Nolensville; FN{(Zips: Tennessee brian.layton@cyclebar.com

3135)

33.46. | Fayad-Sean-&-AmyKaty Lee; Logan Lee AustinCollege Station Texas searlogan. fayadlee@cyclebar.com
34.49: | Guzman, Laura; Zuniga, Laura; Hinojos, Esther; | NAOdessa Texas laurazuniga@yahoo.com

Garcia, Angie
35.5% | Georgios Gounaris Alexandria Virginia georgios.gounaris@cyclebar.com
36.52: | Nguyen, Allan AlexandriaAshburn Virginia allan.nguyen@cyclebar.com
37.53: | Amory, April J. & Grubb, Kevin C. Virginia-BeachNorfolk | Virginia april.amory@clubpilates.com
38.54- | Newbry, Mike Seattle Washington mike.newbry@cyclebar.com

16
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EXHIBITJ
LIST OF FRANCHISEES THAT LEFT THE SYSTEM OR NOT COMMUNICATED

**|f you buy this franchise, you
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES TERMINATED, CANCELED, NOT RENEWED

OR FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE NOT COMMUNICATED IN PREVIOUS 10-WEEKS

AS OF 12/3%/262212/31/2023
Franchisee City State Contact Information
1. | FenbergiRichard:-Fenberg; ChandlerPhoenix Arizona 4380-266-8181matt.gage@cyclebar.com Transfer
CraigGage, Matt; Gage, Jennifer
2. | beveday;JutanPavin, Cindy GHbertCamarillo ArizenaCaliforni | 363-983-4803cindy.pavin@rumbleboxin FransferReacquired
a ggym.com
3. | PHenBrown, AtexMitch* PheenixCamarillo | ArizenaCdliforni | 651:592:2767mitch.brown@cyclebar.co FransferCeased
a m Operations - Other
4. | EssterhyKevinSommers, Heather | BerkeleyCarmel Cadlifornia 510-529-4881heather.sommers@cycleba ReaeguiredTerminated
r.com
5. | EesterlytevinMakhmoor LagunaHiHslrvine Cadlifornia 949-446-8466Hamed.makhmoor@cycle Reacquired
Hamed & Sahar bar.com
6. | EastertyKevinBrown, Mitch* tesGateslrvine California 468-628-44+7mitch.brown@cyclebar.co ResegiredCeased
m Operations — Other
7. | EasterhyKevinBrown, Mitch* San-JoseLaguna Cadlifornia 408-513-6685mitch.brown@cyclebar.co ReaeguiredCeased
Hills m Operations — Other
8. | WeiereithMehta, Priyanka; San-MareesLos Cdlifornia 7606-296-3259priyanka.mehta@cyclebar. FransterCeased
Mehta, Chanakya Gatos com Operations — Other
9. | BuHeek;JderdanRedmon, Dwayne AspenNovato ColeradeCalifor 970-710-1501dwayne.redmon@cyclebar FransferCeased
nia .com Operations - Other
10.| MarshaHPavin, SeettCindy Castle ColeradeCalifor 303-353-2753cindy.pavin@rumbleboxin FransferReacquired
PiresThousand nia ggym.com
Oaks
11.| Brown, Mitch* Thousand Oaks Cadlifornia mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
12.| Danie Burrell Westlake Village Cdlifornia dan.burrell @cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
13.| Hatch, Liz & Epstein, Tom Aurora Colorado liz.hatch@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
14.| Cetfey;Marty-&CraigBenson, Colorado Springs Colorado #49-465-1661shauna.benson@cyclebar.c FransferReacquired
T | Shauna; Benson, Conway om
15.| Brown, Mitch* Colorado Springs Colorado mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
= | = Other
16.| Locker, Saul Denver Colorado saul.locker@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
17.] Russo, Beth Parker Colorado beth.russo@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
18.| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Fairfield Connecticut joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
= - Other
19.| Lamas, Gabriel:i-Hoeegenbergen; BeeaRatenDoral Florida 561-672-7682glamas@purebarre.com ReaequiredCeased
Z | bames Operations - Other
20.| EasterhyKevinBouhadana, BoeeaRatenFalls Florida 561-672-7682j oseph.bouhadana@cycleb FransferTermination
3 | Joseph ar.com
21.| Lamas-Gabriel*Bouhadana, BeratMiami Florida #86-319-9944j oseph.bouhadana@cycleb Ceased—Other
4~ | Joseph ar.com ReasonsTermination
g Adams, Todd & Michelle New Port Richey Florida todd.adams@cyclebar.com Transfer

**|f you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.
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Franchisee City State Contact Information
HemingBarbara& Fert Florida 954-512-8899brent. zartler@cyclebar.co FransferReacquired
JensthanZartler, Brent & Amy LauderdaleOrlando m
Brown, Mitch* Orlando Florida mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
Wells-Suzanne &Bryn;De Las Pembreke Florida #54-400-77+fuan.del ascarreras@cycleb Transfer
Carreras, Jeuan-&-Mark PinesPalmetto Bay ar.com
Adams, Todd & Michelle Pensacola Florida todd.adams@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
Hardiman, Ryan (Buddy) & Tampa Florida kelli.hardiman@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Dennis Other
Rossi, Steve University Park Florida annie.locke@cyclebar.com Transfer
Watson, Dalph Wellington Florida dalph.watson@cyclebar.com Transfer
- : - Weston Florida 954-966-21483mitch.brown@cyclebar.co ReaequiredCeased
tamasBrown, Mitch* m Operations - Other
Brown, Mitch* Evanston Illinois mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
Fanagan, Leigh Ann; Flanagan, Wheaton Illinois leighann.flanagan@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
John Other
Wright, Nick Carmel Indiana nick.wright@cyclebar.com Reacquired
Brown, Mitch* Carmel Indiana mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
Wright, Nick Fishers Indiana nick.wright@cyclebar.com Reacquired
Brown, Mitch* Fishers Indiana mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
Hodges, Jeff & Calleen West Des Moines lowa jeff.hodges@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
OesterhingteeLocke, Annie & Mariettalouisville GeergiaKentuck F#0-672-0198annie.locke@cyclebar.com Transfer
John y
CoxLocke, JaHneeAnnie & John Coeur telaheK entucky 208-661-153%annie.locke@cyclebar.com Transfer
d-AteneMiddletow
n
40. — - Lafayette Louisiana 303-875-4367kal.savoie@cyclebar.com Transfer
T | RebinSavoie, Kal; Savoie,
A Wh|tn§x
41| Sa, Paul Boston M assachusetts paul .sa@cyclebar.com Termination
42.| EastertyWayne, KevinJeff New teuisanaMichig | 564-417-8139eff.wayne@cyclebar.com Reacquired
I OrleansBloomfield | an
B Hills
Brown, Mitch* Bloomfield Hills Michigan mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
44. Williams, Shanna; Williams, Eric Grand Rapids Michigan shanna.williams@cyclebar.com Reacquired
45, | Olivares, Sergio; Lebron, Rochester Hills Michigan carlos.cruz@cyclebar.com Reacquired
— | Anabella; Cruz, Carlos; Perez,
Paola
46.| Brown, Mitch* Rochester Hills Michigan mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other
47.| Figorski , Jason Troy Michigan jason.figorski @cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
— | = - - Other

**|f you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.
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Franchisee City State Contact Information
48.| Pettus, Zach & Nitchals, Jean Minnetonka Minnesota zach.pettus@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
49.| Duvendeck, Jeff Woodbury Minnesota jeff.duvendeck@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
50.| Busker;Kostorz, Susann; Chesterfield Missouri 636-778-3880david.stockton@cyclebar.c FransterCeased
2 | Stockton, David om Operations - Other
51.| Hardin, Natalie; Hardin, Jon Columbia Missouri natalie.hardin@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
52.| Ehapman,-BebHilton, Rachel; Le€'s Summit Missouri 816-874-0555rachel.hilton@cyclebar.co FranskerCeased
3~ | Hilton, Andrew m Operations - Other
53.| Hilton, Rachel; Hilton, Andrew Kansas City Missouri rachel.hilton@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
54.| Rolloos, Megan Springfield Missouri M egan.rolloos@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
55.| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Closter New Jersey joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
= - Other
56. Wicks, Raymond (RJ) Denville New Jersey raymond.wicks@cyclebar.com Reacquired
57.| Brown, Mitch* Denville New Jersey mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
= | = - Other
58.| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Fort Lee New Jersey joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
= - Other
59.| JoeDeMarco Hoboken New Jersey joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Transfer
@ Harden, Mark Albuguerque New Mexico mark.harden@cyclebar.com Transfer
61. Fioretti, Robert Brooklyn New York rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
62.| Fioretti, Robert New York New York rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
@ Fioretti, Robert New York New York rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
64. Fioretti, Robert New York New York rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
65.| Fioretti, Robert New York New York rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
@ Fioretti, Robert New York New York rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
67.| Lundberg, Lance New York New York lance.lundberg@purebarre.com Ceased Operations -
| —/—— D - Other
68. Singh, Alka; Singh, Rahul Cary North Carolina aka.singh@cyclebar.com Transfer
69.| Jenkins, Valyn & Josht Cay North Carolina josh.jenkins@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
70.| EasterhyPamer, kevinMarc HendersenCharlott | NevadaNorth #25-251-6951marc.palmer@cyclebar.co Reacquired
4 € Carolina m
71.| Fitzgerald,Pat-and-BarbPalmer NermanCharlotte OklahemaNorth 405-593-3061marc.palmer@cyclebar.co Reacquired
5 | Marc Carolina m
72.| Delpleche, Cortina; Delpleche, Charlotte North Caradlina alex.del pleche@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
| Al Other
73. Jordan, Stuart Corndlius North Carolina stuart.jordan@cyclebar.com Transfer
B Pettit, Christy Fayetteville North Carolina christy.pettit@cyclebar.com Transfer
75.| Becker, Cristina; Becker, Fabiot Fayetteville North Caralina cristina.becker@clubpilates.com Ceased Operations -
= Other
76.| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Raleigh North Carolina joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

**|f you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.
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Franchisee City State Contact Information

Other
77.| Brown, Mitch* West Fargo North Dakota mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
78.| Michael Dauberman and Lauren Canton Ohia Michadl.Dauberman@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
— | Cifoni Other
79.| Smaidi, Mohamed Perrysburg Ohia mohamed.smaidi @cyclebar.com Transfer
80.| FiHzgerald-Pat-and-BarbAllen Oklahoma City Oklahoma 405-905-8007kelly.allen@cyclebar.com ReaequiredCeased
& | Kely Operations - Other
81.| Lundberg, Erik; Lundberg, Joanna | Tulsa Oklahoma joanna.lundberg@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
% McHugh, Cristy; Booth, Steve Abington Pennsylvania steve.booth@cyclebar.com Transfer
83. Lanigan, Stephanie North Wales Pennsylvania jaime.lanigan@cyclebar.com Reacquired
84.| Fioretti, Robert Philadelphia Pennsylvania rfioretti @purebarre.com Transfer
85.| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Plymouth Meeting Pennsylvania joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
86.| Friend, Rob West Chester Pennsylvania rob.friend@cyclebar.com Reacquired
87.| Lee Bob Charleston South Carolina bob.lee@cyclebarmtpleasant.com Reacquired
88.| Brown, Mitch* Charleston South Carolina mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
— | —/—/——— - Other
89. e Delpleche Fort Mill South Carolina 561-239-780al ex.del pleche@cyclebar.c FransterCeased
7| Cortina; Delpleche, Alex om Operations - Other
90.| Arthur,HaleyKumar, Devika GermantownHende | Tennessee 9061-249-8265devika.kumar@cyclebar.c FransferReacquired
8 rsonville om
91.| Arthur,HaleyBrown, Mitch* MemphisHenderso | Tennessee 961-800-26806mitch.brown@cyclebar.co FransferCeased
g nville m Operations - Other
92.| Kelsey, Troy Murfreesboro Tennessee troy.kelsey@cyclebar.com Reacquired
93.| Brown, Mitch* Murfreesboro Tennessee mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
94.| Lacour—BunnJanaeNottingham Cedar-ParkDenton Texas 512-626-8173kendra.nottingham@cycle FransferReacquired
T | Kendra bar.com
95.| EShungBrown, Hvig-& PaltasDenton Texas 234-484-9767mitch.brown@cyclebar.co FransterCeased
I | MelissaMitch* m Operations - Other
96.| HendrenCozad, GrantGreg PaltasFairview Texas 234-733-9473¢greg.cozad@cyclebar.com FransterCeased
zZ Operations - Other
97.| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Flower Mound Texas joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
= Other
98.| Hagstrom, Eric & Amber Fort Worth Texas eric.hagstrom@cyclebar.com Transfer
99 - : - EPassHouston Texas 915-843-8674bhavesh.joshi @cyclebar.c FransferReacquired
3 | CliffHill, James om
10(| Brown, Mitch* Houston Texas mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
- Other
10:| Leal, Guillermo Houston Texas guillermo.leal @cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

Other

**|f you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.
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Franchisee City State Contact Information

g Grogan, Alison Katy Texas alison.grogan@cyclebar.com Transfer

10| FraneiaHantkaStelmach, Tracy; <an Texas 2106-688-4055tracy.stelmach@cyclebar.c ReaequiredCeased

4~ | Stelmach, Michael AnteniaPearland om Operations - Other

10:| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Plano Texas joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -
Other

10| Brown, Mitch* San Antonio Texas mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

10t| Sheehan, Nick; DeMarco, Joe Southlake Texas joe.demarco@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

10'| Rashid, Nadia Sugar Land Texas Nadia.Rashid@CycleBar.com Transfer

10¢| Pierce, Cody Waco Texas cody.pierce@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

10¢| Brown, Mitch* The Woodlands Texas mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

1u Hill, James The Woodlands Texas bhavesh.joshi @cyclebar.com Reacquired

11:| Greenland, Elizabeth; Greenland, Tyler Texas elizabeth.greenland@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

— | Cody Other

11:]| Openshaw, Scott Saratoga Springs Utah scott.openshaw@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

11| Smith, Jay South Jordan Utah jay.smith@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

11:| Suro, Donna Midlothian Virginia donna.suro@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

11| LecFigorski , KetthJason SpekaneRedmond Washington 646-799-2765jason.figorski @cyclebar.c Transfer

5 om

11¢| Duston, Dean; Schmidt, Marjorie Brookfield Wisconsin dean.duston@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

E Duston, Dean; Schmidt, Marjorie Madison Wisconsin dean.duston@cyclebar.com Reacquired

11¢| Brown, Mitch* Madison Wisconsin mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

- Other

g Duston, Dean; Schmidt, Marjorie Madison Wisconsin dean.duston@cyclebar.com Reacquired

12(| Brown, Mitch* Madison Wisconsin mitch.brown@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

_ | =/=/—— - Other

12:| Ramm, Jaclyn Mequon Wisconsin jaclyn.ramm@cyclebar.com Ceased Operations -

Other

* Studi o hastemperaribyopened and closed and-wit-reepen-in 2023-upen-finaization-of-eurreacquisition.

FCeased operations as of December 31, 2023 but has since reopened

**|f you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.
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EXHIBIT K
FORM OF AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
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CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Area Development Agreement (this “ Agreement”) is made effective as of the Effective Date
by and between CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with
its principal business address at 17877 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100 Irvine, CA 92614 (“ Franchisor”),
and the person or entity identified as the “ Developer” in the signature blocks below (“ Developer”). The
Effective Date is the date Franchisor signs this Agreement as shown beneath its signature hereto.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, Franchisor owns, administers and grants franchises for a system of fitness studios
(the “ Studios’) that are currently identified by and use the trademark “ CycleBar” and other related
trademarks and service marks designated from time to time by Franchisor (the “Marks’), that reflect
distinctive interior design and display procedures, and color scheme and décor (the “ Trade Dress’), and
that use certain of Franchisor’'s certain intellectual property including trade secrets, copyrights,
confidential and proprietary information, and designated training and exercise methods and know-how,
fitness equipment, furniture and fixtures, marketing, advertising and sales promotions, cost controls,
accounting and reporting procedures, and personnel management systems (together with the Marks and
Trade Dress, the “ System”). Studios offer specialized instruction and related services that Franchisor
authorizes from time to time and offer and sell certain merchandise and other products Franchisor
authorizes for sale from time to time.

WHEREAS, based on Developer’s own investigation and diligence, Developer has requested that
Franchisor grant Developer the right to acquire multiple franchises (each a “Franchise’) for the
development and operation of Studios (the “ Development Rights’) in a defined geographic area (the
“Development Ared’) pursuant to an agreed upon schedule (the “ Development Schedul€”) set forth in
this Agreement and, to support Developer’s request, Developer and, if applicable, its owners have
provided Franchisor with certain information about its and their background, experience, skills, financial
condition and resources (collectively, the “ Application Materials’). In reliance on, among other things,
the Application Materias, Franchisor is willing to grant Developer the Development Rights on the terms
and conditions contained in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of and reliance on the foregoing Recitals (which are
incorporated herein by reference), the agreements described below, and other valuable consideration,
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the pParties agree as follows:

1. OWNERSHIP; PRINCIPALS

If Developer is not a natural person (a “Business Entity”), Developer agrees, represents and
warrants to Franchisor that: (1) it was validly formed and is-ang-will maintain, throughout the Term
(defined in Section 2.A below), its existence and good standing under the laws of the state of its
formation and qualified to do business in the jurisdictions covered by the Development Area; (2) Exhibit
A to this Agreement describes al of Developer's owners and their interests in Developer as of the
Effective Date; (3) each of Developer’s owners that has at |east 10% direct or indirect ownership ef-at
least-10%-of the-ewnership-interests in Devel oper-{each-a-“Prineipal), and their spouse, will sign and
deliver to Franchisor its then-standard form of Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment (the
“Guaranty”), the current form of which is attached as Exhibit B hereto; (4) the only business Devel oper
will own or operate during the Term will be the exercise of the rights granted to it under this Agreement
and any other agreement between it and Franchisor or its successors and assigns; and (5) at Franchisor’s
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request, Developer will furnish Franchisor true and correct copies of all documents regarding
Developer’s formation, existence, standing, and governance.

2. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

A Grant and Term. Franchisor grants Developer the Development Rights, which must be
exercised in strict compliance with this Agreement. The Development Rights may be exercised from the
Effective Date and, unless sooner terminated as provided herein, continuing through the earlier of (1) the
date on which the last Studio, which is required to be opened in order to satisfy the Development
Schedule, opens for regular business, or (2) the last day of the last Development Period (defined in
Section 2.C) (collectively, the “Term”). Developer accepts the grant of the Development Rights and
agrees to, at al times, faithfully, honestly, and diligently perform its obligations under this Agreement
and fully exploit the Development Rights during the Term and throughout the entire Devel opment Area.
Developer may not subcontract or delegate to any third parties any of its rights or obligations under this
Agreement.

B. Development Area; Reservation Of Rights. The Development Rights may only be
exercised for Studios to be located in the Development Area identified on Exhibit A hereto. Aslong as
Developer is in compliance with this Agreement and except with respect to Non-Traditiona Locations
(defined below), Franchisor will not, during the Term, (1) operate, or grant the right to anyone else to
operate, a Studio within the Development Area, or (2) grant Development Rights to anyone else to
develop Studios within the Development Area. A “Non-Traditional Location” is (a) any location that is
situated within or as part of a larger venue or facility and, as aresult, is likely to draw the predominance
of its customers from those persons who are using or attending events in the larger venue or facility (for
example, “big box” gyms and/or fitness facilities, cruise ships, military bases, shopping malls, airports,
sports facilities and stadiums, industrial or office complexes, hotels, train stations and other
transportation facilities, travel plazas, casinos, hospitals, theme parks, convention centers,
colleges/universities, multi-unit residential properties, and other similar captive market locations).

For the avoidance of doubt, Franchisor reserves for itself and its affiliates all rights not expressly
granted to Developer in this Agreement and the right to do all things that Franchisor does not expressly
agree in this Agreement not to do, in each case, without regard to proximity to the Development Area and
without any compensation to Developer, and on such terms and conditions as Franchisor deems
appropriate. Without limitation, Franchisor and its affiliates may, themselves or through authorized third
parties (and Developer is not granted the right to): (a) open and operate, and license third parties the right
to open or operate, Studios utilizing the Marks and System outside the Development Area; (b) market,
offer and sell products and services similar to those offered by Studios (such as private label products
that Franchisor may develop and training programs) under a different trademark or trademarks at any
location, both within or outside the Development Area; (c) use the Marks and other aspects of the
System, as well as any other marks Franchisor may designate, to distribute products and services through
alternate channels of distribution, including without limitation, via the Internet and other e-commerce
channels, catalog sales, direct mail or wholesale, anywhere either within or outside the Development
Area; (d) acquire, or be acquired by, or merge with, any company, including a company operating or
licensing one or more businesses offering products or services similar to those offered by any Studio
located within or outside the Development Area, and subsequently operate (or license a third-party the
right to operate) these businesses and alow them to incorporate certain elements of the System
(excluding the Marks and Trade Dress) regardless of location; (€) develop or become associated with and
engage in other businesses, including other fitness concepts and systems, and/or award franchises under
such other concepts for locations anywhere, including inside and outside of the Development Area; (f)
use the Marks and System, and license others to use the Marks and System, to engage in any other
activities not expressly prohibited by this Agreement; and (g) open and operate, or license third parties
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the right to open or operate, Studios at Non-Traditional Locations both within and outside the
Development Area.

C. Development Schedule. The Development Schedule is set forth on Exhibit A hereto.
Each period described in the Development Schedule is a “Development Period.” Developer (or its
approved affiliate) must open and operate Studios in the Development Area, each pursuant to a written
franchise agreement and related agreements signed by Franchisor and a franchisee (each a “ Franchise
Agreement”), as necessary to satisfy the requirements of each Development Period, but Devel oper shall
not be required to open, in total, more than the cumulative number of Studios shown for the last
Development Period. The Development Schedule is not a representation (express or implied) by
Franchisor that the Development Area can support, or that there are or will be sufficient sites for, the
number of Studios specified in the Development Schedule or during any particular Devel opment Period.
Franchisor is relying on Developer’ s knowledge and expertise of the Development Area and Developer’s
representation that it has conducted its own independent investigation and has determined that it can
satisfy the development obligations under each Devel opment Period of the Development Schedule.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section, Franchisor will provide Developer with a
one-time reasonable extension of time not to exceed 90 days to comply with its development obligations
in any one of the Development Period as set forth in the Development Schedule (see Exhibit A),
provided: (i) Developer has already executed alease for, or otherwise obtained, a Site (defined in Section
2.D below) that Franchisor approves for any Studio(s) it is required to open and operate during that
Development Period; and (ii) Developer notifies Franchisor of its need for such an extension no less than
30 days prior to expiration of that Development Period. The pParties agree and acknowledge that
Franchisor’s grant of this one-time extension under this Section will not extend, modify or otherwise
affect the expiration of any of Developer’s subsequent Devel opment Periods or subsequent devel opment
obligations.

D. Locating Sites for Studios. Despite any assistance Franchisor may provide, Devel oper
is entirely responsible to locate and present to Franchisor proposed sites for Studios in the Development
Area as necessary to comply with the Development Schedule (each a “ Site”). Developer agrees to give
Franchisor al information and materials it requests to assess each proposed Site as well as Developer’s
and its proposed affiliate’s financia and operational ability to develop and operate a Studio at the
proposed Site. Franchisor has the absolute right to reject any site or any affiliate (a) that does not meet
Franchisor’s criteria or (b) if Developer or its affiliates are not then in compliance with any existing
Franchise Agreements executed pursuant to this Agreement or operating its or their Studios in
compliance with the mandatory specifications, standards, operating procedures and rules that Franchisor
periodically prescribes for operating Studios. Franchisor agrees to use its reasonable efforts to review
and evaluate the proposed Sites within 30 days after it receives al requested information and materials.
If Franchisor accepts a proposed Site, Developer (or its approved affiliate) must timely sign a separate
Franchise Agreement for the Site as described in Section 2.E below.

E. Execution of Franchise Agreements. Simultaneously with the execution of this
Agreement, Developer (or its approved affiliate) must sign and deliver to Franchisor a Franchise
Agreement and related documents representing the first Franchise Developer is obligated to acquire
under this Agreement. Developer (or its approved affiliate) must thereafter open and operate a Studio
according to the terms of that Franchise Agreement. Thereafter, once Franchisor has accepted a Site, and
prior to signing a lease or te-otherwise securing possession of the Site, Developer (or its approved
affiliate) must sign Franchisor’s then-current form of Franchise Agreement and related documents, the
terms of which, with the exceptions provided hereunder, may differ substantially from the terms
contained in the form of Franchise Agreement Franchisor is using to grant Franchises on the Effective
Date, except that the percentage of Gross Sales on which Royalty Feesis calculated will be the same as
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expressed in the first Franchise Agreement signed concurrently with the execution of this Agreement.
Each Franchise Agreement will govern the development and operation of the Studio at the accepted Site
identified therein. Franchisor may refuse to issue and enter into a Franchise Agreement if (a) inits sole
discretion, it has not approved Developer’s proposed affiliate, (b) Developer has not established to
Franchisor’s satisfaction that it has the operational and financial capacity to develop and operate the
proposed Studio, (c) Developer and its affiliates are not then in compliance with any agreements to which
they are a party with Franchisor or its affiliates, (d) Developer or its affiliates have failed to pay any
amounts owed to Franchisor or its affiliates during the preceding 12 months, or (e) Developer or its
approved affiliates and their respective owners fail to sign and return to Franchisor the Franchise
Agreement and all ancillary agreements and required fees within 15 days following Franchisor’s delivery
of the execution of copy of the Franchise Agreement to Developer or its approved affiliate.

3. STUDIO CLOSINGS

If, with Franchisor’s permission, Developer (or its approved affiliate) permanently closes any of
its Studios, the closed Studio will count toward satisfaction of the Development Schedule only if (a) as of
the end of the Development Period in which the Studio closes, Developer and its affiliates are otherwise
in compliance with this Agreement, all Franchise Agreements executed pursuant to this Agreement, and
all other agreements with Franchisor or its affiliates, and (b) within nine (9) months after Franchisor
grants its permission for the closed Studio to close, Developer (or its approved affiliate) develops and
commences operation of a replacement Studio in compliance with an applicable Franchise Agreement.
If, during the Term, Developer transfers a Studio in accordance with the transferred Studio’s Franchise
Agreement, the transferred Studio shall continue to be counted in determining Developer’s compliance
with the Development Schedule so long as it continues to be operated as a Studio. If, at any time, the
transferred Studio ceases to be operated as a Studio, it will not count toward satisfaction of the
Development Schedule.

4. DEVELOPMENT FEE

Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, Developer must pay to Franchisor a
nonrecurring and nonrefundable area development fee equal to the amount shown on Exhibit A hereto
(the “ Development Fee”). The Development Fee is deemed fully earned by Franchisor upon execution of
this Agreement in consideration of lost development opportunities and is nonrefundable under any
circumstances. For each Franchise Agreement applicable to the Studios Developer isrequired to openin
satisfaction of the Devel opment Schedule, Devel oper shall not be required to pay the initial franchise fee
under each Franchise Agreement so long as Developer and its affiliates are in compliance with this
Agreement and all other agreements with us, including each Franchise Agreement.

5. NO LICENSE TO THE MARKS

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary under this Agreement, this Agreement does not
grant Developer (or any of its affiliates) any right to use the Marks. The right to use the mMarks is
granted only under Franchise Agreements. Developer (and its affiliates) may not use any Mark as part of
any corporate or trade name or as its (or their) primary business name or with any prefix, suffix or other
modifying words, terms, designs, symbols or in any modified forms.

6. COVENANTS REGARDING COMPETITIVE ACTIVITIES

A Noncompetition Restrictions. Developer acknowledges that, under each Franchise
Agreement executed pursuant to this Agreement, the Restricted Parties (as defined in the Franchise
Agreements) are subject to certain restrictions and covenants regarding activities which are deemed
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competitive with those of Franchisor, including restrictions regarding Competing Businesses, as that term
is defined in the Franchise Agreement (the “ Noncompetition Restrictions’). Developer acknowledges
and agrees that it and its owners are subject to, and will comply with, all of the Noncompetition
Restrictions described in the Franchise Agreements, each of which is adopted herein as though copied in
its entirety. Developer further agrees that, in addition to any obligations with respect to Noncompetition
Restrictions under the Franchise Agreements, for two (2) years after the expiration or sooner termination
of this Agreement or after Developer or an owner of Developer has assigned its interest in this
Agreement or in Developer (as applicable), the Restricted Parties or the transferring owner (as
applicable) shall not own, maintain, engage in, be employed as an officer, director, or principal of, lend
money to, extend credit to, lease/sublease space to, provide services to, or have any interest in or
involvement with, any other Competing Business: (a) within the Development Area; (b) within 10 miles
outside the boundaries of the Development Area, or (¢) within a 10-mile radius of any Studio that is
open, under lease or otherwise under development as of the date this Agreement expires or is terminated
or, asto atransferring owner, the date of such transfer.

B. Enforcement of Covenants. Developer agrees that: (a) the restrictions contained and
described in this Article 6 are reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interests of the System
and Franchisor, (b) the existence of any claimsit may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising out
of this Agreement, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement of the covenantsin this Article 6, and
(c) Developer's or any Restricted Party’s violation of the terms of this Article 6 will cause irreparable
injury to Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law is available and that Franchisor shall be
entitled, without bond (which requirement is hereby waived), to preliminary and permanent injunctive
relief and damages, as well as an equitable accounting of all earnings, profits, and other benefits arising
from such violation, which remedies shall be cumulative and in addition to any other rights or remedies
to which Franchisor shall be entitled. Developer shall pay all costs and expenses, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by Franchisor in connection with the enforcement of this
Article 6. If Developer or a Restricted Party violates any post-term or post-transfer restriction described
in this Article 6, the restrictions contained herein shall remain in effect until two (2) years after
Developer or such Restricted Party begins to comply with those restrictions. If Developer contests the
enforcement of this Article 6 and enforcement is delayed pending litigation, and if Franchisor prevails,
the period of non-competition shall be extended for an additional period equal to the period of time that
enforcement of this Article 6 is delayed. Courts are authorized and directed to reduce the scope or
duration (or both) of the provision(s) in issue solely to the extent necessary to render it enforceable
and/or reasonable and to enforce the provision so revised. Franchisor may, in its discretion and upon
written notice, reduce the scope of any covenant not to compete, or any portion thereof, without
Developer’s consent.

7. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES; INDEMNIFICATION

A. Independent Contractor. The only relationship between Franchisor and Developer
created by this Agreement is that of independent contractor. The business conducted by Developer is
completely separate and apart from any business that may be operated by Franchisor and nothing in this
Agreement shall create a fiduciary relationship between them or constitute either pParty as agent, legal
representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, servant or fiduciary of the other pParty for
any purpose whatsoever. Developer is not an affiliate of Franchisor, and neither pParty shall have
authority to act for the other in any manner to create any obligations or indebtedness that would be
binding upon the other pParty. Neither pParty shall be in any way responsible for any acts and/or
omissions of the other, its agents, servants or employees and no representation to anyone will be made by
either pParty that would create an implied or apparent agency or other similar relationship by and
between the parties.
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B. Indemnification. Developer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Franchisor, its
owners, affiliates, successors and assigns, and the directors, officers, owners, managers, employees,
servants, agents of each (collectively, the “ Indemnitees’), harmless from and against any and all 1osses,
damage, claims, demands, liabilities and causes of actions of every kind or character and nature, as well
as costs and expenses incident thereto (including reasonable attorneys fees and court costs), that are
brought against any of the Indemnitees {eeHectively—the~Clahms-)-that arise out of or are otherwise
related to Developer’s or an Indemnitee’s (a) breach or attempted breach of, or misrepresentation under,
this Agreement or in connection with the exercise of the Devel opment Rightsin any manner other than as
authorized herein, (b) ownership, construction, development, management, or operation of any Studios
that Developer or its affiliates own, (C) gross negligence or intentional misconduct, and/or (d) alleging
Developer's or its representatives violation of Applicable Laws as set forth in Section 13.D below.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Indemnitee may choose to engage counsel and defend against any
such €claim and may require immediate reimbursement from the Developer of all expenses and fees
incurred in connection with such defense. This indemnity will continue in full force and effect
subsequent to and notwithstanding this Agreement’s expiration or termination. Indemnitees need not
seek recovery from any insurer or other third party, or otherwise mitigate its losses and expenses, in order
to maintain and recover fully a claim against Developer under this Section. Any Indemnitee’s failure to
pursue a recovery or mitigate a loss will not reduce or ater the amounts that person may recover from
Developer under this Section.

8. TERMINATION

A Termination of Franchise by Franchisor. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement
for any of the following reasons:

(@D Termination Without Cure Opportunity. Franchisor may terminate this
Agreement and all rights granted hereunder, without affording Developer any opportunity to cure,
effective immediately upon delivery of written notice, if:

@ Developer has made any material misrepresentation or omission in the
Application Materials or otherwise in connection with applying for the Development Rights or in
acquiring the rights granted under any other agreement between Developer or its affiliates and Franchisor
or any of Franchisor’s affiliates;

(b) Developer experiences any of the following events: (i) it admits its
inability, or is unable, to pay its debts as they become due or perform its obligations under this
Agreement, (ii) it makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iii) it files a petition in bankruptcy,
or an involuntary petition in bankruptcy isfiled against it, (iv) areceiver is appointed for its business, (v)
afina judgment against it remains unsatisfied or of record for at least 30 days, or (vi) it is dissolved or
liquidated;

(© Developer fals to satisfy any requirement under the Development
Schedule;

(d) Developer or any of its principal officers, directors, partners, managing
members or owners who have signed a Guaranty is convicted of or pleads no contest to afelony or other
crime or offense that, in Franchisor’s reasonable opinion, adversely affects the reputation of the System
or the goodwill associated with the Marks;
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(e Developer falsifies any financial reports, records, or other information
required to be provided by Developer to Franchisor under this Agreement;

(f) A Restricted Party fails to comply with the Noncompetition Restrictions
set forth in Article 6 herein;

(9) Developer or its owners make an unauthorized direct or indirect Transfer
or attempted or purported Transfer; or

(h) Developer commits or suffers a default of: (i) a provision of this
Agreement within six (6) months following a previous violation of the same provision, or (ii) its
obligations under this Agreement on three (3) or more separate occasions within any
12-consecutive-month period, in either case regardless of whether Franchisor notifies Developer of the
defaults or the defaults are subsequently cured.

2 Termination with Cure Opportunity. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement
and all rights granted hereunder, effective immediately on delivery of written notice, if:

@ Developer fails to abtain Franchisor’s prior written approval or consent
any time such approval or consent is required by this Agreement, fails to comply with any provision of
this Agreement in respect of which Franchisor is not authorized, under Section 8.A(1) above, to
terminate immediately, or failsto act in good faith in carrying out the terms of this Agreement and, in any
case, does not correct such failure within 30 days after delivery of Franchisor’s written notice of such
failure; or

(b) Developer or its affiliates fail to pay when due any amount owing to
Franchisor or its affiliates under this Agreement or any other agreement and does not correct such failure
within 10 days after delivery of Franchisor’s written notice.

B. Cross-Default. If there are now, or hereafter shall be, any other agreements in effect
between Developer or any of its affiliates and Franchisor or any of its affiliates (including, without
limitation, any Franchise Agreement), a default by Developer or any of its affiliates and/or owners under
the terms and conditions of this Agreement or any other such agreement, shall at the option of
Franchisor, constitute a default under this Agreement and all such other agreements.

C. Obligations of Developer upon Termination or Expiration. Immediately upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason:

(@D All rights and privileges granted by Franchisor to Developer shall immediately
cease and be null and void and of no further force and effect, and all such rights and privileges shall
immediately revert to Franchisor; and

2 Developer and the Restricted Parties shall comply with the Noncompetition
Restrictions set forth in Article 6 of this Agreement and all other obligations that are triggered by or,
either expressly or by their nature, are intended to survive the termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

Termination or expiration of this Agreement shall not affect, modify or discharge any claims,
rights, causes of action or remedies, which Franchisor may have against Developer, whether under this
Agreement or otherwise, for any reason whatsoever, whether such claims or rights arise before or after
termination.
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9. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

A By Franchisor. Franchisor shall have the right, in its discretion, without the need for
Developer’s consent, to transfer, assign or delegate all or any part of its rights or obligations herein.

B. By Developer and its Owners. Franchisor is granting the Development Rights based on
its assessment of the unique characteristics and capabilities of Developer and its owners to satisfy their
obligations under this Agreement. All rights and interests of Developer arising from this Agreement are
personal to Developer. Except as otherwise provided in this Article 9, Developer and its owners may not,
without Franchisor’s prior written consent, voluntarily or involuntarily, by operation of law or otherwise,
sell, assign, transfer, pledge or encumber this Agreement (or any direct or indirect interest in this
Agreement), the Development Rights, or any direct or indirect ownership interest in Developer (each a
“Transfer”). Any purported Transfer not conducted in accordance with this Article 9 shall be null and
void.

C. Conditions for Approval of Transfer. Developer must provide Franchisor with all
information or documents that Franchisor requests about the proposed Transfer, the transferee, and its
owners. Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold its approval of a proposed Transfer, but Developer
agrees that the failure to satisfy any of the following conditions shall be a reasonable basis for Franchisor
to withhold or otherwise condition its consent to a proposed Transfer: (1) the Developer must not be in
default of the Development Schedule, (2) the prospective transferee, in Franchisor’'s reasonable
judgment, must be of good moral character and reputation, has no conflicting interests, has a good credit
rating and sufficient and competent business experience, aptitude and financial resources acceptable to
Franchisor (taking into consideration its then-current standards for Devel opers and any special resources
required to comply with the obligations under this Agreement); (3) Developer must pay Franchisor a
transfer fee of $10,000 (except in those cases set forth at the end of this Section where only an
administrative fee is charged), as well as any applicable broker fees due in connection with the
transaction; (4) Developer and its related parties must, pursuant to a form provided by Franchisor,
provide a general release of all claims against Franchisor and its related parties; (5) the proposed
transferor and transferee and their respective owners must execute Franchisor’'s form of consent to
transfer pursuant to which, among other things and at Franchisor’s option, either (i) transferee agrees to
execute Franchisor’s then-current form of area development agreement that will then govern the balance
of the Term, or (ii) this Agreement is assigned to and assumed by the proposed transferee; (6) all monies
owed, however arising, by Developer or its affiliates to Franchisor, its affiliates, and all suppliers must be
paid; (7) there must not be an outstanding default of any provision of this Agreement or of any other
agreement between Developer or its affiliates and Franchisor or its affiliates;, and (8) at Franchisor’s
discretion, the Transfer of this Agreement must not be made separate and apart from the Transfer to the
same transferee of all Franchise Agreements that were signed pursuant to this Agreement. If Developer is
a natural person, instead of a transfer fee, as provided in clause (3) above, Developer shall pay, when
requesting Franchisor’s consent, an administrative fee of $500 if the proposed Transfer isto an entity that
is wholly owned by Developer or $1,500 if the proposed Transfer is to a member of Developer's
immediate family.

D. Right of First Refusal. If Developer or any of its owners desire to engagein a Transfer,
they must receive a written bona fide offer from athird party, then promptly notify Franchisor in writing
and send Franchisor an executed copy of the offer. Franchisor shall have the right and option,
exercisable within 30 days after actual receipt of such notification and all information regarding the
proposed Transfer requested by Franchisor, including copies of any signed contracts related to the
proposed Transfer, to purchase the interests described in the written offer. Closing on the purchase must
occur within 60 days from the date of notice by Franchisor to the Developer of Franchisor’s election to
purchase. If Franchisor elects not to accept the offer within the 30-day period, Devel oper must, subject to
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Section 9.C above, complete the Transfer described in the written offer within 60 days after the date on
which Franchisor declines or is ho longer entitled to elect to purchase the interests. Any material change
in the terms of any offer before closing shall constitute a new offer subject to the same rights of first
refusal by Franchisor as in the case of an initial offer. Failure of Franchisor to exercise the option
afforded by this Section shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement. If the
offer from a third party provides for payment of consideration other than cash or involves certain
intangible benefits, Franchisor may elect to purchase the interest proposed to be sold for the reasonable
cash equivalent, or any publicly traded securities, including its own, or intangible benefits similar to
those being offered. If the pParties cannot agree within a reasonable time on the reasonable cash
equivalent of the non-cash part of the offer, then such amount shall be determined by an independent
appraiser designated by Franchisor, and his determination shall be binding.

10. DEVELOPER’S RECORDS AND REPORTS

Developer must keep accurate records concerning all transactions and written communications
between Franchisor and Developer relating to its activities under this Agreement. Franchisor’s duly
authorized representative has the right, following reasonable notice, at al reasonable hours of the day to
examine al Developer’s records with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and has full and
free access to records for that purpose and for the purpose of making extracts. All records must be kept
available for at least three (3) years after preparation. Developer must furnish to Franchisor monthly
written reports regarding Developer’s progress on its compliance with the Devel opment Schedule and in
satisfaction of its other obligations under this Agreement.

11. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS

All notices which the pParties hereto may be required or permitted to give under this Agreement
shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or mailed by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested, postage paid, or by reliable overnight delivery service. Notices sent to Franchisor must
be delivered to the address show in the opening paragraph of this Agreement, attention: President.
Notices sent to Developer must be delivered to the address shown on Exhibit A hereto, to the attention of
the person indicated on Exhibit A. AEither pParty may change its notice address at any time by written
notice given to the other pParty as herein provided. Notices will be deemed delivered when actually
delivered if delivered by hand, three (3) business days after postmark by the United States Postal Service
if delivered by certified or registered mail, or the next business day after deposit with reliable overnight
delivery serviceif delivered in that manner.

12. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

. Franchisor and Developer agree that all matters relating to arbitration will be governed by the

substantive and procedural provisions of the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. §8 1 et seq.), which they
acknowledge and agree will supersede any conflicting provisions of any state's laws relating to
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arbitration. Except to the extent governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, the United States Trademark
Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051et seq.), or other applicable federal laws, this
Agreement and any other agreement between Franchisor (or its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries) and
Developer (or its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries, if applicable), and the rights granted and
relati onships created thereunder, shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of California, without
regard to its conflicts of laws rules, except that the provisions regarding competitive activities shall be
interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state in which the Development Area is
located. The Parties further acknowledge and agree that the adoption of Californialaw in this Section is
not intended to circumvent or, in any manner, satisfy any jurisdictional requirements contained in any
such laws that are expressly and specifically directed to the offer or sale of franchises or the relationships
between franchisors and franchi sees.

. Developer agrees that, except as set forth in Section 12.E below, before it or any of its owners
or _representatives initiates an arbitration or litigation against Franchisor, its parents, affiliates, and
subsidiaries, or their respective owners, officers, directors, employees or representatives, Devel oper will
provide Franchisor with written notice of the underlying claim or dispute (the “ Dispute’) specifying, in
detail, the precise nature and grounds of the Dispute. Within thirty (30) days after delivery of such claim
or dispute to Franchisor, Franchisor and Developer will use good faith efforts to discuss and resolve the
Dispute informally for a reasonable period which shall be no more than sixty (60) days unless mutually
extended by the Parties. This Section shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.

unable to resolve informally, as described in Sectlon 12.B above, to mediation to be conducted by JAMS
using its then-current mediation rules and procedures (see www.jamsadr.com/mediation) and to take
place at Franchisor’s or, as applicable, Franchlsor S successor’s or assign’ ) then- current principal pI ace
of busi ness (currently, Irvi ne, Cdifornia) : I . al

set—feﬁh—k&em—may—be—qeeemeaH-y—ehﬁeFeed—by—FFaHehleer Each pParty WI|| bear |ts own costs efln
part| Cipati nq in the medi atlon and Franchlsor and Devel oper WI|| share JAM S and the mediator’s fees

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023-102024 FDD | Ex. K — Form of Area Development Agreement

1320:616:002/3927881320.010.003/397904




D. Mandatory B|nd|nq Arbltratlon Exeept—as—provided—in—Section—12E—ef—this

waives the obllqatlon to medlate (as descrlbed in Sectlon 12. C) or the mformal dlspute processes
described in Sections 12.B and 12.C do not resolve the Dispute to the Parties' satisfaction, all
controversies, disputes, or clalms between Franchlsor or any of its parents, affiliates, and empleyeesy-oen
an . bsidiaries, and its and their
r&pectlve sharehetelersowners offlcers dlrectors agents and employees (the Franchlsor ParUeS) on
the etherone hand, eA-w y O:

parents, afflllatea—( and subsrdlarles anyd eﬁts and the|r respectlve owners, guarantors eﬁ-l-l-ratee—anel

, : , a —officers,
di rectors agents and employees)—(Ha—Franehrser (the ! Developer Partlee’) on the other hand arising
out of or related to: (1) this Agreement or any other agreement between any of the Franchisor Parties and
Developer Parties; (2) the relationships withbetween any Franchisor Parties and Developer_Parties; oF
(H+3) the scope or valldlty of thls Agreement or any other agreement between—Deveteper—er—any—et—rts

erreferenced in cI ause ( 1) above or any prowsron of any of such agreements (|ncI udi ng the valldlty and

scope of the arbitration provision under this Section, whi ch Franchlsor and Devel oper acknowledges |sto
be determined by an arbitrator, not a court)-{ez A !

4 or (4) any System Standard, must be submitted for binding arbitration, on demand
of either Party, to JAMS. The arbitration proceedings will be conducted by one mutually acceptable
arbitrator and, except as this Section otherwise provides, according to JAMS then-current
Comprehensive Arbitration Rules & Procedures (see
www.jamsadr.com/rules-comprehensive-arbitration/). If the Parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator,

an arbitrator haV| ng at least f|ve (5) years experlence in the areas involved will be appm nted by JAMS

Al

anemeeeseka&appheabte—ﬁaneh%r—sproceedl ngs wi II be conducted at aswtable Iocatl on chosen by
the arbitrator that is within 50 miles of Franchisor’s (or its successor’s or assign’s, as applicable)

then current prlnd pal place of busr ness (currently, Irvine, Cahforma)eeanetheeteeaﬂenﬁthat—Franehrser

AII matters relatl ng to arbltratlon WI|| be governed by the Federal Arbltratl on Act (9 U.sSC. §§ 1 et seq. )
The interim and final awards of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon each pParty, and judgment
upon the arbitrator's awards may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

The arbitrator has the right to award or include in his or her awards any relief which he or she
deems proper, including-witheutHmitatien,- money damages, pre- and post-award interest, interim costs
and attorneys fees, specific performance, and injunctive relief, provided that the arbitrator may not
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declare any of the trademarks owned by Franchisor, or its parents, affiliates, and subsidiaries, generic or
otherwise invalid:, or award any punitive or exemplary damages against any Party to the arbitration
proceeding (Franchisor and Developer hereby waiving to the fullest extent permitted by law any such
right to or claim for any punitive or exemplary damages against any Party to the arbitration proceeding).

Franchisor and Developer will share equally in al fees and costs assessed by JAMS in
connection with initiating and conducting the arbitration proceedings, and each Party agrees to pay its
share of such fees and costs as they become due. |f a Party fails to timely pay such fees or costs, the
other Party may, in its discretion, advance such costs on behalf of the nonpaying Party. At the
conclusion of the arbitration, the arbitrator shall award to the prevailing Party its fees and costs,
including all reasonable experts’, attorneys and other professionals’ fees incurred in the proceedings.

4yranchisor-and-Develeperagreetoln any arbitration proceeding, each Party will be bound by

the prowsons of any appllcable contractual or statutory Ilmltatlons provision, whichever expires earlier.

! i Each pParty must submit or
flle any clalm whi ch would constitute a compulsory counterclalm (as deflned by Rule 13 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding. Any claim which is not submitted or filed as
required will be forever barred. The arbitrator may not consider any settlement discussions or offers that

might have been made by eitherFranchisor-er-Develeperany Party.

The arbitrator shall have full authority to manage any necessary exchange of information among

the Parties with a view to achieving an efficient and economical resolution of the dispute. The Parties
may only serve reasonable requests for documents, which must be limited to documents upon which a
Party intends to rely or documents that are directly relevant and material to a significant disputed issuein
the case or to the case's outcome. The document requests shall be restricted in terms of time frame,
subject matter and persons or entities to which the requests pertain, and shall not include broad
phraseology such as “al documents directly or indirectly related to.” No interrogatories or requests to
admit shall be propounded, unless the Parties later mutually agree to their use.

The provisions of this Section are intended to benefit and bind certain third-party
non-signatories. The provisions of this Section will continue in full force and effect subseguent to and
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notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Any provisions of this Agreement
below that pertain to judicial proceedings shall be subject to the agreement to arbitrate contained in this
Section.

If any court or arbitrator determines that all or any part of this Section is unenforceable with
respect to a particular dispute, controversy or claim that otherwise would be subject to arbitration under
this Section, then all Parties agree that this arbitration clause shall not apply to that dispute, controversy
or clam and that such dispute, controversy or claim shall be resolved in a judicial proceeding in
accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement.

The parties to any mediation or arbitration will execute an appropriate confidentiality agreement,
excepting only such disclosures and filings as are required by law.

Nothing in this Agreement, including the provisions of Sections 12.B through 12.D, bars

Franchisor’s right to seek and obtain in any court of competent jurisdiction injunctive or other equitable
relief against actual or threatened conduct that it believesis likely to cause loss or damage to the Marks,
its proprietary information, or the System, in each case, under customary equity rules, including
applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and injunctions. Developer agrees that Franchisor may
obtain such injunctive relief in addition to such further or other relief as may be available at law or in
equity. Franchise agrees that Franchisor will not be required to post abond to obtain injunctive relief and
that Developer’'s only remedy if an injunction is entered against it will be the dissolution of that
injunction, if warranted, upon due hearing (all claims for damages by injunction being expressly waived

hereby).

F. Cheice—oFForumConsent to Jurisdiction. Subject to the obligation to submit to
binding arbitration under Section 12.D above, Franchisor and Developer agree that all controversies,
disputes, or claims between them or any Franchisor Parties and Developer Parties arising out of or related
to this Agreement or any other agreement between a Franchisor Party and a Developer Party or their
relationships with each other must be commenced exclusively in state or federal court closest to
Franchisor’s (or its successor’'s or assign's, as applicable) then-current principal place of business
(currently, Irvine, California), and the Parties irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of those courts and
waive any objection to either the jurisdiction of or venue in those courts.

13

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023-102024 FDD | Ex. K — Form of Area Development Agreement
1326-016:002/3927881320.010.003/397904




G. Waiver of Punitive Damages..— Developer hereby waives to the fullest extent permitted
by law, any right to or claim for any punitive, exemplary, incidental, indirect, special or consequential
damages (including, without limitation, lost profits) against Franchisor arising out of any cause
whatsoever (whether such cause be based in contract, negligence, strict liability, other tort or otherwise)
and agrees that in the event of a dispute, that Developer’s recovery is limited to actual damages. If any
other term of this Agreement is found or determined to be unconscionable or unenforceable for any
reason, the foregoing provisions shall continue in full force and effect, including, without limitation, the
waiver of any right to claim any consequential damages. Nothing in this Section or any other provision of
this Agreement shall be construed to prevent Franchisor from claiming and obtaining expectation or
conseguential damages, including lost future royalties for the balance of the Term if it is terminated due
to Developer’s default, which the pParties agree and acknowledge Franchisor may claim under this
Agreement.

H. W&weF—eHﬁFy#HalWAIVER OF JURY TRIAL—FFaHehlseF—and—DeveLepeF-heFeby

. FRANCHISOR AND DEVELOPER HEREBY WAIVE THEIRRIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY

IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR EQUITY,
REGARDLESS OF WHICH PARTY BRINGS SUIT. THIS WAIVER SHALL APPLY TO ANY
MATTER WHATSOEVER BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO WHICH ARISES OUT OF OR IS
RELATED IN ANY WAY TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE PERFORMANCE OF EITHER PARTY,
AND/OR DEVELOPER'S PURCHASE FROM FRANCHISOR OF THE DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
AND/OR ANY GOODS OR SERVICES.

. FRANCHISOR AND DEVELOPER AGREE THAT ALL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT

OF OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, OR THE DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS, WILL BE
CONDUCTED ON_ AN _INDIVIDUAL, NOT A CLASSWIDE BASIS, AND THAT ANY
PROCEEDING BETWEEN DEVELOPER, DEVELOPER'S GUARANTORS AND FRANCHISOR OR
ITS THEIR RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES, OFFICERS, OWNERS, OR EMPLOYEES MAY NOT BE
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CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY OTHER PROCEEDING BETWEEN FRANCHISOR AND ANY
OTHER THIRD-PARTY.

J. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. The prevailing pParty in any action described in this
Article 12 shall be entitled to recover reasonable compensation for preparation, investigation, court costs,
arbitration costs (if applicable) and reasonable attorneys and other professionals’ fees (collectively,
“Costs’), from the non-prevailing pParty as fixed by an arbitrator or court of competent jurisdiction.
Separate and distinct from the right of a prevailing pParty to recover Costs pursuant to this Section 12.J,
the prevailing pParty shall also be entitled to receive all Costs related to the enforcement of any
arbitration award or judgment entered. Furthermore, the right to recover post-arbitration award and post
judgment expenses, costs and attorneys’ fees shall be severable and shall survive any award or judgment
and shall not be deemed merged into such judgment.

K. Limitation of Actions. Developer agrees that no legal action or claim arising out of or
under this Agreement may be asserted by Developer against Franchisor unless brought before the
expiration of one (1) year after the act, transaction or occurrence upon which such action is based or the
expiration of one (1) year after the Developer becomes aware, or should have become aware after
reasonable investigation, of facts or circumstances reasonably indicating that Developer may have a
claim against Franchisor hereunder, whichever occurs sooner, and that any action not brought within this
period shall be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off. Developer hereby waives the right to
obtain any remedy based on alleged fraud, misrepresentation, or deceit by Franchisor, including, without
limitation, rescission of this Agreement, in any mediation, judicial, or other adjudicatory proceeding
arising hereunder, except upon a ground expressly provided in this Agreement, or pursuant to any right
expressly granted by any applicable statute expressly regulating the sale of franchises, or any regulation
or rules promulgated thereunder.

L. Third Party Beneficiaries. Franchisor’'s officers, directors, owners, agents and/or
employees are third-party beneficiaries of the provisions of this Agreement, including the dispute
resolution provisions set forth in this Article 12, each having authority to specifically enforce the right to
mediate and arbitrate claims asserted against such person(s) by Developer.

13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A Severability. Each provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, shall be
considered severable and if any such provision is held by an arbitrator or by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be unenforceable due to any applicable existing or future law or regulation, such portion
shall not impair the operation of or have any effect upon, the remaining portions of this Agreement which
will remain in full force and effect. No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to Franchisor or
Developer by this Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or
remedy herein or by law or equity provided or permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other
right or remedy.

B. Waiver and Delay. No failure, refusal or neglect of Franchisor to exercise any right,
power, remedy or option reserved to it under this Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance by
Developer with any obligation, condition, specification, standard or operating procedure in this
Agreement, shall constitute a waiver of any provision of this Agreement and the right of Franchisor to
demand exact compliance with this Agreement, or to declare any subsequent breach or default or nullify
the effectiveness of any provision of this Agreement. Subsequent acceptance by Franchisor of any
payment(s) owed to it under this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Franchisor of any
preceding breach by Developer of any terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement.
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The following provision applies if Developer or the franchise granted hereby are subject to
the franchise registration or disclosure laws in California, Hawaii, lllinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia,
Washington, or Wisconsin: No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a
Developer in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on
behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

C. Franchisor’s Discretion. Except as otherwise specifically referenced herein, all acts,
decisions, determinations, specifications, prescriptions, authorizations, approvals, consents and similar
acts by Franchisor may be taken or exercised in the sole and absolute discretion of Franchisor, regardless
of the impact upon Developer. Developer acknowledges and agrees that when Franchisor exercises its
discretion or judgment, its decisions may be for the benefit of Franchisor or the System and may not bein
the best interest of Developer as an individual area developer.

D. Developer’s Responsibility. It is Developer’s sole responsibility to conducts its business
hereunder in compliance with al applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations (“ Applicable
Laws’). Developer acknowledges that nothing in this Agreement shall, or may be construed to, create
any type of employer or joint employer relationship between (a) Developer or any of Developer’s
personnel, and (b) Franchisor in any matter.

E. No Recourse Against Nonparty Affiliates. Developer agrees that it will look only to
Franchisor to perform under this Agreement. Franchisor’s affiliates are not parties to this Agreement and
have no obligations under it. Developer may not look to Franchisor’'s affiliates for performance.
Developer agrees that Franchisor's and its affiliates members, managers, owners, directors, officers,
employees and agents shall not be personally liable or named as a party in any action between Franchisor
or its affiliates and Developer or its affiliates or their respective owners.

F. Non-Disparagement. Developer agrees that it will not (and will use its best efforts to
cause its current and former owners, officers, directors, principals, agents, partners, employees,
representatives, attorneys, spouses, affiliates, successors and assigns not to) (i) make any untrue or
derogatory statements concerning Franchisor and its affiliates, as well as their present and former
officers, employees, shareholders, directors, agents, attorneys, servants, representatives, successors and
assigns; or (ii) undertake any act which would (@) subject the Marksto ridicule, scandal, reproach, scorn,
or indignity, (b) negatively impact the goodwill of Franchisor or its affiliates, the Marks, other

components of the System, or any other brands owned or controlled by Franchisor or its affiliates, or (c)
constitute an act of moral turpitude.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the exhibits hereto, constitute the entire
and only agreement between the pParties concerning the granting and awarding the Development Rights
granted hereunder, and supersede al prior and contemporaneous agreements. There are no
representations, inducements, promises, agreements, arrangements or undertakings, oral or written,
between the pParties other than those set forth herein. Except for those permitted to be made unilaterally
by Franchisor hereunder, no amendment, change or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on
either pParty unless mutually agreed to by the pParties and executed by their authorized officers or
agents in writing. This Agreement does not alter other agreements between Franchisor or its affiliates
and Developer or its affiliates. Nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement, however, is

16
CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023-102024 FDD | Ex. K — Form of Area Development Agreement
1320-010:002/3927881320.010.003/397904




intended to disclaim the representations Franchisor made in the Franchise Disclosure Document that
Franchisor furnished to Developer. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
agreement. Faxed, scanned or electronic signatures shall have the same effect and validity, and may be
relied upon in the same manner, as original signatures.

[Signature Page Follows]
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[signature page to Area Development Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pParties have executed this Agreement on the dates set forth
below to be effective as of the Effective Date.

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Capacity:
EFFECTIVE DATE: Date:
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EXHIBIT A
TO
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

1. Name and Address of Developer:

Developer Name:
Attention:
Address:

Email Address:

2. Form of Owner (check and complete one):
Individual
____ Corporation ___ Limited Liability Company __ Partnership
State Formed: Date:
3. Owners. The following identifies the owner that Developer has designated as, and that

Franchisor approves to be, the Operating Principal and lists the full name of each person who is one of

Developer’'s owners-{as-defined--the-Bevelopment-Agreement), or an owner of one of Developer’s

owners, and fully describes the nature of each owner’s interest (attach additional pagesif necessary).

Owner’s Name Type / %-age of Interest
Operating Principal: %
Other Owners: %
%
4, The Development Fee is
5. The Development Area is comprised of:
, as depicted on the map

attached to this Exhibit. If the Development Areaisidentified by counties or other political subdivisions,
political boundaries will be considered fixed as of the date of the Development Agreement and will not
change, notwithstanding a political reorganization or change to the boundaries or regions.

6. The Development Schedule is as follows:

Expiration of Development Period Number of New Studios Number of Studios
to be Opened During Open as of the End of
the Development Period | the Development Period

Ex.A-1
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7. Additional Terms or Modifications to This Agreement (which terms, if any, will control any
inconsi stencies between the following and the terms in the body of this Agreement):

[insert as applicable]

CYCLEBAR FRANCHISING SPV, LLC, [NAME OF DEVELOPER]
aDelaware limited liability company

By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Capacity:

Date: Date:
Ex.A-2
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MAP OF DEVELOPMENT AREA

o
>

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD | Ex. K — Form of Area Development Agreement
1320.016-002/3927881320.010.003/397904




EXHIBIT B TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
GUARANTEE, INDEMNIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

For value received, and in consideration for, and as an inducement to CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC

(the *“ Franchisor”) to execute the Area Development Agreement (the “ Development Agreement”), dated _
, 20__ (the “ Effective Date"), by and between Franchisor and
or his assignee, if a partnership, corporation or limited liability company is later formed (the
“Developer”), the undersigned (each a “Guarantor”), jointly and severaly, hereby unconditionally
guarantee to Franchisor and its successors and assigns the full and timely performance by Developer of
each obligation undertaken by Devel oper under the terms of the Development Agreement.

Upon demand by Franchisor, Guarantor will immediately make each payment required of Developer
under the Development Agreement. Guarantor hereby waives any right to require Franchisor to: (a)
proceed against Developer for any payment required under the Development Agreement; (b) proceed
against or exhaust any security from Developer; or (c) pursue or exhaust any remedy, including any legal
or equitable relief, against Developer. Without affecting the obligations of Guarantor under this
Guarantee, Indemnification and Acknowledgment (the “ Guarantee”), Franchisor may, without notice to
Guarantor, extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or obligation of Developer, or settle, adjust or
compromise any claims against Devel oper.

Guarantor waives notice of amendment of the Development Agreement and notice of demand for
payment by Developer and agrees to be bound by any and all such amendments and changes to the
Development Agreement.

Guarantor hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Franchisor harmless against any and all losses,
damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys fees,
reasonable costs of investigations, court costs, and arbitration fees and expenses) resulting from,
consisting of, or arising out of or in connection with any failure by Developer to perform any obligation
of Developer under the Development Agreement, any amendment, or any other agreement executed by
Developer referred to therein.

Guarantor hereby acknowledges and agrees to be individually bound by all obligations and covenants of
Developer contained in the Development Agreement, including those related to non-competition.

If Guarantor is a business entity, retirement or investment account, or trust acknowledges and it agrees
that if Developer (or any of its affiliates) is delinquent in payment of any amounts guaranteed hereunder,
that no dividends or distributions may be made by such Guarantor (or on such Guarantor’s account) to its
owners, accountholders or beneficiaries or otherwise, for so long as such delinquency exists, subject to
applicable law.

This Guarantee shall terminate upon the expiration or termination of the Development Agreement, except
that this Guarantee shall continue in full force and effect with respect to al obligations and liabilities of
Developer and Guarantor that arise from events that occurred on or before the effective date of such
expiration or termination or that are triggered by or survive expiration or termination of the Development
Agreement This Guarantee is binding upon each Guarantor and its respective estate, executors,
administrators, heirs, beneficiaries, and successors in interest.

The validity of this Guarantee and the obligations of Guarantor(s) hereunder shall in no way be
terminated, restricted, diminished, affected or impaired by reason of any action that Franchisor might
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take or be forced to take against Developer, or by reason of any waiver or failure to enforce any of the
rights or remedies reserved to Franchisor in the Devel opment Agreement or otherwise.

The use of the singular herein shall include the plural. Each term used in this Guarantee, unless
otherwise defined herein, shall have the same meaning as when used in the Development Agreement.

The provisions contained in Article 12 of the Development Agreement (Resolution of Disputes),
including, without limitation, Section 12.A (Governing Law), Section 12.C (Mediation), Section 12.D
(Mandatory Binding Arbitration), Section 12.F (Shetee-ef-FerumConsent to Jurisdiction), and Section
12.J (Attorneys Fees and Costs), are incorporated into this Guarantee by reference and shall govern this
Guarantee and any disputes between the Guarantors and Franchisor. The Guarantors shall reimburse
Franchisor for al costs and expenses it incurs in connection with enforcing the terms of this Guarantee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of the
Effective Date.

GUARANTOR(S) SPOUSE(S)

Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:

Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:
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State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration:
Cdlifornia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New Y ork, North
Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document
isfiled, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

Cdlifornia July-28,2023—asamenrded—— Pending
Hawaii Apri—12—2023—as—amended—Oetober—13;
2023Pending
[llinois Exempt
Indiana AprH-5,-2023-as-amended-Oetoeber-3,-2023Pending
Maryland Adgust—24,—2023—as—amended—Oetober—1;
2023Pending
_— Apri-5,2023—as-amended-October2-2023March
Michigan 30, 2024
Minnesota AprH—26—2023:—as—amended—Oeteber—17
2023Pending
New York Exempt
North Dakota July-6,-2023-as-amended-Oeteber4,-2023Pending
Rhode Island Apri-6,-2023-as-amended-Oetober-5-2023Pending
South Dakota AprH-5,-2023:-as-amended-Oetober2,-2023Pending
WashtrgtenVirgin | Pending
ia
: : Apri4.—2023—asamended-Octeber—4-2023March
Wisconsin 30. 2024

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of afranchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted

marketing plans.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023-102024 FDD | Ex. L — Receipts
1320-0106:002/3927891320.010.003/397905
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RECEIPT
(OUR COPY)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC or
an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale, or sooner if required by applicable state law. Under lowa
law, we must give you this disclosure document at the earlier of our 1st personal meeting or 14 calendar days before
you sign an agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.
Under Michigan law, we must give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of
any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.

If CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified
on Exhibit B.

I ssuance Date: Apri-4,-2023:-as-amended-Oeteber2,-2023March 30, 2024

The franchisor is CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 100, Irvine, California 92614
and at (513) 815-8467. The franchise seller for this offering is:

17877 Von Karman Avenue, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, 17877 Von Karman Avenue,

Suite 100 Suite 100 Suite 100 Suite 100
Irvine, California 92614 Irvine, California 92614 Irvine, California 92614 Irvine, California 92614
(513) 815-8467 (513) 815-8467 (513) 815-8467 (513) 815-8467

See Exhibit B for CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC’ s registered agents authorized to receive service of process.

| have received a disclosure document dated Apri—4—2023:—as-amended-October—22023March 30, 2024 that
included the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A-+  Form of Franchise Agreement and Exhibits Exhibit G Form of General Release
Exhibit B List of State Agents for Service of Process and  Exhibit tH List—of—Current—FranchiscesState
State Administrators Specific Addenda
Exhibit C Financia Statements Exhibit | List of Current FranchiseesTFhat-eft
System
Exhibit D Guaranty of Performance Exhibit &J Development—AgreementList  of
Franchisees That L eft System
Exhibit E Statement of Prospective Franchisee Exhibit EK  ReeeiptsForm of Area Development
Agreement
Exhibit F Table of Contents of Manual Exhibit L Receipts
Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name

Please sign this copy of the receipt, print the date on which you received this disclosure document, and return it, by
mail or email to CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 100, Irvine, California 92614.
Email: salesinfo@xponential.com.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
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RECEIPT
(YOUR COPY)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain
language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to you 14
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC or
an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale, or sooner if required by applicable state law. Under lowa
law, we must give you this disclosure document at the earlier of our 1st personal meeting or 14 calendar days before
you sign an agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.
Under Michigan law, we must give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of
any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occursfirst.

If CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should
be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified
on Exhibit B.

Issuance Date: Apri-4,-2023:-as-amended-Oeteber2,-2023March 30, 2024

The franchisor is CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 100, Irvine, California 92614
and at (513) 815-8467. The franchise seller for this offering is:

17877 Von Karman Avenue, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, 17877 Von Karman Avenue,

Suite 100 Suite 100 Suite 100 Suite 100
Irvine, California 92614 Irvine, California 92614 Irvine, California 92614 Irvine, California 92614
(513) 815-8467 (513) 815-8467 (513) 815-8467 (513) 815-8467

See Exhibit B for CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC’ s registered agents authorized to receive service of process.

| have received a disclosure document dated Apri—4—2023:—as-amended-October—22023March 30, 2024 that
included the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A-t  Form of Franchise Agreement and Exhibits  Exhibit G Form of General Release

BxhibitA-2  Nen-Traditional-Site Addendum BExhkibitH State-Speciic-Addenda
Exhibit B List of State Agents for Service of Process  Exhibit tH Lis—ef—~Current—FranehiseesState
and State Administrators Specific Addenda
Exhibit C Financia Statements Exhibit | List of Current Franchisees—Fhat—teft
System
Exhibit D Guaranty of Performance Exhibit &J Developrment——AgreementList of
Franchisees That L eft System
Exhibit E Statement of Prospective Franchisee Exhibit EK  ReeeiptsForm of Area Development
Agreement
Exhibit F Table of Contents of Manual Exhibit L Receipts
Date Signature Printed Name
Date Signature Printed Name

Please sign this copy of the receipt, print the date on which you received this disclosure document, and return it, by
mail or email to CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC, 17877 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 100, Irvine, California 92614.
Email: salesinfo@xponential.com.

CycleBar Franchising SPV, LLC
2023102024 FDD | Ex. L — Receipts
1320.616:002/3927891320.010.003/397905
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